
Marysville City Council Meeting 
January 26, 2009                                   7:00 p.m.                                      City Hall 

*These items have been added or revised from the materials previously distributed in the packets 
for the January 20, 2009 Work Session. 

 

Call to Order 
 
Invocation 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Roll Call 
 
Committee Reports 
 
Presentations 
 
A.  Employee Service Award.  * 
 
B.   Waste Management Presentation.  * 
 
Audience Participation 
 
Approval of Minutes (Written Comment Only Accepted from Audience.) 
    
1.    Approval of January 12, 2009 City Council Meeting Minutes.  *  
 
Consent  
 
3.    Approval of the P-13 December 31, 2008 Claims in the Amount of $498,965.19; 

Paid by Check No.’s 52592 through 52745 with no Check No.’s Voided. 
 
5.    Approval of the January 7, 2009 Claims in the Amount of $1,188,598.41; Paid by 

Check No.’s 52581 through 52591 with no Check No.’s Voided.  * 
 
6.    Approval of January 14, 2009 Claims in the Amount of $987,623.92; Paid by Check 

No.’s 52746 through 52867 with Check No.’s 50669, 51230, 51390 and 52402 
Voided.* 

 
7.    Approval of January 20, 2009 Payroll in the Amount of $735,370.25; Paid by Check 

No.’s 20867 through 20916.* 
 
9.    Authorize the Mayor to Sign the Comcast Work Order to Expand I-Net 

Infrastructure to the New Fire Administration Building in the Amount of $12,808.00. 
 
12.  Authorize the Mayor to Sign the Professional Services Agreement between City of 

Marysville and Macaulay and Associated, LTD for Consultant Services on the I-5 
Overpass at 156th Street NE Evaluating Potential Local Improvement District (LID) 
in the Amount of $56,200.00. 

 



Marysville City Council Meeting 
January 26, 2009                                   7:00 p.m.                                      City Hall 

*These items have been added or revised from the materials previously distributed in the packets 
for the January 20, 2009 Work Session. 

 

14.  Authorize the Mayor to Sign the Visitor & Community Information Center Services 
Agreement for the Greater Marysville Tulalip Chamber of Commerce & City of 
Marysville.  

 
15.  Approval of a Part Time Confidential Administrative Assistant Position for the Legal 

Department and Placement on the Non-represented Pay Grid at Pay Code N2. 
 
17.  Authorize the Mayor to Sign the Interlocal Cooperative Agreement for Northwest 

Mini-chain Services between the City of Marysville and Whatcom County for 
Prisoner Transport.   

 
Review Bids 
  
8.    Award 2009 Concrete Construction Contract to Merlino Bros., LLC in the Amount 

not to Exceed $200,000 Including Washington State Sales Tax.* 
 
Public Hearings 
 
New Business 
 
10.  Equipment Lease Renewal with Public Utility District No. 1 of Snohomish County for 

Two Transformers for the Period of September 30, 2008 through August 31, 2013 in 
the Amount of $8,766.60. * 

 
11.  Notice of Termination of Lease with Clear Channel/Ackerly Communication.* 
 
13.  An Ordinance of the City of Marysville, Washington, Amending the City’s 

Development Regulation by Adopting Design Standards and Guidelines and 
Streetscape Plan for the East Sunnyside/Whiskey Ridge Master Plan Area and by 
Adopting Chapter 19.14B MMC. 

 
16.  An Ordinance of the City of Marysville, Washington Amending the City’s Code 

Enforcement and Nuisance Regulations and Amending Chapters 4.02 and 6.24 of 
the Marysville Municipal Code.  * 

 
18.   An Ordinance of the City of Marysville, Washington, Amending the 2009 Budget 

and providing for the increase of certain expenditure item as budgeted for in 2009 
and Amending Ordinance No. 2751 and Ordinance No. 2761.* 

 
Legal 
 
Mayor’s Business 

 
Staff Business 
 
Call on Councilmembers 
 



Marysville City Council Meeting 
January 26, 2009                                   7:00 p.m.                                      City Hall 

*These items have been added or revised from the materials previously distributed in the packets 
for the January 20, 2009 Work Session. 

 

 
Adjourn 
 
Executive Session  
 
A.    Litigation 
 
B.    Personnel 
 
C.    Real Estate 
 
Adjourn 
 
Special Accommodations:  The City of Marysville strives to provide accessible meetings 
for people with disabilities.  Please contact Tracy Jeffries, Assistant Administrative 
Services Director, at (360) 363-8000 or 1-800-833-6384 (Voice Relay), 1-800-833-6388 
(TDD Relay) two days prior to the meeting date if any special accommodations are 
needed for this meeting. 



January 12, 2009 7:00 p.m. City Hall 
 

Page 1 of 2 

Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance/Roll Call 7:00 p.m.
Presentations 
Approval of Minutes 
Approval of December 8, 2008 City Council Meeting Minutes Approved
Approval of January 5, 2009 City Council Work Session Minutes. Approved
Consent Agenda  
Approve December 10, 2008 Claims in the Amount of $869,917.09; Paid 
by Check No.’s 52022 through 52162 with Check No. 48119 Voided. 

Approved

Approve December 17, 2008 Claims in the Amount of $242,632.40; Paid 
by Check No.’s 52163 through 52323 with No Check Numbers Voided. 

Approved

Approve December 24, 2008 Claims in the Amount of $989,957.83; Paid 
by Check No.’s 52324 through 52493 with No Check No.’s Voided. 

Approved

Approve December 31, 2008 Claims in the Amount of $1,423,270.86; Paid 
by Check No.’s 52494 through 52580 with Check No.’s 52343, 52354, & 
52483 Voided. 

Approved

Approve December 19, 2008 Payroll in the Amount of $929,203.40; Paid 
by Check No.’s 20756 through 20813. 

Approved

Approve January 5, 2009 Payroll in the Amount of $1,313,728.98; Paid by 
Check No.’s 20814 through 20866. 

Approved

Authorize the Mayor to Sign the Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement 
between Okanogan County, Washington and the City of Marysville, 
Washington, for the Housing of Inmates in the Okanogan County Jail. 

Approved

Authorize the Mayor to Sign the Interlocal Agreement between Snohomish 
County and the City of Marysville for Auto Theft Task Force Services. 

Approved

Review Bids 
Public Hearings 
New Business 
Approve Sixth Amendment to Chief Administrator Officer’s Employment 
Contract. 

Approved

Adopt a Resolution of the City of Marysville Declaring Miscellaneous 
Certain Items of Personal Property to be Surplus and Authorizing the Sale 
or Disposal Thereof. 

Approved
Res. No. 2256

Adopt a Resolution of the City of Marysville Affirming the 
Recommendation of the Hearing Examiner and Granting a Conditional 
Shoreline Substantial Development Permit to Allow Development of a 
Commercial Trucking, Storage and Maintenance Facility. 

Approved
Res. No. 2257

Adopt an Ordinance of the City of Marysville, Washington Amending the 
City’s Code Enforcement and Nuisance Regulations and Amending 
Chapters 4.02 and 6.24 of the Marysville Municipal Code. 

Continued

Adopt an Ordinance of the City of Marysville, Washington, Setting Forth 
the Agreement between the City of Marysville and T-Mobile West 
Corporation, a Delaware Corporation, Granting T-Mobile, Its Successors 
and Assigns a Nonexclusive Franchise to Construct, Operate, Maintain, 
Remove, Replace, and Repair Wireless Facilities within City Right of Way. 

Approved
Ord. No. 2760

Adopt an Ordinance of the City of Marysville Amending the 2009 Budget Approved

Item 1-1



January 12, 2009 7:00 p.m. City Hall 
 

Page 2 of 2 

and providing for the increase of certain expenditure items as budgeted for 
in 2009 and Amending Ordinance No. 2751.   

Ord. No. 2761

Approve Agreement for Services with Allied Employers, Inc. in the Amount 
of $27,058.20.  

Approved

Legal 
Mayor’s Business 
Approve Appointment of Harv Jubie to the Salary Commission.  Approved
Staff Business 
Call on Councilmembers 
Adjournment 8:36 p.m.
Executive Session Held
Real Estate – 3 items, action taken on one item. 
Personnel – 1 item 
Adjournment 
 

Item 1-2



 
1/12/09 City Council Meeting Minutes 

Page 1 of 9 

COUNCIL      MINUTES 
 

Regular Meeting  
January 12, 2009 

 
Call to Order / Invocation / Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Mayor Dennis Kendall called the January 12, 2009 meeting of the Marysville City Council to 
order at 7:00 p.m. at Marysville City Hall and led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Roll Call 
 
Chief Administrative Officer Mary Swenson gave the roll call. The following staff and 
councilmembers were in attendance. 
 
Mayor: Dennis Kendall 
 
Council: Councilmember Jon Nehring, Councilmember Lee Phillips, 

Councilmember Carmen Rasmussen, Councilmember Jeff 
Seibert, Councilmember John Soriano, Councilmember Jeff 
Vaughan and Councilmember Donna Wright 

 
Absent: None 
 
Also Present: Chief Administrative Officer Mary Swenson, Finance 

Director Sandy Langdon, City Attorney Grant Weed, Chief 
Smith, Community Development Director Gloria Hirashima, 
Public Works Director Kevin Nielsen, Parks and Recreation 
Director Jim Ballew, and Recording Secretary Laurie 
Hugdahl. 

 
Committee Reports 
 
Councilmember Rasmussen reported on the recent Library Board meeting.  
 
Presentations 
 
None 
 
Audience Participation 
 
None 
 
Approval of Minutes  

Item 1-3



 
1/12/09 City Council Meeting Minutes 

Page 2 of 9 

 
1. Approval of December 8, 2008 City Council Meeting Minutes. 
 
Councilmember Jeff Vaughan referred to the last paragraph, 5th sentence of the 1st 
page of the minutes. This should be amended to read, “There was also discussion with 
the Tulalip Tribes about getting the 116th Street Bridge clean and keeping it clean.” 
 
Councilmember Phillips referred to page 3 of 8. Under item 4, the second sentence 
should read: “Denise Gritton explained that those are all payments to Bank of America 
on the City’s travel cards for the City’s Bank of America travel cards.” 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Donna Wright, seconded by Councilmember Jeff 
Vaughan to approve the minutes as corrected. Motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
2. Approval of January 5, 2009 City Council Work Session Minutes 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Jon Nehring, seconded by Councilmember Carmen 
Rasmussen, to approve the minutes as presented. Motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
Consent Agenda 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Soriano, seconded by Councilmember Nehring, to 
adopt the Consent Agenda as follows: 
 
3. Approval of December 10, 2008 Claims in the Amount of $869,917.09; Paid by 

Check No.’s 52022 through 52162 with Check No. 48119 Voided.  
 
4. Approval of December 17, 2008 Claims in the Amount of $242,632.40; Paid by 

Check No.’s 52163 through 52323 with No Check Numbers Voided. 
 
5. Approval of December 24, 2008 Claims in the Amount of $989,957.83; Paid by 

Check No.’s 52324 through 52493 with No Check No.’s Voided. 
 
6. Approval of December 31, 2008 Claims in the Amount of $1,423,270.86; Paid by 

Check No.’s 52494 through 52580 with Check No.’s 52343, 52354, & 52483 
Voided.  

 
7. Approval of December 19, 2008 Payroll in the Amount of $929,203.40; Paid by 

Check No.’s 20756 through 20813. 
 
8. Approval of January 5, 2009 Payroll in the Amount of $1,313,728.98; Paid by 

Check No.’s 20814 through 20866.  
 
9. Authorize the Mayor to Sign the Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement between 

Okanogan County, Washington and the City of Marysville, Washington, for the 
Housing of Inmates in the Okanogan County Jail.  

 

Item 1-4



 
1/12/09 City Council Meeting Minutes 

Page 3 of 9 

11. Authorize the Mayor to Sign the Interlocal Agreement between Snohomish 
County and the City of Marysville for Auto Theft Task Force Services. 

 
Motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
Review Bids  
 
None 
 
Public Hearings 
 
None 
 
New Business 
 
10. Sixth Amendment to Chief Administrator Officer’s Employment Contract. 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Nehring, seconded by Councilmember Seibert, to 
approve the contract. Motion passed 6-1 with councilmember Phillips voting against. 
 
12. A Resolution of the City of Marysville Declaring Miscellaneous Certain Items of 

Personal Property to be Surplus and Authorizing the Sale or Disposal Thereof.  
 
Motion made by Councilmember Vaughan, seconded by Councilmember Seibert, to 
adopt Resolution 2256. Motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
13. A Resolution of the City of Marysville Affirming the Recommendation of the 

Hearing Examiner and Granting a Conditional Shoreline Substantial 
Development Permit to Allow Development of a Commercial Trucking, Storage 
and Maintenance Facility. 

 
Gloria Hirashima noted that she had distributed the map that shows the access pork 
chop and the trail as requested earlier by Council. 
 
Councilmember Seibert asked if the trail would go up to where the new bridge would be. 
Director Hirashima indicated that it would. 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Wright, seconded by Councilmember Rasmussen, to 
adopt Resolution 2257. Motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
14.  An Ordinance of the City of Marysville, Washington Amending the City’s Code 

Enforcement and Nuisance Regulations and Amending Chapters 4.02 and 6.24 
of the Marysville Municipal Code. 

 
Mayor Kendall explained that this ordinance is not ready to go to vote, but audience 
input would be taken. The vote will occur at the next regular meeting on January 26.  
 

Item 1-5



 
1/12/09 City Council Meeting Minutes 

Page 4 of 9 

Community Development Director Hirashima verbally reviewed potential changes: 
• Definition for heavy commercial vehicles – “vehicles exceeding 6,000 pounds” 
• Definition for the term “screened” – substitute something such as “sight-

obscuring fencing or landscaping” 
• Ordinance p. 10 of 17 – after item C, “pursuant to section 9 below” in reference to 

the appeal process 
• Cross reference on the graffiti section Ordinance p. 14 of 17, item 10 
• Section 11, p. 14 of 17, first sentence refers to “motor vehicles” 
• Addition of language, section E - Vehicles displaying collector vehicle plates are 

exempt. 
• Possibility of differentiation of rural lots and neighborhood lots.  

 
Director Hirashima distributed copies of an email from Mike Gribler who had responded 
with several comments to the code. 
 
Public Comment: 
 
Mike Gribler, 8117 75th Street NE, Marysville, thanked Gloria Hirashima, Paul Rochon, 
Grant Weed and the rest of staff who worked on this for the work they have done. He 
was very pleased with the progress that has been made. His specific comments were 
addressed in his email. He clarified that he was in favor of having a 6-month limit on 
expired tabs (as opposed to the proposed 12-month limit). He would like to have more 
discussion about whether or not this code is really enforceable in his particular case. 
 
Les Hoge, 8010 75th Street NE, Marysville, spoke in support of the code amendments. 
He asked if tractors would be included in the disabled/unused vehicles category. Grant 
Weed stated that as long as it has an engine in it, it would fall under that section. 
 
Council Comments and Questions: 
 
Councilmember Nehring referred to 11B. He agreed that 12 months might be a bit long 
for expired tabs. Staff explained that this length of time was consistent with the other 
codes reviewed. 
 
Councilmember Rasmussen addressed the following: 

• Item 11 - Is the standard 14 days or six months? 
• Regarding the tractor – might need a more specific definition of motor vehicles. 

Are boats included? 
• Many nuisances are not visible from the street, but are very visible to residents 

from their backyard, especially on the hillsides. This code does not address that. 
• She shared Councilmember Wright’s concern about large portions of the UGA 

that would not be in compliance with this. She thought it would be fair to have 
some sort of delay in enforcement for new annexation areas. 

 
Councilmember Seibert had the following comments:  

• He expressed several concerns about item 11 on page 14 of 17. 

Item 1-6



 
1/12/09 City Council Meeting Minutes 

Page 5 of 9 

• Item 12, regarding vegetation – He did not feel it was the City’s place to tell 
people how to landscape their property. 

• He asked what the County requires for some of these topics. He thought this 
would be a good way to deal with the UGA issues. 

 
Councilmember Nehring asked how boats are currently handled. Director Hirashima did 
not think they were included in this ordinance since they cannot “motor” on their own. 
She suggested language options available to Council. 
 
Councilmember Phillips agreed with looking at the County code and also including a 
grace period for new annexation areas. Regarding screening he suggested looking at 
the building code for a definition of screening. Director Hirashima replied that they 
generally use “six-foot high fencing or sight obscuring landscaping” as the definition. 
Councilmember Phillips suggested referencing the building code within the ordinance. 
 
Councilmember Wright expressed concern about 14, 17, 21, and possibly 22 being 
overreaching.  

• 14 – Should patios, decks and similar structures be included here? Who makes 
the determination that they are structurally sound and in good repair? 

• 17 – Fences – Many fences are in disrepair. Who is going to be checking on 
those? 

• 21 – Should driveways and parking areas really be included here? 
• 22 – Swimming pools – This is on private property. It should be left to the 

property owner.  
 
Councilmember Rasmussen was in favor of striking the “14 days”. She agreed with 
Councilmember Seibert on the 12-foot vegetation issue. She suggested striking number 
12 altogether or making the wording much less stringent. 
 
There was consensus to strike the second sentence on item 11 and to delete item 11b. 
 
Councilmember Seibert recommended removing the requirement to display tabs and 
the requirement to drive the vehicle on a regular basis. City Attorney Grant Weed 
suggested looking at the state law regarding abandoned and junk vehicles to see how 
this is defined. 
 
Councilmember Phillips concurred with deleting item 11b.  
 
Paul Rochon stated that the county code is even a little stricter than the City’s code. He 
reviewed the county code. He stressed that their enforcement is generated by citizen 
complaints. 
 
There was consensus to add a provision to the first sentence allow a repair period of no 
greater than 30 days. 
 

Item 1-7



 
1/12/09 City Council Meeting Minutes 

Page 6 of 9 

Regarding vegetation, Councilmember Nehring commented on the rodent problem 
associated with overgrown vegetation. He was in favor of leaving item 12, but 
expressed interest in having different standards for rural properties. 
 
Donna Wright thought that the rodent issue was taken care of in item 20. She 
recommended deleting item 12. 
 
Councilmember Rasmussen recommended clarifying item 12 to refer to a certain 
percentage of the lot.  
 
Councilmember Vaughan commented that number 12 is not a rat issue; it refers to the 
effect that unmaintained properties can have on neighboring properties. He pointed out 
that this is already on the books and has been working relatively well. He encouraged 
Council to leave it in. 
 
Councilmember Seibert felt that this was overreaching and left open the potential for 
neighbors to harass one another with these requirements. 
 
Councilmember Phillips concurred with Councilmember Vaughan and also with the 
potential for spiteful behavior between neighbors. 
 
Councilmember Seibert asked for clarification regarding item 26. There was discussion 
about the intent of this. 
 
Councilmember Soriano asked if item 12 should refer to the fire code. Mr. Rochon 
stated that it should not. 
 
Gloria Hirashima indicated she would bring back a redlined version next week. 
 
15. An Ordinance of the City of Marysville, Washington, Setting Forth the Agreement 

between the City of Marysville and T-Mobile West Corporation, a Delaware 
Corporation, Granting T-Mobile, Its Successors and Assigns a Nonexclusive 
Franchise to Construct, Operate, Maintain, Remove, Replace, and Repair 
Wireless Facilities within City Right of Way.   

 
Director Hirashima referred to Addendum, 15-28, Section 5, the Payment section should 
clarify that the annual payment is in lieu of monthly payments. 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Nehring, seconded by Councilmember Wright, to 
approve Ordinance 2760. Motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
16. An Ordinance of the City of Marysville Amending the 2009 Budget and providing 

for the increase of certain expenditure items as budgeted for in 2009 and 
Amending Ordinance No. 2751.   

 
Finance Director Sandy Langdon referred to the memo which clarifies the changes 
being made.  

Item 1-8



 
1/12/09 City Council Meeting Minutes 

Page 7 of 9 

 
Motion made by Councilmember Wright, seconded by Councilmember Soriano, to 
approve Ordinance 2761. Motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
17. Agreement for Services with Allied Employers, Inc. in the Amount of $27,058.20.   
 
CAO Swenson explained this is the standard contract with Allied who does labor 
negotiations for the City. 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Nehring, seconded by Councilmember Vaughan, to 
approve the Agreement. Motion passed unanimously (7-0).  
 
Legal 
 
None 
 
Mayor’s Business 
 
Mayor Kendall will be out of town next week. Mayor Pro Tem Seibert will chair the Work 
Session. 
 
Approve Mayor’s recommendation to confirm the appointment of Harvey Jubie to 
the Salary Commission to fulfill a term to June 23, 2011. 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Wright, seconded by Councilmember Vaughan, to 
approve the appointment. Motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
Staff Business 
 
Kevin Nielsen reported that there was a shut down from the Everett water supply over 
the weekend with little or no effect on Marysville. Marysville provided water to the City of 
Snohomish over the weekend as a result of the flooding there. Marysville also 
supported the City of Stanwood by sending Vactor trucks to help with some issues 
related to flooding. There were very few events related to flooding within the city. 
 
Chief Smith had no comments. 
 
Jim Ballew: 

• Allen Creek is pretty much back to normal after loss of access to Jennings.  
• Most of the fields at Strawberry Fields were submerged on Thursday. On Friday 

they were dry. 
• Father Daughter dance tickets are available now. 220 tickets were sold today. 
• Healthy Communities Open Swim Night has been changed to February 20.  
• Healthy Communities Leadership Committee will reconvene on January 22. 

 

Item 1-9



 
1/12/09 City Council Meeting Minutes 

Page 8 of 9 

Sandy Langdon reminded Council that there would be a finance committee this 
Wednesday. She discussed the IRS requirements to withhold 3% of vendor payments. 
 
Gloria Hirashima noted that the Planning Commission has requested a joint workshop 
with the Council, especially to discuss impact fees, with a tentative date of February 2. 
 
Grant Weed addressed the need to have an Executive Session to discuss three matters 
concerning real property acquisition and one personnel matter concerning position 
qualifications. Action was expected on one property item. The estimated time for the 
Executive Session was 25 minutes.  
 
Mary Swenson: 

• She commended Mike Robinson for noticing a small hole in one of the dykes, 
which actually turned out to be a much larger issue. This was noticed and 
repaired the day before the major flooding began.  

• Marysville sent an email to Stanwood, Arlington, and Snohomish to offer support 
during the storm event. We were able to support Stanwood. 

• Strawberry Fields handled the flooding very well. 
• She thanked the Council for approval of her contract. 

 
Call on Councilmembers 
 
Jeff Vaughan had no comments. 
 
Donna Wright had no comments. 
 
Jon Nehring had no comments. 
 
John Soriano had no comments. 
 
Lee Phillips had no comments. 
 
Carmen Rasmussen thanked Gloria for her work with neighbors on the nuisance 
ordinance. She also thanked Mary for spending another year with the City. 
 
Jeff Seibert had no comments. 
 
Adjournment 
 
Mayor Kendall recessed the meeting at 8:36 p.m. until 8:45 p.m. at which time it 
reconvened into Executive Session to discuss one personnel item to review the 
performance of a public employee pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1)(g) and three real 
estate items to discuss the acquisition of real property pursuant to RCW 
42.30.110(1)(b). 
 
 

Item 1-10



 
1/12/09 City Council Meeting Minutes 

Page 9 of 9 

Executive Session 
 
A. Litigation 
 
B. Personnel – 1 item  
 
C. Real Estate – 3 items, action taken on one 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Seibert, seconded by Councilmember Wright, to 
authorize the Mayor to enter into a settlement agreement for the acquisition of real 
property with Gibbs for the Bayview Trail in an amount not to exceed the appraised 
value plus Gibbs attorney’s fees not to exceed $2500.  Motion passed unanimously 
(7-0).  
 
Adjournment 
 
Seeing no further business Mayor Kendall adjourned the meeting at 9:10 p.m. 
 
 
Approved this _______ day of ___________________, 2009. 
 
 
____________________ ____________________  
Mayor Asst. Admin. Svcs. Director 
Dennis Kendall Tracy Jeffries  
 

Item 1-11



CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: January 26, 2009 

AGENDA ITEM: 
Claims 

AGENDA SECTION: 

AGENDA NUMBER: 

APPROVED BY)rJ_ 

PREPARED BY: 
Sandy Langdon, Finance Director 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Claims Listings 

MAYOR ICAO 

AMOUNT:BUDGET CODE: 

Please see attached. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

The Finance and Executive Departments recommend City Council approve the P-13 
December 31, 2008 claims in the amount of $498,965.19 paid by Check No.'s 52592 
through 52745 with no Check No.'s voided. 

COUNCIL ACTION: 

Item 3-1



BLANKET CERTIFICATION 
CLAIMS 

FOR 
PERIOD-13 

I, THE UNDERSIGNED, DO HEREBY CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY THAT THE 
MATERIALS HAVE BEEN FURNISHED, THE SERVICES RENDERED OR THE LABOR PERFORMED 
AS DESCRIBED HEREIN AND THAT THE CLAIMS IN THE AMOUNT OF $498,965.19 PAID 
BY CHECK NO.'S 52592 THROUGH 52745 WITH NO CHECK NUMBER'S VOIDED ARE JUST, 
DUE AND UNPAID OBLIGATIONS AGAINST THE CITY OF MARYSVILLE, AND THAT I AM 
AUTHORIZED TO AUTHENTICATE AND TO CERTIFY SAID CLAIMS. 

MAYOR DATE 

WE, THE UNDERSIGNED COUNCIL MEMBERS OF MARYSVILLE, WASHINGTON DO HEREBY 
31stAPPROVE FOR PAYMENT THE ABOVE MENTIONED CLAIMS ON THIS DAY OF DECEMBER 

2008. 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER 

COUNCIL MEMBER
 

Item 3-2



DATE: 1/7/2009 CITY OF MARYSVILLE PAGE: 1 
TIME: 1:05:36PM INVOICE LIST 

FOR INVOICES FROM 1/5/2009 TO 1/5/2009 
ITEM 

CHK# VENDOR ITEM DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT # AMOUNT 

52592 ACE ACME SEPTIC SERVICE INC SEPTIC PUMP SRVC/DISPOSAL 00105380.541000. 454.07 
52593 ADVANTAGE BUILDING SERVICES EXTRA CLEANING @ KBSCC 00105250.535000. 144.00 

ADVANTAGE BUILDING SERVICES 00105250.541000. 72.00 
52594 AIRGAS NOR PAC GROUND TENT 40142480.535000. 1,073.07 
52595 ALBERTSONS FOOD CENTER #471 SUPPLIES FOR PARKS & KBSCC 00105120.531070.ASAP 13.50 

ALBERTSONS FOOD CENTER #471 00105120.531080. 56.39 
ALBERTSONS FOOD CENTER #471 00105120.531090. 21.86 
ALBERTSONS FOOD CENTER #471 00105250.531050. 11.32 
ALBERTSONS FOOD CENTER #471 00105250.531050. 111.74 

52596 ROY A ALDERMAN REIMBURSE MILEAGE 40143410.543010. 39.90 
52597 AMSAN SEATTLE JANITORIAL SUPPLIES-PSB 00100010.531400. 534.45 

AMSAN SEATTLE LIQUID ICE MELT 10111766.531000. 5,619.24 
AMSAN SEATTLE JANITORIAL SUPPLIES-PW ADMIN 40143410.531200. 336.90 
AMSAN SEATTLE JANITORIAL SUPPLIES-PW SHOP 40143780.531000. 270.88 
AMSAN SEATTLE WYPALL WIPES 501.141100. 211.22 

52598 ANGELOS SUPPLIES INC ENGINE/THROTTLE CONTROL MOTOR 501.231700. -90.37 
ANGELOS SUPPLIES INC 50100065.534000. 1,153.53 

52599 ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES MAT CLEANING-WWTP 40142480.541000. 11.53 
ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES 40142480.541000. 11.53 
ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES MAT CLEANING-MEZZANINE 40143780.549000. 16.44 
ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES 40143780.549000. 16.44 
ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES 40143780.549000. 25.77 
ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES 40143780.549000. 25.77 
ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES UNIFORM CLEANING 50100065.526000. 61.38 
ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES 50100065.526000. 61.38 

52600 B&H PHOTO VIDEO PHOTO-VIDEO EQUIPMENT 108.231700. -336.40 
B&H PHOTO VIDEO 10800080.549000.0838 4,294.05 

52601 BAG BOY BAG 420.141100. 112.00 
BAG BOY RAIN CANOPIES 420.141100. 175.50 

BAG BOY CARTS 420.141100. 393.00 

BAG BOY BAGS & CARTS 420.141100. 487.90 

BAG BOY BAGS,CARTS,UMBRELLA HLDRS 420.141100. 707.42 
52602 NORTH SEATTLE BATTERY VENTURE 12V REPLACEMENT BATTERIES 50300090.535000. 200.37 
52603 OWEN EQUIPMENT COMPANY FOOTAGE COUNTER & MEASURE 40145040.548000. 812.64 

52604 BETTY 1. BERGER REFUND DUE TO WEATHER 00110347.376021. 12.00 
52605 BICKFORD FORD-MERCURY BRAKE PAD SET 501.141100. 147.69 

BICKFORD FORD-MERCURY WIPER MOTOR MOUNTS,CLIPS 50100065.534000. 65.94 
BICKFORD FORD-MERCURY WIPER MOTOR 50100065.534000. 103.66 
BICKFORD FORD-MERCURY HEATER FAN MOTOR 50100065.534000. 120.06 
BICKFORD FORD-MERCURY SENSORS, CONVERTER,HDR PIPE 50100065.534000. 1,516.61 

52606 BILLS BLUEPRINT INC LG DOC COLOR SCAN 40145040.549000. 1,682.84 
52607 RICK BJARNSON REFUND DEPOSIT FOR RENTAL 001.239100. 58.00 

52608 BRANOM INSTRUMENT CO PART FOR WEST TRUNK FLOW MTR 40142480.548000. 1,500.12 

52609 NIKKI BRISTOL REFUND DEPOSIT FOR RENTAL 001.239100. 58.00 
52610 MARYKE BURGESS REIMBURSE HOLIDAY CIDftR. SUPPLY 00105250.531050. 59.87 

MARYKE BURGESS 00105250.531051. 35.50 

52611 LINDA CAMPBELL REFUND DUE TO WEATHER 00110347.376021. 12.00 
52612 CARR'S ACE HARDWARE PHOTO CELL LT,HOLIDAY LIGHTS 00105380.531000. 57.37 

CARR'S ACE HARDWARE SURVEY TAPE,SCREWDRVR SET,BOX 10111864.535000. 49.84 

CARR'S ACE HARDWARE TORCH HEAD,BOTTLE 40141580.531000. 47.72 

CARR'S ACE HARDWARE HOSE FTGS,COUPLERS,BARBS 40142480.531300. 18.47 

CARR'S ACE HARDWARE HOSE BIB,TUBES OF SEALANT 40142480.548000. 22.73 

52613 VICKI CARVER INSTRUCTOR SERVICES 00105120.541020. 166.60 

VICKI CARVER 00105120.541020. 291.55 

52614 CASCADE MACHINERY & ELECTRIC INC ANNUAL MAINT SRVC FOR SAND CON 40142480.548000. 2,183.24 

52615 CHELAN COUNTY TREASURER INMATE HOUSING NOV 2008 00103960.551000. 5,555.00 

52616 KARl CHENNAULT REIMBURSE LUNCH/TRAINING 40145040.549000. 25.88 

Item 3-3



DATE: 1/7/2009 CITY OF MARYSVILLE PAGE: 2
TIME: 1:05:36PM INVOICE LIST 

FOR INVOICES FROM 1/5/2009 TO 1/5/2009 
ITEM 

CHK# VENDOR ITEM DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT # AMOUNT 

52617 CITY TREASURER EVERETI WA WTER/FILTRATION SERVICES 40140080.533000. 83,482.19 
52618 CNR, INC PUBLIC SAFETY CALL SRVR UPGRAD 00100011.564000. 11,938.26 

CNR, INC (10) IP LICENSES 00103121.542000. 108.50 
CNR, INC PHONE/ 5212 PHONE 00103121.542000. 160.58 
CNR, INC (10) IP LICENSES 00103222.526000. 108.50 
CNR, INC 00105515.549000. 217.00 
CNR, INC PHONE/ 5212 PHONE 00105515.549000. 321.16 
CNR, INC (10) IP LICENSES 10111230.542000. 108.50 
CNR,INC PHONE/ 5212 PHONE 50300090.535000. 160.58 
CNR, INC (10) IP LICENSES 50300090.542000. 542.50 

52619 CODE PUBLISHING INC MUNICIPAL CODE UPDATE-CD 00102020.531000. 124.78 
52620 COLUMBIA PAINT & COATINGS TAPE,PAINT CVRS,FRAME,LINERS 00101250.531000. 124.13 
52621 MERRITI SCOTI CONNER INSTRUCTOR SERVICES 00105250.541020. 24.00 
52622 CONSOLIDATED ELECTRIAL DlST INC BULBS 00112572.531000. 142.82 
52623 CO-OP SUPPLY STRAW,BUNGEE CORDS 00105380.531000. 60.59 

CO-OP SUPPLY REFUND/SALT 10111766.531000. -971.32 
CO-OP SUPPLY SALT 10111766.531000. 971.32 
CO-OP SUPPLY SNOW CHAIN BUNGEE CORDS 50100065.534000. 193.67 

52624 CORPORATE EXPRESS INC VIDEO/AUDIO SUPPLIES 00103121.531000. 95.37 
52625 CRYSTAL SPRINGS WATER COOLER RENTALIWATER 40142480.531330. 123.73 
52626 CUZ CONCRETE PRODUCTS CONCRETE VAULT ELECTRICAL 40220594.563000.W0807 3,873.28 
52627 DAY-TIMERS INC 2009 CALENDARS 00102020.531000. 87.58 
52628 DICKS TOWING INC TOWING EXPENSE #212 TO SHOP 50100065.548000. 70.52 
52629 DUNLAP INDUSTRIAL ASPHALT BIT 40142080.531000. 426.23 
52630 DUTION ELECTRIC CO., INC. WEST PUMP STATION WORK 40142280.548000. 519.63 

DUTION ELECTRIC CO., INC. ADD TRANSDUCER TO WET WELL 40142280.548000. 2,689.31 
DUTION ELECTRIC CO., INC. ELECTRICAL WORK TO FLOW METER 40142480.548000. 1,548.78 
DUTION ELECTRIC CO., INC. NEW POWER OUTLET FOR THERMO 40143780.548000. 718.16 
DUTION ELECTRIC CO., INC. PSB LOWER ETHERNET 40220594.563000.W0621 462.86 
DUTION ELECTRIC CO., INC. SUNNYSIDE WELL SITE WORK 40220594.563000.W0621 673.49 

52631 E&E LUMBER INC SCREWDRIVERS,HAMMERS,BAR,PIPE 40140280.535000. 100.38 
E&E LUMBER INC SPRAY TEX,SAND PAPER,SCREEN 40143410.531000. 47.01 
E&E LUMBER INC SHEETROCK,SCREWS 40143410.531000. 73.35 

52632 EDGE ANALYTICAL INC LAB SAMPLES-MISC LOCATIONS 40140780.541000. 1,264.00 
52633 ELECTRICAL ENERGY CONTRACTORS INC PUMP REPAIR 40140180.541000. 480.48 
52634 THE DAILY HERALD COMPANY ANNUAL SUBSCRIPTION-KBSCC 00105250.549000. 144.00 
52635 EVERETI HYDRAULICS INC LINE BORE BACKHOE STICK 50100065.548000. 1,476.96 
52636 EVERETI STAMP WORKS CD DATE STAMP 00102020.531000. 59.46 
52637 CITY OF EVERETI CHLORINEIPOWER MTR COSTS 40142480.531320. 2,450.00 

CITY OF EVERETI LAB ANALYSIS 40142480.541000. 1,915.50 
CITY OF EVERETI CHLORlNEIPOWER MTR COSTS 40142480.547000. 17,690.52 
CITY OF EVERETI 40142480.548000. 2,018.28 
CITY OF EVERETI LAB ANALYSIS 40145040.553100. 144.00 

52638 FEDEX SHIPPING EXPENSE 00143523.549000. 17.19 
FEDEX 10111230.549000. 11.81 

52639 JOSEPH FINLEY REIMBURSE MILEAGE 50300090.543000. 85.53 
52640 CHRIS FLOYD INSTRUCTOR SERVICES 00105120.541020. 2,367.64 

CHRIS FLOYD 00105120.541020. 2,408.71 
52641 FOOTJOY SOFT SHELL JACKET 420.141100. 67.02 

FOOTJOY GOLF SHOES 420.141100. 113.44 
52642 G&H AUTO ELECTRIC REB ALTERNATOR 50100065.534000. 208.27 

52643 GENERAL CHEMICAL CORP ALUM SULFATE 11.825 40142480.531320. 4,134.89 

GENERAL CHEMICAL CORP ALUM SULFATE 11.937 40142480.531320. 4,174.06 

52644 GENUINE AUTO GLASS OF EVERETI, LLC REPLACE WINDSHIELD (PI07) 50100065.548000. 207.20 

GENUINE AUTO GLASS OF EVERETI, LLC REPLACE WINDSHIELD (P I08) 50100065.548000. 207.20 

GENUINE AUTO GLASS OF EVERETI, LLC REPLACE WINDSHIELD (PI12) 50100065.548000. 207.20 

52645 GOBLE SAMPSON ASSOCIATES INC. MARPRENE TUBING 40140180.548000. 503.99 

Item 3-4



DATE: 1/7/2009 CITY OF MARYSVILLE PAGE: 3 TIME: 1:05:36PM INVOICE LIST 
FOR INVOICES FROM 1/5/2009 TO 1/5/2009 

ITEM 
CHK# VENDOR ITEM DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT # AMOUNT 
52646 GOLDEN CORAL EMPLOYEE APPRECIATION LUNCHEOJ 00100310.549010. 21.70 
52647 GRAlNGER INC EXHAUST FAN 00100010.531000. 91.54 

GRAINGER INC GLOVES,PUMP,EXTRACTOR SET 40140780.535000. 133.25 
GRAINGER INC DOUBLE TIER LOCKER 40143410.531000. 391.09 
GRAlNGER INC HYD PRESSURE GAUGE 50100065.534000. 158.05 

52648 GRAY AND OSBORNE PAY ESTIMATE # 20 40143410.541000. 2,710.93 
GRAY AND OSBORNE PAY ESTIMATE # 9 40220594.563000.W0808 543.82 

52649 GRAYBAR ELECTRIC CO INC FREIGHT CHARGES 10111864.531000. 68.91 
52650 GREG RAIRDON'S DODGE CHRYSLER JEEP O-RING 50100065.534000. 1.69 

GREG RAlRDON'S DODGE CHRYSLER JEEP DOME LIGHT SWITCH 50100065.534000. 7.92 
GREG RAIRDON'S DODGE CHRYSLER JEEP TRANS FILTER 50100065.534000. 17.13 
GREG RAIRDON'S DODGE CHRYSLER JEEP PARKING BRAKE RELEASE HANDLE 50100065.534000. 26.93 
GREG RAIRDON'S DODGE CHRYSLER JEEP LEFT TAILLIGHT ASSEMBLY 50100065.534000. 97.31 
GREG RAlRDON'S DODGE CHRYSLER JEEP DOOR SEAL ASSEMBLY 50100065.534000. 107.82 
GREG RAlRDON'S DODGE CHRYSLER JEEP REPAIR TRANS SHIFT LEVER 50100065.548000. 470.12 

52651 BURTON GUNDERSON REIMBURSE MILEAGEIINSPECTIONS 10111230.549000. 28.05 
52652 KRISTIE GUY HRCI RECERT FEE REIMBURSE 00100310.549000. 100.00 
52653 H & L SPORTING GOODS (34) BASKETBALLS 00105120.531090. 273.96 
52654 HACH COMPANY TABLCAL STD,DPD FREE CHLORINE 40141580.531320. 956.57 

HACH COMPANY CHLORINE ANLZR TOTAL CL17 W.RG 40142480.548000. 3,461.1 0 
52655 HART CROWSER, INC PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 00105380.548000. 449.14 

HART CROWSER, INC 00105380.548000. 2,457.26 
52656 ANDREA HARTLAND KINGSFORD REIMBURSE SNACKS FOR ASAP PROG 00105120.531070.ASAP 389.40 
52657 ROSE HAYES INSTRUCTOR SERVICES 00105250.541020. 14.00 
52658 HD FOWLER COMPANY GAUGE 40140280.531000. 26.70 

HD FOWLER COMPANY RETAINER,GASKET,BOLTS 40140680.531000. 223.64 
HD FOWLER COMPANY VALVE,TEES,SLEEVES,GSKTS,KIT 40140680.531000. 3,706.24 
HD FOWLER COMPANY PVC 40140980.531000. 705.25 
HD FOWLER COMPANY 2" BRASS BALL VALVE 40141580.548000. 37.65 

52659 HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS, LTD CTSINSERTS 40140580.531000. 16.47 
52660 HDR ENGINEERING, INC. PAY ESTIMATE # 20 4014341O.541000.W0704 28,118.48 
52661 ROSA MARIA HERNANDEZ REFUND DEPOSIT FOR RENTAL 001.239100. 58.00 
52662 PRUDY HODGIN REFUND DUE TO WEATHER 00110347.376021. 12.00 
52663 MARGARET HOPKINS 00110347.376021. 12.00 
52664 HOUSE OF UPHOLSTERY REB SEAT ASSEMBLY 50100065.548000. 667.28 
52665 lOS CAPITAL COPIER CHARGES 00100020.545000. 83.76 

lOS CAPITAL 00100020.545000. 223.12 
lOS CAPITAL 00100050.545000. 118.27 
lOS CAPITAL 00100050.545000. 220.26 
lOS CAPITAL 00100110.545000. 83.98 
lOS CAPITAL 00100110.545000. 267.34 
lOS CAPITAL 00100310.545000. 83.99 
lOS CAPITAL 00100310.545000. 137.80 
lOS CAPITAL 00100720.545000. 114.58 
lOS CAPITAL 00101023.545000. 304.42 
lOS CAPITAL 00101130.545000. 304.42 
lOS CAPITAL 00102020.545000. 13.57 
lOS CAPITAL 00102020.545000. 74.38 
lOS CAPITAL 00102020.545000. 146.59 
lOS CAPITAL 00102020.545000. 192.05 
lOS CAPITAL 00103121.545000. 321.16 
lOS CAPITAL 00103222.545000. 33.16 

lOS CAPITAL 00103960.545000. 163.84 

lOS CAPITAL 00104190.545000. 58.59 
lOS CAPITAL 00104190.545000. 379.75 

lOS CAPITAL 00104190.545000. 582.65 

lOS CAPITAL 00105250.545000. 22.79 

Item 3-5



DATE: 1/7/2009 
TIME: 1:05:36PM 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
INVOICE LIST 

PAGE: 4 

FOR INVOICES FROM 1/5/2009 TO 1/5/2009 
ITEM 

CHK# VENDOR ITEM DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT # AMOUNT 
52665 lOS CAPITAL COPIER CHARGES 00105380.545000. 321.I6 

lOS CAPITAL 00143523.545000. 272.93 
lOS CAPITAL 40142480.545000. 42.87 
lOS CAPITAL 40143410.545000. 13.57 
lOS CAPITAL 40143410.545000. 74.38 
lOS CAPITAL 40143410.545000. 105.79 
lOS CAPITAL 40143410.545000. 105.80 
lOS CAPITAL 40143410.545000. 146.58 
lOS CAPITAL 40143410.545000. 192.04 
lOS CAPITAL 40143410.545000. 238.27 
lOS CAPITAL 42047165.545000. 21.70 
lOS CAPITAL 50100065.545000. 20.94 
lOS CAPITAL 50100065.545000. 86.43 
lOS CAPITAL 50200050.545000. 20.94 

52666 lOS CAPITAL COPIER IMAGE CHARGES 00100020.545000. 19.68 
lOS CAPITAL 00100020.545000. 255.18 
lOS CAPITAL 00100050.545000. 41.94 
lOS CAPITAL 00100050.545000. 77.88 
lOS CAPITAL 00100110.545000. 6.84 
lOS CAPITAL 00100110.545000. 307.69 
lOS CAPITAL 00100310.545000. 6.84 
lOS CAPITAL 00100310.545000. 72.80 
lOS CAPITAL 00100720.545000. 131.87 
lOS CAPITAL 00101023.545000. 24.80 
lOS CAPITAL 00101130.545000. 24.80 
lOS CAPITAL 00102020.545000. 19.80 
lOS CAPITAL 00102020.545000. 34.44 
lOS CAPITAL 00102020.545000. 85.06 
lOS CAPITAL 00102020.545000. 201.62 
lOS CAPITAL 00103121.545000. 162.10 
lOS CAPITAL 00103222.545000. 26.46 
lOS CAPITAL 00103960.545000. 5.85 
lOS CAPITAL 00104190.545000. 12.67 
lOS CAPITAL 00104190.545000. 99.48 
lOS CAPITAL 00104190.545000. 473.66 
lOS CAPITAL 00105250.545000. 8.46 
lOS CAPITAL 00105380.545000. 69.97 
lOS CAPITAL 00143523.545000. 22.23 
lOS CAPITAL 40142480.545000. 13.32 
lOS CAPITAL 40143410.545000. 5.27 
lOS CAPITAL 40143410.545000. 5.27 
lOS CAPITAL 40143410.545000. 19.80 
lOS CAPITAL 40143410.545000. 34.44 
lOS CAPITAL 40143410.545000. 43.55 
lOS CAPITAL 40143410.545000. 85.06 
lOS CAPITAL 40143410.545000. 201.61 
lOS CAPITAL 42047165.545000. 8.92 
lOS CAPITAL 50100065.545000. 4.92 
lOS CAPITAL 50100065.545000. 12.11 
lOS CAPITAL 50200050.545000. 4.92 

52667 IMPERIAL HEADWEAR INC LOGOED HATS 420.141100. 719.00 
52668 INFILCO DEGREMONT, INC. WIPER RlNGS,LAMPS,BUMPERS 40142480.548000. 2,485.65 

INFILCO DEGREMONT, INC. UV LAMPS,DATA CONTROL ASSY 40142480.548000. 6,526.81 

52669 JET PLUMBING REPAIR SINKS/TOILET-JAIL 00100010.548000. 286.23 
JET PLUMBING REPLACE HOT WATER TANK/PLUMB 40143410.548000. 2,315.06 

52670 KAMAN INDUSTRIAL TECHNOLOGIES SEALS 40142480.548000. 369.84 

52671 RYAN M. KEEFE REIMBURSE MEAUSNOW REMOVAL 10111230.549000. 13.00 

Item 3-6



DATE: 1/7/2009 CITY OF MARYSVILLE PAGE: 5 TIME: 1:05:36PM INVOICE LIST
 
FOR INVOICES FROM 1/5/2009 TO 1/5/2009
 

CHK# VENDOR 

52672 KEN TYACKE 

52673 KESSELRINGS GUN SHOP INC 

52674 JANIS LAMOUREUX 
52675 LASTING IMPRESSIONS INC 

LASTING IMPRESSIONS INC 

52676 LES SCHWAB TIRE CENTER 

LES SCHWAB TIRE CENTER 

LES SCHWAB TIRE CENTER 

52677 DEPT OF LICENSING 

DEPT OF LICENSING 

DEPT OF LICENSING 

DEPT OF LICENSING 
52678 LOWES HIW INC 

52679 MACAULAY & ASSOCIATES INC 
52680 MARYSVILLE PRINTING 

52681 MARYSVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT #25 

52682 CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

52683 SHEILA MCCALLISTER 

52684 MCCONNELL & ASSOC 

52685 MCEVOY OIL CO. 
MCEVOY OIL CO. 

52686 LOGAN MESTON 

52687 COREY MILLER 

52688 JENNIFER MILLETT 
52689 NEXTEL COMMUNICATIONS 

NEXTEL COMMUNICATIONS 

NEXTEL COMMUNICATIONS 

NEXTEL COMMUNICATIONS 
NEXTEL COMMUNICATIONS 

NEXTEL COMMUNICATIONS 

NEXTEL COMMUNICATIONS 
NEXTEL COMMUNICATIONS 

NEXTEL COMMUNICATIONS 

NEXTEL COMMUNICATIONS 

NEXTEL COMMUNICATIONS 
NEXTEL COMMUNICATIONS 
NEXTEL COMMUNICATIONS 

NEXTEL COMMUNICATIONS 

NEXTEL COMMUNICATIONS 

NEXTEL COMMUNICATIONS 
NEXTEL COMMUNICATIONS 

NEXTEL COMMUNICATIONS 

NEXTEL COMMUNICATIONS 
NEXTEL COMMUNICATIONS 
NEXTEL COMMUNICATIONS 

NEXTEL COMMUNICATIONS 

ITEM DESCRIPTION 

REIMBURSE MEAUSNOW REMOVAL 

(8) NIGHT SITE COLT AR 15
 

REIMBURSE MILEAGE TO SNO CO
 
(61) T-SHIRTS
 

(34) B-BALL CAMP SHIRTS
 

(12) SETS OF TIRE CHAINS
 

(32) SETS OF TIRE CHAINS
 
REPAIR FLAT
 

ADAMS, SIDNEY (ORIGINAL)
 

GOMEZ, ANTONIO (ORIGINAL)
 

PALACIOS, REYNALDO (ORIGINAL)
 

WAMMACK, TRACY (ORIGINAL)
 
FAUCET,MIRROR CLIP,SINK,MIRROR
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
 

(20) PURCHASE ORDER BOOKS
 
MITIGATION FEES TO MSD 12/08
 

WTRlSWRlGRB@ 1015 STATE AVE
 

FIRELINE @ 1049 STATE AVE
 

WTRlSWRlGRB@ 1049 STATE AVE
 
WTRlSWRlGRB@514 DELTA
 

WTRlSWR@514DELTA(RESTROOM)
 

WTRlSWR @ 1050 COLUMBIA
 

GRB @ 80 COLUMBIA
 

WTR @ 80 COLUMBIA
 

WTRlSWRlGRB @ 80 COLUMBIA
 

WTRlSWR @ 80 COLUMBIA
 
WTRlSWRlGRB @ 80 COLUMBIA
 

GRB @ 80 COLUMBIA
 

REFUND SECURITY DEPOSIT
 

HEARING EXAMINER SRVCS
 
MONTHLY DIESEL DELIVERY
 

REIMBURSE MEAUSNOW REMOVAL 

OFFICE CHAIR,FILE KEEPER 
ACCT #495802314 

ACCOUNT # 

10111230.549000. 
00103740.535000. 
00102020.549000. 
00105120.531070.ASAP 
00105120.531090. 
50100065.534000. 
50100065.534000. 
50100065.548000. 
001.237020. 
001.237020. 
001.237020. 
001.237020. 
40143410.531000. 
00100020.541000. 
50100065.531000. 
642.237000. 
00101250.547000. 
00103530.547000. 
00103530.547000. 
00105250.547000. 
00105380.547000. 
00105380.547000. 
10110130.547000. 
40142480.547000. 
40142480.547000. 
40143780.547000. 
40143780.547000. 
50100065.547000. 
001.239100. 
00102020.541000. 
00100010.547000. 
40143880.532000. 
10111230.549000. 
10111230.549000. 
00105515.549000. 
50300090.542000. 
50300090.542000. 
50300090.542000. 
50300090.542000. 
50300090.542000. 
50300090.542000. 
50300090.542000. 
50300090.542000. 
50300090.542000. 
50300090.542000. 
50300090.542000. 
50300090.542000. 
50300090.542000. 
50300090.542000. 
50300090.542000. 
50300090.542000. 
50300090.542000. 
50300090.542000. 
50300090.542000. 
50300090.542000. 
50300090.542000. 
50300090.542000. 

ITEM
 
AMOUNT
 

13.00 

638.91 

51.48 

421.31 

347.84 

244.97 

1,207.06 

36.89 

18.00 

18.00 

18.00 

18.00 
320.54 

1,100.00 
412.99 

59,038.00 

547.70 

61.40 

533.90 
475.70 

88.80 

96.30 
444.00 

1,139.00 

1,202.30 

149.10 
937.50 

580.00 
205.00 

3,654.50 

50.00 
721.31 

10.61 

11.21 
313.07 

17.68 

17.68 

17.68 

31.54 
35.36 

35.36 

35.36 
51.54 

53.04 
53.04 

70.72 
90.72 
91.85 

100.26 

120.69 

202.98 
211.11 

214.74 

214.81 

235.29 
242.53 

268.22 

Item 3-7



DATE: 1/7/2009 CITY OF MARYSVILLE PAGE: 6 
TIME: 1:05:36PM INVOICE LIST 

FOR INVOICES FROM 1/5/2009 TO 1/5/2009 

CHK# VENDOR 

52689 NEXTEL COMMUNICATIONS 

NEXTEL COMMUNICATIONS 

52690 ESTHER NICOLAS 
52691 NORTH CENTRAL LABORATORIES 

NORTH CENTRAL LABORATORIES 

52692 NORTH COAST ELECTRIC COMPANY 

52693 NORTH SOUND HOSE & FITTINGS 
52694 NORTHEND TRUCK EQUIPMENT INC 

NORTHEND TRUCK EQUIPMENT INC 

52695 NORTHWEST CASCADE INC 

52696 PAUL SACHS 
52697 WORTH NORTON 

WORTH NORTON 

52698 OFFICE DEPOT 

OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 

OFFICE DEPOT 

OFFICE DEPOT 

OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 

OFFICE DEPOT 

OFFICE DEPOT 

OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 

OFFICE DEPOT 

OFFICE DEPOT 

OFFICE DEPOT 

OFFICE DEPOT 

OFFICE DEPOT 

OFFICE DEPOT 

OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 

OFFICE DEPOT 

OFFICE DEPOT 

OFFICE DEPOT 

OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 

OFFICE DEPOT 

OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 

OFFICE DEPOT 

OFFICE DEPOT 

OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 

52699 OKANOGAN COUNTY JAIL 

52700 PATRICIA L. OLSON 

52701 ORKIN EXTERMINATING 
ORKIN EXTERMINATING 

ORKIN EXTERMINATING 

ORKIN EXTERMINATING 

ORKIN EXTERMINATING 

ORKIN EXTERMINATING 

52702 THE PARTS STORE 

THE PARTS STORE 

THE PARTS STORE 

THE PARTS STORE 
THE PARTS STORE 

ITEM DESCRIPTION 

ACCT #495802314 

REIMBURSE MILEAGE 
BOD STANDARD 

FAN SHROUD KIT, SPEED CONTROLS 

SUCTION HOSE AND MISC PARTS 

MON STAINLESS V HOPPER SANDER 

HONEY BUCKET 

PAY ESTIMATE # 2 

REIMBURSE MILEAGE & MISC PARTS 

OFFICE SUPPLIES 

COPY PAPER 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 

COpy PAPER 

OFFICE SUPPLIES 

TONER 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 

COPY PAPER 

OFFICE SUPPLIES 

(4) BINDERS 

OFFICE SUPPLIES 

MARKERS,TONER 

CD CASE, PADS OF PAPER 

OFFICE SUPPLIES 

COPY PAPER 
OFFIC ESUPPLIES 

OFFICE SUPPLIES 

COPY PAPER 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 

COPY PAPER 
INMATE HOUSING NOV 2008 

REFUND DUE TO WEATHER 

SERVICE@ 1635 GROVE 
SERVICE@ 1049 STATE AVE 

SERVICE @ CABOOSE 

SERVICE @ 6120 GROVE 

SERVICE @ 2 COLUMBIA 
SERVICE @ 80 COLUMBIA 

WASHER FLUID 

FILTERS,ANTIFREEZE,CABLE TIES 

OIL AND FUEL FILTERS 
FILTERS,ANTIFREEZE,LAMPS 
REFUND CORE CHARGE 

ACCOUNT # 

50300090.542000. 
50300090.542000. 
50300090.543000. 
401.231700. 
40142480.531330. 
40142480.548000. 
40140580.535000. 
50100048.564000.0855 
50100048.564000.0856 
00105380.545000. 
10200030.541000.M0709 
50300090.531000. 
50300090.543000. 
00100020.531000. 
00100020.531000. 
00100310.531000. 
00100310.531000. 
00102020.531000. 
00102020.531000. 
00102020.531000. 
00102020.531000. 
00102020.531000. 
00102020.531000. 
00103010.531000. 
00103121.531000. 
00103121.531000. 
00103222.531000. 
00103222.531000. 
00103222.531000. 
00104190.531000. 
00104190.531000. 
00105250.531000. 
00105250.531000. 
00105515.531000. 
00105515.531000. 
40140780.531000. 
40142380.531000. 
40143410.531000. 
40143410.531000. 
40143410.531000. 
50100065.531000. 
50100065.531000. 
50200050.531000. 
50200050.531000. 
00103960.551000. 
00110347.376021. 
00100010.548000. 
00103530.548000. 
00105380.548000. 
00112572.548000. 
40142480.549000. 
40143410.548000. 
501.141100. 
501.141100. 
501.141100. 
501.141100. 
50100065.534000. 

ITEM
 
AMOUNT
 

549.76 

1,444.87 

141.14 
-4.43 

56.57 

1,092.93 

124.40 
20,561.84 

24,039.26 

103.33 
41,415.00 

92.25 

300.21 

18.37 

31.35 
28.50 

78.48 

4.76 

9.48 
31.35 

97.92 
150.46 
384.69 

316.14 

52.10 

84.57 

134.55 
145.00 

146.25 

8.00 

78.00 
26.00 

230.62 

15.01 

593.61 
83.43 

122.08 

18.36 

31.35 

36.32 
2.04 

5.22 
2.04 

5.22 
2,013.58 

12.00 

45.60 
82.87 

57.79 
45.60 

61.52 

50.16 
20.35 

111.21 

151.88 
225.69 

-65.64 

Item 3-8



DATE: 1/7/2009 CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
TIME: 1:05:36PM INVOICE LIST 

FOR INVOICES FROM l/5/2009 TO l/5/2009 

CHK# VENDOR ITEM DESCRIPTION 

52702 THE PARTS STORE TRANS FILTER KIT 

THE PARTS STORE SNOW CHAIN BUNGEE CORDS 
THE PARTS STORE TRANS FILTER 
THE PARTS STORE TRANS FILTER KITS 

THE PARTS STORE DIST CAP AND ROTOR 
THE PARTS STORE DIST CAP,ROTOR,BATTERY W/CORE 
THE PARTS STORE AIR BRAKE ALCOHOL 
THE PARTS STORE STARTER W/CORE CHRG, FILTER 

THE PARTS STORE HVY DUTY TIRE CHAINS 

52703 PETROCARD SYSTEMS INC FUEL CONSUMED-CD 
PETROCARD SYSTEMS INC FUEL CONSUMED-POLICE 
PETROCARD SYSTEMS INC FUEL CONSUMED-PARKS/GOLF 
PETROCARD SYSTEMS INC 

52704 PETTY CASH- FINANCE EMPLOYEE APPRECIATION LUCHEON 
52705 PETTY CASH- KBSCC FAIR ADMISSION,PARKING,LIGHTS 

PETTY CASH- KBSCC 

PETTY CASH- KBSCC 

PETTY CASH- KBSCC 

52706 PETTY CASH FUND-POLICE VEHICLE LICENSE,MIRROR 
52707 PETTY CASH- PW SCREWDRIVER,WASH,DUPONT 

PETTY CASH- PW 

52708 PETTY CASH-COMM DEV POSTAGE 
52709 DENISE FREEMAN JACKETS-DERUSHE,BURKHOLDER 

DENISE FREEMAN JACKETS-STRICKLAND, IRWIN 

52710 PING TRAVEL COVER 

52711 PLATT- EVERETT LIGHTBULBS 
52712 UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE BULK PERMIT # 80 
52713 PUBLIC FINANCE INC. LID ADMINISTRATION 

PUBLIC FINANCE INC. 

52714 PUBLIC SAFETY TESTING INC QRTRLY SUBSCRIPTION FEES 

PUBLIC SAFETY TESTING INC PERSONAL HISTORY STMNTS 
52715 PUD NO 1 OF SNOHOMISH COUNTY ACCT #326-050-278-0 

PUD NO 1 OF SNOHOMISH COUNTY ACCT #462-002-547-0 
PUD NO 1 OF SNOHOMISH COUNTY ACCT #328-001-837-9 
PUD NO 1 OF SNOHOMISH COUNTY ACCT #531-001-591-1 
PUD NO 1 OF SNOHOMISH COUNTY ACCT #123-000-075-2 
PUD NO 1 OF SNOHOMISH COUNTY ACCT #619-000-026-2 
PUD NO 1 OF SNOHOMISH COUNTY ACCT #515-001-516-1 
PUD NO 1 OF SNOHOMISH COUNTY ACCT #416-001-034-6 

52716 PUGET SOUND SECURITY DUPLICATE KEYS MADE 

PUGET SOUND SECURITY 

PUGET SOUND SECURITY 
PUGET SOUND SECURITY 

52717 RADIOSHACK RADIO EARPLUG 

52718 ERIC REYNOLDS REFUND CLASS FEES 

52719 ROY ROBINSON CHEVROLET HEAT FAN RESISTER 
ROY ROBINSON CHEVROLET OXYGEN SENSOR 

52720 RSC EQUIPMENT RENTAL BOOM TRUCK RENTAL 

52721 WES SALVAGE REFUND SECURITY DEPOSIT 

52722 AMY SCHULZE REFUND DEPOSIT FOR RENTAL 

52723 SCIENTIFIC SUPPLY & EQUIPMENT INC MEDIA VIALS 

SCIENTIFIC SUPPLY & EQUIPMENT INC TEFLON MEMBRANE KITIFILT PAPER 

52724 SEA-ALASKA INDUSTRIAL ELECTRIC INC REBUILD ABS PUMP 

52725 JEFF SEIBERT REIMBURSE AIRFARE FOR NLC TRIP 

52726 NOREEN SHOLES REFUND DUE TO WEATHER 

52727 SIX ROBBLEES INC TIRE CHAINS 

SIX ROBBLEES INC BRAKE CONTROLLER 

ACCOUNT #
 

50100065.534000. 
50100065.534000. 
50100065.534000. 
50100065.534000. 
50100065.534000. 
50100065.534000. 
50100065.534000. 
50100065.534000. 
50100065.534000. 
00102020.532000. 
00103222.532000. 
00105380.532000. 
42047165.532000. 
00100310.549010. 
00105250.531051. 
00105250.531051. 
00105250.531051. 
00105250.531051. 
00103222.531000. 
40140780.535000. 
50200050.549000. 
00102020.542000. 
00103960.526000. 
00103960.526000. 
420.141100. 
00112572.531000. 
00105250.544000. 
00100011.549000. 
45000085.549000. 
00100490.541000. 
00103010.541000. 
00105380.547000. 
00105380.547000. 
10111864.547000. 
10111864.547000. 
10111864.547000. 
40142280.547000. 
42047165.547000. 
42047165.547000. 
00103121.531000. 
10111230.549000. 
40140980.531000. 
50100065.534000. 
00103222.526000. 
00110347.376007. 
50100065.534000. 
50100065.534000. 
50100065.545000. 
001.239100. 
001.239100. 
40142480.531330. 
40142480.531330. 
40142480.548000. 
00100060.543000. 
00110347.376021. 
501.141100. 
501.141100. 

PAGE: 7 

ITEM 
AMOUNT 

14.48 
19.42 
20.76 
42.53 
81.01 

139.31 
140.83 
234.10 
314.11 
189.24 

2,600.16 
410.97 

14.69 
38.87 
7.00 
7.00 

12.00 
12.50 
47.18 
10.04 
2.00 
8.45 

704.60 
704.60 
129.72 
40.14 

357.27 
641.56 
410.18 
765.00 
56.00 
38.37 
77.48 

152.75 
229.48 

1,027.39 
48.36 

100.93 
1,620.61 

9.60 
16.00 
23.57 
12.80 
21.68 
71.00 

149.13 
154.29 

1,063.30 
200.00 
58.00 

380.10 
395.45 

1,646.49 
659.00 

12.00 
172.02 
313.50 

Item 3-9



DATE: 1/7/2009 CITY OF MARYSVILLE PAGE: 8 
TIME: 1:05:36PM INVOICE LIST 

FOR INVOICES FROM 1/5/2009 TO 1/5/2009 

CHK# VENDOR 

52727 SIX ROBBLEES INC 

52728 SNO CO PUBLIC WORKS 
SNO CO PUBLIC WORKS 

SNO CO PUBLIC WORKS 

52729 SNOHOMISH PUBLISHING CO. INC 

SNOHOMISH PUBLISHING CO. INC 
52730 S.O. CREIGHTON ENGINEERING INC 

52731 SOUND PUBLISHING INC 

52732 SOUND SAFETY PRODUCTS CO INC 

SOUND SAFETY PRODUCTS CO INC 

52733 MARLENE STADLER 

52734 SUBURBAN PROPANE 

52735 SUPERIOR COURT OF WASHINGTON 

52736 SUPREME INTERNATIONAL 
52737 SYSTEMS INTERFACE INC 

52738 UNITED PARCEL SERVICE 

UNITED PARCEL SERVICE 

UNITED PARCEL SERVICE 

52739 UNITED RENTALS 

UNITED RENTALS 

52740 USA BLUEBOOK 

USA BLUEBOOK 

USA BLUEBOOK 
52741 TROY VAN HORN 

52742 VARSITY COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 

52743 VERIZON NORTHWEST 
52744 KATHENE WINSTON 
52745 PETE YOCUM 

ITEM DESCRIPTION 

HVY DUTY TIRE CHAINS 

ROW PERMIT 

UTILITY PERMIT RENEWAL FEE 

UTILITY PERMIT FEE 

RECREATION GUIDES 

FIRE PROTECTION PRO ENG SRVCS 
CLOSURE ADVERTISEMENT 

JACKETS-CD DEPT 

WINTER JACKETS,SWEATSHIRTS 

REFUND DEPOSIT FOR RENTAL 

383.3 GAL PROPANE 

BAIL POSTED #985000499/08-1198 
WINDSHIRTS AND OUTERWEAR 

CONTRACT PAY ESTIMATE 
SHIPPING EXPENSE 

THROTTLE ARM ASSEMBLY 
REPAIR JUMPING JACK COMPACTOR 

CHARTPAPEWHYDRANTBAGS 

REFUND DEPOSIT FOR RENTAL 

116 PAGE AD 

METER READING PRO SERVICES 
REFUND DUE TO WEATHER 

ACCOUNT # 

50100065.534000. 
40220594.563000.W0504 
40220594.563000.W0502 
40220594.563000.W0502 
00100720.541000. 
00105120.549000. 
00102020.541000. 
30500030.563000.R0301 
00102020.526000. 
501.141100. 
001.239100. 
00105380.547000. 
001.229050. 
420.141100. 
40220594.563000.W0808 
00102020.542000. 
00103222.541000. 
40142480.542000. 
50100065.534000. 
50100065.548000. 
401.231700. 
40140280.531000. 
40140680.531000. 
001.239100. 
42047267.544000. 
40141280.541000. 
00110347.376021. 
00110347.376021. 

WARRANT TOTAL: 

ITEM
 
AMOUNT
 

288.88 

1,685.00 

5,239.50 

10,609.00 

2,593.29 

11,747.04 

621.00 

123.20 

237.18 

444.28 

58.00 

1,662.34 

500.00 
1,396.93 

19,410.65 

24.62 

18.92 

21.63 
10.85 

541.78 

-30.57 

300.71 

89.47 
58.00 

730.00 
402.80 

12.00 

12.00 

498,965.19 

Item 3-10



CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: January 26,2009 

AGENDA ITEM: 
Claims 

AGENDA SECTION: 

AGENDA NUMBER: 

APPROVED BY: 

MAYOR ICAO 

AMOUNT: 

PREPARED BY: 
Sandy Langdon, Finance Director 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Claims Listings 

BUDGET CODE: 

Please see attached. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

The Finance and Executive Departments recommend City Council approve the January 
7,2009 claims in the amount 0[$1,188,598.41 paid by Check No. 's 52581 through 
52591 with no Check No. 's voided. 

COUNCIL ACTION: 

Item 5 - 1



BLANKET CERTIFICATION 
CLAIMS 

FOR 
PERIOD-1 

I, THE UNDERSIGNED, DO HEREBY CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY THAT THE 
MATERIALS HAVE BEEN FURNISHED, THE SERVICES RENDERED OR THE LABOR PERFORMED 
AS DESCRIBED HEREIN AND THAT THE CLAIMS IN THE AMOUNT OF $1,188,598.41 PAID 
BY CHECK NO.'S 52581 THROUGH 52591 WITH NO CHECK NUMBER'S VOIDED ARE JUST, 
DUE AND UNPAID OBLIGATIONS AGAINST THE CITY OF MARYSVILLE, AND THAT I AM 
AUTHORIZED TO AUTHENTICATE AND TO CERTIFY SAID CLAIMS. 

AUDITING OFFICER DATE
 

MAYOR DATE
 

WE, THE UNDERSIGNED COUNCIL MEMBERS OF MARYSVILLE, WASHINGTON DO HEREBY
 
7 thAPPROVE FOR PAYMENT THE ABOVE MENTIONED CLAIMS ON THIS DAY OF JANUARY 

2009. 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER 

COUNCIL MEMBER
 

Item 5 - 2



CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: January 26, 2009 

AGENDA ITEM: 
Claims 

AGENDA SECTION: 

AGENDA NUMBER: 

APPROVED BY:}1,.... 

PREPARED BY: 
Sandy Langdon, Finance Director 

AITACHMENTS: 
Claims Listings 

MAYOR ICAO 

AMOUNT:BUDGET CODE: 

Please see attached. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

The Finance and Executive Departments recommend City Council approve the January 
14,2009 claims in the amount of$987,623.92 paid by Check No.'s 52746 through 52867 
with Check No.'s 50669, 51230, 51390 & 52402 voided. 

COUNCIL ACTION: 

Item 6 - 1



BLANKET CERTIFICATION 
CLAIMS 

FOR 
PERIOD-1 

I, THE UNDERSIGNED, DO HEREBY CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY THAT THE 
MATERIALS HAVE BEEN FURNISHED, THE SERVICES RENDERED OR THE LABOR PERFORMED 
AS DESCRIBED HEREIN AND THAT THE CLAIMS IN THE AMOUNT OF $987,623.92 PAID 
BY CHECK NO.'S 52746 THROUGH 52867 WITH CHECK NUMBER'S 50669, 51230, 51390 
& 52402 VOIDED ARE JUST, DUE AND UNPAID OBLIGATIONS AGAINST THE CITY OF 
MARYSVILLE, AND THAT I AM AUTHORIZED TO AUTHENTICATE AND TO CERTIFY SAID 
CLAIMS. 

/1/'l/d1 
/ 

MAYOR DATE 

WE, THE UNDERSIGNED COUNCIL MEMBERS OF MARYSVILLE, WASHINGTON DO HEREBY 
APPROVE FOR PAYMENT THE ABOVE MENTIONED CLAIMS ON THIS 14th DAY OF JANUARY 
2009. 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER 

COUNCIL MEMBER
 

Item 6 - 2



DATE: 1/14/2009 
TIME: II :06:34AM 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
INVOICE LIST 

FOR INVOICES FROM 11812009 TO 111412009 

CHK# VENDOR ITEM DESCRIPTION 

52746 ACCURINT 

ACCURINT 

COMPUTER SEARCHES DEC 2008 

52747 ACE ACME SEPTIC SERVICE INC PORTABLE TOILET RENTAL 

52748 WA STATE DEPT OF AGRICULTURE (9) PESTICIDE LICENSE RENEWAL 
52749 KELLI AGUILAR REFUND CLASS FEES 
52750 AIRGAS NOR PAC WELDING GAS,GLOVES,LENSES,HELM 

52751 ALTERNATE STREET DESIGN, PA ANALYZES AND CONCEPT PLAN 
52752 AMERICAN CLEANERS DRY CLEANING DEC 2008 

AMERICAN CLEANERS 

AMERICAN CLEANERS 

AMERICAN CLEANERS 

AMERICAN CLEANERS 
52753 AMERICAN DRY GOODS LOGOED GOLF CAPS 
52754 AMERICORP INC UB 849000247001 8106 64TH DR N 

52755 AMERICORP INC 

52756 AMSAN SEATILE JANITORIAL SUPPLIES-PSB 
AMSAN SEATTLE JANITORIAL SUPPLIES-COURTS 

AMSAN SEATILE JANITORIAL SUPPLIES-CH 

AMSAN SEATILE JANITORIAL SUPPLIES-PW ADMIN 

52757 ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES MAT CLEANING-MEZZANINE 
ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES 

ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES UNIFORM CLEANING 

52758 CITY OF ARLINGTON SURFACE WTR REVENUE 4TH QTR 08 

52759 ASSOCIATED BAG COMPANY EVIDENCE BAGS 

ASSOCIATED BAG COMPANY 

52760 BANDWIDTH.COM INC MONTHLY SERVICE CHARGE 

52761 THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON ADMIN FEES-MARG096 

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON ADMIN FEES-MARG098 
THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON ADMIN FEES-MARLTG007A 

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON ADMIN FEES-MARLTG007T 

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON ADMIN FEES-MARWAT98 

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON ADMIN FEES-MARWATREF04 

52762 BLUE MARBLE ENVIRONMENTAL FOOD WASTE COMPOST PROJECT 

52763 BLUMENTHAL UNIFORMS & EQUIPMENT NAMETAG-GREGORY 

52764 RAE BOYD, APRN, BC INMATE MEDICAL CARE DEC 2008 

52765 BRANOM INSTRUMENT CO FLOW METER CALIBRATION 

52766 LAURA BROWN REFUND DEPOSIT FOR RENTAL 

52767 CAPTAIN DIZZYS EXXON CAR WASH-POLICE DEPT DEC 08 

CAPTAIN DIZZYS EXXON 

CAPTAIN DIZZYS EXXON CAR WASH-PARKS 

CAPTAIN DIZZYS EXXON 
52768 CARR'S ACE HARDWARE RECEPTACLE,L1GHTING,BANNER 

CARR'S ACE HARDWARE PAINT SUPPLIES 

CARR'S ACE HARDWARE DIGITAL BATIERIES 

CARR'S ACE HARDWARE PRYBAR 

CARR'S ACE HARDWARE BUNGEECORDS 

52769 CDW GOVERNMENT INC NET, EXCH, SQL & OFFICE 

CDW GOVERNMENT INC 
CDW GOVERNMENT INC 

CDW GOVERNMENT INC 

CDW GOVERNMENT INC 

CDW GOVERNMENT INC 

CDW GOVERNMENT INC 

CDW GOVERNMENT INC 

CDW GOVERNMENT INC 

CDW GOVERNMENT INC 

CDW GOVERNMENT INC 

PAGE: I 

ITEM 
ACCOUNT # AMOUNT 

00 I030 10.541000. 1I 1.05 

00103222.541000. 32.35 

40140280.541000. 90.00 

00105380.549000. 297.00 

00110347.376007. 66.00 

50100065.531000. 833.40 

00100020.541000. 2,475.00 

00103010.526000. 17.96 

00103121.526000. 140.83 

00103222.526000. 100.85 

00103960.526000. 28.21 

00104190.526000. 65.10 

420.141100. 635.35 

401.122110. 9.55 

401.122110. 171.30 

00100010.531400. 272.18 

00101250.531400. 340.67 

00103530.531400. 232.21 

40143410.531200. 40.73 

40143780.549000. 16.44 

40143780.549000. 25.77 

50100065.526000. 61.38 

401.237000. 26,882.24 

001.231700. -27.46 

00103222.531000. 350.43 

50300090.542000. 100.76 

20200592.585000. 305.25 

20400592.585000. 303.50 

20600592.585000. 303.50 

42047079.585000. 303.50 

45000085.585000. 303.50 

45000085.585000. 303.50 

41046290.541000. 7,856.46 

00104190.526000. 16.22 

00103960.541000. 1,700.00 

40142280.548000. 1,231.91 

001.239100. 58.00 

00103222.548000. 45.00 

00104230.548000. 4.50 

00105380.531000. 4.50 

00105380.531000. 4.50 

10110463.548000. 226.33 

40140180.531000. 22.75 

40140980.531000. 30.89 

40140980.535000. 39.05 

41046060.531000. 29.16 

00100020.531000. 381.23 

00100050.549000. 107.84 

00100050.549000. 323.51 

00100110.549000. 553.13 

00101023.535000. 359.55 

00103010.549000.0860 553.13 

00103222.535000. 1,294.06 

00105515.549000. 1,106.27 

40140780.531000. 719.09 

40143410.535000. 553.13 

40145040.531000. 740.77 

Item 6 - 3



DATE: 1/14/2009 CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
TIME: II :06:34AM INVOICE LIST 

FOR INVOICES FROM 1/8/2009 TO 1114/2009 

CHK# VENDOR 

52769 CDW GOVERNMENT INC 

CDW GOVERNMENT INC 
CDW GOVERNMENT INC 

52770 ASSOC OF SNO CO CITIES & TOWNS 

52771 COLUMBIA PAINT & COATINGS 

52772 COMCAST 

52773 CONCRETE NOR'WEST 

CONCRETE NOR'WEST 

CONCRETE NOR'WEST 

CONCRETE NOR'WEST 

52774 CONTEMPORARY CONTROLS 

CONTEMPORARY CONTROLS 

52775 CO-OP SUPPLY 
52776 COVAD COMMUNICATIONS 

52777 DAHL ELECTRIC INC 

DAHL ELECTRIC INC 

52778 DATA QUEST 

52779 DATABASE SECURE RECORDS DESTRUCTIO 

DATABASE SECURE RECORDS DESTRUCTIO 

DATABASE SECURE RECORDS DESTRUCTIO 

DATABASE SECURE RECORDS DESTRUCTIO 

DATABASE SECURE RECORDS DESTRUCTIO 
DATABASE SECURE RECORDS DESTRUCTIO 

DATABASE SECURE RECORDS DESTRUCTIO 

DATABASE SECURE RECORDS DESTRUCTIO 

DATABASE SECURE RECORDS DESTRUCTIO 
DATABASE SECURE RECORDS DESTRUCTIO 

DATABASE SECURE RECORDS DESTRUCTIO 

DATABASE SECURE RECORDS DESTRUCTIO 
DATABASE SECURE RECORDS DESTRUCTIO 

DATABASE SECURE RECORDS DESTRUCTIO 

DATABASE SECURE RECORDS DESTRUCTIO 

DATABASE SECURE RECORDS DESTRUCTIO 
52780 DAY WIRELESS SYSTEMS 

52781 DELL MARKETING LP 

DELL MARKETING LP 

DELL MARKETING LP 

DELL MARKETING LP 
52782 DIVERSIFIED 

52783 DRIVELINES NW 

52784 DUTTON ELECTRIC CO., INC. 

52785 E&E LUMBER INC 
E&E LUMBER INC 

E&E LUMBER INC 

E&E LUMBER INC 
E&E LUMBER INC 
E&E LUMBER INC 

52786 WA DEPARTMENT OF ECOLOGY 

52787 E1 BARTELLS 
E1 BARTELLS 

52788 EMPLOYMENT SECURITY DEPARTMENT 

52789 WA ENVIRONMENTAL TRAINING CENTER 

WA ENVIRONMENTAL TRAINING CENTER 
WA ENVIRONMENTAL TRAINING CENTER 

52790 THE DAILY HERALD COMPANY 

52791 EVERETT MUNICIPAL COURT 

52792 GARY TOPP 

ITEM DESCRIPTION 

MISC PERIPHERAL REPLACEMENTS 

NET, EXCH, SQL & OFFICE 

SYMANTEC BACKUP AGENT 

DINNER MEETING-SORIANO 

PAINT,PAINT ROLLER PADS,HANDLE 

ACCT #849831002000 I 355-KBSCC 
SAND 

WWTP LAGOON NETWORK UPGRADE 

ICE MELT 
INTERNET SERVICES 
PAY ESTIMATE #4 

PRE EMPLOYMENT SCREENING 

MONTHLY SHREDDING SERVICE 

INSTALL INTERNET EQUIP 

MONITOR 

TRAFFIC GROUP LAPTOP 

PORT FOR LAPTOP 

LAPTOP-ALDERMAN 
STAKES FOR LAND USE SIGNS 

PTO DRIVESHAFT U-JOINT 

OUTLET WORK @ MENS RESTROOM 

GRAFFITI SUPPLIES 

SPRAY PAINT 
SHIMS,LOCK SET,PRIMED IX3 

WIRE MESH 

PAINT 
WOOD FOR TEE HOLDERS 

PERMITS CLASS-HOLLAND 

PIPE INSULATION 

PRO ACT PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

TRAINING-GESSNER,KA 

TRAINING-GESSNER,KL 

TRAINING-GEIST 

CONSULTANT NOTICE 2009 AD 

BAIL POSTED #CR0081484 

SAFE REPAIR@ POLICE DEPT 

PAGE: 2 

ACCOUNT # 

50300090.531000. 
50300090.531000. 
50300090.531000. 
00100060.549000. 
00112572.531000. 
00105250.547000. 
10111766.531000. 
10111766.531000. 
10111766.531000. 
10111766.531000. 
402.231700. 
40220594.563000.W0807 
42047165.531950. 
50300090.541000. 
401.223400. 
40142280.548000.M0840 
00103010.541000. 
00100110.549000. 
00101023.541000. 
00102020.531000. 
00102020.531000. 
00103010.548000. 
00103010.548000. 
00103121.548000. 
00103222.548000. 
00103222.548000. 
00103960.548000. 
00103960.548000. 
00104190.548000. 
00104190.548000. 
40143410.531000. 
50100065.531000. 
50200050.531000. 
40220594.563000.W0621 
00100020.531000. 
00100020.531000. 
40143410.531000. 
40143410.531000. 
00102020.531000. 
50100065.534000. 
40143410.548000. 
00102020.531000. 
00103222.548000. 
40143410.531000. 
42047165.531910. 
42047165.531910. 
42047165.531910. 
00102020.549000. 
401.231700. 
40142480.548000. 
00103222.541000. 
40143410.549030. 
40143410.549030. 
40143410.549030. 
00100020.531000. 
001.229050. 
00103960.548000. 

ITEM
 
AMOUNT
 

98.84 

359.56 
3,495.87 

35.00 

40.78 
47.21 

1,463.15 

2,048.37 

3,218.88 

4,389.38 

-357.71 

4,566.02 

42.38 
243.90 

-171.29 

3,425.89 

56.00 

8.50 

8.50 

2.55 

2.55 

21.00 
21.50 

20.00 
20.00 

20.00 

20.00 

20.00 

20.00 
20.00 

2.55 

0.42 

0.43 
1,497.30 

216.38 

1,759.97 
48.81 

1,759.96 

35.80 

12.48 

255.25 
21.32 
10.83 

88.19 

65.23 
87.18 

98.69 

60.00 

-10.30 

131.44 
9.50 

140.00 
140.00 

295.00 

140.88 

250.00 

65.11 

Item 6 - 4



DATE: 1/14/2009 CITY OF MARYSVILLE PAGE: 3
TIME: II :06:34AM INVOICE LIST 

FOR INVOICES FROM 1/8/2009 TO 1/14/2009 
ITEM 

CHK# VENDOR ITEM DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT # AMOUNT 
52793 CITY OF EVERETI PROGRESS BILLING # 5 30500030.563000.R0603 2,423.52 
52794 FASTENAL COMPANY DEICER 10111766.531000. 1,094.96 
52795 FINKELSTEIN, JOSH UB 9849200000014920 70TH AVE 410.122100. 117.30 
52796 FIRE PROTECTION,INC FINAL $ LIBRARY SURVEILLANCE 00100072.562000.0818 4,123.00 
52797 CRAIG A. FULLERTON CONSULTING SERVICES 00100110.541000. 412.50 

CRAIG A. FULLERTON 00105380.541000. 1,842.50 
52798 DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL ADMINISTRATil ANNUAL ADMIN FEE 00103010.541000. 400.00 
52799 JO GRAHAM REFUND DEPOSIT FOR RENTAL 001.239100. 58.00 
52800 GREEN SHIELDS INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CHAIN,BINDERS FOR NEW TRUCK 40140980.535000. 555.39 

GREEN SHIELDS INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY SEWER PLUG PARTS 40142080.549000. 132.09 
52801 STEPHANIE GROSELY REFUND ANNUAL ANIMAL LIC FEE 00100321.319000. 10.00 
52802 HARRIS & ASSOCIATES PAY ESTIMATE # 8 30500030.563000.R0301 98,824.81 
52803 HDR ENGINEERING, INC. PAY ESTIMATE # 17 30500030.563000.R0603 8,276.04 
52804 HDR ENGINEERING, INC. PAY ESTIMATE # 22 30500030.563000.R0502 3,634.05 

HDR ENGINEERING, INC. PAY ESTIMATE # 18 30500030.563000.R0603 3,882.65 
HDR ENGINEERING, INC. PAY ESTIMATE # 2 I 30500030.563000.R0502 8,393.71 
HDR ENGINEERING, INC. PAY ESTIMATE # 19 30500030.563000.R0502 12,797.64 
HDR ENGINEERING, INC. PAY ESTIMATE # 20 30500030.563000.R0502 69,624.91 

52805 DEPT OF INFORMATION SERVICES TELECOMMINICATIONS DEC 2008 00104190.551000. 723.71 
52806 KEN WORTH NORTHWEST INC SERVICE CALL TO REP 2007 INT'L 50100065.548000. 763.68 
52807 KPFF CONSULTING ENGINEERS PAY ESTIMATE # 37 30500030.563000.R030 I 28,222.48 
52808 LALONDE, DAVID UB 04101040000010104 65TH DR 401.122110. 500.00 
52809 LASTING IMPRESSIONS INC (809) B-BALL LEAGUE SHIRTS 00105120.531040. 5,266.59 
5281 0 LAWN EQUIPMENT SUPPLY ECHO HOUSING ASSEMBLY 42047165.548000. 177.23 
52811 DEPT OF LICENSING GULLETI, JAMES (RENEWAL) 001.237020. 18.00 
52812 LOWES HIW INC FILTERS,KNIFE,SH VAC CARTRIDGE 40143410.531000. 66.05 
52813 MALPAYA, FERDINAND UB 7616010800016718 66TH STN 401.122110. 36.45 
52814 MARYSVILLE PRINTING (1000) ENVELOPES 00105380.531000. 59.72 
528 15 TONYA MIRANDA REIMBURSE GIFT CARD PURCHASE 40143410.549000. 20.00 

TONYA MIRANDA REIMBURSE GIFT CERT FOR EOM 40143410.549000. 20.00 
TONYA MIRANDA REIMBURSE GIFT CERT FOR SOM 40143410.549000. 21.95 

52816 NATIONAL INFORMATION OFFICERS ASSOC 2009 MEMBERSHIP DUES NIOA 00103010.541000. 80.00 
528 I7 NORTH COAST ELECTRIC COMPANY STREET LIGHTING PARTS 10110463.548000. 120.55 

NORTH COAST ELECTRIC COMPANY STREET LIGHTING LAMPS 10110463.548000. 160.16 
NORTH COAST ELECTRIC COMPANY CAT5 OUTDOOR SHIELDED CABLE 40220594.563000.W0621 328.92 

52818 WORTH NORTON REIMBURSE DOMAIN NAME PURCHAS 42047267.544000. 174.95 
52819 NURSENEXTDOOR REFUND BUS LIC APP FEES 00100321.319000. 50.00 
52820 OFFICE DEPOT REFUND OFFICE SUPPLIES 00101023.531000. -6.26 

OFFICE DEPOT OFFICE SUPPLIES 00101023.531000. 6.26 

OFFICE DEPOT 00103222.531000. 199.99 
OFFICE DEPOT 00103960.531000. 15.61 
OFFICE DEPOT FOLDERS 00104190.531000. 59.24 

52821 OKANOGAN COUNTY JAIL INMATE HOUSING DEC 2008 00103960.551000. 420.25 
52822 THE PARTS STORE AIR GAUGE 42047165.548000. 14.09 

THE PARTS STORE NET 42047165.548000. 53.70 
THE PARTS STORE AIR FILTER 501.141100. 16.26 
THE PARTS STORE 501.141100. 16.26 
THE PARTS STORE TRACTOR WORK LIGHT ASSEMBLY 50100048.564000. 22.33 

THE PARTS STORE PTO DRIVESHAFT U-JOINT 50100065.534000. 18.10 

THE PARTS STORE ALTERNATOR BELT 50100065.534000. 23.60 
52823 PELZER GOLF SUPPLIES GOLF GRIPS 420.141100. 52.00 

52824 PERTEET ENGINEERING INC PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 00100020.541000. 1,027.50 

52825 PETROCARD SYSTEMS INC FUEL CONSUMED-POLICE 00103222.532000. 2,634.75 

PETROCARD SYSTEMS INC FUEL CONSUMED-OPERATION/SANA 40143880.532000. 1,716.53 

PETROCARD SYSTEMS INC 41046060.532000. 1,997.26 

52826 SNOHOMISH COUNTY PLANNING & PERMIT FEES 40220594.563000.W0304 220.00 

52827 PUBLIC SAFETY TESTING INC RECRUITMENT POSTER SETUPIPHOTO 00103010.541000. 195.00 

Item 6 - 5



DATE: 1/14/2009 CITY OF MARYSVILLE PAGE: 4
TIME: 11 :06:34AM INVOICE LIST 

FOR INVOICES FROM 1/8/2009 TO 1/14/2009 
ITEM 

CHK# VENDOR ITEM DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT # AMOUNT 

52828 PUD NO 1 OF SNOHOMISH COUNTY ACCT #258-014-292-1 00105380.547000. 23.62 
PUD NO 1 OF SNOHOMISH COUNTY ACCT #690-001-250-8 10110463.547000. 1,535.83 
PUD NO I OF SNOHOMISH COUNTY ACCT #600-001-260-6 10110463.547000. 1,781.15 
PUD NO I OF SNOHOMISH COUNTY ACCT #660-001-330-1 10110463.547000. 1,807.71 
PUD NO I OF SNOHOMISH COUNTY ACCT #670-001-300-3 10110463.547000. 10,275.09 
PUD NO I OF SNOHOMISH COUNTY ACCT #345-002-250-8 10111864.547000. 69.03 
PUD NO I OF SNOHOMISH COUNTY ACCT #295-001-624-2 40140180.547000. 517.90 
PUD NO I OF SNOHOMISH COUNTY ACCT #543-001-786-2 40142280.547000. 1,078.47 

52829 PUGET SOUND ENERGY ACCT #753-901-800-7 00100010.547000. 2,853.81 
PUGET SOUND ENERGY ACCT #835-819-211-3 00101250.547000. 725.53 
PUGET SOUND ENERGY ACCT #549-775-008-2 CITY HALL 00103530.547000. 870.67 
PUGET SOUND ENERGY ACCT #616-190-400-5 00105250.547000. 74.15 
PUGET SOUND ENERGY ACCT #922-456-500-3 40143780.547000. 243.58 
PUGET SOUND ENERGY ACCT #435-851-700-3 40143780.547000. 2,257.42 
PUGET SOUND ENERGY ACCT #433-744-264-6 42047267.547000. 156.73 

52830 RADIOSHACK VHS TAPES 00103121.531000. 11.91 
RADIOSHACK 00103121.531000. 19.51 

52831 ALEXANDER REED CONS INC UB 982710740000 2710 74TH DR N 401.122120. 52.91 
52832 WASHINGTON STATE DEPARTMENT OF 4TH QTR LEASEHOLD TAX 2008 001.237050. 173.34 

WASHINGTON STATE DEPARTMENT OF 00100011.549000. 192.60 
WASHINGTON STATE DEPARTMENT OF 101.237050. 9.63 
WASHINGTON STATE DEPARTMENT OF 420.237050. 1,687.17 

52833 PAUL ROBERTS CONSULTING SERVICES DEC 08 00100110.541000. 6,000.00 
52834 LYNN SCHROEDER REIMBURSE COFFEE/MTG'S 00100110.549000. 18.28 
52835 SCOTT COATING, LLC WATER RESERVOIR REPAIRIMAINT 40140280.548000. 8,900.00 
52836 SNOHOMISH COUNTY CORRECTIONS INMATE HOUSING DEC 2008 00103960.551000. 90,545.90 
52837 SNO CO PUBLIC WORKS PROJECT COSTS NOV 2008 10200030.541000. 235,278.94 

SNO CO PUBLIC WORKS 40220594.563000.W0803 25,495.37 
52838 SNOHOMISH COUNTY TREASURER CODE# 1183315704121 00102570.551000. 879.07 
52839 SONITROL SECURITY MONITORING SERVICES 00100010.541000. 89.00 

SONITROL 00100010.541000. 102.00 
SONITROL MICRO PROX PATCH 00103530.531000. 65.10 
SONITROL SECURITY MONITORING SERVICES 00103530.541000. 120.00 
SONITROL 00103530.541000. 173.00 
SONITROL 00105250.541000. 126.00 

SONITROL 00105380.541000. 116.00 
SONITROL 40142480.541000. 102.00 
SONITROL 40142480.541000. 114.00 
SONITROL 40142480.541000. 114.00 
SONITROL 40143410.541000. 82.00 
SONITROL 40143410.541000. 117.00 
SONITROL 40143410.541000. 173.00 

52840 SOUND HARLEY DAVIDSON BATTERY CORE REFUND 00103222.548000. -5.00 

SOUND HARLEY DAVIDSON REPAIR MOTORCYCLE 00103222.548000. 1,367.02 
52841 SOUND SAFETY PRODUCTS CO INC POCKET VESTS 00100020.526000. 606.24 
52842 WASHINGTON STATE PATROL FINGERPRINTING FEES OCT 08 001.237100. 280.25 

WASHINGTON STATE PATROL 00102020.541000. 90.00 

52843 STRATEGIES 360 INC PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 00100110.549000.E0801 15,000.00 

52844 SYSTEMS INTERFACE INC PAY ESTIMATE # 22 40220594.563000.W0621 41,496.75 

52845 TESSCO TECHNOLOGIES PHONE CHARGER 00103222.535000. 456.94 

52846 TEXTRON FINANCIAL CORPORATION (20) LEASE GOLF CARTS 42047165.545000. 2,051.00 

52847 THYSSENKRUPP ELEVATOR CORP PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE@PSB 00100010.548000. 172.83 

THYSSENKRUPP ELEVATOR CORP PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE@CH 00103530.548000. 172.83 

52848 TIMBERCON INC NETWORK CONNECTIONS 402.231700. -7.59 

TIMBERCON INC 40220594.563000.W0807 96.83 

52849 DEPT OF TRANSPORTATION NW REGION PROJECT COSTS NOV 2008 30500030.563000.R0503 69.90 

52850 DEPT OF TRANSPORTATION NW REGION MNGMNT CLASS 2 ATTENDEES 00100020.549000. 150.00 

Item 6 - 6



DATE: 1/14/2009 CITY OF MARYSVILLE PAGE: 5 
TIME: 11 :06:34AM INVOICE LIST
 

FOR INVOICES FROM 1/8/2009 TO 1/14/2009
 
ITEM 

CHK# VENDOR ITEM DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT # AMOUNT 

52850 DEPT OF TRANSPORTATION NW REGION MNGMNT CLASS I ATTENDEE 40145040.549000. 75.00 

52851 DEPT OF TRANSPORTATION NW REGION PROJECT COSTS NOV 2008 40220594.563000.W0802 10,164.48 
52852 UNITED PARCEL SERVICE SHIPPING EXPENSE 00103222.541000. 25.07 

UNITED PARCEL SERVICE 00103960.541000. 88.41 
52853 VARADY, JAY UB 3343400000004340 151 ST ST 401.122110. 168.46 
52854 VERIZON NORTHWEST ACCT #POLE BLDG 00103222.542000. 158.95 

VERIZON NORTHWEST ACCT # I0046960940 I 00104000.542000. 35.00 

VERIZON NORTHWEST ACCT # I006640 11800 00104000.542000. 85.50 
VERIZON NORTHWEST ACCT #102746380105 00104000.542000. 100.93 
VERIZON NORTHWEST ACCT # \03957234007 40142480.542000. 63.79 
VERIZON NORTHWEST ACCT # 11 09792481505 40143410.542000. 74.85 

52855 WA CITY/COUNTY MGMT ASSOC 2009 WCCMA MEMBERSHIP DUES 00100110.549000. 170.00 
52856 WASHINGTON STATE TREASURER PUBLIC SAFETY & BLDG REVENUE 001.237010. 48,115.16 

WASHINGTON STATE TREASURER 001.237030. 468.00 
52857 WASHINGTON STATE TREASURER FORFEITED PROPERTY 08 643.213400. 304.30 
52858 WA ASSOC OF BUILDING OFFICIALS BUILDING CODE PUBLICATIONS 00102020.531000. 541.42 
52859 WSU (7) PESTICIDE RECERT CLASS 00105380.549000. 700.00 
52860 WASTE MANAGEMENT NORTHWEST YARDWASTE,RECYCLE SERVICE 41046290.541000. 74,611.52 
52861 WASTE MANAGEMENT NORTHWEST SERVICE @ DEERING 00105380.547000. 51.00 
52862 WEED GRAAFSTRA AND BENSON INC PS LEGAL SERVICES DEC 2008 00105515.541000. 2,397.00 

WEED GRAAFSTRA AND BENSON INC PS 00105515.541000. 7,768.00 
WEED GRAAFSTRA AND BENSON INC PS 00105515.541000. 12,057.79 

WEED GRAAFSTRA AND BENSON INC PS 30500030.563000.R030 1 539.25 
WEED GRAAFSTRA AND BENSON INC PS 30500030.563000.R0701 2,441.91 

WEED GRAAFSTRA AND BENSON INC PS 31000076.563000.G0701 221.75 
WEED GRAAFSTRA AND BENSON INC PS 40143410.541000. 731.50 

WEED GRAAFSTRA AND BENSON INC PS 40143410.541000. \2,057.78 

WEED GRAAFSTRA AND BENSON INC PS 40145040.541000. 120.00 

52863 WESTERN FACILITIES SUPPLY INC LIQUID PUREX 00103960.531000. 271.90 

WESTERN FACILITIES SUPPLY INC INMATE SUPPLIES 00103960.531000. 677.02 

52864 WHATCOM COUNTY AS FINANCE NW MINI CHAIN 4TH QTR 08 00103960.551000. 8,602.50 

52865 WHITNEY, MARV UB 57070385090 I 17627 29TH AVE 401.122110. 96.80 

52866 WIDENER & ASSOCIATES 27TH AVE NE EXT WETLANDS DELIN 00100020.541000. 368.90 

WIDENER & ASSOCIATES 00100020.541000. 1,041.60 

52867 WWGCSA ASSOCIATION DUES-HARPRING 42047165.549000. 225.00 

WARRANT TOTAL: 988,305.22 

LESS VOIDS 

CHECK # 50669 FUNCTION CANCELLED (119.35) 
DUE TO WEATHER 

CHECK # 51230 CHECK LOST (41.95) 
CHECK # 51390 CHECK LOST (20.00) 
CHECK # 52402 CHECK LOST IN MAIL (500.00) 

REASON FOR VOIDS: 

987,623.92
INITIATOR ERROR 

WRONG VENDOR 

CHECK LOST IN MAIL 

Item 6 - 7



CITY OF MARYSVILLE
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE anuary 26 2009
 : J , 
AGENDA ITEM: 
Payroll 

AGENDA SECTION: 

AGENDA NUMBER: 

APPROVED BY: J~ 

PREPARED BY: 
Sandy Langdon, Finance Director 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Blanket Certification 

MAYOR ICAb 

AMOUNT:BUDGET CODE: 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
 
The Finance and Executive Departments recommend City Council approve the January
 
20,2009 payroll in the amount $735,370.25 Check No.'s 20867 through 20916.
 

COUNCIL ACTION:
 

Item 7 - 1



CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 
 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:   

AGENDA ITEM: 
2009 budget adjustment and authorization to spend I-Net funds on 
an I-Net fiber network expansion to the new Marysville Fire 
Administration building at 1094 Cedar Avenue. 

AGENDA SECTION: 
New Business 
 

PREPARED BY: 
Worth Norton, Information Services Manager 
 

APPROVED BY: 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1) Comcast Custom Work Cost Estimate 
 

 
 
MAYOR  CAO 

BUDGET CODE:  
10800080 549000 

AMOUNT:   
$ 15,596.68 

 
DESCRIPTION: 
 
At the writing of the 2009 budget, the Marysville Fire District’s decision to move to a 
new building was not known to the City’s Information Services department.  Since the 
adoption of the 2009 budget, the Fire District has chosen a new location at 1094 Cedar 
Avenue for their new administration building. Therefore, we are requesting that the 
Council authorize the use 2009 I-Net funds for the expansion of the City’s fiber network 
to the new Fire Administration building. 
 
This project will provide fiber connectivity between the new Fire Administration building 
and the Public Safety building.  These funds will also purchase two GBICs (gigabit 
interface converters) and patch cables to connect the City’s network to Comcast’s fiber. 
 
The work being done by Comcast is covered by the original franchise agreement and the 
attached work order amends the original agreement.  Therefore a new contract is not 
required for this work. 
 
Comcast fiber with tax: $ 13,896.68 
Network GBICs & patch cables: 1,700.00 
  

Total project cost: $ 15,596.68 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  The City’s Information Services department and the 
Marysville Fire District recommend that the City Council authorize a budget adjustment 
for the use of 2009 I-Net funds for the expansion of the City’s fiber network and 
authorize the Mayor to sign the attached Comcast work order. 
 
COUNCIL ACTION: 
 
 
 

Item 9-1



  
CUSTOM WORK COST ESTIMATE 

January 2nd 2009 

City of Marysville  
1094 Cedar Avenue 
Marysville, WA 98720 
 
Reference Job Name: Marysville I-NET 1094 Cedar 
Reference Job #  

Hello Chris; 

We have performed a field survey for the new fire station at the following site address ( 1094 Cedar Avenue ) 
for the purpose of fiber connectivity back to Public Safety Center. 

The estimated cost to install the fiber optic cable is $12,808.00. This cost covers all design labor and 
material.         

If you agree to pay the cost of construction, please sign where indicated below and return this form, 
along with a check payable to “Comcast” in the amount of $ 12,808.00 .  This estimate is valid for 60 
days, from the date of your receipt of this letter. 

Please send your reply to:  Comcast 
    1525 75 ST SW #200 
    Everett, WA  98203 
    Attention: Ed Calamaro 
 

Customer Signature ______________________________________  Date ____________________ 

If you have any questions in regards to this estimate, please contact Ed Calamaro at 425-263-5344 
 
Thank you and we look forward to providing you with the best in today’s broadband services. 
 

Sincerely, 

 

Ed Calamaro 

 

 

Item 9-2



CITY OF MARYSVILLE
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE : January 26,2009 
AGENDA ITEM:
 
Professional Services Agreement with Macaulay &
 
Associates, Ltd. for Professional Services on the 1-5
 
Overpass at 156th St. NE Local Improvement District (LID)
 
PREPARED BY:
 
Shawn Smith, P.E., Engineering Services Manager
 

ATTACHMENTS:
 
Professional Services Agreement
 

BUDGET CODE:
 
30500030.563000 R0604
 

DESCRIPTION:
 

AGENDA SECTION: 

APPROVED BY: ) L 

MAYOR ICAO 

AMOUNT: 
$56,200.00 

This Professional Services Agreement will provide the City with the professional 
appraisal services for the 1-5 Overpass at 156th St. NE LID. This contract provides for a 
special benefit/proportionate assessment study for the 156th St. Overpass LID. Macaulay 
& Associates, Ltd. received the top score from all three staff members, out of the three 
proposals received. 

An informal survey was conducted on the benefit study area, and the majority of the 
property owners in the area are in support of the LID, with several others saying that they 
would need to know exact costs prior to making a decision. The next step in this LID is 
to do the special benefit/proportionate assessment study. 

It is staff s opinion that the fee of $56,200.00 is fair and staff is confident that the City 
would be well-served by this contract. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
 
Staff recommends that Council authorize the Mayor to sign the Professional Services Agreement
 
in the amount of $56,200.00 with Macaulay & Associates, Ltd.
 

COUNCIL ACTION:
 

Item 12-1



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
 
CITY OF MARYSVILLE
 

AND MACAULAY & ASSOCIATES, LTD.
 
FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES
 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into in Snohomish County, 

Washington, by and between CITY OF MARYSVILLE, hereinafter called 

the "Ci ty," and Macaulay & Associates, Ltd., a Washington 

corporation, hereinafter called the "Consultant." 

WHEREAS, the Consultant has represented, and by entering 

into this Agreement now represents, that the firm and all 

employees assigned to work on any City project are in full 

compliance with the statutes of the State of Washington governing 

activities to be performed and that all personnel to be assigned 

to the work required under this agreement are fully qualified and 

properly licensed to perform the work to which they will be 

assigned. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions, 

covenants and performances contained hereinbelow, the parties 

hereto agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I. PURPOSE 

The purpose of this agreement is to provide the City with 
consultant services to provide a preliminary special 
benefit/proportionate assessment study for a proposed road 
improvement project as described in Article II. The general 
terms and conditions of relationships between the City and the 
Consultant are specified in this agreement. 

ARTICLE II. SCOPE OF WORK 

The scope of work is set out in the attached estimate of 
Professional Services for the proposed 156 th St NE overpass, 
Scenario 1, hereinafter referred to as the "scope of services," 
Exhibit A. All services and materials necessary to accomplish 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT - 1 
/wpf/forms/MV0038 - PSA 
/wpf/mv/PSA form.Consultant 092007 

Item 12-2



the tasks outlined in Exhibit A shall be provided by the 
Consultant unless noted otherwise in the scope of services or 
this agreement, 

ARTICLE III. OBLIGATIONS OF THE CONSULTANT 

111,1 MINOR CHANGES IN SCOPE. The Consultant shall 
accept minor changes, amendments, or revision in the detail of 
the work as may be required by the City when such changes will 
not have any impact on the service costs or proposed delivery 
schedule. Extra work, if any, involving substantial changes 
and/or changes in cost or schedules will be addressed as follows: 

Extra Work. The City may desire to have the 
Consultant perform work or render services in connection 
with each project in addition to or other than work provided 
for by the expressed intent of the scope of work in the 
scope of services, Such work will be considered as extra 
work and will be specified in a written supplement to the 
scope of services, to be signed by both parties, which will 
set forth the nature and the scope thereof, All proposals 
for extra work or services shall be prepared by the 
Consultant at no cost to the City, Work under a 
supplemental agreement shall not proceed until executed in 
writing by the parties. 

111,2 WORK PRODUCT AND DOCUMENTS, The work product 
and all documents listed in the scope of services shall be 
furnished by the Consultant to the City, and upon completion of 
the work shall become the property of the City, except that the 
Consultant may retain one copy of the work product and documents 
for its records. The Consultant will be responsible for the 
accuracy of the work, even though the work has been accepted by 
the City, 

In the event that the Consultant shall default on this 
agreement or in the event that this contract shall be terminated 
prior to its completion as herein provided, all work product of 
the Consultant, along with a summary of work done to date of 
default or termination, shall become the property of the City, 
Upon request, the Consultant shall tender the work product and 
summary to the City. Tender of said work product shall be a 
prerequisite to final payment under this contract, The summary 
of work done shall be prepared at no additional cost to the City, 

Consultant will not be held liable for reuse of these 
documents or modifications thereof for any purpose other than 
those authorized under this Agreement without the written 
authorization of Consultant, 

111,3 TIME OF PERFORMANCE, The Consultant shall be 
authorized to begin work under the terms of this agreement upon 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT - 2 
/wpf/forms/MV0038 - PSA 
/wpf/mv/PSA.form.Consultant 092007 Item 12-3



signing of both the scope of services and this agreement and 
shall complete the work by 12 weeks after date of executed 
contract, unless a mutual written agreement is signed to change 
the schedule. An extension of the time for completion may be 
given by the City due to conditions not expected or anticipated 
at the time of execution of this agreement. 

111.4 NONASSIGNABLE. The services to be provided by 
the Consultant shall not be assigned or subcontracted without the 
express written consent of the City. 

111.5 EMPLOYMENT. Any and all employees of the 
Consultant, while engaged in the performance of any work or 
services required by the Consultant under this agreement, shall 
be considered employees of the Consultant only and not of the 
City, and any and all claims that mayor might arise under the 
Workman's Compensation Act on behalf of any said employees while 
so engaged, and any and all claims made by any third party as a 
consequence of any negligent act or omission on the part of the 
Consultant or its employees while so engaged in any of the work 
or services provided herein shall be the sole obligation of the 
Consultant. 

111.6 INDEMNITY. 

a. The Consultant will at all times indemnify and 
hold harmless and defend the City, its elected officials, 
officers, employees, agents and representatives, from and 
against any and all lawsuits, damages, costs, charges, 
expenses, judgments and liabilities, including attorney's 
fees (including attorney's fees in establishing 
indemnification), collectively referred to herein as 
"losses" resulting from, arising out of, or related to one 
or more claims arising out of negligent acts, errors, or 
omissions of the Consultant in performance of Consultant's 
professional services under this agreement. The term 
"claims" as used herein shall mean all claims, lawsuits, 
causes of action, and other legal actions and proceedings of 
whatsoever nature, involving bodily or personal injury or 
death of any person or damage to any property including, but 
not limited to, persons employed by the City, the Consultant 
or other person and all property owned or claimed by the 
City, the Consultant, or affiliate of the Consultant, or any 
other person. 

b. Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine 
that this agreement is subject to RCW 4.24.115, then, in the 
event of liability for damaging arising out of bodily injury 
to persons or damages to property caused by or resulting 
from the concurrent negligence of the Consultant and the 
City, its members, officers, employees and agents, the 
Consultant's liability to the City, by way of 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT - 3 
/wpf/forms/MV0038 - PSA 
/wpf/mv/PSA.form.Consultant 092007 

Item 12-4



indemnification, shall be only to the extent of the 
Consultant's negligence. 

c, The provisions of this section shall survive the 
expiration or termination of this agreement, 

111.7 INSURANCE, 

a, Minimum Limits of Insurance, The Consultant 
shall, before commencing work under this agreement, file 
with the City certificates of insurance coverage to be kept 
in force continuously during this agreement, and during all 
work performed pursuant to all short form agreements, in a 
form acceptable to the City, Said certificates shall name 
the City as an additional named insured with respect to all 
coverages except professional liability insurance, The 
minimum insurance requirements shall be as follows: 

(1) Comprehensive General Liability, $1,000,000 
combined single limit per occurrence for bodily injury 
personal injury and property damage; damage, $2,000,000 
general aggregate; 

(2) Automobile Liability, $300,000 combined 
single limit per accident for bodily injury and 
property damage; 

(3) Workers' Compensation, Workers' compensation 
limits as required by the Workers' Compensation Act of 
Washington; 

(4) Consultant's Errors and Omissions Liability, 
$1,000,000 per occurrence and as an annual aggregate, 

b, Endorsement. Each insurance policy shall be 
endorsed to state that coverage shall not be suspended, 
voiced, canceled, reduced in coverage or in limits except 
after thirty (30) days' prior written notice by certified 
mail, return receipt requested, has been given to the City, 

c, Acceptability of Insurers, Insurance to be 
provided by Consultant shall be with a Bests rating of no 
less than A:VII, or if not rated by Bests, with minimum 
surpluses the equivalent of Bests' VII rating, 

d, Verification of Coverage, In signing this 
agreement, the Consultant is acknowledging and representing 
that required insurance is active and current, 

111,8 DISCRIMINATION PROHIBITED AND COMPLIANCE WITH 
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY LEGISLATION, The Consultant agrees to 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT - 4 
/wpf/forms/MV0038 - PSA 
/wpf/mv/PSA.form.Consultant 092007 

Item 12-5



comply with equal opportunity employment and not to discriminate 
against client, employee, or applicant for employment or for 
services because of race, creed, color, religion, national 
origin, marital status, sex, age or handicap except for a bona 
fide occupational qualification with regard, but not limited to, 
the following: employment upgrading; demotion or transfer; 
recruitment or any recruitment advertising; layoff or 
terminations; rates of payor other forms of compensation; 
selection for training, rendition of services. The Consultant 
further agrees to maintain (as appropriate) notices, posted in 
conspicuous places, setting forth the provisions of this 
nondiscrimination clause. The Consultant understands and agrees 
that if it violates this nondiscrimination provision, this 
agreement may be terminated by the City, and further that the 
Consultant will be barred from performing any services for the 
City now or in the future, unless a showing is made satisfactory 
to the City that discriminatory practices have been terminated 
and that recurrence of such action is unlikely. 

111.9 UNFAIR EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES. During the 
performance of this agreement, the Consultant agrees to comply 
with RCW 49.60.180, prohibiting unfair employment practices, 

111.10 AFFIRMATIVE ACTION. Affirmative action shall be 
implemented by the Consultant to ensure that applicants for 
employment and all employees are treated without regard to race, 
creed, color, sex, age, marital status, national origin or the 
presence of any sensory, mental or physical handicap, unless 
based on a bona fide occupational qualification. The Consultant 
agrees to take affirmative action to ensure that all of its 
employees and agent adhere to this provision. 

111.11 LEGAL RELATIONS. The Consultant shall comply 
with all federal, state and local laws and ordinances applicable 
to work to be done under this agreement, This contract shall be 
interpreted and construed in accordance with the laws of 
Washington. Venue for any action commenced relating to the 
interpretation, breach or enforcement of this agreement shall be 
in Snohomish County Superior Court. 

111.12 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. The Consultant's 
relation to the City shall at all times be as an independent 
contractor. 

111.13 CONFLICTS OF INTEREST. While this is a non
exclusive agreement the Consultant agrees to and will notify the 
City of any potential conflicts of interest in Consultant's 
client base and will seek and obtain written permission from the 
City prior to providing services to third parties where a 
conflict of interest is apparent, If a conflict is 
irreconcilable, the City reserves the right to terminate this 
agreement. 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT - 5 
/wpf/forms/MV0038 - PSA 
/wpf/mv/PSA.form.Consultant 092007 

Item 12-6



111.14 CITY CONFIDENCES. The Consultant agrees to and 
will keep in strict confidence, and will not disclose, 
communicate or advertise to third parties without specific prior 
written consent from the City in each instance, the confidences 
of the City or any information regarding the City or services 
provided to the City. 

ARTICLE IV. OBLIGATIONS OF THE CITY 

IV.l PAYMENTS. The Consultant shall be paid by the City 
for completed work for services rendered under this agreement and 
as detailed in the scope of services as provided hereinafter, 
Such payment shall be full compensation for work performed or 
services rendered and for all labor, materials, supplies, 
equipment and incidentals necessary to complete the work. 
Payment shall be on a time and expense basis, provided, however, 
in no event shall total payment under this agreement exceed 
$56,200. In the event the City elects to expand the scope of 
services from that set forth in Exhibit A, the City shall pay 
Consultant an additional amount based on a time and expense 
basis, based upon Consultant's current schedule of hourly rates. 

a. Invoices shall be submitted by the Consultant to 
the City for payment pursuant to the terms of the scope of 
services. The invoice will state the time expended, the 
hourly rate, a detailed description of the work performed, 
and the expenses incurred during the preceding month. 
Invoices must be submitted by the 20th day of the month to 
be paid by the 15th day of the next calendar month. 

b. The City will pay timely submitted and approved 
invoices received before the 20th of each month within 
thirty (30) days of receipt. 

IV.2 CITY APPROVAL. Notwithstanding the Consultant's 
status as an independent contractor, results of the work 
performed pursuant to this contract must meet the approval of the 
City, which shall not be unreasonably withheld if work has been 
completed in compliance with the scope of work and City 
requirements. 

ARTICLE V. GENERAL 

V.l NOTICES. Notices to the City shall be sent to the
 
following address:
 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE
 
ATTN: Shawn Smith
 
80 Columbia Avenue
 
MARYSVILLE, WA 98270
 

Notices to the Consultant shall be sent to the following 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT - 6 
/wpf/forms/MV0038 - PSA 
/wpf/mv/PSA.form Consultant 092007 Item 12-7



address: 

Macaulay & Associates, Ltd. 
Attn: Robert Macaulay, MAl 
2927 Colby Ave, Suite 100 
Everett, WA 98201 

Receipt of any notice shall be deemed effective three (3) 
days after deposit of written notice in the U.S. mail with proper 
postage and address. 

V.2 TERMINATION, The right is reserved by the City to 
terminate this agreement in whole or in part at any time upon ten 
(10) days' written notice to the Consultant. 

If this agreement is terminated in its entirety by the City 
for its convenience, a final payment shall be made to the 
Consultant which, when added to any payments previously made, 
shall total the actual costs plus the same percentage of the 
fixed fee as the work completed at the time of termination 
applied to the total work required for the project. 

V.3 DISPUTES. The parties agree that, following 
reasonable attempts at negotiation and compromise, any unresolved 
dispute arising under this contract may be resolved by a mutually 
agreed-upon alternative dispute resolution of arbitration or 
mediation. 

V.4 NONWAIVER. Waiver by the City of any provision of 
this agreement or any time limitation provided for in this 
agreement shall not constitute a waiver of any other provision. 

DATED this day of 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

By _ 

CONSULTANT 

~ I . -1//'By / .<...f--'-y_nf?,?:.:..1-'--W;-"«~r'--------'--'_·!..,yI__

Approved as to form: 

GRANT K. WEED, City Attorney 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT - 7 
/wpf/forms/MV0038 - PSA 
/wpf/mv/PSA.form.Consultant 092007 

Item 12-8



ssociates Ltd. RealEstateA raisers & Consultants 

2927 Colb;:: Avenue, Suite 100 • Everett, WA 98201' 

Everett 425-258-2611 • Seattle 206-382-9711 • Fax 425-252-l2io 

Charles R. Macaulay, MAl Paul C. Bird 
Robert J. Macaulay, MAl Richard J. DeFrancesco 
Jim E. Dodge 
Yvonne Alexander-Smith 

Teresa M. O'Leary 
Kelly R. Hao 

December 22, 2008 

Mr. Sh;:;\" r; /~. ~rnith, P.E. 
Engineering Services IVianagcr, Land Use 
City of Marysville 
80 Columbia Avenue 
Marysville, WA 98270 

Re:	 Time and fee proposal regarding a preliminary special benefit/proportionate assessment study for a 
proposed road improvement project and 1-5 overpass construction in the vicinity of 156th Street NE 
within the City of Marysville, WA, under three different project scenarios. 

Dcar Ivtr. Smith: 

As requested tbis proposal covers three scenario's which would encompass the two project areas described 
as phase 1 and phase 2, summarized below. 

Phase or scenario 1 will consist of widening and extending 1561h Street NE from Smokey Point Blvd. over 
1-5, extending north on a new alignment south of Gissberg Twin Lakes County Park and then east to connect 
with Twin Lakes Avenue. The overcrossing design will be such that it can be converted in the future to a full 
diamond interchange. Phase (scenario) 2 will widen and extend 156th Street NE east ofI-5 to 51 SI Avenue NE 
and widen 51 SI Avenue NE as it extends north to the Arlington city limits south of 172nd Street NE (SR 531). 

study and preparation of a report summarizing our findings for each of the two phases. A third scenario is 
also considered herein, which analyzes the two phases as a single project. The report(s) will consider physical 
and economic characteristics of each affected parcel. A base study will be undertaken, to consist of the 
assemblage of pertinent market data and investigation of the environmental, economic, governmental and 
social forces influencing the subject area. Consideration will be given to current zoning, land use trends, 
building improvements, wetland areas, highest and best use and other factors influencing market value for 
each property type or ownership, without and with the amenity of the LID road improvement project. 

The increase in probahle market value adhering to each parcel due to the LID project is the measure of special 
benefit The lotal assessment to be levied \-vill be obtained from the municipal LID coordinator. The Slim tow] 
of special berlcfit estimated for each parcel is the aggregate special benefit attributable Lo assessable pIopen)' 
within the proposed LID; this total divided into the total LID assessment provides the assessment ratio or the 
LID assessment per dollar of special benefit. The special benefit to each parcel times the cost/benefit ratio 
results in the individual assessment recommended to that parcel. 

Item 12-9



Mr. John A. Cowling, P.E. 
December 22., 2008 
Page 2 

The recommended assessments will meet the following two criteria:
 
a) Each recommended assessment is equal to or less than the special benefit accruing to that particular parcel.
 
b) Each recommended assessment is fair and in proportion to the special benefit derived by that parcel and
 

all other parcels due to the LID project. 

There are many variables in a sizable project such as this which spans an extended time period. It has been 
our experience when working on projects of this magnitude that there are often scheduling changes as well 
as revisions to the scope ofour assignment and other unforeseen complications which can result in increased 
time expenditures. Although this proposal is currently our best estimate of the scope ofthe assig)llnent, some 
Dexibility in contract anangements into which we enter would be most beneficial to both parties. We have 
made every effort to estimate the hours needed to successfully complete the assignment. However, if the 
scope ofwork is expanded or other significant factors at some point enter into defining our assignment, it may 
be necessary to negotiate supplemental agreements or contract amendments. 

Completion ofour work, as the assignment is described herein, will result in a preliminary formation special 
benefit study report which outlines the recommended LID boundary and provides a narrative summary of the 
study and tabulation ofrecommended assessments for all assessable parcels specially benefitted by the project. 
Due to the size of the project and number of parcels, individual appraisal reports on each are not prepared. 
Limited assignment appraisal techniques are utilized and a spreadsheet summarizing our value conclusions 
without and with the LID assumed completed is prepared. Based on the above scope of work, our time a.t1d 
fee estimate is summarized below: 

.S'Cena'rio 1 I I 
Appraiser Task Est. 

; 

TotalHou~lY 
Rate .
 

Robert Macaulay, MAl
 

Rours. 

$24,750 

f--. _._--~~view, meetings/consultation, report preparation 
Analysis, property inspections, UD boundary 110 $225 

; 

Jim Dodge/Kelly Hao Analysisirep0l1 preparation assistance, UD 140 $\50 S2J,OOO 
boundary review, property inspection, meetings 

$95 $10,450 
spreadsheet compilation, property data review, 
report editing 

Yvonne Alexander-Smith Project coordination, market data research, 110 

$56,200Total Proposed Fee 

Item 12-10



Mr. John A. Cowling, P.E. 
December 22,2008 
Page 3 

I Scenario 2 I 
',." .; ,.' , 

Appraiser : Tas,k , , Est. 'TotalHourly
: ' , 

, Hours .. ' i,' ~ ~ate" 
Robert Macaulay, MAl Analysis, LlD boundary review, 10 $225 $22,500 

meetings/consultation, report preparation 

Jim Dodge/Kelly Hao AnaJysis/report preparation assistance and meetings 120 $150 $18,000 

Yvonne Alexander-Smith Project coordination, market data research, $95 $7,600 
spreadsheet compilation, property data review, 
report editing 

80 

Total Proposed Fee $48,100 

I .. ,Scen~ri() ,3 J 
" 

,,Appraiser ,J.I 
' , i, ' 

T~sk Est. Hourly
,.'- " ., " .. Hours;' ; Rate" " 

Robert Macaulay, MAl Analysis of both project areas as single LID, 200 $225 
meetings/consultation, report preparation, boundary 
review 

Jim Dodge/Kelly Hao Analysis/report preparation assistance and meetings 220 $150 

Yvonne Alexander-Smith Project coordination, market data research, 170 $95 
spreadsheet compilation, property data review, 
report editing 

Total Proposed Fee 

"C' 

Total' 

$45,000 

$33,000 

$16,150 

$94,150 
,jL 
, 

·i 

Additional work for court testimony, trial preparation or individual report preparation would be billed
 
separately at the hourly rates summarized above. After we have your authorization to proceed, our completion
 
time will be approximately 10 to 12 weeks from that date. The above time frame also assumes that
 
preparation of the reports on each ofthe two project phases occurs concurrently.
 

This proj ect looks interesting and challenging and we appreciate the opportunity to make this proposal. Please
 
call if you have further questions.
 

Sincerely,
 
MACA.ULAY & ASSOCIATES, LTD.
 

Robert J. Macaulay, MAl 
WA State Certified - General Appraiser No 11005 J7 

Item 12-11



Item 14-1



Item 14-2



Item 14-3



Item 14-4



Item 14-5



Item 14-6



CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 1/26/09 
AGENDA ITEM: 
Part Time Confidential Administrative Assistant - Legal 
Department 

AGENDA SECTION: 

APPROVED BY: 

MAYOR ~cK1?0v 
AMOUNT: 

PREPARED BY: 

Mary Swenson, Chief Administrative Officer 
AITACHMENTS: 

BUDGET CODE: 

DESCRlPTION: 

In December the City hired two prosecuting attorneys and one support position to assist 
with the City'S growing population. It was also identified that this would be a cost 
savings measure for the City. 

As we have implemented the change from a contract to an inhouse operation it has 
become evident that an additional part-time support position is required. This will assist 
with the continued growth within our police and court system. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
 

The Executive and Legal Departments recommend the council authorize a part-time position of
 
Confidential Administrative Assistant at pay code N2.
 

COUNCIL ACTION:
 

Item 15-1



CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 

January 26 2009 CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: , I 

AGENDA ITEM: AGENDA SECTION: 
Interlocal Cooperative Agreement for Northwest Mini-chain services 
between the City of Marysville and Whatcom County 

PREPARED BY: AGENDA NUMBER: 
Commander R. Krusey 

ATTACHMENTS: APPROVED BY: 
Interlocal Cooperative Agreement Chief Rick Smith 

MAYOR ICAO 

BUDGET CODE: AMOUNT: 
00103960551000 $34,494 

The Police Department is requesting the City Council authorize the Mayor to sign the 
Interlocal Cooperative Agreement between the City of Marysville and Whatcom County 
for the services ofthe Northwest Mini-chain. This service transports Marysville prisoner, 
housed in other facilities, to Marysville Jail on the Whatcom County Bus. 

This is a recurring agreement and has been budgeted for in CY-2009budget. 

This agreement has been approved as to fonn by City attorney Grant Weed. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
 
Staff recommends that Maryville City Council authorize the Mayor to sign the Interlocal
 
Cooperative Agreement.
 

COUNCIL ACTION: 

Item 17 - 1



Item 17 - 2



Item 17 - 3



Item 17 - 4



CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE : J anuary 26 2009 , 
AGENDA ITEM: 

Contract Award: 2009 Annual Concrete Construction Contract 

AGENDA SECTION: 

New Business 

PREPARED BY: 
Jeff Laycock, Project Engineer 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Certified Bid Tab 

BUDGET CODE: 
10111561.549000, 10110361.531000 

AP~EDBY: 

MAYOR ICAO 

AMOUNT: 
Not to Exceed $200,000 

The City solicited bids for miscellaneous concrete construction work pertaining to curb, gutter, 
sidewalk, driveway entrances and sidewalk ramps for the year 2009. This has been a standard 
procedure to bid and renew the contract on a yearly basis. Merlino Bros., LLC was the low 
bidder. The contract is for work performed through December 31, 2009. The amount of the 
contract is not to exceed $200,000. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Public Works Staff recommends the City Council authorize the Mayor to award the 
bid for the 2009 Concrete Construction Contract to Merlino Bros. LLC in the amount 
not to exceed $200,000.00 including Washington State Sales Tax. 

COUNCIL ACTION: 

G:'Shared\Engineering\Projects\Other\SIDEWALK PROGRAM\2009 Concrete ConstlUction Contract\Bidding\Agenda Bill re 2009 Concrete 
Contract.doc 

Item 8 - 1



1Mary~ I2009 Concrete Construction Contract Bid Tab 

~ LOW BIDDER 

ursday, JanuClry 15, 2009 ~
Engineer's Estimate Curbs Plus I Merlino Bros, LLC I
 

SPEC ITEM DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNITS UNIT PRICES TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICES TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICES TOTAL PRICE
 

Schwetz Construction
 
UNIT PRICES TOTAL PRICE
 

8-04,5 1 cement Cone. Traffic Curb and Gutter 1.500 LF $30.00 $45,000.00 $24.00 $36.000.00 $17.00 $25,500.00 $22.00 $33.000.00 
8-04.5 2 cement Cone. Pedestrian Curb 100 LF $20.00 $2,000.00 $12.00 $1,200.00 $32.00 $3,200.00 $25.00 $2,500.00 
8-06.5 3 Cement Cone. Driveway Entrance 250 SY $55.00 ._ $13,750.00 $49.50 $12,375.00 $46.00 $11.500.00 $48.00 $12,000.00 
8-14.5 4 Cement Concrete Sidewalk 1.000 SY $50.00 $50,000.00 $45.00. $45,000.00 $32.50 $32.500.00 $34.00 $34.000.00 
8-14.5 S Cement Cone. Sidewalk Ramp Type 1 5 EA $1,800.00 $9,000.00 $1,100.00 $5,500.00 $990.00 $4,950.00 $825.00 $4,125.00 
8-14.5 6 Cement Cone. Sidewalk Ramo Type 2 5 EA $1,800.00 $9,000.00 $900.00 $4,500.00 $990.00 $4,950.00 $825,00 $4,125.00 
8-14.5 7 Cement Cone. Sidewalk Ramp Type 3A 5 EA $1,500.00 $7,500.00 $900.00 $4,500.00 $890.00 $4,450.00 $825.00 $4.125.00 
8-14.5 8 Cement Cone, Sidewalk Ramp Type 38 5 EA $1,500.00 -_. $7,500.00 $900.00 $4,500,00 $890,00 $4,450.00 $525.00 $2,625.00 
8-14.5 9 Cement Cone. Sidewalk Ramp Type 4A 5 EA $1,500.00 $7,500.00 $900.00 $4,500.00 $890.00 $4,450.00 $525.00 $2,625.00 
8-14.5 
8-14.5 

10 
11 

Cement Cone. Sidewalk Ramp Type 48 
Cement Cone. Sidewalk Ramo Type 4C 

5 
5 

EA 
EA 

$1,500.00 
$1.500.00 

$7,~~ f--
$7.500.00 

$900.00 
$900.00 

$4,500.00 
$4.500.00 

$890.00 
$890.00 

$4,450.00 
$4,450.00 

$525.00 
$825.00 

$2,625.00 
$4.125.00 

8-14.5 12 Cement Cone. Sidewalk Ramo Tyoe 5 5 EA $1.500,9.Q. f-_. $7,500.00 $900.00 $4,500.00 - $890.00 $4,450.00 $825.00 $4,125.00 
13 Force Account 5,000 EST $1.00 $5,000.00 $1.00 $5000.00 $1.00 $5,000.00 $1.00 $5000.00 

TOTAL $178,750.00 $136,575.00 $114,300.00 $115,000.00 

)C Finishing Edge Dennis R Craig Bertarde AA Asphaltjng 
_. -- ITEM DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNITS UNIT PRICES TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICES TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICES TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICES TOTAL PRICE .. _...SPEC

8-04.5 1 Cement Cone. Traffic Curb and Gutter 1500 LF $21.85 $32,775.00 $18.20 $27,300.00 $30.00 $45,000.00 $77.00 $115,500.00 
cement Cone. Pedestrian Curb $21.85 $2,185.00 $46.60 

-
$4,660.00 $26.00 $2,600.00 $51.00 $5,100.008-{)4.5 2 100 LF 

8-06.5 3 cement Cone. Driveway Entrance 250 SY $48.10 $12,025.00 $93.10 $23,275.00 $81.00 $20,250.00 $108.00 $27,000.00 
8-14.5 4 cement Concrete Sidewalk 1,000 SY $32.50 $32,500.00 $41.80 $41,800.00 $68.00 $68,000.00 $58.00 $58,000,00 
8-14.S 5 cement Cone. Sidewalk Ramp Type 1 5 EA $800.00 $4,000.00 $1,920.00 $5,100.00 $1,200.00 $6,000.00 $2,700.00 $13,500.00 
8-14.5 6 Cement Cone. Sidewalk Ramp Tvpe 2 5 EA $1,000.00 $5,000.00 $1,495.00 $7,475.00 $1,600.00 $8.000.00 $4.040.00 $20,200.00 
8-14.5 7 cement Cone. Sidewalk Ramp Type 3A 5 EA $1,100.00 $5,500.00 $1,590.00 $7,950.00 $1,600.00 $8,000.00 $2,450.00 $12,250.00 
8-14.5 8 Cement Cone. Sidewalk Ramp Type 38 5 EA $750.00 $3,750.00 $1,090.00 $5.450.00 $1600.00 $8,000.00 $2,200.00 $11,000.00 
8-14.5 9 cement Cone. Sidewalk Ramp Type 4A 5 EA $850.00 $4,250.00 $1,190.00 $5,950.00 $1,100.00 $5.500.00 $2,450.00 $12,250.00 
8-14.5 10 Cement Cone. Sidewalk Ramp Type 48 5 EA $850.00 $4,250.00 $1,235.00 $6,175.00 $1.100.00 $5,500.00 $2,450.00 $12,250.00 
8-14.5 11 Cement Cone. Sidewalk Ramo Tyoe 4C 5 EA $850.00 $4,250.00 $1,988.00 $9.940.00 $1,100.00 $5,500.00 $2,700.00 - .. $13,500.00 

cement Cone. Sidewalk Ramp Type 5 $800.00 $4,000.00 $1.320.00 $6,600.00 $1,200.00 $6,000.00 $2,450.00 $12,250.008-14.5 12 5 EA 
13 Force Account 5,000 EST $1.00 $5,000.00 $1.00 $5000.00 $1.00 $5,000.00 $1.00 $5000.00 

TOTAL $119,485.00 $156,675.00 $193,350.00 $317,800.00 

f Math error corrected 

Bid non-responsive, no bid deposit
 

NOTE: We hereby certify that this bid tabulation represents all bids received and that all calculations have been checked and are correct.
 

Item 8 - 2



CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: January 26 2009 , 

Equipment Lease Between City of Marysville and Public Utility 
AGENDA ITEM: 

District NO.1 of Snohomish County 
PREPARED BY: 
Mike Shepard, Fleet & Facilities Manager 

ATIACHMENTS: 

District NO.1 of Snohomish County 

BUDGET CODE: 
40143780.545000 

AGENDA SECTION: 

APPROVED BY: ~(, 

MAYOR I CAO 

AMOUNT 
$8,766.60 

Equipment Lease Between City of Marysville and Public Utility 

Attached is an Equipment Lease with Public Utility District NO. 1 of Snohomish County for two 
transfonners needed to support power requirements at the old Interfor mill site. The lease 
contract tenn is for 5-years and it expires in August of 2013. One transfonner supports the 
office building that the Community Development Building Department resides in and the 
other transfonner supports the building that the Solid Waste Department resides in. 

These transfonners were leased by Interfor Pacific before the City purchased the property 
and City Staff has detennined that continuing to lease the transfonners is our best financial 
recourse other than removing the PUD transfonners and purchasing new ones. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Staff recommends that Council authorize the Mayor to sign the Equipment Lease with 
Public Utility District NO.1 of Snohomish County for two transfonners for the period of 
September 30,2008 through August 31,2013. 

COUNCIL ACTION: 

Agenda Bill POO Transformer Lease.DOC December 31, 2008 

Item 10-1



EQUIPMENT LEASE 

This Lease is entered into by and between CITY OF MARYSVILLE, (the "Lessee"), 
a municipality whose business offices are located at 1049 State Avenue, Marysville, 
Washington, and PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 1 OF SNOHOMISH COUNTY (the 
"Lessor"), whose business offices are located at 2320 California Street, Everett, 
Washington, and whose mailing address is P. O. Box 1107, Everett, Washington, 98206
1107, on the following terms and conditions: 

Equipment Description 

Quantity Lessor's ID Number Type and Model Number 

1 UTC 295463 50 kVA 120/240 volt single phase overhead transformer 

1 UTC 296841 225 KVA 480/277 volt three-phase padmount transformer 

Rent Commencement Date: September 1, 2008 Monthly Rent: $146.11 

Expiration Date: August 31, 2013 

Location of Equipment: 

60 State Avenue, Marysville, Washington 

1. LEASE. Lessor hereby agrees to lease to Lessee, and Lessee hereby agrees to 
lease from Lessor, the personal property described above upon the terms and conditions 
set forth herein (such property together with all replacements, repairs and additions 
incorporated therein or affixed thereto being referred to herein as the "Equipment"). 

2. REQUIREMENTS BEFORE EQUIPMENT IS ENERGIZED. The parties agree 
that the Lessor shall not energize the Equipment until the Lessee has, in the Lessor's 
opinion, complied with all applicable federal, state and local environmental and land use 
laws and regulations including, but not limited to: (1) the oil pollution prevention 
regulations codified at 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 112; (2) the Washington Solid 
Waste Management Act as codified in Revised Code of Washington ("R.C.W.") Chapter 
70.95; (3) the Washington Model Toxics Control Act, R.C.W. Chapter 70.1050; and, (4) 
the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, 33 United States Code §§ 1251 et seq. 

3. INITIAL TERM. The term of this lease shall begin on the date the Equipment is 
energized or on the 31st day after the Equipment is delivered to the Location of 
Equipment specified above, whichever first occurs, and shall continue for 12 consecutive 
months thereafter (the "initial term") unless earlier terminated as provided herein or 
unless extended automatically as provided herein. 

City of MarySVille - 1
Equipment Lease Item 10-2



· , 

4. AUTOMATIC EXTENSION. Lessee or Lessor may terminate this lease at the 
expiration of the initial term by giving the other party at least 90 days' prior written notice 
of termination. If neither Lessee nor Lessor gives such notice, then the term of this lease 
shall be extended automatically on the same rental and other terms set forth herein, 
except that in any event rent during any extended term shall be payable in the amounts 
and at the times provided in paragraph 3 for successive periods of one month until 
terminated by either Lessee or Lessor giving the other party at least 90 days' prior written 
notice of termination. In addition, the term of this lease may be extended upon such new 
or additional terms, including new monthly rental rates, as the parties may agree upon in 
writing. 

S. RENT. Lessee shall for the initial term of this lease pay $146.11 as Rent during 
each month in the term of this agreement, plus the leasehold tax and any other tax 
thereon. Lessee shall pay installments with the first installment to be paid on the next 
regular billing after Lessee executes this lease. Subsequent installments shall be payable 
on the next regular billing of each month after the initial term of this lease begins. This 
billing will be included in the energy bill for the service address listed under "Location of 
Equipment" on Page 1. of this Agreement. 

During any extended term of this lease, basic rent shall be payable monthly in 
advance on the same day each month that the monthly rent was due during the initial 
term of this lease, except that the parties may agree in writing to a different basic rent 
amount during any extended term. In addition, Lessee shall pay leasehold taxes and any 
other applicable tax payable during any extended term. 

6. WARRANTIES. Lessee acknowledges that Lessor is not the manufacturer of the 
Equipment nor the manufacturer's agent and disclaims any reliance upon any statements 
or representations made by Lessor. LESSOR MAKES NO WARRANTY WITH RESPECT 
TO THE EQUIPMENT, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AND LESSOR SPECIFICALLY 
DISCLAIMS ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY AND OF FITNESS FOR A 
PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND ANY LIABILITY FOR DAMAGES OF ANY KIND, 
INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO DIRECT, INDIRECT, CONSEQUENTIAL, AND 
PUNITIVE DAMAGES, ARISING OUT OF THE USE OF OR THE INABILITY TO USE 
THE EQUIPMENT. As between Lessor and Lessee it is agreed that all risks as to the 
design and capacity of the Equipment and all risks of whether the Equipment will satisfy 
the requirements of any law, regulation, code, rule, specification or contract are to be 
borne by the Lessee. Lessee agrees to make the rental and other payments required 
hereunder without regard to the condition of the Equipment and to look only to persons 
other than Lessor such as the manufacturer, vendor or carrier thereof should any item of 
Equipment for any reason be defective. So long as no Event of Default has occurred and 
is continuing, Lessor agrees, to the extent they are assignable, to assign to Lessee, 
without any recourse to Lessor, any warranty received by Lessor. 

City of Marysville -2
Equipment Lease Item 10-3



Lessor: Lessee: 

PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO.1 CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
OF SNOHOMISH C~U A Washington Corporation 

By: _By: Ul'--6< f,= _ 
:

___ 
Name: ~) Name: _
 

Title: ~,&::t d1/\~(Y Title:
 
Dated: \-;} 1 8-.1- e4)trO Dated: _
 

7. TITLE AND IDENTIFICATION. Title to the Equipment shall at all times during 
the term of this lease, including the initial term and any extended term remain in Lessor, 
and Lessee at its expense shall protect and defend the title of Lessor and keep it free of 
all claims and liens other than the rights of Lessee hereunder and claims and liens 
created by or arising through Lessor. The Equipment shall remain personal property 
regardless of its attachment to realty, and Lessee agrees to take such action at its 
expense as may be necessary to prevent any third party from acqUiring any interest in 
the Equipment as a result of its attachment to realty. Each item of leased Equipment 
shall, immediately following any request by Lessor, have plainly, distinctly and 
permanently affixed to it, at the expense of the Lessee, a metal plate or other suitable 
identification bearing the follOWing words: "PUD No. 1 of Snohomish County, Owner and 
Lessor." 

8. LAWS AND TAXES. Lessee shall comply with all laws and regulations, specifically 
including all electrical and building codes, relating to the Equipment and its use and shall 
promptly pay when due all sales, use, property, excise and other taxes and all license and 
registration fees now or hereafter imposed by any governmental body or agency upon 
the Equipment or its use or the rentals hereunder excluding, however, any taxes on or 
measured by Lessor's net income. Upon request by Lessor, Lessee shall prepare and file 
all tax returns relating to taxes for which Lessee is responsible hereunder which Lessee is 
permitted to file under the laws of the applicable taxing jurisdiction. Lessee shall, in 
operating and disposing of the Equipment, comply with all applicable federal, state and 
local environmental and land use laws and regulations including, but not limited to: (1) 
the oil pollution prevention regulations codified at 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 
112; (2) the Washington Solid Waste Management Act as codified in Revised Code of 
Washington ("R.C.W.") Chapter 70.95; (3) the Washington Model Toxics Control Act, 
R.C.W. Chapter 70.105D; and, (4) the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, 33 United 
States Code §§ 1251 et seq., including any amendments to these laws and regulations 
hereafter enacted. Lessee shall be solely responsible for oil spill prevention, for the 
containment and cleanup of any oil leaked or spilled from the Equipment, and for any and 
all costs associated with the prevention, containment, and cleanup of oil leaked or spilled 
from the Equipment. 

City of Marysville - 3
EqUipment Lease Item 10-4



9. INDEMNITY. Lessee hereby agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless 
Lessor from any and all liability and expense arising out of the ordering, ownership, use, 
condition, disposal, or operation of each item of Equipment during the term of this lease 
(including any extended term), except for any tax liability of the Lessor under paragraph 
8. For purposes of this paragraph the following definitions apply: 

(a) Lessor includes the Lessor's elected and other officials, officers, employees, 
agents and assignees; 

(b) Liability includes any liability arising from Lessee's failure to comply with any 
of the terms of this agreement, including but not limited to: (1) any failure to 
maintain and protect Lessor's title to the equipment as provided in Section 7 of this 
agreement; (2) any failure to comply with electrical and building codes, 
environmental and land use laws, and to pay any taxes due upon the Equipment, 
as provided in paragraph 8; and, (3) failure to properly use and repair, and 
adequately maintain the Equipment as provided in Section 12, including any failure 
to repair the Equipment as directed by Lessor pursuant to Section 11; (4) failure to 
prevent encumbrances or liens from attaching the Equipment as required in 
Section 10; and, (5) failure to properly dispose of the Equipment or any hazardous 
materials or hazardous wastes produced as a result of the operation of the 
Equipment. (6) failure to maintain, replace or secure from damage any hardware, 
foundations and mounting structures (elevated or at ground level), used in the 
installation of the Equipment. In addition, liability shall include damages arising 
from death or injury to person, damage to property and strict liability under the 
laws or judicial decisions of any state or the United States including all claims, 
damages, demands, fines, judgments, penalties, obligations, and payments; 

(c) Expense includes legal expenses including reasonable attorneys' fees and 
out-of-pocket expenses and reasonable costs and expenses of investigation. 

Lessor shall give reasonable notice to Lessee in writing of any claim or threatened 
claim subject to this Section 9, and Lessee shall, at its own cost and expense, 
assume the investigation, defense and settlement of any such claim or threatened 
claim. Lessor may, at its own cost and expense, participate in investigating and 
defending the claim or threatened claim and, should Lessor so participate, Lessee 
shall cooperate fully with Lessor in defending the claim or threatened claim and 
Lessee shall not settle any such claim or threatened claim without Lessor's written 
consent. 

City of Marysville - 4
Equipment Lease Item 10-5



10. NO ASSIGNMENT OR LIEN. Without Lessor's prior written consent, LESSEE 
WILL NOT SELL, ASSIGN, SUBLET, PLEDGE, OR OTHERWISE ENCUMBER OR 
PERMIT A LIEN ARISING THROUGH LESSEE TO EXIST ON OR AGAINST ANY 
INTEREST IN THIS LEASE OR THE EQUIPMENT, or remove the Equipment from its 
location referred to above. Lessor may assign its interest in this lease and sell or grant a 
security interest in all or any part of the Equipment without notice to or the consent of 
Lessee. Lessee agrees not to assert against any assignee of Lessor any claim or defense 
Lessee may have against Lessor. 

11. INSPECTION BY LESSEE. Lessee shall have a reasonable time period, which 
the parties agree to be 10 days, to inspect the Equipment after it is energized. Unless 
Lessee gives written notice to the Lessor within 15 days after the Equipment is energized, 
specifying any defect or other objection to the Equipment it shall be conclusively 
presumed, as between Lessee and Lessor, that Lessee: (a) has fully inspected the 
Equipment, (b) acknowledged that the Equipment is in good condition and repair, (c) is 
satisfied with the Equipment, and (d) has accepted the Equipment in such good condition 
and repair. Lessee shall be precluded from relying on defects not stated in the notice as a 
basis for justifying rejection or claiming breach. 

12. USE AND REPAIRS. Lessee will use the Equipment with due care and for the 
purpose for which it is intended and, in addition, will maintain the Equipment and any 
supporting structures and hardware utilized in the Equipment installation in good repair, 
condition and working order and will furnish all parts and services required therefor, all at 
its expense. All such parts (excluding mounting poles, foundations, and like supporting 
structures) when furnished shall immediately become the property of Lessor and part of 
the Equipment for all purposes hereof. Lessee will comply and conform to all laws, 
ordinances, regulations, and codes as well as any manufacturer's maintenance manuals, 
instructions, bulletins, recommendations, etc., that relate in any manner to the 
possession, installation, use, and/or maintenance of the Equipment. In addition, Lessee 
will comply with all statutes and regulations governing the transportation, handling, 
storage and disposal of such hazardous wastes and hazardous materials as may be 
generated by or in connection with Lessee's use, repair, and maintenance of the 
Equipment. 

13. ACCESS FOR INSPECTION AND MAINTENANCE. Lessee will provide Lessor 
with access to the Equipment at any time and from time to time during Lessee's regular 
operating hours so that Lessor may inspect the equipment. Lessor's inspections will be for 
the limited purpose of determining the existence and condition of the Equipment. Lessor 
will not inspect the Equipment to determine whether or not it is installed and/or is being 
operated as required by law, specifically including any environmental law or regulation or 
any electrical, safety or building code. If Lessee wishes any such determinations to be 
made, it must either engage professional engineers or consultants or contact the agency 
having jurisdiction to make inspections. 

City of Marysville -5
Equipment Lease Item 10-6



Should Lessor observe any conditions regarding the Equipment including its 
operation or installation, which, in the opinion of Lessor, has the potential to expose it to 
liability, Lessee may be notified of Lessor's opinion. If Lessor notifies Lessee of such a 
condition in writing and demands that Lessee cure the condition, Lessee agrees to do so 
in a reasonable period of time, which shall not in any case exceed 30 days. Where the 
condition constitutes an immediate danger to life, health, or property, Lessor may, 
without liability to Lessee, de-energize the Equipment immediately upon verbal notice to 
Lessee. If Lessee fails to cure the condition within such reasonable period, it shall 
constitute an "Event of Default." 

14. NOTICE OF BLOWN FUSES, ETC. Lessee will notify Lessor as soon as 
reasonably possible, and in any case within 48 hours, after a primary fuse for the 
Equipment blows or after an oil leak or any other problem with the Equipment is 
observed. 

15. LOSS OR DAMAGE - REPLACEMENT. Lessor is under no obligation to provide 
replacements of any Equipment lost or damaged. If it does so, replacement will be 
according to the terms and provisions of a lease agreement to be negotiated by the 
parties and not according to the terms of this agreement. In the event any item of 
Equipment shall become lost, stolen, destroyed, damaged beyond repair or rendered 
permanently unfit for use for any reason, or in the event of condemnation or seizure of 
any item of Equipment, Lessee shall promptly pay Lessor (a) the amount of all rent and 
other amounts payable by Lessee hereunder with respect to such item due but unpaid at 
the date of such payment, plus (b) the amount of all unpaid rent with respect to such 
item for the balance of the term of this lease not yet due at the time of such payment 
discounted from the respective dates installment payments would be due at the rate of 
5% per annum. Upon payment of such amount to Lessor, such item shall become the 
property of Lessee, Lessor will transfer to Lessee without recourse or warranty, all of 
Lessor's right, title and interest therein, the rent with respect to such item shall 
terminate, and the rental payments on the remaining items shall be reduced accordingly. 
Lessee shall pay any sales and use taxes due on such transfer. Any insurance or 
condemnation proceeds received by Lessor shall be credited to Lessee's obligation under 
this paragraph and Lessor shall be entitled to any surplus. 

16. INSURANCE. Lessee shall obtain and maintain on or with respect to the 
Equipment at its own expense: (a) liability insurance insuring against liability for bodily 
injury and physical damage with a minimum limit of $2,000,000 combined single limit, 
and (b) physical damage insurance insuring the Equipment against all risks of loss or 
damage to or from every cause whatsoever for not less than the full replacement value 
thereof as determined by Lessor. Lessee shall, before taking possession of the 
Equipment, and thereafter at least 45 days prior to the expiration of each insurance 
policy, furnish Lessor with original certificates of insurance (together with copies of the 
underlying policies) evidencing the issuance of a policy or policies to Lessee in at least the 
minimum amounts required herein naming Lessor as an additional insured thereunder for 
the liability coverage and as loss payee for the physical damage coverage. Each such 

City of Marysville - 6
EqUipment Lease Item 10-7



policy shall be in such form as may be satisfactory to Lessor and with insurers qualified to 
do business in the state of Washington rated A- or better by Best's Key Rating Guide, 
unless otherwise agreed upon. Each insurance policy shall contain a clause specifying that 
no action or misrepresentation by Lessee shall invalidate such policy against Lessor. Each 
insurer shall agree, by endorsement upon the policy or policies issued by it or by 
independent instrument furnished to Lessor, that it will give Lessor 30 days' written 
notice before the policy in question shall be altered or canceled. The proceeds of 
insurance, at the option of Lessor, shall be applied (a) toward the replacement, 
restoration or repair of the Equipment or (b) toward payment of the obligations of the 
Lessee hereunder. Lessee hereby appoints Lessor as Lessee's attorney-in-fact to make 
claim or, receive payment of, and execute and endorse all documents, checks or drafts 
for loss or damage under any said insurance policy. Lessor shall be under no duty to 
ascertain the existence of or to examine any such policy or to advise Lessee in the event 
any such policy shall not comply with the requirements hereof. 

17. DELIVERY AND RETURN OF EQUIPMENT. Lessor shall transport and deliver 
the Equipment to Lessee at the location noted on the first page of this lease at its own 
cost and expense. Upon the expiration or earlier termination of this lease, Lessee will 
immediately deliver the Equipment to Lessor in the same condition as when Lessee took 
possession, ordinary wear and tear excepted, at Lessor's "Operations Center" located at 
1802 75th Street, SW, Everett, Washington, or at such location within Snohomish County, 
Washington, as Lessor shall designate. Lessee shall pay all transportation and other 
expenses relating to such delivery and return. Should Lessee fail to so return the 
Equipment to the District, Lessee shall defend, hold harmless, and indemnify the District 
against any and all liabilities, losses, claims, damages, costs, demands, fines, judgments 
and penalties (together with reasonable attorneys' fees and out-of-pocket expenses 
incurred in connection with any of the foregoing) arising from Lessee's failure to dispose 
of the Equipment in compliance with any applicable federal, state, or local laws governing 
the disposal of hazardous wastes, solid wastes, or waste oil. 

18. PREPARATION FOR DELIVERY. The parties have entered separate 
agreements regarding the action and construction that each of them will undertake 
before the Equipment is delivered. Lessee understands that Lessor will not deliver the 
Equipment unless or until it is satisfied that all necessary actions and construction have 
been completed. 

19. ADDITIONAL ACTION. Lessee will promptly execute and deliver to Lessor such 
further documents and take such further action as Lessor may request in order to more 
effectively carry out the intent and purpose of this lease, including the execution and 
delivery of appropriate financing statements to fully protect Lessor's investment 
hereunder in accordance with the Uniform Commercial Code or other applicable law. 

City of MarySVille -7
Equipment Lease Item 10-8



.' 

20. LATE CHARGES. If any installment of rent is not received by Lessor within 10 
days after it is due, Lessor may impose a late charge of up to 5% of the amount of the 
installment but in any event not more than permitted by applicable law. Payments 
thereafter received shall be applied first to delinquent installments and then to current 
installments. 

21. DEFAULT. Each of the following events shall constitute an "Event of Default" 
hereunder: (a) Lessee shall fail to pay when due any installment of rent; (b) Lessee shall 
fail to observe or perform any other agreement to be observed or performed by Lessee 
hereunder and the continuance thereof for 10 calendar days following written notice 
thereof by Lessor to Lessee; (c) Lessee or any guarantor of this lease or any partner of 
Lessee if Lessee is a partnership shall cease doing business as a going concern or make 
an assignment for the benefit of creditors; (d) Lessee or any guarantor of this lease or 
any partner of Lessee if Lessee is a partnership shall voluntarily file, or have filed against 
it involuntarily, a petition for liquidation, reorganization, adjustment of debt, or similar 
relief under the federal Bankruptcy Code or any other present or future federal or state 
bankruptcy or insolvency law, or a trustee, receiver, or liquidator shall be appointed of it 
or of all or a substantial part of its assets; (e) any individual Lessee, guarantor of this 
lease, or partner of Lessee if Lessee is a partnership, shall die; (f) any financial or credit 
information submitted by or on behalf of Lessee shall prove to have been false or 
misleading in any material respect when submitted; (g) an event of default shall occur 
under any other obligation Lessee owes to Lessor; (h) any indebtedness Lessee may now 
or hereafter owe to Lessor or any affiliate thereof shall be accelerated following a default 
thereunder or, if any such indebtedness is payable on demand, payment thereof shall be 
demanded; and, (i) Lessee fails to properly use, repair, or maintain the equipment, or to 
comply with any applicable health, safety, environmental, land use, hazardous materials, 
or hazardous waste disposal law, rule or regulation. 

22. REMEDIES. Lessor and Lessee agree that Lessor's damages suffered by reason 
of an Event of Default are uncertain and not capable of exact measurement at the time 
this lease is executed because the value of the Equipment at the expiration of this lease 
is uncertain, and therefore they agree that for purposes of this paragraph "Lessor's Loss" 
as of any date shall be the sum of the following: (1) the amount of all rent and other 
amounts payable by Lessee hereunder due but unpaid as of such date plus (2) the 
amount of all unpaid rent for the balance of the term of this lease not yet due as of such 
date discounted from the respective dates installment payments would be due at the rate 
of 5% per annum. 

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default and at any time thereafter, Lessor may 
exercise anyone or more of the remedies listed below as Lessor in its sole discretion may 
lawfully elect, provided, however, that upon the occurrence of an Event of Default 
specified in paragraph 21(d), an amount equal to Lessor's Loss as of the date of such 
occurrence shall automatically be and become immediately due and payable without 
notice or demand of any kind. 

City of Marysville -8
Equipment Lease Item 10-9



(a) Lessor may, by written notice to Lessee, terminate this lease and declare an 
amount equal to Lessor's Loss as of the date of such notice to be immediately due 
and payable, and the same shall thereupon be and become immediately due and 
payable without further notice or demand, and all rights of Lessee to use the 
Equipment shall terminate but Lessee shall be and remain liable as provided in this 
paragraph 22. Lessee shall at its expense promptly deliver the Equipment to Lessor 
at a location or locations within Snohomish County, Washington, designated by 
Lessor. Lessor may also enter upon the premises where the Equipment is located 
and take immediate possession of and remove the same with or without instituting 
legal proceedings. 

(b) Lessor may proceed by appropriate court action to enforce performance by 
Lessee of the applicable covenants of this lease or to recover, for breach of this 
lease, Lessor's Loss as of the date Lessor's Loss is declared due and payable 
hereunder; provided, however, that upon recovery of Lessor's Loss from Lessee in 
any such action without haVing to repossess and dispose of the Equipment, Lessor 
shall transfer the Equipment to Lessee at its then location upon payment of any 
additional amount due under clauses (d) and (e) below. 

(c) In the event Lessor repossesses the Equipment, Lessor shall either retain 
the Equipment in full satisfaction of Lessee's obligation hereunder or sell or lease 
each item of Equipment in such manner and upon such terms as Lessor may in its 
sole discretion determine. The proceeds of such sale or lease shall be applied to 
reimburse Lessor for Lessor's Loss and any additional amount due under clauses 
(d) and (e) below. Lessor shall be entitled to any surplus and Lessee shall remain 
liable for any deficiency. For purposes of this subparagraph, the proceeds of any 
lease of all or any part of the Equipment by Lessor shall be the amount reasonably 
assigned by Lessor as the cost of such Equipment in determining the rent under 
such lease. 

(d) Lessor may recover interest on the unpaid balance of Lessor's Loss from the 
date it becomes payable until fully paid at an annual rate equal to the lesser of 8% 
or the highest rate permitted by law. 

(e) Lessor may exercise any right or remedy available to it by law or by 
agreement, and may in any event recover legal fees and other expenses incurred 
by reason of an Event of Default or the exercise of any remedy hereunder, 
including expenses of repossession, repair, storage, transportation, and disposition 
of the Equipment, and disposal of the Equipment and any associated hazardous 
materials or hazardous wastes. 

No remedy given in this paragraph is intended to be exclusive, and each 
shall be cumulative but only to the extent necessary to permit Lessor to recover 
amounts for which Lessee is liable hereunder. Nothing in this Section 22 shall be 
read to limit or preclude any other remedy available to Lessor. No express or 
implied waiver by Lessor of any breach of Lessee's obligations hereunder shall 
constitute a waiver of any other breach of Lessee's obligations hereunder. Lessor's 

City of Marysville - 9
Equipment Lease Item 10-10



rights to liquidated damages may be enforced to the extent permitted by and in 
conformity with applicable law. Lessor shall not be responsible for damages of any 
kind, including but not limited to direct, indirect, consequential or punitive, arising 
from Lessor's de-energization of the Equipment after an Event of Default. 

23. NOTICES. Any written notice hereunder to Lessee or Lessor shall be deemed to 
have been given when delivered personally or deposited in the United States mails, 
postage repaid, addressed to the recipient at its address set forth above or at such other 
address as may be last known to the sender. 

24. NET LEASE AND UNCONDITIONAL OBLIGATION. This lease is a completely 
net lease and Lessee's obligation to pay rent and amounts payable by Lessee under the 
Loss or Damage paragraph above (paragraph 15) and the Remedies paragraph above 
(paragraph 22) is unconditional and not subject to any abatement, reduction, setoff or 
defense of any kind. 

25. NON-CANCELLABLE LEASE. This lease cannot be cancelled or terminated 
except as expressly provided herein. 

26. SURVIVAL OF INDEMNITITES. All provisions of this Lease which reasonably 
should survive any termination or expiration of this Lease, including but not limited to 
paragraphs 5,7, 8, 9, 10, 20 and 22, shall survive such termination or expiration. The 
expiration or termination for any reason of this Agreement shall not relieve either party of 
any liability for any breach of this Agreement. 

27. MISCELLANEOUS - VENUE. Any provision of this lease which is unenforceable 
in any jurisdiction shall, as to such jurisdiction, be ineffective to the extent of such 
unenforceability without invalidating the remaining provisions of this lease, and any such 
unenforceability in any jurisdiction shall not render unenforceable such provision in any 
other jurisdiction. This lease shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the 
substantive laws of the State of Washington. Venue of any litigation shall be in 
Snohomish County, Washington, or if appropriate in the United States District Court or 
the Bankruptcy Court for the Western District of Washington at Seattle. 

City of MarySVille - 10
Equipment Lease Item 10-11



28. ACCEPTANCE. Lessor will accept this lease by executing it below. 

Lessee: 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
A Washington Corporation 
By: _ 

Name: _ 

Title:
 

Dated: _
 

Lessor: 

PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 1 

c~NOHOM~UNTY 
By: UM4 ~e ~ 

Name: Dena Peel 

Title: __~E=x=ec=u=ti~ve~Ac=c=o=un~t:....:.M..:..::a=n=ag;:l.:e=..:..r--

Dated: __l--=-d--_-_d--_l_-~"'_="-"2'-- _ 

City of Marysville -11
Equipment Lease Item 10-12



g/mv/M-08-152/lease.addendum PUD transformer lease 1

Addendum to  

EQUIPMENT LEASE 

Between CITY OF MARYSVILLE (the Lessee) and PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO 1 OF 
SNOHOMISH COUNTY (the Lessor). 
 
Paragraph 9 Indemnification and Paragraph 16 Insurance:  Are amended to read as follows. 
 
LIABILITY, DAMAGES AND INSURANCE 

A. Indemnification and Hold Harmless Provision  

The Lessee shall indemnify, protect and save harmless the Lessor from and against any and all 
loss, liability, damages and expense including attorney's fees and costs of defense arising out of 
any demand, claim, suit or judgment for damages to property or injury to or death of persons, 
including the officers, agents, and employees of either part hereto, including payment made 
under any Workers Compensation law or any plan for employee's disability and death benefits, 
which may arise directly out of or be caused directly by the erection, maintenance, presence, use 
or removal of the Lessee's Equipment, pursuant to this agreement, or by the proximity of the 
respective cables, wires, apparatus and appliances of the parties hereto or arising out of any act 
or omission or alleged act or omission of the Lessee, including any claims and demands of 
customers of the Lessee or others, and irrespective of any fault, failure, negligence or alleged 
negligence on the part of the Lessor in the performance of any act or duty required by or created 
or arising under this agreement, save for the sole negligence of the Lessor or others.  

B. Liability Insurance  

The Lessee shall carry insurance, at its sole cost and expense to protect the Lessor in respect of 
the Lessee's liability for indemnification under this agreement, and from and against any and all 
claims and demands and from and against any and all actions, judgments, costs, expense and 
liabilities of every name and nature which may arise or result, directly or indirectly from or by 
reason of the acts or omissions of the Lessee hereunder and irrespective of any fault, negligence 
or alleged negligence on the part of the Lessor, save for the sole negligence of the Lessor or 
others.  

(a) Property Damage  

The amount of such insurance against liability due to damage shall be 
$1,000,000 as to each occurrence.  

(b) Bodily Injury  

The amount of such insurance against liability due to bodily injury or death 
shall be $1,000,000 as to anyone occurrence.  

Item 10-13



g/mv/M-08-152/lease.addendum PUD transformer lease 2

 (e) Workers Compensation  

Lessee agrees to comply with the requirements of any Workers 
Compensation laws that may be applicable.  

(f) Insurance Coverage  

Lessee shall provide to the Lessor an Evidence of Coverage letter certifying 
insurance limits in compliance with the Lessee's insurance requirements annually upon renewal 
of any policies. All insurance required hereunder shall remain in force for the entire life of this 
agreement. The policy must provide that it may not be canceled or changed except following 
thirty (30) days notice to the Lessor.  

(g) Primary Coverage Required  

The Lessee's insurance shall be primary and non-contributory as respects the 
insurance procured by the Lessor for any claims or losses arising out of the use of the Lessor's 
property by the Lessee.  

(h) Additional Insured  
WCIA provides contractual liability coverage to the City of Marysville. The 

contractual liability coverage provides that WCIA shall pay on behalf of City of 
Marysville all sums which the member shall be obligated to pay by reason of liability 
assumed under contract by the member.  

 
Lessee: 
 
CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
A Washington Corporation 
By:  ______________________ 
 Name:  ____________________ 
 Title:   _____________________ 
 Dated:  _____________________ 
 
 
 
Lessor: 
 
PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO 1 
OF SNOHOMISH COUNTY 
By:  _____________________ 
 Name: _______________ 
 Title:  ________________ 
 Date:  _________________ 
 

Item 10-14



CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: January 26,2009 
AGENDA ITEM: 
Notice of Termination of Lease with Clear ChannellAckerly 
Communications 

AGENDA SECTION: 

APPROVED BY: ~ 

MAYOR I CAO 

AMOUNT 

PREPARED BY: 
Mike Shepard, Fleet & Facilities Manager 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Notice of Termination of Lease and lease document 

BUDGET CODE: 

Attached is a Notice of Termination of Lease between the City and Clear ChannellAckerly 
Communications. This Lease allows for the placement of a billboard on City property located East 
of State Avenue and South of 1st Street. The State of Washington Department of Transportation will 
be replacing the Ebey Slough Bridge and widening State Avenue. The Clear Channel billboard is in 
the way of this construction project and it must be removed. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
 
Staff recommends that Council authorize the Mayor to sign the Notice of Tennination of
 
Lease with Clear ChannellAckerly Communications.
 

COUNCIL ACTION:
 

Agenda Clear Channel Lease Term.DOC January 2, 2009 

Item 11 - 1



Notice of Te~ination of Lease 

To: Clear Channel/Ackerley Communications, Lessee: 

Take notice, that pursuant to the provisions of paragraph 13. 

Holding Over of that certain Lease under which you hold 

possession of the hereinafter described premises, the Lessor has 

elected to terminate said lease as of February 28, 2009; 

said lease is being terminated in support of the State of Washington 

construction project replacing the Ebey Slough bridge and widening of 

State Ave and you are hereby required to quit and deliver up 

possession of the premises on or before the above mentioned date. 

The Tenant hereby agrees to remove their Billboard at Tenant's 

1stcost located on the Eastside of State Avenue, South of Street, and 

all associated utilities back to source. Holes and trenches will be 

backfilled to grade on City property after the sign and utilities have 

been removed. Removal and backfill activities shall be completed by 

February 28, 2009. 

The lease above mentioned is between the City of Marysville, as 

Lessor, and Clear Channel/Ackerley Communications as Lessee, is dated 

December 21, 1982 and covers the property commonly known as; 

A ptn. of Sec. 33, Twp. 30, Rge. 5 E.W.M. desc, as follows: The W 150 
Ft. of the N 100 ft. of the following desc. tract: Beg. at the SW cor. 
of blk. 8, D.A. Quinn's 1st Add. to Marys., thence E 410 Ft., thence S 
212.5 ft., thence W to the E In of State rd. no. 1, thence Nthrly. 
alg. The E In. of said rd. to the P.O.B. 

Clear Channel Lease Tenn.doc Page I of2 January 2, 2009 

Item 11 - 2



CITY OF MARYSVILLE (LESSOR) 

By _ 
Dennis Kendall, Mayor 

Date._-------

Attest: 

By _ 
City Clerk 

Clear Channel Lease Term.doc Page 2 of2 January 2, 2009 

Item 11 - 3



ClTY 01: MARYSVILLE 

J.6ASll AGRIH1MENT 

THIS I.EASE AGRHumiH'I' j 5 muue: ::In<.l entorecJ i nt.o hy and betwoen 

'rill: CITY or: MA1WSVTI.I.E, a /lIl1l1lc1pnl corf'!oration ,:,xLHin/t undoT' the 

l:ll~s of th~ 'State 'of Washington, hercina('ter referred to I1S "City"" 

and Ackerley Communications	 , hcrelnfter 

referred to as "l·enant". 

I'/ITNE5SETli; 

Tn considcratton Qf the mutu~i covennnts, terms and condition5
 
hCfDinaftcr containcd, the pnrti~3 hereto uGree QS fQllow~: .
 

1. Promise. The City hereby l~n~cs to the tenant that certain
 
reill cstnt:c lo..:ut!?J ;It ~:t. ~ a£ State Aup , Se",,';'};. of ~ip8~ g~'
 
Cllld I~A:,lly \lcsCl"th\:~l :1::r~.-r1ow:;: 

PI pt.n. of Sec. 33, Twp. 30, Rge. 5 E.W.M. dE!sc, as follows: The W
 
150 Ft. ot ·the N 100 ft, of the fol1.owin9 desc. tract: Beg. ~t the
 
SW cor. of blk. 8, D.A. Quinn's 1st Add. to Marys., thence E 410 Ft,;
 
thE!nC2,S 212.5 ft. thence W to the E In of State rd. no. 1: thence
 
Nthrly. a+g. the E In. of said rd. to th~ P.O.B.
 

2. Term. The tcrm of 'this lO:lse sh:Jl'l commence on the ~ day 
of January- , 19~. and shl1l1 expire: 36 months 
thcre:J t ter. Upon tit t Tty days-nav:rncc wri tten not i<:coy the ('cnant to 
the City priQr to the end of said lease term, this lease may bo 
renewed for another torm 9r equal, length. ~t the option of tho City. 

3. Rent. The Tenant shull puy to the City rlS rental for stlid' 
pl'cmises fl~sum or $ ,25.00 pCT month, pLus 12.8% leasehold excise tax' 
for a total, of $ 2Bcf0 per month. Said Tental 5h~J.l be: paid on 
the first day o.r C.JCl month in advance, l\l1U rental for partlnl months; 
if any, ~hall be prorated. ,ALI paymcnt~ arc to be muJc to the City 
r:in:.lnco Director, C;ity Ilnl', ~1ury:;vlll.c; Wu~hjn,~ton 9S270, 

4. DCEosit. An i1dvance deposit of $ NONE Sh311 btl paid
 
by the 'Tenant to the City prior to tho commencemeot of this lcqse.
 
Said deposit shall be held hy the City a~ securit~ for the peTformance
 

'ot the Tenant's obligations hereunder. Thc City may. but'~hall not he 
,ohli&~tcd	 to, 3pply all oi portions of ,nicl dcpo~it on account of 
the Tenant's bbli~ations hereundc~. Any balunca remaini~g upon 
termination shall·be ,returned to the Tcnant. The Tcnilnt shall not 
have the 'right to apply the security ucposi t in p:tYlTlcnt 01: tho last 
month's Tent. 

S. Usc 0(' Prcmi.5c~. 'The '['cnalH :;h<ll] ll~c tho prclni~cs 

excl U~ i vcTy"""TOl-"t'lli;-TliTTowi llg flU rpCl:'\'S: ,_~.~.~.~!i..t?~_.~~~.J!1,~i-nt~~__ 
of adver't;i5i~.u.p~.Q.:..__ __"~__. _ 

(1. Onltnan<:cs nll<.l !;tLltutC:;. The 'l'cn:tnt ~h:lll ~ot;lply with IIU 
$t:ltllt~~s OT-iTl~C:i ;Iud l'c(j,ii"'rC;ili't:l1t~ or nll1l1irip:l1, State :Ind I:cdcr:ll 
"uthOTit\~~ now in !"oree or 1~ldcl~ 1l1;IY her<,'::lrtcr he ill ron;t: pcrt:lin'lng 
to tlH! II ~c (l r the Jl n:U1 i s(::; . '1'1\t;' 'l't: II;' n t :-; h:1 1 I lIot ":11':: l' (u· pe'rlll i t any 

LEASE AG!~EEMENT - 1 

~	 The leasehold tax r~tc shall be a~ eetabliahE!d by '~~e State
 
legislature.
 

Item 11 - 4



public nllis:1n..:~' (111 the Pl'Clll'::;C~, 

7. Utilities. The Tenant shall p~y:'ho£or~ delinquency,~al1 
~horges for utllLty scrvico5 to' the :prcmi~es. The installation cost 
of any nJ~itionnl ut111tias hrought to the premises by the TcnDnt 
shull be the $010 rQ~ronsib1 li ty () r the Tcnl:lnt.. 

8. Maintenance Re airs Or Alterntions. The Tenant acknowledges 
that the prem1ses are 1n goo or.er an repair, unless otherwise. 
indic3ted heTein. The Tonant shall, at its own expense, and at all 
time~, maintain the premisos in a clean, sanitary nnd safe manner, and 
shall surrender the same, at termination hereof, In as good condition 
as received, normal waur und teur excepted. The Tenant sholl ba ' 
responsible for Btl repairs roquiTed on the prcm1Hos, nnd fOT d~magQs, 
couscd by its nagligcnco OT that or its ugents, lnvit~cs or gucst~. 
The TORant shall not make altcrationa to thc premises without prior 
written consent of tho City. The City hcr~hy expressly disclaims any 
warranty of habitability of the premises or fitness ror a par~icular 
USe. 

9. Untry and Inspection. The Tenant shall permit th~ City to
 
enter the pTemlSCS at r~a~onable times ~nd upon reasonable notice for
 
the purpose of inspecting the promises or tor [lC!r{orming nny municipal

functions thereon. 

10. Tndemni fic:ution. The Tcnnnt ugrce~ to indomnify. defend o.nd 
savc the ~lty hormloSStt"om and-llguinst any unJ all claims. domands, 
nc~ioRS. ~ebts a"~ liahlltty for \055 or or du~ago to property und 
for injury to ~r denth of persons arising out or or in conncction with 
the Ilq~li~ent 01' othen~i:,;e tortious (lct~ or Oll1il'l:dolll': or tho ·r"I1:1nt,', 
its :q.!,ents, rcpru:;~~ntiltives 01' enll\!oyccs and/or ·rrom -it~ no~ligcnt 
or OthCT,,,i5C tortious use o[ the premises. The Tenant furt.her :lgr.e~s to 
store it5 p~rson~l property on ~aid premises, at.its own risk, and 
releasas th~ City to the fullcxtont of the I~w fram all claims 
resulting from prop~rty damage or 105s. The City shull not be liable 
to the T~nnnt. its agent~, rcprc5cnativos or cmployeos, for any loss or 
damage to either person or propcrty tl1at may he occasioned by or through 
the acts or omissions of o~hcr per50n~ occupying, visitirig or using the 
premises. The City shall not. he liablo 1:0 the .TC'nant foi:" the Tenant's 
loss of business, unless caused by th~ sole ncgli~enco of the City. 

11. Ass:i.gnment. and Subletting.. The Ten::lnt shall not assign this
 
lC:1se or su61et any portlon of the pTemises \·d.thout prior written
 
consant of the City, .
 

12. Default. Any failure by the Tenant to P3Y rent whon due, or 
to perform any term hereof, sh~ll, at the option of the City, terminate 
all rights of the Tenant hereunUer. The City :-;hLlll mniltwenty c1:lys 
advance written notice to the Tenant st~tin~ its intention to 50 
terminate the lCLl5C, and the Tenant shnlt have 5aid period to cure the 
defaults specified. In the event that the '['cnnnt shlL11 he ll\):\.cnt from 
the premises for a period oC t.hirty consecutivo days, while in default, 
the Tenant shJ.ll, a.t the opt ion of the Ci ty. he deemed to have 
abandoned the premises and any property left on the premises shall be 
considered abandoned and may be disposed of hy the City in any manner 
allowed by law. In the event that the City rc~sonably believes that 
such abnndoned property has no value, it may be discarded. All 
proper~y on the pr~mises is herehy subject. to n lien in favor of the 
City for poyment. of .111 !HJnIS dClC hCrCUlldcl', to the m,l;dmuln elCtcnl: 
allowed by law. Termination of the Icn~e os provided herein shall not 
relieve the Tennnt from liability to the City for such damages a~ may
be suffered by re~son of tho dC~Rult. 

13, Iioldin~ver. Any ho1<.ling over ~ftCl" expiration ho,cof. with 
the conscntOT~ITtYI sh.1l1 he construcl! n:: :l month-to-month tenancy 
in acc.ordanc.:c \~ith the term:-; hereof, as :lpp-licilh1c. 

-14. 'rime. Time;:; of the:- cs:;C'oce or tllis :Jgrcclncnt. 

LEA~TI AGRRR~ENT • 2 

Item 11 - 5



IS. Attorney'j Pees. If litigatjon i~ commenced by olther 
pat'ty to enforce provls lons o'f this ,le,ps'f).,7,,: tho p't"evlliling party , 
shall be entitled 'to r6osonnble ntto~ney'~ fco~, co~ts and necessary 
dlshur5em~nts. " 

16. ~ddition:Jl "'c'('m:: :IntlCo'.,dltion:-. 

NONE 

TN WT~ESS WHER~[O tho pQl'tics hereto hnvc executed this ngroement 
on the ~ day of fJ:l... CoL s-.. bev- Jig 

TENANT: 

LlcJrWfbtC!J.-..t!J-~I·cJ;~L::u..-_ nY,...tL.~~~~L-.y~~~::",::-_ 
':::I ,Moyor 

10.., ~ooaL_," __ ~ __,_ Jl.tt:c • 
..... ~ L ,....:lJ..J.
 

, "'Y:c..e t?~-~ -~ ~ /hr· ~.~~~~LJ~b-.!~~~~ __
 

STATU 01: \'(J\SIHNC'I'ON) 
$:;
 

COUN1'y OF SNOliOM IStl)
 

I, the undeTsi~ned, a N6t~ry Public, do horeby certify that on this 
2J.u.. d:ly o{~~ • 19~~J rcr30nal11. IJ~CO!].'_c1 before me 

~CU"~ ~ .ntS;K:. anu _.E..~ a,. e~Tffi to me known 
to elcnyor and' lty """CTerk tcspect,],~ ·ly. 0 to Y UF MJ\RYSVIl.l.E" 
the corporation that executed the within ~nd. Forogoing instrument, 
and acknowledged s~id instrument to be the free and voluntnry act nnd 
deed of said corporation far the uses and purposes therein mentioned.' 

GIVEN under my hand ;Joci officinl scnl thi.s 2Ji:- dElY or JJ~Ct2n ~ 
19H.6,.. 

LEASE AGREEMENT ~ 3 

Item 11 - 6



---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

1 12/11/2008 13: 36 CITY OF MARYSVILLE PG 
aolson IG/L ACCOUNT DETAIL I glactinq 

Org: 10116362 Object: 325000 
LONG TERM LEASE 101 -36-16-000-362-00-325000

YEAR PER JOURNAL EFF DATE SRC T PO/REF2 REFERENCE AMOUNT P CHECK NO WARRANT VDR NAME/ITEM DESC COMMENTS 

2008 
2008 
2008 
2008 
2008 
2008 
2008 
2008 
2008 
2008 
2008 
2008 
2008 
2008 

12 
11 
10 
09 
08 
07 
06 
05 
04 
03 
03 
02 
01 
01 

000027 
000049 
000050 
000021 
000023 
000043 
000026 
000036 
000026 
000408 
000021 
000110 
000473 
000066 

12/01/2008 
11/04/2008 
10/02/2008
09/02/2008 
08/04/2008 
07/03/2008 
06/02/2008 
05/02/2008 
04/02/2008 
03/31/2008 
03/03/2008 
02/08/2008 
01/01/2008 
01/07/2008 

CRP 
CRP 
CRP 
CRP 
CRP 
CRP 
CRP 
CRP 
CRP 
GEN 
CRP 
CRP 
BUC 
CRP 

1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
5 
1 

919305 
907200 
893164 
876804 
864372 
848330 
834607 
818696 
804962 
TRANSFER 
789249 
779314 

761575 

LEASEHOLD 

2008 BUDGT 

-28.21 N 
-25.00 Y 
-25.00 Y 
-25.00 Y 
-25.00 Y 
-25.00 Y 
-25.00 Y 
-25.00 Y 
-25.00 Y 

3.21 Y 
-28.21 Y 
-25.00 Y 

-300.00 Y 
-25.00 Y 

CLEAR CHANNEL 
CLEAR CHANNEL 
CLEAR CHANNEL 
CLEAR CHANNEL 
CLEAR WIRE 
CLEAR CHANNEL 
CLEAR CHANNEL 
CLEAR CHANNEL 
CLEAR CHANNEL 

CLEAR CHANNEL 
CLEAR CHANNEL 

LAKEWOOD CROSSING 

ACKERLY SIGN LEASE 
ACKERLY SIGN LEASE 
ACKERLY SIGN LEASE 
ACKERLY SIGN LEASE 
ACKERLY SIGN LEASE 
ACKERLY SIGN RENT 
ACKERLY SIGN LEASE 
ACKERLY SIGN LEASE 
ACKERLY SIGN LEASE 
CORRECT 03.03.08 S1 
ACKERLY SIGN LEASE 
ACKERLY SIGN LEASE 
ORIGINAL BUDGET 20C 
ACKERLY SIGN LEASE 

Total Amount: -603.21 

** END OF REPORT - Generated by Allena Olson ** 

Item 11 - 7



CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 
 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  January 26, 2009 

AGENDA ITEM: 
East Sunnyside/Whiskey Ridge Design Standards and Guidelines 
and East Sunnyside/Whiskey Ridge Streetscape Design Plan 

AGENDA SECTION: 
Ordinances 
 

PREPARED BY: 
Gloria Hirashima, Community Development Director 
 

APPROVED BY: 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. East Sunnyside/Whiskey Ridge Design Standards and 

Guidelines 
2. East Sunnyside/Whiskey Ridge Streetscape Design 

Standards and Guidelines 
3. Planning Commission Minutes from 6/10/08, 10/14/08, 

and 10/28/08. 
4. Draft Ordinance. 

 
 
MAYOR  CAO 

BUDGET CODE:  AMOUNT:   

DESCRIPTION: 
 
The Planning Commission has made a recommendation to approve the East 
Sunnyside/Whiskey Ridge Design Standards and Guidelines and East Sunnyside/Whiskey Ridge 
Streetscape Design Plan.  The Planning Commission held a public hearing on October 28, 
2008 where they accepted public testimony and recommended the draft plan dated 
10/23/08.   
 
The City Council has the following options:  1) Accept the Commission’s 
recommendation, in which case they should determine whether to delay or separate the 
eleven amendment proposals; 2) Hold additional public hearings to consider amendments 
to the plan and regulations; 3) Remand the plan & regulations to the Planning 
Commission for further review; or 4) Deny the Commission’s recommendation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Authorize the Mayor to sign the ordinance adopting the East 
Sunnyside/Whiskey Ridge Design Standards and Guidelines and East Sunnyside/Whiskey Ridge 
Streetscape Design Plan. 
 
COUNCIL ACTION: 
 
 
 

Item13-1



C
ity of M

arysville 

East Sunnyside/W
hiskey R

idge  
D

esign Standards and G
uidelines 

   - R
esidential S

ubdivision D
esign 

- S
ite D

esign 
- V

ehicular A
ccess and P

arking 
- P

edestrian E
nvironm

ent 
- B

uilding D
esign 

- Landscaping and S
creening 

- S
ignage 

     O
ctober 23, 2008 - D

R
A

FT

Item13-2



 Table of C
ontents 

Introduction .............................................................................................. 1
 

D
esign Standards and G

uidelines .......................................................... 4
 

S
ection A

:  R
esidential S

ubdivision D
esign .......................................................... 5 

A
.1 

R
esidential S

ubdivision D
esign .......................................................................... 5 

S
ection B

: S
ite D

esign .......................................................................................... 6 
B

.1 
B

uilding Location and O
rientation ...................................................................... 6 

B
.2 

S
treet C

orners .................................................................................................. 10 
B

.3 
O

pen S
pace ..................................................................................................... 12 

B
.4 

S
ide and R

ear Y
ard Treatm

ents ...................................................................... 18 
S

ection C
: V

ehicular A
ccess and P

arking ........................................................... 22 
C

.1 
O

n-S
ite V

ehicular A
ccess and C

onnections .................................................... 22 
C

.2 
P

arking ............................................................................................................. 23 
S

ection D
:.P

edestrian Environm
ent .................................................................... 25 

D
.1 

S
idew

alk and P
athw

ay S
tandards and G

uidelines .......................................... 25 
D

.2 
P

edestrian C
irculation ...................................................................................... 28 

D
.3 

Lighting ............................................................................................................. 29 
S

ection E
:  B

uilding D
esign ................................................................................. 31 

E
.1 

B
uilding E

ntries ................................................................................................ 31 
E

.2 
A

rchitectural C
haracter and S

cale ................................................................... 34 
E

.3 
B

uilding D
etails ................................................................................................. 41 

E
.4 

B
uilding M

aterials and C
olor ............................................................................ 46 

S
ection F: Landscaping and S

creening .............................................................. 48 
F.1 

Landscaping ..................................................................................................... 48 
F.2 

Fences and S
creening E

lem
ents ..................................................................... 50 

S
ection G

:  S
ignage ............................................................................................ 53 

G
.1 

S
ign S

tandards and guidelines ........................................................................ 53 

D
efinitions .............................................................................................. 60

 

W
hiskey R

idge D
esign S

tandards and G
uidelines - D

R
A

FT 
i 

  

Item13-3



Table of C
ontents 

 

ii 
D

R
A

FT - M
A

K
E

R
S

 architecture and urban design 
 

0754_W
hiskeyR

idge_D
G

_10-23-08 - 1/5/2009  

  

Item13-4



 Introduction 

A
uthorization and P

urpose 
D

esign standards and guidelines are a critical tool to help guide private 
developm

ent in a w
ay that can help realize the com

m
unity’s goals and 

objectives.  U
ltim

ately, the design standards and guidelines are intended 
to:  

P
rovide clear objectives for those em

barking on the planning and 
design of projects in the W

hiskey R
idge N

eighborhood. 

 
Increase aw

areness of design considerations am
ong the citizens of 

the W
hiskey R

idge N
eighborhood. 

 
To m

aintain and enhance property values w
ithin the W

hiskey R
idge 

N
eighborhood. 

To W
hat P

roperties D
o the Standards and 

G
uidelines A

pply? 
These standards and guidelines apply to new

 developm
ent w

ithin the 
W

hiskey R
idge M

aster P
lan area.   

Figure 1.  P
roperties applicable to the W

hiskey R
idge 

D
esign S

tandards and G
uidelines. 

W
hiskey R

idge D
esign S

tandards and G
uidelines - D

R
A

FT 
1 

  

Item13-5



Introduction 
 

W
hen D

o I N
eed to C

om
ply? 

These standards and guidelines shall be applied by the city to individual building perm
its 

for developm
ent in the W

hiskey R
idge M

aster P
lan area.  S

ection A
 applies to single 

fam
ily and duplex developm

ent along arterial streets.  The rem
aining sections apply to 

com
m

ercial and m
ultifam

ily developm
ent w

ithin the m
aster plan area.  The follow

ing are 
exem

pted from
 these standards and guidelines: 

a. 
C

onstruction activities w
hich do not require a building perm

it;  

b.  Interior rem
odels of existing structures; 

c. 
M

odifications or additions to existing m
ultifam

ily, com
m

ercial, industrial, office and 
public properties w

hen the m
odification or addition: 

i.  C
onstitutes less than 10 percent of the existing horizontal square footage of the use or 

structure; and 

ii.  C
onstitutes less than 10 percent of the existing building’s exterior facade. 

These standards are intended to supplem
ent the existing and future zoning standards in 

the M
arysville M

unicipal C
ode. The design standards w

ill be in addition to the base 
standards and a site plan approval process w

ill be required by the C
ity of M

arysville.  
D

ue to the high variety of uses allow
ed, som

e incom
patibility betw

een this plan and the 
M

arysville M
unicipal C

ode m
ay arise.  If there is a conflict that arises betw

een this 
M

aster P
lan and the M

arysville M
unicipal C

ode, the P
lanning D

irector w
ill issue an 

adm
inistrative interpretation to define w

hich code standard w
ill apply.   

H
ow

 A
re the Standards and G

uidelines A
pplied? 

E
ach chapter of the standards and guidelines contains a list of “Intent” statem

ents 
follow

ed by “S
tandards and G

uidelines.” S
pecifically: 

 
Intent statem

ents are overarching objectives.  For exam
ple, one of the intent 

statem
ents for the subchapter on B

uilding Location and O
rientation is to “E

nhance 
the visual character of streets w

ithin the neighborhood.” 

2 
D

R
A

FT - M
A

K
E

R
S

 architecture and urban design 
 

0754_W
hiskeyR

idge_D
G

_10-23-08 - 1/5/2009  

Item13-6



Introduction 
 W

hiskey R
idge D

esign S
tandards and G

uidelines - D
R

A
FT 

3 
   

Standards and guidelines using w
ords such as “shall”, “m

ust”, “is/are required”, 
or “is/are prohibited” signify required actions.  In special circum

stances, the D
irector 

w
ill allow

 alternative design treatm
ents as long as applicants can successfully 

dem
onstrate that the proposal m

eets the intent.  S
uch  options apply only to those 

standards and guidelines w
here they are specifically noted. 

 
Standards and guidelines using w

ords such as “should” or “is/are 
recom

m
ended” signify voluntary m

easures.   

Furtherm
ore, the docum

ent contains som
e specific standards and guidelines that are 

easily quantifiable, w
hile others provide a level of discretion in how

 they are com
plied 

w
ith.  In the latter case, the applicant m

ust dem
onstrate to the D

irector, in w
riting, how

 
the project m

eets the intent of the standard. 

R
eview

 P
rocess  

These standards and guidelines should be studied at the beginning of a prospective 
applicant’s planning process and are intended to m

ake people aw
are of the design 

issues that w
arrant early consideration.  The C

ity requires prospective applicants to 
apply for a Pre-A

pplication C
onference prior to applying for developm

ent perm
its.  The 

goal of this m
eeting is to provide clear direction to the applicant early in the process, 

provide for an inform
al discussion of site-specific design issues and opportunities, and 

m
inim

ize the need for costly design changes late in the design phase.  

A
pplicable review

 processes are defined in Title 15 and 19, M
M

C
.   

D
efinitions 

W
ords w

ithin the standards and guidelines that are in italics are defined in the 
D

efinitions chapter. 
  

Item13-7



 

D
esign S

tandards and G
uidelines 

Section A
: R

esidential Subdivision D
esign 

Section B
: Site D

esign 

Section C
: Vehicular A

ccess and Parking 

Section D
: Pedestrian Environm

ent 

Section E: B
uilding D

esign 

Section F: Landscaping and Screening 

Section G
: Signage 

4 
D

R
A

FT - M
A

K
E

R
S

 architecture and urban design 
 

0754_W
hiskeyR

idge_D
G

_10-23-08 - 1/5/2009  

Item13-8



  
  Section A

: 
R

esidential 
Subdivision D

esign

Section A:  R
esidential Subdivision D

esign 

A
.1 R

esidential Subdivision D
esign 

Intent 
 To provide pedestrian-oriented streets w

here developm
ent faces the street. 

Standards and G
uidelines 

A
.1.1 

R
esidential D

evelopm
ents.  A

ll residential developm
ents shall be 

designed to front onto streets.  C
onfigurations w

here dw
elling units and/or 

residential lots back up any street are prohibited except for those lots 
adjacent to S

tate R
oute 9.  For exam

ple, new
 subdivisions along  

83
rd A

venue N
E

 could be configured so that lots fronting on the street 
feature alley access in the rear or other shared drivew

ay access as 
approved by the C

ity on the side of the lots.  Lot configurations w
here 

side yards face the street are acceptable.  S
ee standard F.2.1 for related 

fence requirem
ents along side yards.  

 
Figure A

-1.  H
om

es along an arterial served by 
alley access in the rear. 

   W
hiskey R

idge D
esign S

tandards and G
uidelines - D

R
A

FT 
5 

  

Item13-9



 
 

  Section B
: 

Site D
esign 

B
.1 B

uilding Location and O
rientation 

Intent 
 To arrange and orient buildings in a w

ay that encourages pedestrian activity 
in the neighborhood. 

 To enhance the visual character and definition of streets w
ithin the 

neighborhood. 

 To encourage interaction am
ong neighbors. 

 To increase privacy for residential uses located near the street. 

 To take advantage of special opportunities to create a com
position of 

buildings and open spaces. 

Standards and G
uidelines 

B
.1.1 

Storefronts.  B
uildings w

ith non-residential uses on the ground floor m
ay 

be placed at the edge of the sidew
alk, provided they feature a pedestrian-

oriented facade, per S
tandard B

.1.2 below
.   

Figure B
-1.  P

edestrian-oriented facade 
exam

ple. 
B

.1.2 
Pedestrian-O

riented Facades.  To m
eet the definition of a pedestrian-

oriented facade, a facade m
ust include the follow

ing elem
ents:  

a. 
The prim

ary pedestrian entrance shall be located on this facade. 

b. 
The ground floor facade betw

een 2 and 8 feet above the ground shall 
contain a m

inim
um

 of 75 percent transparent w
indow

 area. 

c. 
W

eather protection at least 5 feet in depth and at least 8 feet above 
the ground along a m

inim
um

 of 75 percent of the facade. 

Figure B
-2.  P

edestrian-oriented facade requirem
ents. 

6 
D

R
A

FT - M
A

K
E

R
S

 architecture and urban design 
 

0754_W
hiskeyR

idge_D
G

_10-23-08 - 1/5/2009  

Item13-10



B
.  S

ite D
esign 

 B
.1.3 

C
om

m
ercial and M

ixed-U
se B

uildings.  S
uch buildings shall be located 

and oriented tow
ards the street.  To m

eet this requirem
ent, the building 

entries and w
indow

s m
ust face the street.  S

pecific provisions and 
exceptions include: 

a. 
P

arking lots shall not be located betw
een the building and the 

street. 

b. 
B

uilding facades facing the street m
ust have transparent w

indow
s 

or doors covering at least 25%
 of the ground floor facade betw

een 
4-8 feet above the level of the sidew

alk.  D
epartures w

ill be 
considered by the D

irector provided the proposed building 
configuration and design enhances the pedestrian environm

ent of 
the neighborhood.  

c. 
For sites that front on m

ore than one public street, the buildings are 
encouraged to orient to both streets.  P

riority shall be given to 87
th 

A
venue N

E
 or other streets that are m

ore visible and/or provide a 
better opportunity for increased pedestrian activity. 

d. 
For large sites (over 2 acres) featuring m

ultiple buildings, 
developm

ents shall configure buildings to create focal points for 
pedestrian activity on the site.  H

ow
ever, no m

ore than 50 percent of 
the 87

th A
ve N

E
 frontage m

ay be occupied by vehicular access or 
parking.  E

xceptions:  An increased percentage of parking or vehicular 
access along the streetfront m

ay be allow
ed w

here the configuration 
allow

s the developm
ent to better m

eet the intent of the standards and 
guidelines.  For exam

ple, if the configuration allow
s for a centralized 

plaza surrounded by a concentration of retail uses, an increase in the 
percentage of parking along the streetfront w

ould be allow
ed. 

Figure B
-3.  For large sites featuring m

ultiple 
buildings, no m

ore than 50 percent of the 
prim

ary public street frontage m
ay be 

occupied by vehicular access or parking. 

e. 
D

evelopm
ent fronting on S

oper H
ill R

oad and 35
th S

treet N
E

 m
ay be 

exem
pted from

 this requirem
ent. 

f. 
W

here unique topographical or environm
ental conditions m

ake 
conform

ance difficult or undesirable, the D
irector shall allow

 

W
hiskey R

idge D
esign S

tandards and G
uidelines - D

R
A

FT 
7 

  

Item13-11



B
.  S

ite D
esign 

 
alternative building placem

ent and/or orientation, provided the overall 
developm

ent m
eets the intent of the standards and guidelines. 

For all departures or exem
ptions noted above, the developm

ent shall 
incorporate design features that add visual interest to the pedestrian 
environm

ent, m
aintain visual continuity along the streets and enhance 

pedestrian access. 

B
.1.4 

Front Setbacks for M
ultifam

ily B
uildings.  G

round floor m
ultifam

ily 
residential uses and residential buildings shall be set back at least 10 feet 
from

 the sidew
alk. 

B
.1.5 

M
ultifam

ily B
uilding Location and O

rientation.  M
ultifam

ily residential 
buildings shall be located and oriented tow

ards streets and not parking 
lots or adjacent properties.  S

pecifically: 

a. 
P

arking lots shall not be located betw
een the building and the 

street. 

b. 
The prim

ary building entry shall face the street.  A
lternatively, 

building entries that face onto a courtyard w
hich is oriented 

tow
ards the street are acceptable. 

Figure B
-4.  M

ultifam
ily building oriented 

tow
ards the street. 

c. 
B

uildings w
ith individual ground floor entries should face the street 

to the extent possible.  A
gain, configurations w

here entries face 
onto a courtyard or open space that is oriented to the street are 
acceptable. 

d. 
B

uildings shall also provide w
indow

s that face the street to provide 
“eyes on the street” for safety.  To m

eet this requirem
ent, at least 

15%
 of the facade shall be occupied by transparent w

indow
s or 

doors.  S
ee Figure B

-5 for clarification on how
 transparency 

requirem
ents are calculated. 

8 
D

R
A

FT - M
A

K
E

R
S

 architecture and urban design 
 

0754_W
hiskeyR

idge_D
G

_10-23-08 - 1/5/2009  

Item13-12



B
.  S

ite D
esign 

 
e. 

D
epartures w

ill be considered by the D
irector provided they m

eet 
the intent of the standards and guidelines.  For exam

ple, alternative 
configurations m

ay be m
ore desirable to take advantage of special 

view
s or special environm

ental features. 

 
Figure B

-5.  Facade transparency requirem
ents. 

 
 

 

Figure B
-6.  G

ood and bad m
ultifam

ily developm
ent configurations. 

W
hiskey R

idge D
esign S

tandards and G
uidelines - D

R
A

FT 
9 

  

Item13-13



B
.  S

ite D
esign 

 B
.2 Street C

orners 
Intent 

 To enhance the character and identity of the area. 

 To enhance the pedestrian environm
ent at street corners. 

Standards and G
uidelines 

N
O

TE
:  S

treet corner developm
ents are subject to the C

ity’s site distance 
standards. 

B
.2.1 

Street C
orner Treatm

ent.  A
ll developm

ent proposals located at street 
corner sites in the C

om
m

unity B
usiness and M

ixed-U
se zones shall 

include at least one of the design treatm
ents described below

 (in order of 
preference): 

Figure B
-7.  This exam

ple includes both a 
building located tow

ards the street corner and a 
sm

all pedestrian-oriented space. 
a. 

Locate a building tow
ards the street corner (w

ithin 15 feet of the 
corner property line). 

b. 
P

rovide pedestrian-oriented space (as defined in S
tandard B

.3.2) at 
the corner leading directly to a building entry or entries. 

Figure B
-8.  S

treet corner building exam
ple. 

10 
D

R
A

FT - M
A

K
E

R
S

 architecture and urban design 
 

0754_W
hiskeyR

idge_D
G

_10-23-08 - 1/5/2009  

Item13-14



B
.  S

ite D
esign 

 
If a or b are not feasible or desirable per the D

irector, consider the 
follow

ing options: 

c. 
Install substantial landscaping (at least 30 feet by 30 feet or 900 
square feet of ground surface area w

ith trees, shrubs, and or ground 
cover).  The space m

ay include a special architectural elem
ent, such 

as a trellis, to add identity or dem
arcation of the area.  S

uch an 
architectural elem

ent m
ay have a sign incorporated into it (as long as 

such sign does not identify an individual business or businesses); 

d. 
O

ther treatm
ents w

ill be considered, provided they m
eet the intent of 

the standards and guidelines as determ
ined by the D

irector. 

 
Figure B

-9.  This street corner successfully 
com

bines landscaping w
ith architectural 

elem
ents.  S

ignage dem
arcates the area, not an 

individual store. 

W
hiskey R

idge D
esign S

tandards and G
uidelines - D

R
A

FT 
11 

  

Item13-15



B
.  S

ite D
esign 

 B
.3 O

pen Space 
Intent 

 To provide a variety of accessible and inviting pedestrian-oriented areas to 
attract shoppers to com

m
ercial areas and enrich the pedestrian environm

ent. 

 To create usable, accessible, and inviting open spaces for residents. 

 To create open spaces that enhance the residential setting. 

Standards and G
uidelines 

N
O

TE
:  D

evelopm
ents are subject to M

M
C

 C
hapter 18A

.04, “parks, recreation, 
open space and trail im

pact fees and m
itigation,” unless otherw

ise noted. 
Figure B

-10.  P
edestrian-oriented spaces 

are a critical elem
ent of successful 

com
m

ercial and m
ixed-use developm

ents. 
B

.3.1 
O

pen Space for N
on-R

esidential U
ses.  N

on-residential uses shall 
provide pedestrian-oriented space, defined in S

tandard B
.3.2 below

, in 
conjunction w

ith new
 developm

ent according to the form
ula below

. 

R
equirem

ent: 
2 percent of the applicable site* +  
1 percent of the non-residential building floor area (excluding 
structured parking areas) 

*A
pplicable site refers to that portion of a property or properties that is 

proposed for developm
ent. 

For the purposes of this section, all required sidew
alks and w

alkw
ays 

shall not count as pedestrian-oriented space.  H
ow

ever, the D
irector 

m
ay allow

 those portions of sidew
alks or w

alkw
ays w

idened beyond 
m

inim
um

 requirem
ents to count tow

ards the required pedestrian-
oriented space as long as such space m

eets the definition of 
pedestrian-oriented space. 

 
Figure B

-11.  A
n illustration of how

 m
uch 

pedestrian-oriented space w
ould be required for 

a typical grocery story served by surface 
parking. 

12 
D

R
A

FT - M
A

K
E

R
S

 architecture and urban design 
 

0754_W
hiskeyR

idge_D
G

_10-23-08 - 1/5/2009  

Item13-16



B
.  S

ite D
esign 

 

 
 

 
Figure B

-12.  P
edestrian-oriented space 

Figure B
-13.  P

edestrian-oriented space 
 

in front of a grocery store 
in a shopping center. 

B
.3.2 

Pedestrian-O
riented Spaces.  These are predom

inantly hard-surfaced 
plaza- or courtyard-type spaces provided w

ith com
m

ercial and m
ixed-use 

buildings. 

a. 
To qualify as a pedestrian-oriented space, an area shall have: 

 P
edestrian access to the abutting structures from

 the street, private 
drive, or a nonvehicular courtyard. 

 P
aved w

alking surfaces of either concrete or approved unit paving. 
 P

edestrian-scaled lighting (no m
ore than 15 feet in height) at a level 

averaging at least 2 foot candles throughout the space.  Lighting m
ay 

be on-site or building-m
ounted lighting. 

 A
t least 2 linear feet of seating area (bench, ledge, etc.) or one 

individual seat per 60 square feet of plaza area or open space (up to 
50%

 of seats m
ay be m

oveable). 
 B

e sited in areas w
ith significant pedestrian traffic to provide interest 

and security, such as adjacent to a building entry. 
 Landscaping com

ponents that add seasonal interest to the space. 
Figure B

-14.  E
xam

ples of pedestrian-oriented 
spaces. 

W
hiskey R

idge D
esign S

tandards and G
uidelines - D

R
A

FT 
13 

  

Item13-17



B
.  S

ite D
esign 

 
b. 

The follow
ing features are encouraged in pedestrian-oriented space 

and m
ay be required by the D

irector for a space to m
eet the intent of 

the standards and guidelines:  
 P

edestrian am
enities, such as a w

ater feature, drinking fountain, tables, 
and/or distinctive paving or artw

ork. 
 A

 pedestrian-oriented building facade on som
e or all buildings facing the 

space.   
 C

onsideration of the sun angle at noon and the w
ind pattern in the 

design of the open space. 
 Transitional zones along building edges to allow

 for outdoor eating areas 
and a planted buffer. 

c. 
The follow

ing features are prohibited 
w

ithin pedestrian-oriented space:  
Figure B

-15.  P
edestrian-oriented space 

exam
ple. 

 A
sphalt or gravel pavem

ent. 
 A

djacent unscreened parking lots. 
 A

djacent chain link fences. 
 A

djacent blank w
alls.  

 A
djacent unscreened dum

psters or 
service areas. 

 O
utdoor storage or retail sales that do 

not contribute to the pedestrian 
environm

ent. 

Figure B
-16.  Large exam

ple of pedestrian-
oriented space. 

14 
D

R
A

FT - M
A

K
E

R
S

 architecture and urban design 
 

0754_W
hiskeyR

idge_D
G

_10-23-08 - 1/5/2009  

Item13-18



B
.  S

ite D
esign 

 B
.3.3 

M
ultifam

ily O
pen Space.  M

ultifam
ily residential uses shall provide open 

space equivalent to at least 20%
 of the building’s livable floor area.  The 

required area m
ay be satisfied w

ith one or m
ore of the elem

ents listed 
below

:    

a. 
C

om
m

on open space accessible to all residents shall count for up to 
100 percent of the required open space.  This includes landscaped 
courtyards or decks, gardens w

ith pathw
ays, children’s play areas, or 

other m
ulti-purpose recreational and/or green spaces.  S

pecial require-
m

ents and recom
m

endations for com
m

on spaces include the follow
ing: 

Figure B
-17.  A

 residential courtyard 
providing sem

i-private patio spaces 
adjacent to individual units. 

 S
pace shall be large enough to provide functional leisure or recreational 

activity per the D
irector.  For exam

ple, long narrow
 spaces (less then 20 

feet w
ide) rarely, if ever, can function as usable com

m
on space. 

 C
onsider space as a focal point of developm

ent. 

 S
pace (particularly children’s play areas) shall be visible from

 dw
elling 

units and positioned near pedestrian activity. 

 S
pace shall feature paths, plantings, seating, lighting and other 

pedestrian am
enities to m

ake the area m
ore functional and enjoyable. 

 Individual entries shall be provided onto com
m

on open space from
 

adjacent ground floor residential units.  S
m

all, sem
i-private open spaces 

for adjacent ground floor units that m
aintain visual access to the com

m
on 

area are strongly encouraged to enliven the space. 

Figure B
-18.  C

om
m

on open space 

Figure B
-19.  A

 courtyard for a 
m

ixed-use developm
ent providing 

an am
enity to residents and the 

adjacent coffee shop.

for a tow
nhouse developm

ent.

 S
eparate com

m
on space from

 ground floor w
indow

s, streets, service 
areas and parking lots w

ith landscaping and/or low
-level fencing, w

here 
desirable. 

 S
pace should be oriented to receive sunlight, facing east, w

est, or 
(preferably) south, w

hen possible. 

 R
equired setbacks, landscaping, drivew

ays, parking, or other vehicular 
use areas shall not be counted tow

ard the com
m

on space requirem
ent. 

 R
ooftop decks shall not be considered as com

m
on open space for the 

purpose of calculating m
inim

um
 open space area. 

W
hiskey R

idge D
esign S

tandards and G
uidelines - D

R
A

FT 
15 

  

Item13-19



B
.  S

ite D
esign 

 
b. 

Individual balconies m
ay be used to m

eet up to 50 percent of the 
required open space.  To qualify as open space, balconies shall be at 
least 35 square feet, w

ith no dim
ension less than 4 feet, to provide a 

space usable for hum
an activity.   

c. 
N

atural areas that function as an am
enity to the developm

ent m
ay count 

for up to 50 percent of the required open space, subject to the follow
ing 

requirem
ents and recom

m
endations: 

 The natural area shall be accessible to all residents.  For exam
ple, safe 

and attractive trails provided along or through the natural area w
here 

they could serve as a m
ajor am

enity to the developm
ent. 

 S
teep slopes, w

etlands, or sim
ilar unbuildable areas shall not be counted 

in the calculations for required open space unless they provide a visual 
am

enity for all units, as determ
ined by the D

irector.   
Figure B

-20.  B
alconies provide private, usable 

open space for residents. 
d. 

S
torm

w
ater retention areas m

ay be counted for up to 50 percent of the 
required open space if the facility has natural looking edges, natural 
vegetation, and no fencing except along the property line.  The design 
of such areas shall go w

ell beyond functional storm
w

ater requirem
ents 

per the D
irector in term

s of the area involved and the quality of 
landscaping and resident am

enities.  The side slope of the storm
w

ater 
facilities shall not exceed a grade of 1:3 (one vertical to three horizontal) 
unless slopes are existing, natural, and covered w

ith vegetation.  

e. 
C

hildren’s play equipm
ent and recreational activity space for children 

and/or teens and parent seating areas are encouraged in residential 
com

plexes w
ith 20 or m

ore units.  Exceptions:  A
ge-restricted senior 

citizen housing, developm
ents located w

ithin ¼
 m

ile of a public park 
that features a play area, m

ixed-use developm
ents, and developm

ents 
reserved for student housing.   

Figure B
-21.  C

hildren’s play area incorporated 
into a m

ultifam
ily developm

ent. 

16 
D

R
A

FT - M
A

K
E

R
S

 architecture and urban design 
 

0754_W
hiskeyR

idge_D
G

_10-23-08 - 1/5/2009  

Item13-20



B
.  S

ite D
esign 

 B
.3.4 

Tow
nhouse O

pen Space.  Tow
nhouses and other ground based m

ulti-
fam

ily residential units w
ith individual exterior entries m

ust provide at 
least 200 square feet of private open space per dw

elling unit adjacent to, 
and directly accessible from

 each dw
elling unit.  This m

ay include private 
balconies, individual rear yards, landscaped front yards, and covered 
front porch areas.  E

xception:  C
om

m
on O

pen S
pace designed per 

S
tandard B

.3.3.a m
ay substitute for up to 50%

 of each unit’s required 
private or sem

i-private open space on a square foot per square foot 
basis.   

 
Figure B

-22.  These tow
nhouses provide balconies and sem

i-
private yard space. 

 

Figure B
-23. E

xam
ple tow

nhouse 
configuration w

ith a com
bination of private 

open spaces adjacent to units and larger 
com

m
on open space accessible to all units. 

W
hiskey R

idge D
esign S

tandards and G
uidelines - D

R
A

FT 
17 

  

Item13-21



B
.  S

ite D
esign 

 B
.4 Side and R

ear Yard Treatm
ents 

S
ince the C

om
m

unity B
usiness and M

ixed-U
se zones provide for a w

ide range of 
use types, design treatm

ents along the side and rear yards w
ill be critical in 

ensuring com
patibility betw

een developm
ents.  Thus the follow

ing standards and 
guidelines are intended to provide clear objectives (intent statem

ents) and a tool 
box of options to choose the appropriate design treatm

ent for the specific 
situation.   

Intent 
 To provide for com

patibility betw
een uses. 

 To encourage coordinated developm
ent betw

een com
patible uses. 

 To provide for a visual and physical separation of residential uses from
 

com
m

ercial uses, w
here desired. 

 To m
axim

ize privacy for residential uses. 

 To allow
 for sufficient solar access to residential uses located along a side or 

rear yard. 

Standards and G
uidelines 

B
.4.1 

Side and R
ear Setbacks. 

a. 
C

om
m

unity B
usiness and M

ixed-U
se zones. 

 0 feet for w
indow

-less fire w
alls up to 20 feet in height. 

 15 feet for all other buildings up to 35 feet in height.  O
ne foot of 

additional setback is required for each foot of height over 35 feet. 
 R

educed setbacks w
ill be considered provided the design treatm

ent 
m

eets the intent of the standards and guidelines w
ith respect to the 

subject property and current or vested uses on the adjacent property. 

18 
D

R
A

FT - M
A

K
E

R
S

 architecture and urban design 
 

0754_W
hiskeyR

idge_D
G

_10-23-08 - 1/5/2009  

Item13-22



B
.  S

ite D
esign 

 
b. 

O
ther zones. 
 15 feet for all other buildings up to 35 feet in height.  O

ne foot of 
additional setback is required for each foot of height over 35 feet. 

 R
educed setbacks w

ill be considered provided the design treatm
ent 

m
eets the intent of the standards and guidelines w

ith respect to the 
subject property and current or vested uses on the adjacent property.  

B
.4.2 

Solar A
ccess and Privacy. 

a. 
B

uildings or portions thereof containing dw
elling units w

hose solar 
access is only from

 the applicable side of the building (facing tow
ards 

the side property line) shall be set back from
 the applicable side or 

rear property lines at least 15 feet.  S
ee Figure B

-24. 

b. 
Transparent w

indow
s shall occupy no m

ore than 10 percent of any 
facade w

ithin 15 feet of the side or rear property line.  

c. 
B

alconies or rooftop decks w
ithin 15 horizontal feet of a side property 

line m
ust utilize opaque guard rails to m

inim
ize privacy im

pacts to 
adjacent properties. 

D
epartures m

ay be granted to the above standard provided the 
design treatm

ent m
eets the intent of the standards and guidelines w

ith 
respect to the subject property and current or vested uses on the 
adjacent property.  W

here the adjacent property is undeveloped or 
underdeveloped (as determ

ined by the D
irector), the proposed 

departure treatm
ent should not hinder perm

itted developm
ent 

opportunities on said adjacent property. 

W
hiskey R

idge D
esign S

tandards and G
uidelines - D

R
A

FT 
19 

  

Item13-23



B
.  S

ite D
esign 

 B
.4.3 

Side and R
ear Yard B

uffer R
equirem

ents.  A
ll developm

ents shall 
incorporate one or m

ore of the follow
ing design options: 

a. 
P

rovide Landscaping Type A
 (see C

hapter 19.16.080 of M
M

C
) at 

least 10 feet deep along side and rear property lines w
here adjacent 

to residential zoned land. 

b. 
P

rovide Landscaping Type B
 or C

 (see C
hapter 19.16.080 of M

M
C

) at 
least 10 feet deep along side and rear property lines w

here a visual 
separation of uses is desired.  The w

idth of the planting strip m
ay be 

reduced to 5 feet if used in conjunction w
ith a screen fence 

approxim
ately 6 feet tall.   

 
Figure B

-24.  S
ide yard setback standards and guidelines for m

ultifam
ily buildings 

depend on their dw
elling units’ solar. 

20 
D

R
A

FT - M
A

K
E

R
S

 architecture and urban design 
 

0754_W
hiskeyR

idge_D
G

_10-23-08 - 1/5/2009  

Item13-24



B
.  S

ite D
esign 

 W
hiskey R

idge D
esign S

tandards and G
uidelines - D

R
A

FT 
21 

Figure B
-25.  S

ide and rear yard design treatm
ent options.  

c. 
O

ther treatm
ents that m

eet the intent of the standards and guidelines 
as approved by the D

irector.  Factors that m
ust be considered in 

determ
ining the appropriate treatm

ent include view
s, applicable uses, 

connectivity, and desired level of privacy.  S
om

e options include: 
 S

hared pathw
ay along or adjacent to the property line w

ith landscaping.  
This is a desirable configuration that can enhance pedestrian circulation 
and provides an efficient use of space.  This treatm

ent requires a 
recorded agreem

ent w
ith applicable adjacent property ow

ner(s). 
 Tall privacy fence or hedge (up to 6 feet tall).  This is m

ost applicable for 
com

m
ercial uses adjacent to m

ultifam
ily uses – w

here the fence doesn’t 
negatively im

pact view
s from

 the street or nearby properties.   

 W
here allow

ed in the specific zoning district, buildings sited up to the 
property line m

ay be acceptable provided m
aterial, color, and/or textural 

changes to the building w
all are included that add visual interest to the 

w
all. 

 Low
 screen fence or hedge (up to 3 feet tall).  This m

ay be a m
ore 

attractive option w
here a taller fence m

ight provide negative visual 
im

pacts. 

  

Item13-25



 
 

  Section C
: 

Vehicular A
ccess 

and Parking 

C
.1 O

n-Site Vehicular A
ccess and 

C
onnections  

Intent 
 To create a safe, convenient, and efficient netw

ork for vehicular circulation 
and parking. 

 To enhance access to the area from
 the surrounding neighborhood. 

 To upgrade the appearance of interior access roads. 

 To m
inim

ize negative im
pacts of drivew

ays on the streetscape and 
pedestrian environm

ent. 

Standards and G
uidelines 

C
.1.1 

Vehicular C
irculation N

etw
ork.  D

evelopm
ents shall provide a safe and 

convenient netw
ork of vehicular circulation that connects to the 

surrounding road/access netw
ork and provides the opportunities for future 

connections to adjacent parcels, w
here desirable and applicable.   

C
.1.2 

Internal A
ccess R

oads.  C
om

m
ercial and m

ixed-use developm
ents of 

large sites (m
ore than five acres) are encouraged to design interior 

access roads to look and function m
ore like public streets.  This includes 

planting strips and street trees on both sides, sidew
alks on one or both 

sides, and perpendicular parking on one or both sides.  These features 
m

ay be required by the D
irector based on the nature of adjacent uses and 

anticipated pedestrian activity. 

Figure C
-1.  Internal access road designed to 

look and function like a public street.  N
ote on-

street parking, lighting, street trees, and 
sidew

alks. 

22 
D

R
A

FT - M
A

K
E

R
S

 architecture and urban design 
 

0754_W
hiskeyR

idge_D
G

_10-23-08 - 1/5/2009  

Item13-26



C
.  V

ehicular A
ccess and P

arking 
 C

.2 Parking  
Intent 

 To provide flexibility in how
 developm

ents accom
m

odate parking. 

 To m
aintain active pedestrian environm

ents along streets by placing parking 
lots prim

arily in back of buildings. 

 To ensure safety of users of parking areas, increase convenience to 
businesses, and reduce the im

pact of parking lots w
herever possible. 

 To physically and visually integrate parking garages w
ith other uses. 

 To reduce the overall im
pact of parking garages w

hen they are located in 
proxim

ity to the designated pedestrian environm
ent.  

Standards and G
uidelines 

C
.2.1 

O
n-Street Parking Spaces.  O

n-street parking spaces adjacent to uses 
shall count tow

ards off-street parking requirem
ents. 

C
.2.2 

Shared Parking.  S
hared parking betw

een and am
ong uses is 

encouraged and shall be perm
itted in accordance w

ith C
hapter 19.18 

M
M

C
.  C

oordination betw
een different uses and property ow

ners to 
provide for shared structured parking facilities is encouraged. 

C
.2.3 

Parking Lots at Intersections.  P
arking lots shall not be located 

adjacent to intersections.  E
xceptions m

ay be granted by the D
irector 

w
here alternative design treatm

ents, such as special landscaping and 
architectural com

ponents adjacent to the street corner, enhance the 
visual character of the street and the pedestrian environm

ent and w
here 

the project m
eets all other applicable design standards and guidelines.   

W
hiskey R

idge D
esign S

tandards and G
uidelines - D

R
A

FT 
23 

  

Item13-27



C
.  V

ehicular A
ccess P

arking 
 

24 
D

R
A

FT - M
A

K
E

R
S

 architecture and urban design 

b. 
P

arking structures adjacent to streets and not featuring a pedestrian-
oriented facade shall be set back at least 10 feet from

 the sidew
alk 

and feature landscaping betw
een the sidew

alk and the structure.  This 
shall include a com

bination of evergreen and deciduous trees, shrubs, 
and groundcover.  A

lternative m
easures shall be considered, provided 

the treatm
ent m

eets the intent of the standards and guidelines. 

 
0754_W

hiskeyR
idge_D

G
_10-23-08 - 1/5/2009  

a. 
P

arking structures adjacent to 87th S
treet shall provide space for 

ground-floor com
m

ercial uses along street frontages for a m
inim

um
 of 

75 percent of the frontage w
idth. 

d. 
P

arking w
ithin the building should be enclosed or screened through 

any com
bination of landscaping berm

s, w
alls, decorative grilles, or 

trellis w
ork w

ith landscaping.  Facade openings that resem
ble 

w
indow

s can be attractive and are perm
itted at the ground and upper 

levels. 

e. 
P

arking garages visible from
 a street shall be designed to be 

com
plem

entary w
ith adjacent buildings on-site.  This can be 

accom
plished by using sim

ilar building form
s, m

aterials, fenestration 
patterns, and/or details to enhance garages. 

c. 
P

arking garage entries shall be designed and sited to com
plem

ent, 
not subordinate, the pedestrian entry.  If possible, locate the parking 
entry aw

ay from
 the prim

ary street, to either the side or rear of the 
building. 

f. 
A

n unbroken series of garage doors is not perm
itted on any street 

frontage. 

C
.2.4 

Parking Structure Standards. 

 

Figure C
-2.  A

 good exam
ple of a parking 

garage entrance for a m
ixed-use developm

ent. 

Figure C
-3.  A

 good parking garage exam
ple 

w
ith landscaping elem

ents to screen cars and 
provide visual interest. 

Item13-28



  
  Section D

: 
Pedestrian 
Environm

ent 

Section D
:.Pedestrian Environm

ent 

D
.1 Sidew

alk and Pathw
ay Standards and 

G
uidelines 

Intent 
 To provide safe, convenient, and com

fortable pedestrian circulation. 
 To enhance the character and identity of the area. 
 To prom

ote w
alking, bicycling, and transit use. 

Standards and G
uidelines 

D
.1.1 

Sidew
alk D

esign.  D
evelopm

ents shall utilize appropriate sidew
alk 

w
idths, m

aterials, designs, and construction standards and guidelines to 
enhance pedestrian access and com

plem
ent city life.  S

pecifically: 

a. 
S

idew
alks shall be constructed per the C

ity’s E
ngineering D

esign and 
D

evelopm
ent S

tandards (E
D

D
S

), unless otherw
ise directed by these 

design standards and guidelines. 

b. 
S

idew
alk w

idths shall follow
 the S

treetscape D
esign S

tandards and 
the C

ity’s E
D

D
S

.   

O
utdoor business activities are perm

itted w
ithin the public right-of-w

ay 
only if additional public sidew

alk is provided greater than the required 
w

idth.  N
o business activities are allow

ed in the m
inim

um
 required 

w
idth.  A

lso see Figure D
-1 for other sidew

alk w
idth considerations. 

c. 
S

idew
alk m

aterials, colors, and textures shall be determ
ined by the 

D
irector, based on the follow

ing:   
 W

hiskey R
idge S

treetscape D
esign P

lan. 
 C

ity’s E
ngineering D

esign and D
evelopm

ent S
tandards. 

Figure D
-1.  A

ppropriate 
sidew

alk w
idths. 

W
hiskey R

idge D
esign S

tandards and G
uidelines - D

R
A

FT 
25 

  

Item13-29



D
.  P

edestrian E
nvironm

ent 
 D

.1.2 
Internal Pedestrian W

alkw
ays. 

a. 
Internal pathw

ays along the front facade of m
ixed-use and retail 

buildings 100 feet or m
ore in length (m

easured along the facade) that 
are not located adjacent to a street m

ust be at least 12 feet w
ide w

ith 
8 feet m

inim
um

 unobstructed w
idth and include the follow

ing: 
 S

treet trees, as approved by the D
irector, should be placed at an 

average of 30 feet on-center and placed in grates (except w
here trees 

are placed in planting strips).  B
reaks in the tree coverage w

ill be allow
ed 

near m
ajor building entries to enhance visibility.  H

ow
ever, no less than 

one tree per 60 lineal feet of building facade m
ust be provided. 

 P
lanting strips m

ay be used betw
een any vehicle access or parking area 

and the pathw
ay, provided that the required trees are included and the 

pathw
ay is at least 8 feet in w

idth and the com
bined pathw

ay and 
planting strip is at least 14 feet in w

idth. 
 P

edestrian-scaled lighting m
ay be used as a substitute to the required 

street trees subject to D
irector approval, provided they are used at the 

sam
e intervals. 

b. 
For all other interior pathw

ays, the applicant shall successfully 
dem

onstrate that the proposed w
alkw

ay is of sufficient w
idth to 

accom
m

odate the anticipated num
ber of users.  S

ee Figure D
-1 for 

considerations.   

Figure D
-2.  D

esign standards for 
internal w

alkw
ays along storefronts 

and a photo exam
ple. 

26 
D

R
A

FT - M
A

K
E

R
S

 architecture and urban design 
 

0754_W
hiskeyR

idge_D
G

_10-23-08 - 1/5/2009  

Item13-30



D
.  P

edestrian E
nvironm

ent 
 

c. 
P

edestrian w
alks shall be separated from

 structures by at least 3 feet 
of landscaping, except w

here the adjacent building features a 
pedestrian-oriented facade.  The D

irector shall consider alternative 
treatm

ents to provide attractive pathw
ays.  E

xam
ples include the use 

of planter boxes and/or vine plants on w
alls, sculptural, m

osaic, bas-
relief artw

ork, or other decorative w
all treatm

ents that m
eet the intent 

of the standards and guidelines. 

  

Figure D
-3.  P

athw
ay/landscaping 

requirem
ents adjacent to non-

pedestrian-oriented facades. 

Figure D
-4.  A

 good exam
ple of w

all design 
treatm

ent that w
ould qualify for a departure from

 
S

tandard D
.1.2c. 

W
hiskey R

idge D
esign S

tandards and G
uidelines - D

R
A

FT 
27 

  

Item13-31



D
.  P

edestrian E
nvironm

ent 
 

Figure D
-5.  P

arking lot pathw
ay requirem

ents. 

 D
.2 Pedestrian C

irculation 
Intent 

 To create a netw
ork of linkages for pedestrians to im

prove safety and 
convenience and enhance the pedestrian environm

ent. 

Standards and G
uidelines 

D
.2.1 

Pedestrian A
ccess.  A

ll buildings shall have clear pedestrian access to 
the sidew

alk.  W
here a use fronts tw

o streets, access shall be provided 
from

 the road closest to the m
ain entrance, preferably from

 both streets.  
B

uildings w
ith entries not facing the street should have a clear and 

obvious pedestrian access w
ay from

 the street to the entry. 

D
.2.2 

Parking Lot Pathw
ays.  A

 paved w
alkw

ay or sidew
alk shall be provided 

for safe w
alking areas through parking lots greater than 175 feet long 

(m
easured either parallel or perpendicular to the street front).  W

alkw
ays 

shall be provided for every three parking aisles or a distance of less than 
175 feet shall be m

aintained betw
een paths (w

hichever is m
ore 

restrictive).  S
uch access routes through parking areas shall be separated 

from
 vehicular parking and travel lanes by use of contrasting paving 

m
aterial, w

hich m
ay be raised above the vehicular pavem

ent.  S
peed 

bum
ps m

ay not be used to satisfy this requirem
ent.  Trees and 

pedestrian-scaled lighting (m
axim

um
 15 feet in height) shall be used to 

clearly define pedestrian w
alkw

ays or other pedestrian areas w
ithin the 

parking area. 

Figure D
-6.  P

arking lot  
pathw

ay exam
ple. 

28 
D

R
A

FT - M
A

K
E

R
S

 architecture and urban design 
 

0754_W
hiskeyR

idge_D
G

_10-23-08 - 1/5/2009  

Item13-32



D
.  P

edestrian E
nvironm

ent 
 D

.3 Lighting 
Intent 

 To create attractive spaces that unify the building and street environm
ents 

that are inviting, com
fortable, and safe for pedestrians. 

 To ensure visibility for pedestrians and autom
obiles. 

Standards and G
uidelines 

D
.3.1 

Lighting Standards and G
uidelines.  P

rovide appropriate lighting levels 
in all areas used by pedestrians or autom

obiles, including building entries, 
w

alkw
ays, parking areas, circulation areas, and other open space areas.  

N
ew

 developm
ents shall provide site lighting that m

eets the follow
ing 

design criteria through im
plem

enting m
easures such as: 

a. 
A

ll public areas shall be lighted w
ith average m

inim
um

 and m
axim

um
 

levels as follow
s: 

 M
inim

um
 (for low

 or non-pedestrian and vehicular traffic areas) 
of 0.5 foot candles; 

 M
oderate (for m

oderate or high volum
e pedestrian areas) of 1-2 

foot candles; and 
 M

axim
um

 (for high volum
e pedestrian areas and building entries) 

of 4 foot candles. 

b. 
Lighting shall be provided at consistent levels, w

ith gradual transitions 
betw

een m
axim

um
 and m

inim
um

 levels of lighting and betw
een lit 

areas and unlit areas.  H
ighly contrasting pools of light and dark areas 

shall be avoided. 

c. 
P

arking lot lighting fixtures shall be non-glare and m
ounted no m

ore 
than 25 feet above the ground, w

ith low
er fixtures preferable so as to 

m
aintain a hum

an scale.  R
equests for higher lighting fixtures m

ay be 
considered w

ith the approval of the D
irector.  A

ll fixtures over 15 feet 
in height shall be fitted w

ith a full cut-off shield. 

W
hiskey R

idge D
esign S

tandards and G
uidelines - D

R
A

FT 
29 

  

Item13-33



D
.  P

edestrian E
nvironm

ent 
 

30 
D

R
A

FT - M
A

K
E

R
S

 architecture and urban design 
 

0754_W
hiskeyR

idge_D
G

_10-23-08 - 1/5/2009  

d. 
P

edestrian-scaled lighting (light fixtures no taller than 15 feet) is 
encouraged in areas w

ith high anticipated pedestrian activity.  Lighting 
shall enable pedestrians to identify a face 45 feet aw

ay in order to 
prom

ote safety. 

e. 
Lighting should not be perm

itted to trespass onto adjacent private 
parcels nor shall light source (lum

inaire) be visible at the property line.  
A

ll building lights shall be directed onto the building itself and/or the 
ground im

m
ediately adjacent to it.  The light em

issions should not be 
visible above the roofline of the building.  Light fixtures other than 
traditional cobra heads are encouraged. 

Item13-34



  

 Section E: 
B

uilding D
esign 

 

Section E:  B
uilding D

esign 

E.1 B
uilding Entries 

Intent 
 To m

ake building entrances convenient to locate and easy to access. 

 To enhance the pedestrian environm
ent along streets. 

Standards and G
uidelines 

E.1.1 
Visible Entries.  P

rim
ary building and business entrances shall be 

prom
inent, visible from

 surrounding streets or pedestrian-oriented space, 
and connected by a w

alkw
ay to the public sidew

alk.  A
lso see C

hapter 
B

.1 for related provisions. 

E.1.2 
W

eather Protection.  W
eather protection at least 5 feet deep and 

proportional to the distance above ground level shall be provided over the 
prim

ary entry of all businesses and non-residential buildings.  W
eather 

protection for the prim
ary entry of residential units shall be at least 3 feet 

deep.  

E.1.3 
A

D
A

 R
equirem

ents.  P
edestrian pathw

ays from
 public sidew

alks to 
prim

ary entrances, or from
 parking lots to prim

ary entrances, shall be 
accessible, conform

ing to federal and state A
m

ericans w
ith D

isabilities 
A

ct requirem
ents, and shall be clearly delineated.   

Figure E
-1.  P

rom
inent building entrance 

exam
ple. 

W
hiskey R

idge D
esign S

tandards and G
uidelines - D

R
A

FT 
31 

  

Item13-35



E
.  B

uilding D
esign 

 E.1.4 
A

ccess to R
esidential U

nits.  G
round floor residential units facing a 

street or com
m

on open space shall be directly accessible from
 the 

applicable street or open space. 

E.1.5 
Tow

nhouse Entrances.  Tow
nhom

es and all other m
ultifam

ily dw
elling 

units w
ith private exterior ground-floor entries shall provide at least 20 

square feet of landscaping adjacent to the entry.  This is particularly 
im

portant for units w
here the prim

ary entrance is next to private garages 
off an interior access road.  S

uch landscaping areas soften the 
appearance of the building and highlight individual entries.  See Figures 
E

-2 and E
-3 for good and bad exam

ples. 

 
Figure E

-2.  G
round floor residential units 

directly accessible to the street w
ith landscaping 

at the entry. 

  

Figure E
-3.  A

 bad tow
nhouse exam

ple w
ith 

no landfscaping adjacent to the entry. 

32 
D

R
A

FT - M
A

K
E

R
S

 architecture and urban design 
 

0754_W
hiskeyR

idge_D
G

_10-23-08 - 1/5/2009  

Item13-36



E
.  B

uilding D
esign 

 E.1.6 
Secondary Public A

ccess.  W
hereas these design standards and 

guidelines encourage businesses to front on streets rather than parking 
lots, a large num

ber of custom
ers w

ill likely use the secondary entry off of 
the parking lot.  S

uch businesses that have secondary public access shall 
com

ply w
ith the follow

ing m
easures to enhance secondary public access 

(applies only to entries used by the public): 

a. 
W

eather protection at least 3 feet deep is required over each 
secondary entry.   

b. 
Tw

o or m
ore of the follow

ing design elem
ents shall be incorporated 

w
ithin or adjacent to the secondary entry: 

 A
 transparent w

indow
 or door to allow

 visibility into the business; 
 A

 landscaping bed, trellis, or other perm
anent landscaping elem

ent 
adjacent to the entry; 

 D
ecorative architectural treatm

ents that add visual interest to the entry; 
 O

utdoor dining area or pedestrian-oriented space; 
 D

ecorative lighting; or 
 O

ther design elem
ents that m

eet the intent of the standards and 
guidelines per the D

irector. 

 

Figure E
-4.  Front (top) and back (bottom

) 
entrances of a retail building sited adjacent to a 

public street.  W
hile the sidew

alk entrance is 
designed as the prim

ary entrance, the back 
entry includes w

eather protection and use of 
decorative building m

aterials to enhance this 
secondary entry. 

W
hiskey R

idge D
esign S

tandards and G
uidelines - D

R
A

FT 
33 

  

Item13-37



E
.  B

uilding D
esign 

 E.2 A
rchitectural C

haracter and Scale 
Lone P

ine, C
A

 

Intent 
 To prom

ote architecture that contributes to the character and identity of the 
neighborhood. 

 To reduce the scale of large buildings and add visual interest. 

 To provide m
inim

um
 floor-to-ceiling heights for ground floor com

m
ercial 

spaces appropriate to accom
m

odate a full range of retail uses. 

Jasper, A
lberta  

Standards and G
uidelines 

E.2.1 
N

o Franchise or C
orporate A

rchitecture.  A
rchitecture that is defined 

predom
inately by corporate identity features (and difficult to adapt to other 

uses) is prohibited.  For exam
ple, som

e fast food franchises have very 
specific architectural features that reinforce their identity.  B

esides diluting 
the neighborhood’s identity w

ith corporate (and, therefore, generic) 
identities, these buildings are undesirable because they are not adaptable 
to other uses w

hen the corporate franchises leave. 

Q
uebec C

ity  

 

Figure E
-5.  E

xam
ples from

 other com
m

unities 
w

here a fast food franchise’s architecture w
as 

m
odified to fit into the context of the com

m
unity. 

Figure E
-6.  

G
eneric franchise 

and corporate 
architecture is not 
allow

ed. 

G
i g H

arbor  

34 
D

R
A

FT - M
A

K
E

R
S

 architecture and urban design 
 

0754_W
hiskeyR

idge_D
G

_10-23-08 - 1/5/2009  

Item13-38



E
.  B

uilding D
esign 

 E.2.2 
B

uilding Facades.  A
ll facades of a building shall be given equal design 

consideration.  S
om

e flexibility m
ay be given by the D

irector for alley or 
other facades that are not visible from

 streets, parks, parking lots, or other 
uses. 

E.2.3 
Streetfront A

rticulation.  A
ll non-residential building facades fronting 

directly on a street m
ust include at least tw

o of the follow
ing articulation 

features at intervals no greater than 30 feet. 

a. 
U

se of w
indow

 and/or entries that reinforce the pattern of sm
all 

storefront spaces. 

b. 
U

se of w
eather protection features that reinforce the pattern of sm

all 
storefronts.  For exam

ple, for a business that occupies three lots, use 
three separate aw

nings to break dow
n the scale of the storefronts.  

A
lternating colors of the aw

nings m
ay be useful as w

ell. 
Figure E

-7.  For com
m

ercial buildings built up to 
the sidew

alk, provide facade articulation 
features at no m

ore than 30-foot intervals. 

c. 
C

hange of roofline. 

d. 
C

hange in building m
aterial or siding style. 

e. 
O

ther m
ethods that m

eet the intent of the standards and guidelines. 

W
hiskey R

idge D
esign S

tandards and G
uidelines - D

R
A

FT 
35 

  

Item13-39



E
.  B

uilding D
esign 

 E.2.4 
Facade A

rticulation for A
ll O

ther N
on-R

esidential B
uildings N

ot 
C

overed in Standard E.2.3 A
bove.  A

ll non-residential building facades 
fronting on a street or containing a pedestrian entrance m

ust include at 
least three of the follow

ing articulation features at intervals no greater 
than 70 feet. 

a. 
U

se of w
indow

 and/or entries that reinforce the pattern of sm
all 

storefront spaces. 

b. 
V

ertical building m
odulation. The m

inim
um

 depth and w
idth of 

m
odulation shall be 2 and 4 feet, respectively (preferably tied to a 

change in roofline, building m
aterial or siding style). 

c. 
U

se of w
eather protection features that reinforce the pattern of sm

all 
storefronts.   

Figure E
-8.  E

xam
ple of building articulation. 

d. 
C

hange of roofline. 

e. 
C

hange in building m
aterial or siding style. 

f. 
P

roviding lighting fixtures, trellis, tree, or other landscape feature 
w

ithin each interval. 

g. 
A

rticulation of the building’s top, m
iddle, and bottom

 for m
ulti-story 

com
m

ercial buildings.  This typically includes a distinctive ground floor 
or low

er floor design, consistent articulation of m
iddle floors, and a 

distinctive roofline. 

h. 
O

ther m
ethods that m

eet the intent of the standards and guidelines. 

E
xception: A

lternative articulation m
ethods w

ill be considered by the 
D

irector provided such treatm
ent m

eets the intent of the standards and 
guidelines.  For exam

ple, use of high quality building m
aterials (such as 

brick or stone) w
ith attractive detailing m

ay allow
 a building to m

eet the 
intent of the standards using greater articulation intervals.  A

lso, w
here 

the articulated features are m
ore substantial in term

s of effectively 
breaking up the facade into sm

aller com
ponents, then a greater distance 

betw
een architectural intervals m

ay be acceptable. 

Figure E
-9.  This building utilizes a num

ber of 
m

ethods to reduce its perceived bulk. 

36 
D

R
A

FT - M
A

K
E

R
S

 architecture and urban design 
 

0754_W
hiskeyR

idge_D
G

_10-23-08 - 1/5/2009  

Item13-40



E
.  B

uilding D
esign 

 

 
Figure E

-10.  A
n exam

ple of clearly articulating a building’s top, m
iddle, and bottom

 by 
utilizing a com

bination of storefront elem
ents on the ground floor, defined w

indow
 

patterns and articulation treatm
ents on upper floors, and a distinctive roofline and/or top 

floor. 

E.2.5 
R

oofline M
odulation.   

a. 
In order to qualify as an articulation elem

ent in S
tandard E

.2.3, E
.2.4, 

or E
.2.5, the roofline shall m

eet the follow
ing m

odulation requirem
ent: 

 For flat roofs or facades w
ith horizontal eave, fascia, or parapet, the 

m
inim

um
 vertical dim

ension of roofline m
odulation is the greater of 2 feet 

or 0.1 m
ultiplied by the w

all height (finish grade to top of the w
all) w

hen 
com

bined w
ith vertical building m

odulation techniques described in 
S

tandard E
.2.5 above.  O

therw
ise, the m

inim
um

 vertical dim
ension of 

roofline m
odulation is the greater of 4 feet or 0.2 m

ultiplied by the w
all 

height. 
 B

uildings w
ith pitched roofs m

ust include a m
inim

um
 slope of 5:12 and 

feature m
odulated roofline com

ponents at the interval required per the 
applicable standard above.  

Figure E
-11.  R

oofline m
odulation standards. 

W
hiskey R

idge D
esign S

tandards and G
uidelines - D

R
A

FT 
37 

  

Item13-41



E
.  B

uilding D
esign 

 
b. 

For large scale retail uses (w
ith at least 50,000 square feet of floor 

area and facades greater than 150 feet in w
idth), the storefront shall 

integrate a prom
inent entry feature com

bining substantial roofline 
m

odulation w
ith vertical building m

odulation and a distinctive change 
in m

aterials and/or colors.  The m
inim

um
 vertical dim

ension of roofline 
m

odulation is the greater of 6 feet or 0.3 m
ultiplied by the w

all height 
(finish grade to top of the w

all).  The D
irector w

ill consider alternative 
treatm

ents provided they m
eet the intent of the standards and 

guidelines. 

 
 

 
Figure E

-12.  G
ood exam

ples of P
rom

inent pedestrian entries for large-scale retail uses.  N
ote height change, 

vertical m
odulation, use of building m

aterials, colors, and detailing to add interest and em
phasis. 

38 
D

R
A

FT - M
A

K
E

R
S

 architecture and urban design 
 

0754_W
hiskeyR

idge_D
G

_10-23-08 - 1/5/2009  

Item13-42



E
.  B

uilding D
esign 

 E.2.6 
Facade A

rticulation - M
ultifam

ily R
esidential B

uildings and 
R

esidential Portions of M
ixed-U

se B
uildings.  A

ll residential buildings 
and residential portions of m

ixed-use buildings shall include at least three 
of the follow

ing articulation features at intervals of no m
ore than 30 feet 

along all facades facing a street, com
m

on open space, and com
m

on 
parking areas:  

a. 
R

epeating distinctive w
indow

 patterns at intervals of no m
ore than 30 

feet.  S
ee Figure E

-14 below
 for an exam

ple 

b. 
V

ertical building m
odulation.  M

inim
um

 depth and w
idth of m

odulation 
is 2 feet and 4 feet, respectively, if tied to a change in color or building 
m

aterial and/or roofline m
odulation as defined in S

tandard E
.2.7 

below
.  O

therw
ise, m

inim
um

 depth of m
odulation is 10 feet and 

m
inim

um
 w

idth for each m
odulation is 15 feet.  B

alconies m
ay not be 

used to m
eet m

odulation option unless they are recessed or projected 
from

 the facade at least 18 inches and integrated w
ith the building’s 

architecture as determ
ined by the D

irector.  

Figure E
-13.  A

n exam
ple of balconies 

integrated w
ith the architecture of the building. 

c. 
H

orizontal m
odulation (upper level step-backs).  To qualify for this 

m
easure, the m

inim
um

 horizontal m
odulation shall be 5 feet. 

d. 
A

rticulation of the building’s top, m
iddle, and bottom

.  This typically 
includes a distinctive ground floor or low

er floor design, consistent 
articulation of m

iddle floors, and a distinctive roofline.  (S
ee Figure E

-
10 and E

-14.) 

Figure E
-15.  E

xam
ple of good articulation for a 

m
ultifam

ily building. 
Figure E

-14.  N
ote the repeating distinctive w

indow
 patterns 

and the articulation of the buildings top, m
iddle, and bottom

. 

W
hiskey R

idge D
esign S

tandards and G
uidelines - D

R
A

FT 
39 

  

Item13-43



E
.  B

uilding D
esign 

 
E.2.7 

M
axim

um
 Facade W

idth.  The m
axim

um
 facade w

idth (the 
facade includes the apparent w

idth of the structure facing the street and 
includes required m

odulation) of m
ultifam

ily residential buildings and 
residential floors of m

ixed-use buildings is 120 feet.  B
uildings exceeding 

120 feet in w
idth along the street front shall be divided by a m

odulation of 
the exterior w

all, so that the m
axim

um
 length of a particular facade is 120 

feet.  S
uch m

odulation shall be at least 20 feet or deeper and extend 
through all residential floors. 

For large-scale retail uses, prom
inent entry features required in S

tandard 
E

.2.6.b above m
ay also be used to m

eet this requirem
ent. 

The D
irector m

ay consider departures from
 this 

guideline, provided the proposed treatm
ent m

eets the 
intent of the standards and guidelines.  S

ee Figure E
-16 

for a good exam
ple of an attractive treatm

ent that m
eets 

the intent. 

Figure E
-16.  The prom

inent vertical 
elem

ent of this building effectively 
breaks up the perceived scale of the 
building and adds visual interest. 

Figure E
-17.  R

equirem
ents 

for facade length. 

E.2.8 
M

inim
um

 Floor-to-C
eiling H

eight for 
C

om
m

ercial U
ses.  In order to ensure 

the ground floor of structures has 
adequate height to function efficiently for 
retail uses, spaces intended for 
com

m
ercial uses shall provide a 

m
inim

um
 13-foot floor-to-finished-ceiling 

height. 

40 
D

R
A

FT - M
A

K
E

R
S

 architecture and urban design 
 

0754_W
hiskeyR

idge_D
G

_10-23-08 - 1/5/2009  

Item13-44



E
.  B

uilding D
esign 

 E.3 B
uilding D

etails 
Intent 

 To encourage the incorporation of design details and sm
all-scale elem

ents 
into building facades that are attractive at a pedestrian scale. 

 To create visual interest and increased activity at public street corners. 

Standards and G
uidelines 

E.3.1 
D

etails Toolbox for C
om

m
ercial B

uildings.  A
ll com

m
ercial buildings 

shall be enhanced w
ith appropriate details.  A

ll new
 buildings are shall 

em
ploy at least one detail elem

ent from
 each of the three categories 

below
.  O

ther m
ixtures of detail elem

ents w
ill be considered provided they 

m
eet the intent.  The applicant m

ust dem
onstrate how

 the am
ount, type, 

and m
ix of details m

eet the intent of the standards and guidelines.  For 
exam

ple, a large building w
ith m

ultiple storefronts w
ill likely need m

ore 
than one decorative sign, one transom

 w
indow

, and one decorative kick-
plate to m

eet the intent of the standards and guidelines. 

a. 
W

indow
 and/or entry treatm

ent: 
 D

isplay w
indow

s divided into a grid of m
ultiple panes. 

 Transom
 w

indow
s. 

 R
oll-up w

indow
s/doors. 

 O
ther distinctive w

indow
 treatm

ent that m
eets the intent of the standards 

and guidelines. 
 R

ecessed entry. 
 D

ecorative door. 
 A

rcade. 
 Landscaped trellises or other decorative elem

ent that incorporates 
landscaping near the building entry. 

 O
ther decorative entry treatm

ent that m
eets the intent of the standards 

and guidelines. 
Figure E

-18.  D
ecorative use of building 

m
aterials, lighting, signage, and landscaping 
creates a statem

ent at this corner location. 

W
hiskey R

idge D
esign S

tandards and G
uidelines - D

R
A

FT 
41 

  

Item13-45



E
.  B

uilding D
esign 

 
b. 

D
ecorative facade attachm

ents: 
 D

ecorative w
eather protections elem

ent such as a steel canopy, 
decorative cloth aw

ning, or retractable aw
ning. 

 D
ecorative, custom

 hanging sign(s). 
 D

ecorative building-m
ounted light fixtures. 

c. 
B

uilding m
aterials and other facade elem

ents: 
 D

ecorative building m
aterials/use of building m

aterials.  E
xam

ples 
include decorative use of brick, tile, or stonew

ork. 
 D

ecorative artw
ork on building (such as a m

ural) or bas-relief sculpture. 
 D

ecorative kick-plate, pier, belt course, or other sim
ilar facade elem

ent. 
 O

ther details that m
eet the intent of the standards and guidelines as 

determ
ined by the D

irector. 
Figure E

-19. This building w
ould m

eet the 
details guideline by using a decorative entry 
elem

ent, building m
aterials, and lighting.  

D
ecorative elem

ents referenced above m
ust be distinct “one-of-a-kind” 

elem
ents or unusual designs that require a high level of craftsm

anship as 
determ

ined by the D
irector. 

E.3.2 
D

etails Toolbox for M
ultifam

ily B
uildings.  A

ll m
ultifam

ily buildings 
shall be enhanced w

ith appropriate details.  E
ach of the types of details 

listed below
 are w

orth one point unless otherw
ise noted.  M

ultifam
ily 

building facades m
ust achieve the equivalent of four points w

orth of 
architectural details.  C

hosen details m
ust be com

patible w
ith the chosen 

architectural style. 

D
etail options: 

a. 
D

ecorative porch design w
ith distinct design and use of m

aterials. 
b. 

D
ecorative treatm

ent of w
indow

s and doors, such as decorative 
m

olding/ fram
ing details around all ground floor w

indow
s and doors, 

bay w
indow

s, decorative glazing, or door designs., and/or unique 
w

indow
 designs. 

c. 
Landscaped trellises or other decorative elem

ent that incorporates 
landscaping near the building entry or entries. 

42 
D

R
A

FT - M
A

K
E

R
S

 architecture and urban design 
 

0754_W
hiskeyR

idge_D
G

_10-23-08 - 1/5/2009  

Item13-46



E
.  B

uilding D
esign 

 
d. 

D
ecorative light fixtures w

ith a diffuse visible light source, such as a 
globe or “acorn” that is non-glaring or a decorative shade or m

ounting 
for each building entry on the facade. 

e. 
B

rick or stonew
ork covering m

ore than 10 percent of the facade (2 
points). 

f. 
D

ecorative building m
aterials that add visual interest, including  

 Individualized patterns or continuous w
ood details. 

 D
ecorative m

oldings, brackets, w
ave trim

 or lattice w
ork. 

 D
ecorative brick or stonew

ork (m
ay be in addition to the brick or 

stonew
ork credits noted above if they are arranged in a decorative 

m
anner that add visual interest to the facade). 

Figure E
-20. This building uses brick for m

ore 
than 10%

 of the facade, a decorative m
ix of 

m
aterials and colors, decorative entries, and 
decorative w

indow
s to add visual interest.  

 O
ther m

aterials w
ith decorative or textural qualities as approved by the 

D
irector.  The applicant m

ust subm
it architectural draw

ings and m
aterial 

sam
ples for approval. 

g. 
D

ecorative roofline design, including m
ultiple gables and/or dorm

ers 
or other design that adds distinct visual interest. 

h. 
D

ecorative railings, grill w
ork, or terraced landscape beds integrated 

along the facade of the building. 

i. 
D

ecorative balcony design, such as distinctive railings. 

j. 
O

ther details that m
eet the intent of the standards and guidelines as 

approved by the D
irector. 

W
hiskey R

idge D
esign S

tandards and G
uidelines - D

R
A

FT 
43 

  

Item13-47



E
.  B

uilding D
esign 

 E.3.3 
W

indow
 D

esign for R
esidential U

ses.  B
uilding facades shall em

ploy 
techniques to recess or project individual w

indow
s above the ground floor 

at least tw
o inches from

 the facade or  incorporate w
indow

 trim
 at least 

four inches in w
idth that features color that contrasts w

ith the base 
building color.  E

xceptions w
ill be considered by the D

irector w
here 

buildings em
ploy other distinctive w

indow
 or facade treatm

ent that adds 
visual interest to the building. 

 
O

K
 

O
K

N
O

T
O

K

Figure E
-21.  A

cceptable and 
unacceptable w

indow
 treatm

ents. 

44 
D

R
A

FT - M
A

K
E

R
S

 architecture and urban design 
 

0754_W
hiskeyR

idge_D
G

_10-23-08 - 1/5/2009  

Item13-48



E
.  B

uilding D
esign 

 E.3.4 
B

lank W
all Standards/Treatm

ents.  B
lank w

alls visible from
 a public 

street, sidew
alks, trails, interior pathw

ays, or custom
er parking lots are 

prohibited.  A
 w

all (including building facades and other exterior building 
w

alls, retaining w
alls, and fences) is defined as a blank w

all if: 

 
A

 ground floor w
all or portion of a ground floor w

all over 4 feet in 
height has a horizontal length greater than 15 feet and does not 
include a transparent w

indow
 or door; or 

 
A

ny portion of a ground floor w
all having a surface area of 400 square 

feet or greater does not include a transparent w
indow

 or door. 

D
esign treatm

ents to elim
inate blank w

alls can include: 
 

Transparent w
indow

s or doors. 
 

D
isplay w

indow
s. 

Figure E
-22.  B

lank w
all treatm

ents. 
 

Landscape planting bed at least 5 feet w
ide or a raised planter bed at 

least 2 feet high and 3 feet w
ide in front of the w

all.  S
uch planting 

areas shall include planting m
aterials that are sufficient to obscure or 

screen at least 60 percent of the w
all’s surface w

ithin 3 years. 
 

Installing a vertical trellis in front of the w
all w

ith clim
bing vines or 

plant m
aterials sufficient to obscure or screen at least 60 percent of 

the w
all’s surface w

ithin 3 years.  For large areas, trellises should be 
used in conjunction w

ith other blank w
all treatm

ents. 
 

O
ther m

ethods such as m
urals or special building m

aterial treatm
ents 

that m
eet the intent of the standards and guidelines as approved by 

the D
irector. 

Figure E
-23.  B

lank w
all treatm

ent exam
ple. 

W
hiskey R

idge D
esign S

tandards and G
uidelines - D

R
A

FT 
45 

  

Item13-49



E
.  B

uilding D
esign 

 E.4 B
uilding M

aterials and C
olor 

Intent 
 To encourage high-quality building m

aterials that enhance the character of 
the area. 

 To discourage poor m
aterials w

ith high life-cycle costs. 

 To encourage the use of m
aterials that reduce the visual bulk of large buildings. 

 To encourage the use of m
aterials that add visual interest to the 

neighborhood. 

Standards and G
uidelines 

E.4.1 
Q

uality B
uilding M

aterials.  B
uilding exteriors should be constructed 

from
 high quality, durable m

aterials.  B
uilding m

aterials such as concrete, 
m

asonry, tile, stone, and w
ood are encouraged. 

E.4.2 
Prohibited M

aterials.  The follow
ing m

aterials are prohibited in visible 
locations unless an exception is granted by the D

irector based on the 
integration of the m

aterial into the overall design of the structure. 

a. 
P

lyw
ood siding (including T-111 or sim

ilar plyw
ood).  B

oard and 
batten is an exception. 

b. 
H

ighly tinted or m
irrored glass (except stained glass) as m

ore than 10 
percent of the building facade. 

c. 
C

orrugated fiberglass. 

d. 
C

hain link fencing (except for tem
porary purposes such as a 

construction site or as a gate for a refuse enclosure). 

e. 
C

rushed colored rock/crushed tum
bled glass. 

f. 
N

on-corrugated and highly reflective sheet m
etal. 

46 
D

R
A

FT - M
A

K
E

R
S

 architecture and urban design 
 

0754_W
hiskeyR

idge_D
G

_10-23-08 - 1/5/2009  

Item13-50



E
.  B

uilding D
esign 

 W
hiskey R

idge D
esign S

tandards and G
uidelines - D

R
A

FT 
47 

Figure E
-24. A

n exam
ple of concrete block 

effectively used w
ith E

IFS
 and m

etal aw
nings.  

Figure E
-25. This building features m

etal siding 
w

ith visible corner trim
 and concrete block closer 

to the ground level.  

E.4.5 
Special Standards for Exterior Insulation and Finish System

 (EIFS) and 
O

ther, Sim
ilar Trow

eled Finishes.  S
uch finishes m

ust be trim
m

ed in w
ood 

or m
asonry and should be sheltered from

 extrem
e w

eather by roof overhangs 
or other m

ethods and are lim
ited to no m

ore than 30 percent of the facade 
area.  W

eather exposed horizontal surfaces m
ust be avoided.  M

asonry, 
stone, or other durable perm

anent m
aterial is required for the first 2 feet 

above ground level.  

E.4.4 
Special Standards and G

uidelines for M
etal Siding.  W

hen used for w
alls 

that are visible from
 a street, public park or open space, or pedestrian route, 

buildings shall have visible corner m
oldings and trim

 and incorporate 
m

asonry, stone, or other durable perm
anent m

aterial w
ithin 2 feet of the 

ground level.  Facades w
ider than 40 feet that em

ploy m
etal siding shall 

incorporate m
ultiple colors and/or be incorporated w

ith other siding m
aterials. 

E.4.3 
Special Standards and G

uidelines for C
oncrete B

locks.  C
oncrete 

m
asonry units (C

M
U

) or cinder blocks, w
hen used for w

alls that are 
visible from

 a street, public park or open space, or pedestrian route, shall 
be architecturally treated in one or m

ore of follow
ing w

ays: 

E.4.6  Storefront C
olor Palette.  A

 storefront’s palette should be no m
ore than 

three colors; one base color, one trim
 color, and one accent color.  

E
ncourage trim

 and accent colors that contrast w
ith the base color.  

S
pecifically, darker base colors w

ith w
hite trim

 w
ork particularly w

ell.  
H

ow
ever, lighter base colors can effectively be com

bined w
ith dark trim

 
colors.  

b. 
U

se a com
bination of textured surfaces such as split face or grooved 

to create distinct banding or other design. 
c. 

U
se of other m

asonry types such as brick, glass block, or tile in 
conjunction w

ith the concrete or concrete blocks. 

e. 
U

se m
atching colored m

ortar w
here color is an elem

ent of 
architectural treatm

ent for any of the options above. 

a. 
U

se in conjunction w
ith other perm

itted exterior m
aterials. 

d. 
U

se of decorative coursing to break up blank w
all areas. 

  

Item13-51



 
 

  Section F: 
Landscaping and 
Screening 

F.1 Landscaping 
Intent 

 To enhance the character of the neighborhood. 

 To screen visual im
pacts of parking lots from

 streets. 

 To encourage the use of attractive and drought tolerant plant m
aterials 

native to the coastal regions of the P
acific N

orthw
est. 

 To encourage attractive landscaping that reinforces the architectural and site 
planning concepts in response to site conditions and contexts. 

 To prom
ote tree retention and the protection of existing native vegetation. 

Standards and G
uidelines 

F.1.1 
Parking Lots Located A

djacent to Public Streets and M
ajor Internal 

R
oadw

ays.  These lots shall be partially screened w
ith landscaping 

planting strips (per S
tandard F.1.4 below

) at the follow
ing w

idths: 

a. 
30 feet for C

om
m

unity B
usiness-zoned properties along arterials. 

b. 
20 feet for all other parking lot associated w

ith nonresidential uses. 

c. 
10 feet for residential properties. 

The D
irector m

ay approve and condition reduced planter w
idths provided 

the design m
eets the intent of the standards and guidelines.  For 

exam
ple, reduced w

idths m
ay be allow

ed provided the landscaped area 
is supplem

ented w
ith architectural features that help to define the street 

edge and m
aintain visual continuity along the street.  E

xam
ples could 

include a decorative low
 w

all m
ade of stone or m

asonry that is used in 
conjunction w

ith lanscaping, and/or use of a landscaped trellis or 
architectural colum

ns.  For each m
ethod, it is im

portant to m
aintain 

visibility at eye level (betw
een 3 and 8 feet above the ground) betw

een 
the street into the parking lot for safety. 

Figures F-1 and F-2.  Landscape design and 
m

aterials add color and identity to these 
developm

ents. 

48 
D

R
A

FT - M
A

K
E

R
S

 architecture and urban design 
 

0754_W
hiskeyR

idge_D
G

_10-23-08 - 1/5/2009  

Item13-52



F.  Landscaping and S
creening 

 F.1.2 
Internal Parking Lot Landscaping.  Internal parking lot landscaping 
shall com

ply w
ith M

M
C

 19.16. 

F.1.3 
Foundation Planting.  A

ll street-facing elevations m
ust have landscaping 

along any exposed foundation.  The foundation landscaping m
ust m

eet 
the follow

ing standards: 

a. 
The landscaped area m

ust be at least 3 feet w
ide. 

b. 
There m

ust be at least one 3-gallon shrub for every 3 lineal feet of 
foundation. 

c. 
G

round cover plants m
ust fully cover the rem

ainder of the landscaped 
area. 

F.1.4 
A

rrangem
ent of Plants.  P

rojects are encouraged to use inform
al 

arrangem
ent of plants installed in a variety of treatm

ents that w
ill enhance 

building designs, screen unw
anted view

s, and enhance view
s and vistas.  

A
 form

al arrangem
ent m

ay be acceptable if it has enough variety in layout 
and plants.  C

ontiguous, long, unbroken, straight row
s of a single plant 

should be avoided w
here possible. 

Figure F-3.  E
xposed foundations like this 

should be landscaped w
ith shrubs and other 

plantings for screening. 

W
hiskey R

idge D
esign S

tandards and G
uidelines - D

R
A

FT 
49 

  

Item13-53



F.  Landscaping and S
creening 

 F.2 Fences and Screening Elem
ents 

Intent 
 To m

inim
ize the negative visual im

pacts of fences on the street and 
pedestrian environm

ent. 

 To screen the potential negative im
pacts of service and storage elem

ents 
(e.g., w

aste receptacles, loading docks). 

 To encourage thoughtful siting of service and storage elem
ents that balance 

the functional needs w
ith the desire to screen its negative im

pacts. 

Standards and G
uidelines 

F.2.1 
M

axim
um

 W
all H

eight A
long Public Streets or Sidew

alks. 

a. 
The m

axim
um

 height of solid (m
ore than 50%

 opaque) free-standing 
w

alls, fences, or hedges in any front yard or other location betw
een 

the street and the façade shall be 3-1/2 feet unless a taller w
all is 

required, per the D
irector, to m

itigate significant noise and traffic 
im

pacts. 

Figure F-4.  Trash receptacle screening 
exam

ple. 

b. 
The m

axim
um

 height of any decorative w
all or fence w

hich allow
s 

visibility (no m
ore than 50%

 opaque), such as a w
rought iron or split 

rail fences, shall be 6 feet.  S
uch fences shall be set back from

 the 
sidew

alk at least 3 feet to allow
 for landscaping elem

ents to soften the 
view

 of the fence. 

c. 
In developm

ent configurations w
here side yards abut a street, fences 

taller than 3-1/2 feet shall be setback at least 5 feet from
 the sidew

alk 
to allow

 for landscaping to soften the view
 of the fence.  P

rovisions for 
long term

 m
aintenance of this landscaping shall be addressed on the 

plat. 

F.2.2 
Prohibited Fence M

aterials.  Barbed w
ire, razor w

ire, electric and other 
dangerous fences are prohibited.  

Figure F-5.  Locate service elem
ents to m

inim
ize 

im
pacts on the pedestrian environm

ent. 

50 
D

R
A

FT - M
A

K
E

R
S

 architecture and urban design 
 

0754_W
hiskeyR

idge_D
G

_10-23-08 - 1/5/2009  

Item13-54



F.  Landscaping and S
creening 

 F.2.3 
Prohibited D

evelopm
ent/Fence C

onfigurations.  D
evelopm

ents shall 
avoid configurations that have uses that back up against a street.  W

here 
unavoidable, fences betw

een a street and any use shall be lim
ited to 3-

1/2 feet in height.  D
evelopm

ents adjacent to S
R

 9 are exem
pt from

 this 
requirem

ent. 

F.2.4 
Service Elem

ent Location and D
esign. A

ll developm
ents shall provide 

a designated spot for service elem
ents (refuse and disposal).  S

uch elem
ents 

shall m
eet the follow

ing requirem
ents: 

a. 
S

ervice elem
ents shall be located to m

inim
ize the negative visual, 

noise, odor, and physical im
pacts to the street environm

ent, adjacent 
(on and off-site) residents or other uses, and pedestrian areas. 

Figure F-6.  E
xposed utility m

eters like this w
ill 

not be allow
ed. 

c. 
The designated spot for service elem

ents shall be paved w
ith 

concrete. 

d. 
A

ppropriate enclosure of the com
m

on trash and recycling elem
ents 

shall be required, as determ
ined by the D

irector.  R
equirem

ents and 
considerations: 

(1) A
 6-foot fence constructed of concrete block or brick enclosing rrash and 

recycling receptacles is required.  C
oordination w

ith the current franchise 
hauler is required.  The sides and rear of the enclosure m

ust be 
screened w

ith Type A
, B

, C
, or D

 Landscaping (as defined in S
ection 

16.80.050) at least 5 feet deep in visible locations as determ
ined by the 

D
irector to soften the view

s of the screening elem
ent and add visual 

interest. 

(2) P
roxim

ity to adjacent residential units w
ill be a key factor in determ

ining 
appropriate service elem

ent treatm
ent. 

Figure F-7.  Landscaping helps to m
inim

ize the 
negative visual im

pacts of utility m
eters. 

(3) P
referably, service enclosures are integrated into the building itself. 

F.2.5 
U

tility M
eters, Electrical C

onduit, and O
ther Service U

tility 
A

pparatus.  These elem
ents shall be located and/or designed to 

m
inim

ize their visibility to the public.  If such elem
ents are m

ounted in a 
location visible from

 the street, pedestrian pathw
ay, com

m
on open space, 

W
hiskey R

idge D
esign S

tandards and G
uidelines - D

R
A

FT 
51 

  

Item13-55



F.  Landscaping and S
creening 

 

52 
D

R
A

FT - M
A

K
E

R
S

 architecture and urban design 
 

0754_W
hiskeyR

idge_D
G

_10-23-08 - 1/5/2009  

or shared auto courtyards, they shall be screened w
ith vegetation or by 

architectural features. 

F.2.6 
R

ooftop M
echanical Equipm

ent.  A
ll rooftop m

echanical equipm
ent 

shall be organized, proportioned, detailed, screened, landscaped (w
ith 

decks or terraces) and/or colored to be an integral elem
ent of the building 

and m
inim

ize visual im
pacts from

 the ground level of adjacent streets and 
properties.  For exam

ple, screening features should utilize sim
ilar building 

m
aterials and form

s to blend w
ith the architectural character of the 

building. 

Item13-56



    Section G
:  Signage 

G
.1 Sign Standards and guidelines 

Intent 
 To encourage signage that is both clear and of appropriate scale for the 

project. 

 To enhance the visual qualities of signage through the use of com
plem

entary 
sizes, shapes, colors, and m

ethods of illum
ination. 

 To encourage quality signage that contributes to the character of the area. 

Standards and G
uidelines 

N
O

TE
:  The follow

ing standards shall supersede the requirem
ents of M

M
C

 
19.20.   

G
.1.1 

Illum
ination Standards. 

a. 
B

ack-lit signs are prohibited. E
xception: S

igns w
ith individual backlit 

letters are acceptable for businesses in the C
om

m
unity B

usiness 
zone, except w

here the sign is visible from
 87

th A
venue N

E
. 

b. 
N

eon signs are perm
itted on C

om
m

unity B
usiness zoned properties, 

except w
here the sign is visible from

 87
th A

venue N
E

.  For m
ulti-

tenant developm
ents, neon signs should be used sparingly. 

c. 
E

xternal sign lighting is perm
itted as long as light doesn’t create a 

glare problem
 and doesn’t project tow

ards the sky. 

G
.1.2 

M
onum

ent Sign Standards.  M
onum

ent signs shall conform
 to the 

requirem
ents of Table G

-1 on the follow
ing page.  (W

here a sm
all letter 

appears in a caption in the chart, refer to the corresponding “N
otes” 

below
.) 

 Section G
: 

Signage 

Figure G
-1.  B

ack-lit signs like this are 
prohibited. 

Figure G
-2.  S

igns w
ith individual back-lit letters 

like this are perm
itted, except w

here visible from
 

87
th A

venue N
E

. 

W
hiskey R

idge D
esign S

tandards and G
uidelines - D

R
A

FT 
53 

Item13-57



G
.  S

ignage 
 Table G

-1.  C
om

m
ercial U

se M
onum

ent Sign Standards 

R
equirem

ents
a, b 

Single and  
M

ulti-Tenant 
D

evelopm
ents 

(less than 25,000 sf 
floor area) 

Single and  
M

ulti-Tenant 
D

evelopm
ents 

(25,000-50,000 sf 
floor area) 

Single and  
M

ulti-Tenant 
D

evelopm
ents 

(m
ore than 50,000 sf 

floor area) 

H
eight Lim

it  
42’’ 

6’ 
6’ c 

M
axim

um
 S

ize Lim
it d 

20sf 
30sf 

40sf 

M
inim

um
 S

etback 
5’ 

5’ 
5’ 

Landscaping
e 

1 sf of landscaping 
per1 sf of sign 

face 

1 sf of landscaping 
per1 sf of sign 

face 

1 sf of landscaping 
per1 sf of sign 

face 

M
inim

um
 S

eparation
f 

150’ 
150’ 

150’ 

N
otes: 

a. 
A

 m
inim

um
 lettering height of four inches is recom

m
ended for readability. 

b. 
M

onum
ent signs for individual businesses should include the street address num

ber w
ith six-

inch m
inim

um
 lettering that is clearly readable from

 the street. 
c. 

M
onum

ent signs up to 8 feet in height are acceptable in the C
om

m
unity B

usiness zone, except 
for any signs fronting on 87

th A
venue N

E
. 

d. 
S

ize lim
it per sign face, up to tw

o faces. 
e. 

Landscaping includes a decorative com
bination of ground cover and shrubs to provide 

seasonal interest in the area surrounding the sign. Landscaping shall be w
ell m

aintained at all 
tim

es of the year.  The D
irector m

ay reduce the landscaping requirem
ent w

here the signage 
incorporates stone, brick, or other decorative m

aterials.   
f. 

A
n individual building, developm

ent, or com
plex m

ay not display m
ore than one m

onum
ent sign 

on each street frontage.  H
ow

ever, additional m
onum

ent signs can be used on the site as long 
as they advertise a different business onsite and can be placed at least 150 feet from

 the first 
sign along applicable street frontages. 

Figure G
-3.  M

onum
ent sign standards. 

54 
D

R
A

FT - M
A

K
E

R
S

 architecture and urban design 
 

0754_W
hiskeyR

idge_D
G

_10-23-08 - 1/5/2009  

Item13-58



G
.  S

ignage 
 G

.1.3 
W

all Sign Standards.  S
pecific w

all sign standards: 

a. 
Tenants are allow

ed a m
axim

um
 of one w

all sign per facade that 
contains a public entry (open during all business hours), up to a 
m

axim
um

 of tw
o facades.  H

ow
ever, businesses m

ay include 
additional sm

aller signs describing the types of products and/or 
services that the business offers, provided the sign areas collectively 
com

ply w
ith m

axim
um

 size requirem
ents. 

b. 
M

axim
um

 size – all individual retailers:  
 S

ign area shall not exceed 1.5 square feet for each lineal foot of the 
facade (the facade facing the street or as identified by the D

irector).  
S

igns w
ithout internal lighting m

ay contain a sign area of up to 2 square 
feet for each lineal foot of the facade.   

 S
ignage not to exceed 2/3 of overall storefront dim

ension. 
 S

tacked signage is perm
itted. 

 S
ignage not to encroach 3 feet of edge of tenant frontage. 

c. 
M

axim
um

 size – individual retailer 4,000 square feet or sm
aller:   

 M
axim

um
 letter and logo height: 24 inches. 

 M
axim

um
 area: 32 square feet 

d. 
M

axim
um

 size – individual retailer larger than 4,000 square feet, but 
less than 12,000 square feet:   

 M
axim

um
 letter and logo height: 48 inches. 

 M
axim

um
 area: 100 square feet 

e. 
M

axim
um

 size – individual retailer 12,000 square feet but less than 
80,000 square feet:   

 M
axim

um
 letter and logo height: 70 inches. 

 M
axim

um
 area: 200 square feet 

f. 
M

axim
um

 size – individual retailer 80,000 square feet or larger:   
 M

axim
um

 letter height: 8 feet. 
 M

axim
um

 logo height: 10 feet. 
 M

axim
um

 area: 300 square feet 
Figure G

-4.  A
cceptable w

all signs. 

W
hiskey R

idge D
esign S

tandards and G
uidelines - D

R
A

FT 
55 

  

Item13-59



G
.  S

ignage 
 

g. 
M

axim
um

 size – building or center nam
e:  A

 w
all sign up to 100 

square feet or 1 square foot for each lineal foot of the facade to 
identify the nam

e of the building or shopping center. 

h. 
M

axim
um

 size – joint business directory:  A
 w

all sign up to 50 square 
feet for joint business directory signs identifying the occupants of a 
com

m
ercial building and located next to the entrance.  

i. 
M

axim
um

 height:  W
all signs m

ay not extend above the building 
parapet, soffit, the eave line or the roof of the building. 

j. 
M

ounting:  B
uilding signs should be m

ounted plum
b w

ith the building, 
w

ith a m
axim

um
 protrusion of 1-foot unless the sign incorporates 

sculptural elem
ents or architectural devices.  The sign fram

e shall be 
concealed or integrated into the building’s architectural character in 
term

s of form
, color, and m

aterials.   

k. 
A

ll w
all signs m

ust be in proportion to the size and design of the 
facade. 

l. 
W

all signs shall not cover w
indow

s, building trim
, or ornam

entation. 

m
. If applicant dem

onstrates to the satisfaction of the D
irector that a w

all 
sign is creative, artistic and an integral part of the architecture, the 
D

irector m
ay w

aive the above restrictions. 

Figure G
-5.  E

xam
ples of acceptable signage for 

large retailers. 

56 
D

R
A

FT - M
A

K
E

R
S

 architecture and urban design 
 

0754_W
hiskeyR

idge_D
G

_10-23-08 - 1/5/2009  

Item13-60



G
.  S

ignage 
 G

.1.4 
Projecting Signs.  P

rojecting signs m
eeting the follow

ing conditions are 
allow

ed for com
m

ercial uses adjacent to and facing a public street. 

a. 
C

learance:  S
hall clear sidew

alk by 8 feet. 

b. 
P

rojection:  S
hall not project m

ore than 5 feet from
 the building 

facade, unless the sign is a part of a perm
anent m

arquee or 
aw

ning over the sidew
alk.  V

ertically oriented signs shall not 
project m

ore than 3 feet from
 the building facade. 

c. 
S

ize: S
hall not exceed an area of 2 square feet per each 10 lineal 

feet of applicable building frontage. 

d. 
H

eight:  S
hall not extend above the building parapet, soffit, the 

eave line or the roof of the building, except for theaters.   
Figure G

-6.  A
cceptable projecting sign. 

G
.1.5 

M
arquee or A

w
ning Signs.  M

arquee or aw
ning signs m

ay be used in 
place of perm

itted w
all signs, provided they m

eet the follow
ing conditions: 

a. 
M

axim
um

 size.  S
igns shall not exceed 2 feet in height and extend 

no m
ore than 2/3 of the w

idth of the applicable storefront or 
aw

ning.   

b. 
Location. M

arquee signs m
ay be placed on the front, above, or 

below
 the m

arquee/canopy.   
Figure G

-7.  A
cceptable aw

ning signs. 

c. 
C

learance.  S
igns shall be placed a m

inim
um

 of 8 feet above the 
sidew

alk or w
alkw

ay.  

W
hiskey R

idge D
esign S

tandards and G
uidelines - D

R
A

FT 
57 

  

Item13-61



G
.  S

ignage 
 G

.1.6 
B

lade/B
racket Signs.  B

lade/bracket signs m
eeting the follow

ing 
conditions are allow

ed for com
m

ercial uses: 

a. 
P

rojection:  B
lade signs m

ay project up to 3 feet.  B
racket signs shall 

have 1-foot m
inim

um
 betw

een the sign and the outer edge of the 
m

arquee, aw
ning, or canopy and betw

een the sign and the building 
facade. 

b. 
C

learance:  B
lade/bracket signs shall m

aintain a m
inim

um
 clearance 

of 8 feet betw
een the w

alkw
ay and the bottom

 of the sign. 

c. 
D

im
ensions:  B

lade signs shall not exceed 6 square feet in area.  
B

racket signs shall not exceed 2 feet in height. 
Figure G

-8.  B
lade and bracket sign exam

ples. 

d. 
M

ounting:  B
lade signs m

ust avoid covering or m
odifying w

indow
s or 

other architectural feature. 

G
.1.7 

W
indow

 Signs.  W
indow

 signs m
eeting the follow

ing conditions are 
allow

ed for com
m

ercial uses: 

a. 
M

axim
um

 size:  P
erm

anent and tem
porary w

indow
 signs are lim

ited to 
a m

axim
um

 of 25%
 of the w

indow
 area.  E

very effort should be m
ade 

to integrate w
indow

 signs w
ith w

indow
 display. 

b. 
M

aterials:  W
indow

 signs constructed of neon, stained glass, gold 
leaf, cut vinyl, and etched glass are allow

ed.  P
ainted signs shall 

display the highest level of quality and perm
anence as determ

ined by 
the D

irector. 

c. 
A

n internally lit neon or stained glass w
indow

 sign is allow
ed. 

Figure G
-9.  W

indow
 sign standards. 

58 
D

R
A

FT - M
A

K
E

R
S

 architecture and urban design 
 

0754_W
hiskeyR

idge_D
G

_10-23-08 - 1/5/2009  

Item13-62



G
.  S

ignage 
 W

hiskey R
idge D

esign S
tandards and G

uidelines - D
R

A
FT 

59 

Figure G
-10.  A

-fram
e sign exam

ple. 

f. 
C

hangeable letter signage (perm
anent and tem

porary), except for 
theaters and other uses designed for public assem

bly. 

G
.1.8 

A
-Fram

e Signs.  A
-fram

e signs m
eeting the follow

ing conditions are 
allow

ed for com
m

ercial uses: 

a. 
S

igns m
ust be w

ithin 12 feet of the applicable building entrance. 

d.  A
-fram

e signs shall be rem
oved during non-business hours. 

c. 
E

ach business shall not have m
ore than one A

-fram
e sign. 

b. 
S

igns m
ust be located to m

aintain at least 8 feet of horizontal 
clearance on the sidew

alk for pedestrian m
ovem

ent.  

e. 
The area of an A

-fram
e sign shall not exceed 10 square feet.  

d. 
S

igns em
ploying exposed electrical conduits. 

c. 
S

igns em
ploying m

oving or flashing lights. 

G
.1.9 

Prohibited Signs.  P
rohibited signs include:  

e. 
V

isible ballast boxes or other equipm
ent. 

b. 
S

igns em
ploying video footage  

g. 
R

oof-m
ounted signs. 

a. 
P

ole-m
ounted signs. 

 

    

Item13-63



 

D
efinitions 

U
ndefined W

ords and P
hrases 

The definition of any w
ord or phrase not listed in the definitions w

hich is in 
question w

hen adm
inistering this title shall be defined by the D

irector from
 one of 

the follow
ing sources.  The sources shall be utilized by finding the desired 

definition from
 source num

ber one, but if it is not available there, then source 
num

ber tw
o m

ay be used and so on.  The sources are as follow
s: 

A
. 

A
ny C

ity of M
arysville resolution, ordinance, code, or regulation. 

B
. 

A
ny statute or regulation of the S

tate of W
ashington. 

C
. Legal definitions from

 W
ashington com

m
on law

 or a law
 dictionary. 

D
. The com

m
on dictionary. 

E
. 

A
 P

lanners D
ictionary published by the A

m
erican P

lanning A
ssociation.  

D
efined Term

s 
A

-fram
e sign.  A

 portable sign capable of standing w
ithout support or 

attachm
ent. 

A
rticulation.  A

rticulation is the giving of em
phasis to architectural elem

ents (like 
w

indow
s, balconies, entries, etc.) that create a com

plem
entary pattern or rhythm

 
dividing large buildings into sm

aller identifiable pieces. 

A
rtw

ork.  A
 device, elem

ent, or feature w
hose prim

ary purpose is to express, 
enhance, or illustrate aesthetic quality, feeling, physical entity, idea, local 
condition, historical or m

ythical happening, or cultural or social value.  E
xam

ples 

60 
D

R
A

FT - M
A

K
E

R
S

 architecture and urban design 
 

0754_W
hiskeyR

idge_D
G

_10-23-08 - 1/5/2009  

Item13-64



D
efinitions 

 of artw
ork include sculpture, bas-relief sculpture, m

ural, or unique specially 
crafted lighting, furniture, pavem

ent, landscaping, or architectural treatm
ent that 

is intended prim
arily, but not necessarily exclusively, for aesthetic purpose.  

S
igns, upon approval by the D

irector, m
ay be considered artw

ork provided they 
exhibit an exceptionally high level of craftsm

anship, special m
aterial, or 

construction, and include decorative devices or design elem
ents that are not 

necessary to convey inform
ation about the business or product.  S

igns that are 
prim

arily nam
es or logos are not considered artw

ork. 

A
w

ning sign.  A
 sign incorporated into or attached to an aw

ning. 

B
alcony.  A

n outdoor space built as an above-ground platform
 projecting from

 
the w

all of a building and enclosed by a parapet or railing. 

B
elt course.  A

 horizontal band of m
asonry extending horizontally across the 

facade of a building. 

B
lade/bracket sign.  A

 sm
all, pedestrian-oriented sign that projects 

perpendicular from
 a structure (blade sign) or is hung beneath a aw

ning, canopy, 
or m

arquee (bracket sign). 

B
lank w

alls.  A
 w

all (including building facades and other exterior building w
alls 

and retaining w
alls) is considered a blank w

all if: 

a. 
A

 ground floor w
all or portion of a ground floor w

all over 4 feet in height 
has a horizontal length greater than 15 feet and does not include a 
transparent w

indow
 or door; or 

b. 
A

ny portion of a ground floor w
all having a surface area of 400 square 

feet or greater does not include a transparent w
indow

 or door. 

C
ourtyard.  A

 landscaped space enclosed on at least three sides by a single 
structure. 

W
hiskey R

idge D
esign S

tandards and G
uidelines - D

R
A

FT 
61 

  

Item13-65



D
efinitions 

 D
eck.  A

 roofless outdoor space built as an above-ground platform
 projecting 

from
 the w

all of a building and connected to the ground by structural supports. 

D
irector.  The C

om
m

unity D
evelopm

ent D
irector or designee.   

Facade.  The entire building front or street w
all face of a building extending from

 
the grade of the building to the top of the parapet or eaves and the entire w

idth of 
the building elevation. 

Fenestration.  The design, proportioning, and disposition of w
indow

s and other 
exterior openings of a building. 

Franchise and corporate architecture.  Franchise architecture is a building 
design that is tradem

arked, branded, or easily identified w
ith a particular chain or 

corporation and is ubiquitous in nature.  S
om

e typical issues and negative 
im

pacts often associated w
ith national chain or com

m
ercial franchise designs 

include: 

a. 
Large logos and/or colors used over large expanses of a building; 

b. 
B

randed buildings are difficult to reuse if vacated by the prim
ary business 

prom
oting vacancies and blight; and 

c. 
B

uildings lack architectural elem
ents and design consistent w

ith the local 
com

m
unity’s architectural com

position, character, vernacular, and historic 
context. 

Frontage.  A
s used in the code, frontage refers to the length of a property line 

along a street. 

H
um

an scale.  The perceived size of a building relative to a hum
an being. 

M
arquee.  A

 perm
anent structure attached to, supported by, and projecting from

 
a building and providing protection from

 the w
eather elem

ents, but w
hich does 

not include a projecting roof.  For purposes of these standards, a free-standing, 
perm

anent, roof-like structure providing protection from
 the elem

ents, such as a 

62 
D

R
A

FT - M
A

K
E

R
S

 architecture and urban design 
 

0754_W
hiskeyR

idge_D
G

_10-23-08 - 1/5/2009  

Item13-66



D
efinitions 

 W
hiskey R

idge D
esign S

tandards and G
uidelines - D

R
A

FT 
63 

  service station gas pum
p island, shall also be considered a m

arquee.  The 
definition also includes an aw

ning and a canopy. 

M
arquee sign.  A

 sign incorporated into or attached to a m
arquee. 

M
odulation.  A

 stepping back or projecting forw
ard of portions of a building 

facade w
ithin specified intervals of building w

idth and depth, as a m
eans of 

lessening the apparent bulk of a structure’s continuous exterior w
alls. 

Pedestrian-oriented facades.  S
ee definition in S

tandard B
.1.2. 

Pedestrian-oriented space.  S
ee definition in S

tandard B
.3.2a. 

Pier.  A
ny of various vertical supporting structures, especially:  

a. 
A

 pillar, generally rectangular in cross section, supporting an arch or roof. 

b. 
The portion of a w

all betw
een w

indow
s, doors, or other openings. 

c. 
A

 reinforcing structure that projects from
 a w

all; a buttress. 

Projecting sign.  A
 sign attached to a building face and projecting aw

ay from
 

that w
all m

ore than 12 inches. 

Storefront.  The front side of a store facing the street and including w
indow

s. 

W
all sign.  A

 sign m
ounted flat against the w

all of a building. 
 

Item13-67



 C
ity of M

arysville 

East Sunnyside/W
hiskey R

idge  
Streetscape D

esign Standards and 
G

uidelines 

      

 

Item13-68



 
 

W
hiskey R

idge  

C
ontents 
 35

th S
treet N

E
 (S

R
 92 E

xtension) 

 40
th S

treet N
E

 

 44
th S

treet N
E

 

 83
rd A

venue N
E

 

 D
ensm

ore R
oad 

 87
th A

venue N
E

  
- N

orth segm
ent 

- M
iddle segm

ent 
- S

outh segm
ent 

- R
oundabouts 

 G
atew

ay (S
R

 92 and 35
th S

t. N
E

) 

 R
oundabouts (87

th A
ve. N

E
 at 35

th S
t. N

E
 and 40

th S
t. N

E
) 

 Transit Facilities  

 S
R

 9 Fence and Landscaping D
esign O

ptions 

S
TR

E
E

TS
C

A
P

E
 D

E
S

IG
N

 S
TA

N
D

A
R

D
S

 A
N

D
 G

U
ID

E
LIN

E
S

 - D
R

A
FT 

1
 

c:\docum
ents and settings\ghirashim

a\m
y docum

ents\w
r design guidelines\102308\0754_w

hiskeyridge_streets_10-23-08.doc 

Item13-70



C
ity of M

arysville 
 35

th St (SR
 92 extension) 

This new
 street w

ill provide a very im
portant east/w

est connection for people arriving in 
M

arysville from
 S

R
 92.  The street should have a pleasing, w

elcom
ing feel w

ith trees lining 
the street and m

edian as w
ell as uniform

, seasonal landscaping.  N
o left turns w

ill be 
allow

ed on this section of roadw
ay to facilitate the m

ovem
ent of vehicles. 

Existing C
onditions: 

- This connection does not currently exist 
- The area surrounding this new

 connection is m
ostly undeveloped. 

O
bjectives: 
- P

rovide an east/w
est connection at S

R
-92 across S

R
-9 to 40

th S
t N

E
 w

ith lim
ited access 

- C
reate a landscaped boulevard that w

ill be a key entrance into M
arysville and W

hiskey R
idge 

neighborhood 
- A

lleviate congestion on S
unnyside B

oulevard 

Street D
esign R

ecom
m

endations: 
S

treet C
onfiguration:  90’ right-of-w

ay w
ith 2 travel lanes in each direction w

ith a landscaped 
m

edian in the center. 

O
n-street P

arking :  N
ot recom

m
ended because this is a principle arterial.  

Lights:  A
 com

bination of pedestrian-scaled lights and taller arterial lights spaced to com
ply w

ith C
ity 

standards.  The com
bination of lights provides safety for all applicable m

odes of transportation and 
creates a distinctive gatew

ay elem
ent that contributes to the character of the neighborhood. 

Trees:  U
niform

 street trees shall be placed in the planting strips w
ith landscaping.  Tw

o different, but 
com

plem
entary, tree species can be alternated in the planting strip to add seasonal interest.  Trees 

in the m
edian can differ from

 the trees in the planting strip, but should be com
plem

entary. 

S
idew

alk C
onfiguration :  S

tandard 6’ sidew
alk (concrete w

ith a light broom
 finish and 2’x2’ scoring 

pattern) w
ith 10’ w

ide planting strips.  This w
ide planting strip w

ith consistent street trees and 
seasonal landscaping w

ill create a form
al entry into the C

ity of M
arysville. 

S
ite A

ccess:  R
ight in/right out access w

ill be allow
ed on this roadw

ay, but left turns w
ill be prohibited 

by the m
edian. P

rim
ary access for com

m
ercial buildings w

ill be on 87
th Ave N

E
. 

2 
M

A
K

E
R

S
 architecture and urban design

  
 

Item13-71



 
 

W
hiskey R

idge  

 
 

E
xam

ple street w
ith m

edian. 

S
TR

E
E

TS
C

A
P

E
 D

E
S

IG
N

 S
TA

N
D

A
R

D
S

 A
N

D
 G

U
ID

E
LIN

E
S

 - D
R

A
FT 

3
 

c:\docum
ents and settings\ghirashim

a\m
y docum

ents\w
r design guidelines\102308\0754_w

hiskeyridge_streets_10-23-08.doc 

Item13-72



C
ity of M

arysville 
 40

th St N
E 

40th S
t N

E
 betw

een 87
th A

ve N
E

 and 83
rd A

ve N
E

 is a new
 principal arterial that finishes 

the east/w
est connection from

 S
R

 92.   

Existing C
onditions: 

- 40
th S

t currently does not provide through connections 
- The land use along 40

th S
t is prim

arily low
-density single-fam

ily residential 

O
bjectives: 
- P

rincipal arterial 
- P

rovide east/w
est connections 

D
esign R

ecom
m

endations: 
S

treet C
onfiguration:  80’ right-of-w

ay w
ith tw

o lanes in each direction w
ith landscaped 

m
edian/turn lane 

O
n-street P

arking :  N
ot recom

m
ended because this is a principle arterial. 

Lights :  A
 com

bination of pedestrian-scaled lights and taller arterial lights spaced to com
ply w

ith 
C

ity standards.  The com
bination of lights provides safety for all applicable m

odes of 
transportation and creates a distinctive gatew

ay elem
ent that contributes to the character of the 

neighborhood. 

Trees:  U
niform

 street trees shall be placed in the planting strips w
ith seasonal landscaping.  Tw

o 
different, but com

plem
entary, tree species can be alternated in the planting strip to add seasonal 

interest.  Trees in the m
edian can differ from

 the trees in the planting strip, but should be 
com

plem
entary. 

S
idew

alk C
onfiguration:  S

tandard 5’ sidew
alk w

ith 5’ planting strips.   

S
ite A

ccess :  D
ue to the configuration of properties adjacent to 40

th S
t N

E
, drivew

ay access w
ill be 

determ
ined on a case by case basis.  The drivew

ays m
ust m

eet C
ity standards for separation from

 
intersections.     

4 
M

A
K

E
R

S
 architecture and urban design

  
 

Item13-73



 
 

W
hiskey R

idge  

 

E
xam

ple streets. 

S
TR

E
E

TS
C

A
P

E
 D

E
S

IG
N

 S
TA

N
D

A
R

D
S

 A
N

D
 G

U
ID

E
LIN

E
S

 - D
R

A
FT 

5
 

c:\docum
ents and settings\ghirashim

a\m
y docum

ents\w
r design guidelines\102308\0754_w

hiskeyridge_streets_10-23-08.doc 

Item13-74



C
ity of M

arysville 
 44

th St N
E 

44th S
t N

E
 is a collector arterial w

ith a new
 section of road betw

een 87
th A

ve N
E

 and 
83

rd A
ve N

E
.     

Existing C
onditions: 

- 44
th S

t N
E

 currently ends at 83
rd A

ve N
E

 
- The land use along 44

th S
t is prim

arily low
-density single-fam

ily and m
ultifam

ily residential 

O
bjectives: 
- C

ollector arterial 
- P

rovide east/w
est connections 

D
esign R

ecom
m

endations: 
S

treet C
onfiguration:  60’ right-of-w

ay w
ith tw

o lanes in each direction  

O
n-street P

arking :  N
ot recom

m
ended because this is a principle arterial. 

Lights :  A
 com

bination of pedestrian-scaled lights and taller arterial lights spaced to com
ply 

w
ith C

ity standards.  The com
bination of lights provides safety for all applicable m

odes of 
transportation and creates a distinctive gatew

ay elem
ent that contributes to the character of 

the neighborhood. 

Trees:  U
niform

 street trees shall be placed in the planting strips w
ith seasonal landscaping.  

Tw
o different, but com

plem
entary, tree species can be alternated in the planting strip to add 

seasonal interest.  Trees in the m
edian can differ from

 the trees in the planting strip, but 
should be com

plem
entary. 

S
idew

alk C
onfiguration:  S

tandard 5’ sidew
alk w

ith 5’ planting strips.   

S
ite A

ccess :  D
ue to the configuration of properties adjacent to 40

th S
t N

E
, drivew

ay access w
ill be 

determ
ined on a case by case basis.  The drivew

ays m
ust m

eet C
ity standards for separation from

 
intersections.     

 6 
M

A
K

E
R

S
 architecture and urban design

  
 

Item13-75



 
 

W
hiskey R

idge  

S
TR

E
E

TS
C

A
P

E
 D

E
S

IG
N

 S
TA

N
D

A
R

D
S

 A
N

D
 G

U
ID

E
LIN

E
S

 - D
R

A
FT 

7
 

c:\docum
ents and settings\ghirashim

a\m
y docum

ents\w
r design guidelines\102308\0754_w

hiskeyridge_streets_10-23-08.doc 

Item13-76



C
ity of M

arysville 
 83

rd Ave N
E 

83
rd A

ve N
E

 is a m
inor arterial that is prim

arily residential.  It provides an im
portant 

north/south connection through the neighborhood, particularly for cyclists.  This street w
ill 

have a neighborhood feel w
ith street trees, a landscaped m

edian, a narrow
 right-of-w

ay, 
and bike lanes. 

Existing C
onditions: 

- M
any uses back up to 83

rd and therefore do not have a strong presence on the street 

O
bjectives: 
- C

onsolidate road intersections to ensure lim
ited access  

- P
rovide bike lanes to create an im

portant north/south bike connection 

D
esign R

ecom
m

endations: 
S

treet C
onfiguration:  70’ R

O
W

 w
ith 2 travel lanes, a m

edian/turn lane, and bike lanes in each 
direction.  The m

edian w
ill be landscaped and can act as a sw

ale/bioretention feature as w
ell. 

O
n-street P

arking :  N
ot recom

m
ended because this is a prim

ary bike route. 

Lights :  S
treet lights shall be placed to com

ply w
ith C

ity standards.  P
edestrian-scaled lighting is 

not necessary on this residential street. 

Trees:  U
niform

 street trees shall be placed along the sidew
alk.  Tw

o different, but 
com

plem
entary, tree species can be alternated to add seasonal interest.  Trees in the m

edian 
can differ from

 the trees along the sidew
alk, but should be com

plem
entary.   

S
idew

alk C
onfiguration :  S

tandard 5-6’ sidew
alk w

ith 5-6’ planting strip w
ith street trees and 

landscaping. 

S
ite A

ccess :  P
rim

ary site access for residential developm
ent w

ill be from
 83

rd A
ve N

E
.  

D
evelopm

ents shall not have m
ore than one drivew

ay and drivew
ays shall be shared w

hen 
possible. 

8 
M

A
K

E
R

S
 architecture and urban design

  
 

Item13-77



 
 

W
hiskey R

idge  

 

Street Front D
evelopm

ent: 
N

ew
 residential developm

ent fronting 83
rd A

ve N
E

 should be configured to front 
onto the street rather than be w

alled off from
 the street.  S

ince m
ultiple drivew

ays 
fronting on the street w

ill not be perm
itted, developm

ents can provide shared 
parking areas or alleys w

ith garages aw
ay from

 the street (see the im
age to the 

right as an exam
ple).   

 

R
esidential uses should front onto 83

rd A
ve N

E
, like 

in the exam
ple above. 

S
TR

E
E

TS
C

A
P

E
 D

E
S

IG
N

 S
TA

N
D

A
R

D
S

 A
N

D
 G

U
ID

E
LIN

E
S

 - D
R

A
FT 

9
 

c:\docum
ents and settings\ghirashim

a\m
y docum

ents\w
r design guidelines\102308\0754_w

hiskeyridge_streets_10-23-08.doc 

Item13-78



C
ity of M

arysville 
 D

ensm
ore R

oad 
W

ith new
 developm

ent and new
 roadw

ay im
provem

ents, D
ensm

ore R
oad m

ay not be 
necessary for local access.  This right-of-w

ay shall be used for a m
ulti-use trail.  This trail w

ill 
connect to com

m
ercial areas, to the bike lanes on 44

th S
t N

E
 (w

hich connect to the W
hiskey 

R
idge trail), and to the bike lanes on 83

rd A
ve N

E
.   

Existing C
onditions: 

- C
urrently a local access road 

O
bjectives: 
- P

rovide a north/south trail connection 
- P

rovide a bike connection to the proposed W
hiskey R

idge trail 
- D

ensm
ore R

oad w
ill not connect w

ith the new
 S

R
 92 extension road. 

D
esign R

ecom
m

endations: 
C

onfiguration:  40’ right-of-w
ay w

ith a 12’ trail, 2’ shoulders, and 12’ planting strips on both sides of 
road 

Lights :  P
edestrian scale lighting 

Trees :  A
t least tw

o row
s of trees w

ith shrubs and groundcover in the 12’ planting strip on either 
side of the bike trail.  U

se existing natural native vegetation w
here applicable/if desired.  This w

ill 
help screen the trail from

 S
R

 9 and surrounding com
m

ercial uses. 

O
ther :  A

 bike tunnel should be considered to get bikers and trail users across the S
R

 92 connector. 

10 
M

A
K

E
R

S
 architecture and urban design

  
 

Item13-79



 
 

W
hiskey R

idge  

 

Trail exam
ples. 

S
TR

E
E

TS
C

A
P

E
 D

E
S

IG
N

 S
TA

N
D

A
R

D
S

 A
N

D
 G

U
ID

E
LIN

E
S

 - D
R

A
FT 

11
 

c:\docum
ents and settings\ghirashim

a\m
y docum

ents\w
r design guidelines\102308\0754_w

hiskeyridge_streets_10-23-08.doc 

Item13-80



C
ity of M

arysville 
 87

th Ave N
E 

87
th A

ve N
E

 w
ill likely function as the central north-south spine of the W

hiskey R
idge subarea.  This road w

ill have three 
distinct sections, each serving a unique purpose.  N

orth of 40
th S

t N
E

, 87
th A

ve N
E

 w
ill be a pedestrian-oriented 

residential street.  The second section, betw
een 40

th S
t N

E
 and 35

th S
t N

E
 w

ill becom
e a key link for the east/w

est 
principle arterial connection from

 S
R

 92 to 40
th S

t N
E

.  This m
iddle section w

ill be bound by a roundabout at the 
intersection of 35

th S
t N

E
 and a roundabout at the intersection of 40

th S
t N

E
.  A

 roundabout m
idw

ay through the block is 
currently being considered to facilitate left-hand turns. The third section along 87

th, south of 35
th S

t N
E

, is a com
m

ercial 
street that prom

otes pedestrian activity and slow
er m

oving traffic.   

Existing C
onditions: 

- 87
th A

ve N
E

 dead ends at 64
th S

t N
E

 and 28
th St N

E
 

- Land use is prim
arily low

 density single fam
ily 

O
bjectives: 
- C

reate an attractive, pedestrian-friendly, and m
ixed-use com

m
unity com

m
ercial street w

ith 
buildings facing the street 

- A
llow

 residential developm
ent to help create a vibrant, pedestrian-friendly street 

- Facilitate vehicle connection from
 S

R
 92 to 40th 

D
esign R

ecom
m

endations: 
- B

uildings should orient tow
ard 87

th A
ve N

E
 

- C
reate three distinct sections of roadw

ay design, as described on the follow
ing pages. 

12 
M

A
K

E
R

S
 architecture and urban design

  
 

Item13-81



 
 

W
hiskey R

idge  

S
TR

E
E

TS
C

A
P

E
 D

E
S

IG
N

 S
TA

N
D

A
R

D
S

 A
N

D
 G

U
ID

E
LIN

E
S

 - D
R

A
FT 

13
 

c:\docum
ents and settings\ghirashim

a\m
y

 
 

W
hiskey R

idge  

S
TR

E
E

TS
C

A
P

E
 D

E
S

IG
N

 S
TA

N
D

A
R

D
S

 A
N

D
 G

U
ID

E
LIN

E
S

 - D
R

A
FT 

13
 

c:\docum
ents and settings\ghirashim

a\m
y docum

ents\w
r design guidelines\102308\0754_w

hiskeyridge_streets_10-23-08.doc 

 

Item13-82



C
ity of M

arysville 
 87

th A
venue N

E - N
orth Segm

ent (north of 40
th) 

N
orth of 40

th S
t N

E
, 87

th A
ve N

E
 w

ill be a pedestrian-oriented residential street.  It is 
designated as a collector arterial.  W

ith on-street parking, street trees and am
ple 

sidew
alks, this section of the roadw

ay w
ill help slow

 traffic and create a pleasant 
pedestrian environm

ent.  
S

treet C
onfiguration:  60’ R

O
W

 w
ith one travel lane in each direction and on-street parking. 

O
n-street P

arking :  R
ecom

m
ended w

ith curb bulbs at intersections.  O
n-street parking w

ill help 
slow

 traffic and create a neighborhood scale street, helping to distinguish this section of roadw
ay 

from
 the section to the south w

hich is a principal arterial.  O
n-street parking along a property 

frontage w
ill be credited to the off-street parking as required by M

M
C

 19.18.160. 

Lights:  A
 com

bination of pedestrian-scaled lights and taller street lights spaced to com
ply w

ith 
C

ity standards. 

Trees :  U
niform

 trees consistent w
ith other sections of 87

th A
ve N

E
.  Tw

o different, but 
com

plem
entary, tree species can be alternated to add seasonal interest. 

S
idew

alk C
onfiguration :  S

tandard 5’ sidew
alk w

ith 5’ planting strip and landscaped curb bulbs at 
intersections. 

S
ite A

ccess :  P
rim

ary access w
ill be from

 87
th A

ve N
E

.  There shall not be m
ore than one 

drivew
ay per developm

ent and drivew
ays shall be consolidated w

henever possible.  D
rivew

ays 
m

ust m
eet C

ity standards for separation from
 intersections. 

S
treetfront D

esign :  U
ses m

ust front on the street.  S
ubdivisions that back up to the street should 

be prohibited.  R
efer to the adopted design guidelines for residential subdivision and 

m
ultifam

ily uses. 
 

14 
M

A
K

E
R

S
 architecture and urban design

  
 

Item13-83



 
 

W
hiskey R

idge  

 
 

C
urb bulb exam

ple
at intersection. 

S
TR

E
E

TS
C

A
P

E
 D

E
S

IG
N

 S
TA

N
D

A
R

D
S

 A
N

D
 G

U
ID

E
LIN

E
S

 - D
R

A
FT 

15
 

c:\docum
ents and settings\ghirashim

a\m
y docum

ents\w
r design guidelines\102308\0754_w

hiskeyridge_streets_10-23-08.doc 

Item13-84



C
ity of M

arysville 
 87

th A
venue N

E – C
entral Segm

ent (betw
een 35

th and 40
th) 

This section of roadw
ay w

ill provide an im
portant link for the east/w

est connection from
 S

R
 

92 to 40
th S

t N
E

.  This section of the roadw
ay is a principal arterial and is expected to 

experience higher volum
es of through-traffic than the other sections of 87

th A
ve N

E
.  This 

area is also a key m
ixed-use area for W

hiskey R
idge so pedestrian activity is encouraged 

w
ith w

ide sidew
alks, attractive planting strips w

ith street trees, and a landscaped m
edian.  

The intersections of this section of roadw
ay at 35

th S
t N

E
 and 40

th S
t N

E
 w

ill have 
roundabouts to facilitate the m

ovem
ent of vehicles in this area.  A roundabout m

idw
ay 

through the block is currently being considered to facilitate left-hand turns. 
S

treet C
onfiguration:  80’ right-of w

ay for residential developm
ent and 86’ right-of-w

ay for 
com

m
ercial developm

ent.  E
ach scenario w

ill have tw
o lanes in each direction and a landscaped 

m
edium

.  

O
n-street P

arking:   N
ot recom

m
ended because this is a principal arterial. 

Lights:   A
 com

bination of pedestrian-scaled lights and taller arterial lights spaced to com
ply w

ith 
C

ity standards.  The com
bination of lights provides safety for all applicable m

odes of 
transportation and creates a distinctive elem

ent that contributes to the character of the 
neighborhood. 

Trees:  U
niform

 street trees shall be placed in the planting strips w
ith seasonal landscaping.  Tw

o 
different, but com

plem
entary, tree species can be alternated to add seasonal interest.  Trees in 

the m
edian can differ from

 the trees in the planting strip, but should be com
plem

entary. 

Furniture :  S
pecial elem

ents such as benches and w
aste receptacles 

S
idew

alk C
onfiguration :  5’ sidew

alks w
ith residential developm

ent and 8’ sidew
alks w

ith 
com

m
ercial developm

ent.  S
idew

alks for residential areas w
ill be standard and sidew

alks for 
com

m
ercial areas w

ill be concrete w
ith a light broom

 finish and 2’x2’ scoring pattern.  B
oth 

scenarios w
ill have 6’ planting strips. 

S
ite A

ccess :  P
rim

ary access for residential and com
m

ercial developm
ents w

ill be determ
ined on 

a case by case basis.  D
rivew

ays should be consolidated w
henever possible.  D

rivew
ays m

ust 
m

eet C
ity standards for separation from

 intersections. 

S
treetfront D

esign :  U
ses m

ust front on the street.  S
ubdivisions that back up to the street should 

be prohibited.  R
efer to the adopted design guidelines for com

m
ercial and m

ultifam
ily uses. 

16 
M

A
K

E
R

S
 architecture and urban design

  
 

Item13-85



 
 

W
hiskey R

idge  

 
 

S
treet exam

ples w
ith m

edians. 

S
TR

E
E

TS
C

A
P

E
 D

E
S

IG
N

 S
TA

N
D

A
R

D
S

 A
N

D
 G

U
ID

E
LIN

E
S

 - D
R

A
FT 

17
 

c:\docum
ents and settings\ghirashim

a\m
y docum

ents\w
r design guidelines\102308\0754_w

hiskeyridge_streets_10-23-08.doc 

Item13-86



C
ity of M

arysville 
 87

th A
venue N

E – South Segm
ent (South of 35

th) 
The third section along 87

thA
ve N

E
, south of 35

th S
t N

E
, is a com

m
ercial street that 

prom
otes pedestrian activity and slow

er m
oving traffic.  This section of roadw

ay w
ill have 

w
ide sidew

alks, attractive planting strips, and a m
edian com

bined w
ith a left hand turn lane. 

S
treet C

onfiguration:  64’ right-of-w
ay w

ith 1 travel lane in each direction and a landscaped 
m

edian/turn lane.   

O
n-street P

arking :  N
ot recom

m
ended due to anticipated volum

es of traffic and lim
ited right-of-

w
ay w

idth. 

Lights :  A
 com

bination of pedestrian-scaled lights and taller street lights spaced to com
ply w

ith 
C

ity standards. 

Trees :  U
niform

 street trees shall be placed in the planting strips w
ith seasonal landscaping.  Tw

o 
different, but com

plem
entary, tree species can be alternated to add seasonal interest.  Trees in 

the m
edian can differ from

 the trees in the planting strip, but should be com
plem

entary. 

Furniture:  S
pecial elem

ents such as benches and w
aste receptacles 

S
idew

alk C
onfiguration :  W

ide 8’ sidew
alk (concrete w

ith a light broom
 finish and 2’x 2’ scoring 

pattern) w
ith 6’ planting strip and landscaped curb bulbs at intersections.   

S
ite A

ccess :  P
rim

ary access for residential and com
m

ercial developm
ents w

ill be on 87
th A

ve 
N

E
.  D

rivew
ays should be consolidated w

henever possible.  D
rivew

ays m
ust m

eet C
ity standards 

for separation from
 intersections. 

S
treetfront D

esign :  U
ses m

ust front on the street.  R
efer to the adopted design guidelines for 

com
m

ercial and m
ultifam

ily uses. 

18 
M

A
K

E
R

S
 architecture and urban design

  
 

Item13-87



 
 

W
hiskey R

idge  

 

S
treet exam

ple 
w

ith m
edian. 

S
TR

E
E

TS
C

A
P

E
 D

E
S

IG
N

 S
TA

N
D

A
R

D
S

 A
N

D
 G

U
ID

E
LIN

E
S

 - D
R

A
FT 

19
 

c:\docum
ents and settings\ghirashim

a\m
y docum

ents\w
r design guidelines\102308\0754_w

hiskeyridge_streets_10-23-08.doc 

Item13-88



C
ity of M

arysville 
 G

atew
ay at SR

 92 and 35
th St N

E 
The entrance into the C

ity of M
arysville from

 S
R

 92 and S
R

 9 along 35th S
t N

E
 w

ill be 
celebrated by a tree lined boulevard along 35th S

t N
E

 w
ith distinctive street lights.  The 

35th S
t N

E
 entrance w

ill also have a gatew
ay located in the roundabout at the intersection 

of 87th A
ve N

E
.  The gatew

ay could include artw
ork, landscaping, and a distinctive 

gatew
ay sign.  The landscaping in the roundabout w

ill com
plem

ent the landscaping along 
35th S

t N
E

, creating a cohesive im
age.   

Existing C
onditions: 

- There is no current connection from
 S

R
 92 to continue w

est 

O
bjectives: 
- W

elcom
e people to the C

ity of M
arysville as they enter the city from

 S
R

 92 
- H

elp define the identity of the W
hiskey R

idge area 

D
esign R

ecom
m

endations: 
- Locate the gatew

ay in the roundabout at 35
th S

t N
E

 and 87
th A

ve N
E

 
- The gatew

ay could use sim
ilar design standards as those laid out for 64

th and S
R

 9 in the 
M

arysville G
atew

ay M
aster P

lan  
  E
xam

ples of 
roundabouts w

ith 
entryw

ay features. 

20 
M

A
K

E
R

S
 architecture and urban design

  
 

Item13-89



 
 

W
hiskey R

idge  

S
TR

E
E

TS
C

A
P

E
 D

E
S

IG
N

 S
TA

N
D

A
R

D
S

 A
N

D
 G

U
ID

E
LIN

E
S

 - D
R

A
FT 

21
 

c:\docum
ents and settings\ghirashim

a\m
y docum

ents\w
r design guidelines\102308\0754_w

hiskeyridge_streets_10-23-08.doc 

G
atew

ay sign exam
ples from

 the M
arysville G

atew
ay M

aster P
lan. 

Item13-90



C
ity of M

arysville 
 22 

M
A

K
E

R
S

 architecture and urban design
  

87
th Ave N

E R
oundabouts at 35

th St N
E and 40

th St N
E 

The tw
o roundabout intersections and the potential m

id-block roundabout 
along 87

th A
ve N

E
 provide a unique opportunity to help define the street and 

the neighborhood by using the interior space to show
case high quality, 

seasonal landscaping, rockery, and sculptural elem
ents.  In the design of 

the intersection roundabouts, it w
ill be im

portant to ensure that pedestrian 
m

ovem
ent is a priority and that pedestrian crossings are safe. 

  
   

E
xam

ple 
roundabouts. 

Item13-91



 
 

W
hiskey R

idge  

S
TR

E
E

TS
C

A
P

E
 D

E
S

IG
N

 S
TA

N
D

A
R

D
S

 A
N

D
 G

U
ID

E
LIN

E
S

 - D
R

A
FT 

23
 

c:\docum
ents and settings\ghirashim

a\m
y docum

ents\w
r design guidelines\102308\0754_w

hiskeyridge_streets_10-23-08.doc 

Transit Facilities 
The street design for key W

hiskey R
idge streets m

ust consider the future need 
for transit stops and facilities.  K

ey transit stop locations to be specified in 
consultation w

ith C
om

m
unity Transit along 83

rd and 87
th A

venue N
E

, 40
th 

S
treet N

E
, and S

oper H
ill R

oad w
ill require allow

ances for pads (designed to 
A

D
A

 standards) to accom
m

odate future bus shelters.  The m
inim

um
 extra 

right-of-w
ay allow

ance for a transit pad at an in-lane transit stop should be five 
feet in w

idth and about 15 feet in length, as illustrated on the diagram
 to the 

right.  This allow
ance w

ill provide sufficient space for a standard shelter w
ith 

adjacent room
 for other transit am

enities such as signs, schedules, and trash 
receptacles.   

Item13-92



C
ity of M

arysville 
 24 

M
A

K
E

R
S

 architecture and urban design
  

 SR
 9 Fence and Landscaping D

esign O
ptions 

Fences and landscaping along S
R

 9 w
ill be critical to ensure S

R
 9 is an attractive corridor.  

N
ew

 developm
ent in the W

hiskey R
idge area w

ill not front on S
R

 9, so the backs of buildings, 
parking lots, and service areas are likely to be adjacent to the roadw

ay.  It is im
portant to have 

clear design options for screening these areas to create a uniform
, attractive corridor.    

Existing C
onditions: 

- S
R

 9 currently has dense vegetation along the roadw
ay 

O
bjectives: 
- P

rom
ote an attractive corridor along S

R
 9 

- S
creen the unattractive back sides of buildings, parking lots, and service areas from

 view
 along S

R
 

9 w
ith fences and w

alls com
bined w

ith vegetation. 

D
esign R

ecom
m

endations: 
A

ll residential zoned properties adjacent to H
ighw

ay 9 shall integrate one of 
the follow

ing options along the property line abutting H
ighw

ay 9: 

I. 10’ w
ide landscape buffer w

ith fence.  The follow
ing standards apply: 

A
. 

Landscaping shall be placed betw
een the fence and S

R
 9 to form

 a 
dense screen. The follow

ing standards apply: 
1. 

P
roperty ow

ners are encouraged to retain existing native and non-
invasive vegetation to incorporate into the screen.  C

redit w
ill be 

given for existing trees and shrubs depending on their size and 
screening (w

ith regards to the am
ount of additional trees and shrubs 

that are needed).  
2. 

The landscaping plan shall be prepared by a licensed landscape 
architect or W

ashington-certified P
rofessional H

orticulturalist. 
3. 

E
vergreen trees.  A

t least one row
 of evergreen trees shall be 

planted, m
inim

um
 8 feet in height and 10 feet m

axim
um

 separation 
at tim

e of planting.  P
erm

itted evergreen tree species are those w
ith 

the ability to develop a m
inim

um
 branching w

idth of 8 feet w
ithin 5 

B
uffer options em

phasize landscaping elem
ents 

over fencing. 

Item13-93



 
 

W
hiskey R

idge  

S
TR

E
E

TS
C

A
P

E
 D

E
S

IG
N

 S
TA

N
D

A
R

D
S

 A
N

D
 G

U
ID

E
LIN

E
S

 - D
R

A
FT 

25
 

c:\docum
ents and settings\ghirashim

a\m
y docum

ents\w
r design guidelines\102308\0754_w

hiskeyridge_streets_10-23-08.doc 

years.  M
ultiple tree species shall be integrated into the buffer design to prom

ote 
long term

 health and provide visual interest. 
 D

eciduous trees.  P
rojects s

4. 
hall incorporate deciduous trees (vine m

aples are a 
s 

5. 
f landscaped st 

6. 
e 

at 24-inches on-center. 
7. 

 that are native 

8. 
ure 

desirable exam
ple) into the buffer to add seasonal variety and interest.  D

eciduou
trees shall have a caliper of at least 1 inch at the tim

e of planting. 
S

hrubs shall be planted at a rate of one shrub per 20 square feet o
area.  A

t least 50 percent of the shrubs shall be evergreen.  A
t least 25%

 of the 
shrubs should be deciduous to provide seasonal interest.  Shrubs shall be at lea
16 inches tall at planting and have a m

ature height betw
een 3 and 4 feet. 

G
round cover shall be planted and spaced to result in total coverage of th

required landscape area w
ithin three years as follow

s: 
a. 

Four inch pots at 18-inches on-center. 
b. 

O
ne-gallon or greater sized containers 

N
ew

 landscaping m
aterials shall consist of drought-tolerant species

to the coastal region of the P
acific N

orthw
est or non-invasive naturalized species 

that have adapted to the clim
atic conditions of the coastal region of the P

acific 
N

orthw
est.  

M
aintenance.  A

 2 year bond, at 140%
 of the cost of the plants and installation, 

shall be placed follow
ing the tim

e of installation and accepted by the C
ity, to ens

the plants live and are m
aintained through tw

o grow
ing seasons.  . 

Item13-94



C
ity of M

arysville 
 26 

M
A

K
E

R
S

 architecture and urban design
  

Fence option w
ith 5’ x 15’ bum

p-outs. 

a. 
A

 m
asonry colum

n/post shall be incorporated along the fence every 64’.  The colum
n 

shall be 1’ taller than the rest of the fence and a m
inim

um
 of 1’ w

ide. 
b. 

A
 5’ deep and 15’ w

ide setback shall be incorporated in the fence every 60’. 

2. 
A

ll razor w
ire, barbed w

ire, electric w
ire, or chain link fences are prohibited 

3. 
The fence shall be broken up to add variety in one of the follow

ing w
ays: 

1. 
The fence shall be 8’ high and constructed w

ith durable m
aterials. 

  
Fence option w

ith m
asonry colum

ns. 

B
. 

Fence standards: 

  

 

Item13-95



 
 

W
hiskey R

idge  

S
TR

E
E

TS
C

A
P

E
 D

E
S

IG
N

 S
TA

N
D

A
R

D
S

 A
N

D
 G

U
ID

E
LIN

E
S

 - D
R

A
FT 

27
 

c:\docum
ents and settings\ghirashim

a\m
y docum

ents\w
r design guidelines\102308\0754_w

hiskeyridge_streets_10-23-08.doc 

 II. 20’ w
ide landscaping buffer.   The follow

ing standards apply: 

A
. 

A
 dense vegetated screen shall be provided according to the follow

ing standards: 
1. 

P
roperty ow

ners are encouraged to retain existing native and non-invasive vegetation to 
incorporate into the screen.  C

redit w
ill be given for existing trees and shrubs depending 

on their the size and screening (w
ith regards to the am

ount of additional trees and shrubs 
that are needed).  

2. 
The landscaping plan shall be prepared by a licensed landscape architect or 
W

ashington-certified P
rofessional H

orticulturalist. 
3. 

A
 m

inim
um

 of one evergreen tree at least 8’ tall at the tim
e of planting for every 150 

square feet arranged in a m
anner to obstruct view

s into the property.  P
erm

itted 
evergreen tree species are those w

ith the ability to develop a m
inim

um
 branching w

idth 
of 8 feet w

ithin 5 years.  M
ultiple tree species shall be integrated into the buffer design to 

prom
ote long term

 health and provide visual interest. 
4. 

 D
eciduous trees.  P

rojects shall incorporate deciduous trees (vine m
aples are a desirable 

exam
ple) into the buffer to add seasonal variety and interest.  D

eciduous trees shall have 
a caliper of at least 1 inch at the tim

e of planting. 

20’ landscaping buffer. 

Item13-96



C
ity of M

arysville 
 28 

M
A

K
E

R
S

 architecture and urban design
  

 

 
5. 

S
hrubs shall be planted at a rate of one shrub per 20 square feet of landscaped area.  A

t 
least 50 percent of the shrubs shall be evergreen.  A

t least 25%
 of the shrubs should be 

deciduous to provide seasonal interest.  S
hrubs shall be at least 16 inches tall at planting 

and have a m
ature height betw

een 3 and 4 feet. 
6. 

G
round cover shall be planted and spaced to result in total coverage of the required 

landscape area w
ithin three years as follow

s: 
a. 

Four inch pots at 18-inches on-center. 
b. 

O
ne-gallon or greater sized containers at 24-inches on-center. 

7. 
N

ew
 landscaping m

aterials shall include drought-tolerant species native to the 
coastal region of the P

acific N
orthw

est or non-invasive drought-tolerant naturalized 
species that have adapted to the clim

atic conditions of the coastal region of the 
P

acific N
orthw

est. 
8. 

M
aintenance.  A

 2 year bond, at 140%
 of the cost of the plants and installation, shall be 

placed follow
ing the tim

e of installation and accepted by the C
ity, to ensure the plants live 

and are m
aintained through tw

o grow
ing seasons.. 

B
. 

Fences are optional, but m
ay not be placed w

ithin the landscape buffer.  

III. Exceptions.   E
xceptions to these screening standards m

ay be m
ade if the C

ity finds the 
recom

m
ended alternative m

eets long term
 screening objectives.  S

pecifically: 
A

. The developer/ow
ner m

ay m
ake arrangem

ents w
ith W

S
D

O
T to have a portion of the required 

buffer on W
S

D
O

T property (provided at least 10 feet of landscape buffer is retained on 
private property).  The ow

ner rem
ains responsible for m

aintenance and irrigation of the entire 
buffer, even portions on W

S
D

O
T property. 

B
. 

U
nder som

e circum
stances, it m

ay be desirable to leave portions of the highw
ay 

unscreened.  W
ith C

ity approval, the required trees m
ay be grouped to provide view

s of 
desired am

enities, such as parks or m
ountains. 

C
. O

ther alternative screening m
ethods w

ill be considered by the C
ity if the m

ethod provides a 
viable long term

 option to effectively screens the highw
ay from

 developm
ent and adds visual 

interest from
 the highw

ay corridor. 
 

Item13-97



Item13-98



Item13-99



Item13-100



Item13-101



Item13-102



Item13-103



Item13-104



Item13-105



Item13-106



Item13-107



Item13-108



Item13-109



 
ORDINANCE - 1 
ord.Whiskey Ridge design guidelines-dev reg 

  
 C I T Y O F   M A R Y S V I L L E 
 Marysville, Washington 
 
 ORDINANCE NO. ______ 
 
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MARYSVILLE, 

WASHINGTON, AMENDING THE CITY’S DEVELOPMENT 
REGULATIONS BY ADOPTING DESIGN STANDARDS AND 
GUIDELINES AND STREETSCAPE PLAN FOR THE EAST 
SUNNYSIDE/WHISKEY RIDGE MASTER PLAN AREA AND BY 
ADOPTING CHAPTER 19.14B MMC.  

 
  
 WHEREAS, the State Growth Management Act, Chapter 36.70A, RCW mandates that 
cities periodically review and amend development regulations, which include but are not 
limited to zoning ordinances and official controls; and 
  
 WHEREAS, RCW 36.70A.106 requires the processing of amendments to the City's 
development regulations in the same manner as the original adoption of the City's 
comprehensive plan and development regulations; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the State Growth Management Act requires notice and broad public 
participation when adopting or amending the City's comprehensive plan and development 
regulations; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City, in reviewing and amending its zoning code and development 
regulations has complied with the notice, public participation and processing requirements 
established by the Growth Management Act, as more fully described below; and 
   
 WHEREAS, in taking the actions set forth in this Ordinance, the City of Marysville has 
submitted to CTED the proposed revisions to the City's development regulations as required by 
RCW 36.70A.106; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in taking the actions set forth in this Ordinance, the City of Marysville has 
complied with the requirements of the State Environmental Policy Act, Ch.43.21C RCW, (SEPA) 
by issuing a Determination of Non-Significance on October 9, 2008 ; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City received comments on the proposed revisions to the development 
regulations, which comments the City has duly considered in adopting the needed revisions to the 
 development regulations set forth in the East Sunnyside/Whiskey Ridge design standards and 

Item13-110



 
ORDINANCE - 2 
ord.Whiskey Ridge design guidelines-dev reg 

guidelines and East Sunnyside/Whiskey Ridge Streetscape Design Plan; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Community Development staff held a public meeting to discuss the 
draft design guidelines on September 30, 2008; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held workshops on the draft design guidelines 
on June 10, October 14  and a public hearing on October 28, 2008; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council held a public meeting on January 27,  2009, at which 
further public input was allowed on the subject of the proposed design regulations 
recommended by the Planning Commission; and 
 
 WHEREAS, before adopting the needed revisions to the development regulations set forth 
in the design standards and guidelines and the streetscape design plan for the East 
Sunnyside/Whiskey Ridge subarea, the City Council has considered the public testimony, the 
report of staff, and the recommendation of the Planning Commission; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MARYSVILLE, 
WASHINGTON DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1.  Public Participation Program.   
The City of Marysville has established and implemented a public participation program for 
reviewing the proposed revisions to the City’s development regulations . The public participation 
program consisted of the meetings and hearings set forth above.  The program has provided for 
broad dissemination of proposals and alternatives, opportunity for written comments, public 
meetings after effective notice, provision for open discussion, communication programs, 
information services, and consideration of and response to public comments. Notice of the public 
meetings and hearings was given by: 
 
 (a)  mailing notices to property owners and residents; 
 

(b) publishing notices in  newspapers of general circulation in the City and region;  
 
(c) notifying public and private groups with known interest in a certain proposal or type 

of proposal being considered;  
 

(d) posting notices at City buildings and the post office; and  
 
(e) making copies of the proposals available for purchase or for review at the Community 

Development Department and  City website. 
 
 Section 2.  Review and Identification of Needed Revisions to the Comprehensive Plan and 
Development Regulations.   

Item13-111



 
ORDINANCE - 3 
ord.Whiskey Ridge design guidelines-dev reg 

The City of Marysville has conducted a thorough review of the development regulations to 
identify revisions needed in the East Sunnyside/Whiskey Ridge subarea plan to ensure 
compliance with the GMA and ensure internal consistency with policies and designations of the 
comprehensive plan. This review has been conducted by the City's Planning Commission, staff, 
and citizens and has utilized the public participation program set forth in Section 1 above. 
 
Based on this review, the City has identified needed revisions to the development regulations as 
set forth in the design standards and guidelines and streetscape design plan for the East 
Sunnyside/Whiskey Ridge subarea, which is set forth in the attached Exhibit A. 
 
 Section 3.  Adoption of Design Standards and Guidelines and Streetscape Plan for East 
Sunnyside/Whiskey Ridge Master Plan Area . 
The City Council hereby adopts the Design Standards and Guidelines and the Streetscape Plan for 
the East Sunnyside/Whiskey Ridge Master Plan Area,  as set forth in the attached Exhibit A. 
 
 Section 4 
 Title 19 of the Marysville Municipal Code is hereby amended by adopting Chapter 19.14 B 
MMC to read as follows: 

Chapter 19.14B 
DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS –  

DESIGN REQUIREMENTS FOR THE EAST SUNNYSIDE/WHISKEY RIDGE MASTER 
PLAN AREA 

 
Sections: 

19.14A.010    Purpose. 
19.14A.020    Applicability and interpretations. 

19.14A.010 Purpose. 
The purpose of this chapter is to apply the Design Standards and Guidelines in the East 

Sunnyside/Whiskey Ridge Design Standards and Guidelines and the East Sunnyside/Whiskey 
Ridge Streetscape Design Plan, as adopted by Ordinance No. ____ , as legally required standards 
for all new construction in the  East Sunnyside/Whiskey Ridge Master Plan Area (MPA). It is also 
the purpose of this chapter to: 

(1) Encourage the realization and creation of a desirable and aesthetic environment in the  East 
Sunnyside/Whiskey Ridge MPA; 

(2) Encourage and promote development which features amenities and excellence in site 
planning, streetscape, building design and contribution to community aesthetic appeal;  

(3) Encourage creative approaches to the use of land and related physical developments; 
(4) Minimize incompatible and unsightly surroundings and visual blight which prevent orderly 

community development; 
(5) Allow a mixture of complementary land uses that may include housing, retail, offices, and 

commercial services, in order to create economic and social vitality and encourage the linking of 
vehicle trips; 

Item13-112

http://codepublishing.com/wa/marysville/html/Marysville19/Marysville1914.html#19.14.010#19.14.010
http://codepublishing.com/wa/marysville/html/Marysville19/Marysville1914.html#19.14.020#19.14.020


 
ORDINANCE - 4 
ord.Whiskey Ridge design guidelines-dev reg 

(6) Develop commercial and mixed use areas that are safe, comfortable and attractive to 
pedestrians; 

(7) Support the use of streets as public places that encourage pedestrian and bicycle travel;  
(8) Reduce opportunities for crimes against persons and property; 
(9) Minimize land use conflicts and adverse impacts; 
(10) Provide roadway and pedestrian connections between residential and commercial areas; 
(11) Provide public places and open space networks to create gateways, gathering places, and 

recreational opportunities that enhance the natural and built environment.  

19.14A.020 Applicability and interpretations. 
(1) Applicability. 

(a) The Design  Guidelines set forth in the East Sunnyside/Whiskey Ridge Master Plan, 
as adopted by Ordinance No. _____, shall apply to all new construction in the  East 
Sunnyside/Whiskey Ridge MPA. 

(b) The Design Guidelines shall be legally required standards, which shall be applied by 
the city to all development approvals and permits in the  East Sunnyside/Whiskey RidgeMPA.  

(c) The following activities shall be exempt from these standards: 
(i) Construction activities which do not require a building permit;  
(ii) Interior remodels of existing structures; 
(iii) Modifications or additions to existing multifamily, commercial, industrial, 

office and public properties when the modification or addition: 
(A) Constitutes less than 10 percent of the existing horizontal square footage 

of the use or structure; and 
(B) Constitutes less than 10 percent of the existing building’s exterior facade. 

(d) These standards are intended to supplement the zoning standards in the Marysville 
Municipal Code. Where these standards and the zoning ordinance standards conflict, the city shall 
determine which regulation applies based on which is more in the public interest and more 
consistent with the comprehensive plan. 

(2) Interpreting and Applying the Design Standards. 
(a) These standards capture the community visions and values as reflected in the 

comprehensive plan’s neighborhood planning areas. The city’s community development director 
(hereinafter referred to as director) retains full authority to determine whether a proposal meets 
these standards.  

(b) Within these standards, certain words are used to indicate the relative importance and 
priority the city places upon a particular standard. 

(i) The words “shall,” “must,” and “is/are required”, or words with their equivilant 
meaning, mean that the development proposal must comply with the standard unless the director 
finds that:  

(A) The standard is not applicable in the particular instance; or  
(B) The development proposal meets the intent of the standards in some other 

manner. 
(ii) The word “should”, or words with its equivilant meaning,  mean that the 

development proposal will comply with the standard unless the director finds that: 
(A) The standard is not applicable in the particular instance; 

Item13-113



 
ORDINANCE - 5 
ord.Whiskey Ridge design guidelines-dev reg 

(B) The development proposal meets the intent of the standards in some other 
manner; or 

(C) There is convincing evidence that applying the standard would not be in 
the public interest. 

(iii) The words “is/are encouraged,” “can,” “consider,” “help,” and “allow”, or 
words with their equivilant meaning, mean that the action or characteristic is allowed and will 
usually be viewed as a positive element in the city’s review. 

(c) The project proponent may submit proposals that he/she feels meet the intent of the 
standards but not necessarily the specifics of one or more standards. In this case, the director will 
determine if the intent of the standard has been met. 
 
 Section 6.  Severability.   
If any section, sentence, clause, of phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or 
unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or unconstitutionality shall 
not affect the validity or constitutionality of any other section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this 
Ordinance. 
 
 Section 7.  Effective Date.   
This Ordinance shall take effect five days after its publication by summary. 
 
 
 PASSED by the City Council and APPROVED by the Mayor this _____ day of 
_________, 2009. 
      CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
 
 
      By____________________________ 
        DENNIS L. KENDALL, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By____________________________ 
TRACY JEFFRIES, City Clerk 
 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
By____________________________ 
  GRANT K. WEED, City Attorney 
 
 

Item13-114



 
ORDINANCE - 6 
ord.Whiskey Ridge design guidelines-dev reg 

Date of Publication: _______________ 
 
Effective Date (5 days after publication): _______________ 

Item13-115



CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 
 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  January 26, 2009 

AGENDA ITEM: 
Code Enforcement and Nuisance Regulations – Amendments to 
Chapter 4.02 and 6.24 of the Marysville Municipal Code 

AGENDA SECTION: 
Ordinances 
 

PREPARED BY: 
Gloria Hirashima, Community Development Director 
 

APPROVED BY: 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1.  Staff Report 
2. Draft Ordinance (strikeout-underline format) 
3. Ordinance (final form) 

 
 
MAYOR  CAO 

BUDGET CODE:  AMOUNT:   

DESCRIPTION: 
 
The City Council requested that staff review the existing code enforcement regulations 
and nuisance provisions to identify areas where improvements could be made to assist 
neighborhoods in property maintenance to community standards.  The proposed revisions 
relate to code enforcement process and penalties, and defined nuisance conditions.  The 
goal of the revisions is to facilitate timely resolution of complaints, and to clearly define 
what constitutes a public nuisance.   
 
The attached staff report summarizes the recommended changes.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   Authorize the Mayor to sign the proposed ordinance.   
 
COUNCIL ACTION: 
 
 
 
 

Item 16 - 1



1 
 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
80 Columbia Avenue  Marysville, WA 98270 

(360) 363-8100  (360) 651-5099 FAX 
 
 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
DATE: 12/28/08  

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Gloria Hirashima, CD Director 

RE: Revisions to Code Enforcement Procedures and Nuisance Regulations–Chapter 
4.02 and 6.24 of the Marysville Municipal Code 

 
At the direction of City Council, City staff and the City Attorney’s office have reviewed existing 
enforcement procedures and nuisance regulations to address neighborhood nuisance and 
maintenance issues that can lead to deterioration of neighborhoods and property.  Code 
enforcement procedures and controls in other jurisdictions, including Everett, Snohomish County, 
Vancouver, Snohomish and other communities were reviewed in order to identify common 
practices for procedures, definitions and code language to assist in nuisance enforcement.   
 
This report will outline the proposed revisions, purpose and intended consequences. 
 
Proposed Amendments: 
 
Chapter 4.02, Enforcement Procedures: 
This Chapter identifies enforcement purposes, definitions, complaint process, penalties and 
enforcement, and procedures.  The proposed revisions identify and add civil remedies, civil citations 
and criminal citation for violations.   
 
Generally, staff believes the existing enforcement procedures and process are effective.   The City’s 
current process enables both internally and externally initiated complaints; a notice and order 
process is followed, with appeal available through the City’s Hearing Examiner.  The majority of 
complaints and correction are addressed through voluntary compliance using the complaint and 
notice & order process.  The primary concern with existing process is timely response.  While 
voluntary compliance is generally successful, the time involved in achieving success can vary broadly 
depending on the willingness of the property owner to respond to the City’s notice.  The proposed 
revisions add a civil infraction process, penalties and criminal citation.   Chapter 4.02.040(g) adds a 
schedule of fines for common infractions that varies dependent on violation severity and 
occurrences.  Fines increase for more severe offenses and repeat violators.  This will provide greater 
certainty for enforcement personnel in outlining ramifications of noncompliance and staff believes 
this will facilitate speedier resolution for violations.  The goal of enforcement will continue to be 
voluntary compliance.  Enforcement personnel will continue to conduct investigations, make initial 
contact with property owners in an attempt to reach compliance without the assessment of fines.  In 
situations where owners will not respond or refuse to correct the violations in a timely manner, the 

12/29/2008 -1- 
 

Item 16 - 2



2 
 

civil infraction process and criminal penalties will provide another tool for compliance.  There is also 
a mechanism for mitigation of fines in 4.02.040(h).  This enables fines to be adjusted or waived in 
the event compliance is reached in accordance with scheduled corrective action. 
 
Chapter 4.02.040(7) allows the City to institute additional orders-stop work and emergency orders 
for code enforcement in certain conditions warranting an immediate cessation of work and 
correction.   
 
Chapter 6.24 MMC, Nuisances. 
 
MMC 6.24.050 addresses types of nuisance in the City of Marysville.  The current regulations are 
often vague in defining a nuisance condition.  This can prevent correction of situations where 
neighborhoods believe nuisance conditions exist, due to unclear authority of the City to act.     In 
some situations, this has or can result in deterioration of neighborhood character and property 
maintenance; or it can create uncertainty for property owners, citizen complainants and city 
personnel in determining whether corrective action is warranted.  The existing ordinance also does 
not characterize when actions are lawfully being conducted within what might be the assumed 
privacy of the owners’ and occupants’ properties.   Staff proposes clarifying many “public” nuisance 
situations as when the offense becomes viewable from a frontage street or streets.   
 
The proposed amendments increase clarity of what actions and conditions constitute a public 
nuisance.  This will increase the number of situations that will be dealt with as a nuisance condition 
in the City.  For example, the following actions are proposed to be regulated as “public nuisances” 
(for exact code language, please refer to attached ordinance – this is a general summary): 
 

• Accumulations of materials, including trash, litter, garbage, bottles, cans; any and all unused 
animal pens or cages, including insect enclosures; and any and all discarded lumber, salvaged 
materials, or other similar materials in front, side, rear yards and vacant lots, unless screened 
from public view from the adjacent frontage street or streets.   

 
• Nonoperational or unused vehicles.  Current code relies on “abandoned” vehicle language 

from state law, which frequently will not include many vehicles although in disrepair and 
nonoperational state as they are not necessarily “abandoned”.  The proposed revisions will 
enable the City to require removal of unused vehicles on private property meeting at least 
one of certain requirements, including immobile disrepair, registrations expired for greater 
than 12 months, vegetation or debris collecting underneath, or vehicles used primarily for 
storage of materials.    

 
• Failure to maintain and upkeep property.  MMC 6.24.050 (14) through (29) provide for the 

maintenance and upkeep of properties and improvements including but not limited to 
accessory buildings, unfinished or damaged structures, fences, grading, retaining walls, 
walkways, etc. will require maintenance in a safe and sanitary condition.  If structures or 
improvements are allowed to deteriorate or exhibit unsafe, unsanitary or hazardous 
conditions, the City can require action by the property owner to repair the conditions.   

 

12/29/2008 -2- 
 

Item 16 - 3



3 
 

12/29/2008 -3- 
 

• Open storage.  MMC 6.24.050 (19) defines open storage on private property as a public 
nuisance.  The section also defines what constitutes residential use, as opposed to open 
storage.   

 
• Parking of miscellaneous vehicles on front and side yards.  MMC 6.24.050 (25) through (28) 

directly addresses allowable parking of motor vehicles, RV’s, boats, trailers, truck tractors 
and commercial vehicles.  Broadly, these sections provide that motor vehicles, RV’s, boats 
and trailers must be parked on a maintained, improved all weather surface or driveway if in 
the front or side yard.  Truck tractors, semi-trailers and heavy commercial vehicles parked in 
residential areas are defined as a nuisance, unless specifically permitted and improved for 
such use. 

 
• Temporary or portable structures.  MMC 6.24.050 (29) addresses temporary or portable 

structures.  These structures, if placed within the required front yard, are required to be 
removed within seventy-two hours.   

 
Summary 
 
The proposed revisions will provide additional enforcement tools and definitions for requiring 
upkeep and maintenance of private properties within the City of Marysville.  In a review of various 
jurisdiction public nuisance regulations and enforcement procedures, these revisions represent a 
mid-level of enforcement tools and provisions.  In terms of enforcement process, the civil infraction 
process and fines should facilitate speedier resolution of cases, while retaining ability of City staff to 
work cooperatively with owners.  Some jurisdiction examples were more punitive, lacking the 
graduated fee schedule and mitigation of fines sections.  Others lacked the civil infraction ability and 
were therefore less certain and less punitive.  With respect to defined nuisances, the proposed 
revisions cover many of the common complaint areas that staff has heard over the years from 
neighborhoods, and will also clarify existing violation areas.  There were nuisance code examples 
from other jurisdictions that were more stringent, for example covering standards for compost piles 
and the stacking of firewood and others that were less specific on upkeep areas.   The proposed 
revisions to the Marysville Municipal Code offers a “basics” approach in covering areas of past 
complaints more clearly, so that tools will exist to help resolve these areas.   These provisions will 
increase property maintenance standards within the City of Marysville, resulting in increased 
situations warranting corrective action.   

Item 16 - 4



ORDINANCE Page 1 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108122908 

C I T Y   O F   M A R Y S V I L L E 
 Marysville, Washington 
 
 ORDINANCE NO. ______ 
 
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MARYSVILLE, WASHINGTON AMENDING 

THE CITY’S CODE ENFORCEMENT AND NUISANCE REGULATIONS AND 
AMENDING CHAPTERS 4.02 AND 6.24 OF THE MARYSVILLE MUNICIPAL 
CODE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is in the public interest to update the City’s code 

enforcement and nuisance regulations; 
  

 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MARYSVILLE, 
WASHINGTON DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  Chapter 4.02 MMC is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Chapter 4.02 
ENFORCEMENT PROCEDURES 
Sections:  

4.02.010 Purposes. 

4.02.020 Definitions. 

4.02.030 Citizen complaints. 

4.02.040 Penalties and enforcement. 

4.02.050 Code enforcement procedures manual. 

4.02.010 Purposes. 

The purposes of this title are:  

(1) To establish an efficient system to enforce the city of Marysville Municipal Code (MMC), 
providing for both civil remedies, civil citations and criminal citationremedies for violations;  

 

(2) To provide opportunity for a prompt hearing and decision on alleged violations of the MMC;  

DRAFT 
11/2112
/29/  
2008

Item 16 - 5

http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv04/Marysv0402.htm#4.02.010�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv04/Marysv0402.htm#4.02.020�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv04/Marysv0402.htm#4.02.030�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv04/Marysv0402.htm#4.02.040�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv04/Marysv0402.htm#4.02.050�


ORDINANCE Page 2 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108122908 

(3) To establish monetary penalties for violations of the MMC; and  

(4) To abate/bring into compliance violations of the MMC. (Ord. 2045 § 1, 1995). 

4.02.020 Definitions. 

For the purposes of this chapter, the following definitions shall apply unless the context or 
meaning clearly indicates otherwise:  

(1) “City” means the city of Marysville, Washington.  

(2) “Director” means the directors of any department of the city, or such other head of a 
department that the city council hasis authorized by ordinance to utilize the provisions of this 
title to enforce violations of the MMC and shall include any duly authorized representative of 
such director. If more than one department is authorized to act under this title, the term “director” 
shall also be understood to mean all applicable “directors.”  

(3) “Hearing examiner” means the city of Marysville hearing examiner, codified by Chapter 2.70 
MMC, or the examiner’s duly authorized representative.  

(4) “MMC” means the Marysville Municipal Code.  

(5) “Permit” means any form of certificate, approval, registration, license or other written 
permission given to any person to engage in any activity as required by law, ordinance or 
regulation. The term “permit” shall not include preliminary or final plat approval or any rezone.  

(6) “Person” as used in this title includes any natural person, organization, corporation or 
partnership and its agents, representatives or assigns.  

(7)  “Public nuisance” as used in this title is defined as a nuisance which affects equally the 
rights of an entire community or neighborhood, although the extent of the nuisance may be 
unequal. MMC 6.24.020(3) defines “nuisance.” (Ord. 2045 § 1, 1995). 

"Public nuisance"  means the following:  
    a.  a nuisance or public nuisance as defined in state statute or city ordinance, including but not 
limited to Ch. 7.48 RCW, Ch. 6.24 MMC, Ch. 6.25 MMC, and Ch. 7.04 MMC;  
    b. a nuisance at common law, either public or private;  
    c. a violation of the city’s land use, zoning, and environmental regulations (Titles 15, 18, 19, 
and 20 MMC) , construction code regulations (Title 16 MMC), water, sewer, and stormwater 
regulations (Title 14 MMC), business license regulations (Title 5 MMC), noise regulations (Ch. 
6.76 MMC), health and sanitation regulations (Title 7 MMC), fire regulations (Title 9 MMC), 
animal control regulations (Title 10 MMC), abandoned, unauthorized and junk vehicle 
regulations (Ch. 11.36 MMC), and any other violation of the Marysville Municipal Code that 
poses a threat to the public health, safety or welfare. 

Item 16 - 6

http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv02/Marysv0270.htm#2.70�


ORDINANCE Page 3 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108122908 

 
 

4.02.030 Citizen complaints. 

(1) Written Complaint/Notice to Owner. On forms provided by city departments, any aggrieved 
person may file a written complaint with the director alleging that a violation of this title or other 
titles, chapters or sections of the MMC has occurred or may occur. The citizen complaint process 
shall not apply to actions for which there are administrative and/or judicial appeals provided for 
in this title or other titles, chapters or sections of the MMC. Each complaint shall state fully the 
causes and bases for the complaint and shall be filed with the appropriate department. A copy of 
the complaint shall be promptly mailed to the property owner of the subject property via first 
class and certified (return receipt requested) mail.  

(2) Hearing Before the Hearing Examiner. Within 60 days of completing and filing the 
complaint, the complainant may request, in writing, a hearing before the hearing examiner. As 
soon as the complaint is filed, the director shall cease all administrative action and schedule a 
hearing. The date of hearing shall be not more than 90 days from the receipt of the complaint. 
The person filing the complaint shall have the burden of demonstrating that a violation has 
occurred or may occur.  

(3) Hearing Examiner’s Decision. Within 10 city working days of the conclusion of the public 
hearing, the hearing examiner shall file a written decision with the department. The hearing 
examiner’s decision shall be final with a right of appeal only to Snohomish County superior 
court as provided in subsection (4) of this section. The hearing examiner has the authority to 
award costs and expenses to the prevailing party and the city.  

(4) Appeal to Snohomish County Superior Court. Within 10 city working days of the hearing 
examiner’s written decision, a party may appeal the hearing examiner’s decision to the 
Snohomish County superior court by filing a writ of review. In the event there is no appeal to 
superior court and the hearing examiner’s decision becomes final, it shall be enforced pursuant to 
MMC 4.02.040(10). (Ord. 2045 § 1, 1995). 

4.02.040 Penalties and enforcement. 

(1) Director Authorized to Enforce Codes. The director is charged with enforcement of the 
provisions of this title and the MMC.  

(2) Violations. It shall be unlawful for any person to construct, enlarge, alter, repair, move, 
demolish, use, occupy or maintain any use or cause the same to be done in violation of any of the 
provisions of this title or other titles, chapters or sections of the MMC. Any such violation as 
determined by the director is declared to be a public nuisance and shall be corrected by any 
reasonable and lawful means as provided in this section. In the event the penalties provided in 

Item 16 - 7

http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv04/Marysv0402.htm#4.02.040�


ORDINANCE Page 4 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108122908 

this title conflict with any penalty provided in any other section, chapter or title of the Marysville 
Municipal Code, the penalty provisions of this title shall control.  

(3) Director’s Remedies. Upon finding a violation, the director may:  

 (a) Institute appropriate action or proceeding to require compliance with this title or to 
enjoin, correct or abate any acts or practices which constitute or will constitute a violation;  

 (b) Issue a temporary enforcement order, stop work order, emergency order, or 
permanent enforcement order, pursuant to subsections (7) and (8) of this section;  

 (c) Abate the violation if corrective work is not commenced or completed within the time 
specified in a permanent enforcement order;  

 (d) Suspend or revoke any approvals or permits issued pursuant to this title, Title 5 
(Business Regulations and Licenses), including without limitation §§ 5.02.140, 5.20.080, 
5.52.090; Title 6 (Peace, Morals and Safety), including without limitation Chapter 6.24, Title 7 
(Health and Sanitation), including without limitation §§ 7.04.010 – 7.04.100; Title 9 (Fire); Title 
11 (Traffic), including without limitation § 11.36.040; Title 12 (Streets and Sidewalks), 
including without limitation §§ 12.08.140, 12.12, 12.20.010, 12.24, 12.36.020 – 12.36.030, 
12.40.020 – 12.40.030; Title 14 (Water and Sewers), including without limitation §§ 14.15.170, 
14.16.100, 14.16.140, 14.17.050; Title 16 (Building), Title 18 (Planning), Title 19 (Zoning), 
Title 20 (Subdivisions);  

 (e) Assess civil penalties after notice and order set forth in subsection (8)(b)(iv) of this 
section or recovered by legal action filing in Snohomish County superior court; and/or  

 (f) File a lien against the property for costs of abatement and/or civil fines.  

 (g) Issue civil infractions: 

  1(i). Any violation of this code to which this chapter applies is deemed and 
declared to be a civil infraction unless such violation is expressly designated as another class of 
civil infraction. Each day of violation shall constitute a separate civil infraction.  
 
  2(ii). Any person found to have committed a civil infraction shall be assessed a 
monetary penalty as follows: 
   a. Basic fine of _$________+ cost penalties and assessments 
imposed by the court rules. 
   b. other: fine as set forth in the following schedule: 
    FIRST VIOLATION REPEAT VIOLATION 
            
  Code Provisions: Non- Commercial Non- Commercial
    Commercial   Commercial   

Title:  Chapter:         

Item 16 - 8

http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0502.htm#5.02.140�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0520.htm#5.20.080�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0552.htm#5.52.090�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv06/Marysv0624.htm#6.24�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv07/Marysv0704.htm#7.04.010�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv07/Marysv0704.htm#7.04.100�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv11/Marysv1136.htm#11.36.040�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1208.htm#12.08.140�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1220.htm#12.20.010�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1236.htm#12.36.020�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1236.htm#12.36.030�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1240.htm#12.40.020�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1240.htm#12.40.030�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1415.htm#14.15.170�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1416.htm#14.16.100�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1416.htm#14.16.140�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1417.htm#14.17.050�


ORDINANCE Page 5 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108122908 

4 4.02         

Enforcement Code 
Enforcement, Stop Work & Emergency 

Orders $300  $500  $600  $1,000  
5 5.02         

Business Regulations & Licenses Business licenses $150  $250  $300  $500  
6 6.24         

Penal Code Public nuisances $150  $250  $300  $500  
  6.76         
  Noise regulations $150  $250  $300  $500  
7 7.04         

Health & Sanitation Unsanitary Conditions - nuisance $150  $250  $300  $500  
  7.08         
  Garbage Collection $150  $250  $300  $500  
9 9.04         

Fire Code Fire Code $150  $250  $300  $500  
12 12.24         

Streets & Sidewalks Sidewalks dangerous conditions $150  $250  $300  $500  
  12.36         
  Vegetation $150  $250  $300  $500  
  12.40         
  Clean conditions of Public Right of Way $150  $250  $300  $500  

14 14.01         
Water & Sewer General Provisions $150  $250  $300  $500  

  14.15         
  On-site Storm Water          
  Drainage Code $150  $250  $300  $500  
  14.16         
  Public storm drainage code $150  $250  $300  $500  
  14.17         
  Private storm drainage code $150  $250  $300  $500  

16 16.04         
Building Building Code $150  $250  $300  $500  

    FIRST VIOLATION REPEAT VIOLATION 
            
  Code Provisions: Non- Commercial Non- Commercial
    Commercial   Commercial   

Title:  Chapter:         
19 19.08         

Zoning Permitted uses $150  $250  $300  $500  
  19.12         
  Development Standards         
  Density and Dimensions $150  $250  $300  $500  
  19.14         
  Development Standards -         
  Design requirements $150  $250  $300  $500  
  19.16         

Item 16 - 9



ORDINANCE Page 6 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108122908 

  Development Standards -         
  Landscaping $150  $250  $300  $500  
  19.20         
  Sign Code $150  $250  $300  $500  
  19.24         
  Critical Areas Management $250  $350  $500  $700  
  19.28         

  
Clearing, Grading, Filling & Erosion 

Control $250  $350  $500  $700  
  19.32         
  Home Occupations $150  $250  $300  $500  
  19.40         
  Development Standards -         

  Recreational vehicle parks $150  $250  $300  $500  
 
 
  (iii). Civil infractions will be administered and processed through Marysville 
Municipal Court as setforth in the Marysville Municipal Code, state law, the Washington State 
Court Rules Infraction Rules for Courts of Limited Jurisdiction IRLJ and local court rules for 
Marysville Muncipal Court.     
 
 (h) Mitigate civil fines. 
  1.         The Director may reduce or waive civil fines assessed under this Chapter, 
if the violation is corrected within the specified deadline and the correction is verified by the 
City. A reduction shall be in writing and state the date on which the violation was corrected. 
  2. For reduction or waiver of fines, the person(s) named shall have the 
burden of proof that the violation has been corrected. 
  3. Any reduction or waiver shall be based on an evaluation of individual 
circumstances, including but not limited to the severity of the violation, repetition of violations, 
protection of the public interest, and responsiveness of the person(s) responsible to correct, cure, 
abate, and/or stop the violation. 
 

(4) Violators Punishable by Criminal Fine and Imprisonment. As an alternative to any other 
remedy provided in this title or by law or other ordinance, any person willfully or knowingly 
violating any provision of this title or other titles, chapters or sections of the MMC, or 
amendments thereto, or any person aiding or abetting such violation is guilty of a misdemeanor 
and upon conviction shall be punished by a fine not to exceed $1,000 and/or imprisonment for a 
term not to exceed 90 days. Each day such violation continues may be considered a separate 
offense.  

(5) Inspections.  

 (a) Whenever the director has reasonable cause to believe that a violation has been or is 
being committed, the director or the director’s duly authorized inspector may enter any building, 

Item 16 - 10



ORDINANCE Page 7 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108122908 

structure or property at any reasonable time to inspect the use and perform any duty conferred on 
the director by this title.  

 (b) If the building, structure or property is occupied, the director shall first present 
identification credentials, state the reason for the inspection and demand entry. If consent to enter 
is not given and if: 

  (i) The director has reason to believe that the conditions create an imminent and 
irreparable hazard, then the director shall enter; or  

  (ii) The director has reason to believe that the conditions do not create an 
imminent and irreparable hazard, the director shall enter after first obtaining a civil search 
warrant.  

 (c) If the building, structure or property is not occupied, the director shall make a 
reasonable effort to locate the owner or other person(s) having control and request permission to 
enter. If the director is unable to locate the owner or person(s) having control, and if: 

  (i) The director has reason to believe that conditions therein create an immediate 
and irreparable hazard, the director shall enter; or  

  (ii) The director has reason to believe that the conditions do not create an 
imminent and irreparable hazard, the director shall enter after first obtaining a civil search 
warrant.  

(6) Violators Punishable by Civil Penalties After Administrative Notice and Order.  

 (a) Director to Determine Violation and May Provide Enforcement Order. Within 30 days 
of notice of a potential violation, the director is authorized to and shall determine whether a 
violation has occurred and, if the director determines that a violation has occurred, shall issue a 
temporary or permanent enforcement order. The director shall notify the complainant, the owner 
or operator of the source of the violation, and the person in possession of the property or the 
person causing the violation of the director’s determination in writing within three city working 
days of the determination. Service of the notice by first class and certified (return receipt 
requested) mail to the last known address of the complainant and violators shall be deemed 
effective notice (see subsection (3)(d) of this section).  

 (b) Director May Commence Administrative Notice. Additionally, whenever the director 
has reason to believe that a use or condition exists in violation of this title and that violation will 
be most promptly and equitably terminated by an administrative proceeding, the director may 
commence an administrative notice and order proceeding to cause assessment of a civil penalty, 
abatement or suspension of all activities, work or revocation of any approvals or permits issued 
pursuant to this title, Title 5 (Business Regulations and Licenses), including without limitation 
§§ 5.02.140, 5.20.080, 5.52.090; Title 6 (Peace, Morals and Safety), including without limitation 
Chapter 6.24, Title 7 (Health and Sanitation), including without limitation §§ 7.04.010 – 

Item 16 - 11

http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0502.htm#5.02.140�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0520.htm#5.20.080�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0552.htm#5.52.090�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv06/Marysv0624.htm#6.24�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv07/Marysv0704.htm#7.04.010�


ORDINANCE Page 8 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108122908 

7.04.100; Title 9 (Fire); Title 11 (Traffic), including without limitation § 11.36.040; Title 12 
(Streets and Sidewalks), including without limitation §§ 12.08.140, 12.12, 12.20.010, 12.24, 
12.36.020 – 12.36.030, 12.40.020 – 12.40.030; Title 14 (Water and Sewers), including without 
limitation §§ 14.15.170, 14.16.100, 14.16.140, 14.17.050; Title 16 (Building), Title 18 
(Planning), Title 19 (Zoning), Title 20 (Subdivisions).  

(7) Temporary Enforcement Order, Stop Work Order, and Emergency Order.  

 (a) The director may cause a temporary enforcement order, stop work order, or 
emergency order (“Order”) to be posted on the subject property or served on the property owner 
and/or persons engaged in any work or activity on the property, as provided in this sectionin 
violation of this title. 

  (i) A temporary order may be issued pursuant to and in accordance with 
subsection (6)(a) of this section. 

  (ii)  A stop work order may be issued to immediately cease specified work or 
activity, when the director finds that such work or activity is being conducted in violation of the 
MMC or in a dangerous or unsafe manner. 

  (iii) An emergency order may be issued to immediately cease and remedy 
specified work or activity, when the director finds that such work or activity is being conducted 
in a hazardous or unsafe manner that threatens the health or safety of the occupants of any 
premises or members of the public. 

  (iv) Violation of a stop work order or emergency order shall shall constitute a 
misdemeanor, punishable as provided in subsection (4) of this section. 
 

 (b) The order shall require immediate cessation of such work or activities and may 
temporarily suspend any approval or permit issued under this title, Title 5 (Business Regulations 
and Licenses), including without limitation §§ 5.02.140, 5.20.080, 5.52.090; Title 6 (Peace, 
Morals and Safety), including without limitation Chapter 6.24, Title 7 (Health and Sanitation), 
including without limitation §§ 7.04.010 – 7.04.100; Title 9 (Fire); Title 11 (Traffic), including 
without limitation § 11.36.040; Title 12 (Streets and Sidewalks), including without limitation §§ 
12.08.140, 12.12, 12.20.010, 12.24, 12.36.020 – 12.36.030, 12.40.020 – 12.40.030; Title 14 
(Water and Sewers), including without limitation §§ 14.15.170, 14.16.100, 14.16.140, 14.17.050; 
Title 16 (Building), Title 18 (Planning), Title 19 (Zoning), Title 20 (Subdivisions).  

 (c) The order may be issued without written or oral notice and shall expire by its own 
terms in 10 days unless the director extends or issues and transmits a permanent enforcement 
order pursuant to subsection (8) of this section.  

 (d) The notice and order shall contain:  

Item 16 - 12

http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv07/Marysv0704.htm#7.04.100�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv11/Marysv1136.htm#11.36.040�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1208.htm#12.08.140�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1220.htm#12.20.010�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1236.htm#12.36.020�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1236.htm#12.36.030�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1240.htm#12.40.020�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1240.htm#12.40.030�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1415.htm#14.15.170�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1416.htm#14.16.100�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1416.htm#14.16.140�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1417.htm#14.17.050�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0502.htm#5.02.140�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0520.htm#5.20.080�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0552.htm#5.52.090�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv06/Marysv0624.htm#6.24�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv07/Marysv0704.htm#7.04.010�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv07/Marysv0704.htm#7.04.100�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv11/Marysv1136.htm#11.36.040�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1208.htm#12.08.140�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1220.htm#12.20.010�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1236.htm#12.36.020�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1236.htm#12.36.030�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1240.htm#12.40.020�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1240.htm#12.40.030�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1415.htm#14.15.170�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1416.htm#14.16.100�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1416.htm#14.16.140�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1417.htm#14.17.050�


ORDINANCE Page 9 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108122908 

  (i) The street address, when available, and a legal description of the real property;  

  (ii) A statement that the director has found the person to be in violation of this 
Title and a brief and concise description of the condition found to be in violation;  

  (iii) A statement of the corrective action to be taken;  

  (iv) A statement that the order shall expire by its own terms in 10 days unless 
extended in writing or a permanent order is issued;  

  (v) A statement that the violator may be subject to a civil penalty in the amount 
set forth in subsection (3)(g) of this sectionof $100.00 for each day that the violation continues 
and, if applicable, the conditions on which assessment of such civil penalty is contingent.  

 (e) Withdrawal or Issuance of Additional Temporary Order. The director may withdraw a 
temporary order if compliance is achieved within 10 calendar days of posting or service thereof. 
If, after withdrawal, the violation is continued or repeated, the director may cause a second 
temporary order to be posted on the subject property or served on persons engaged in any work 
or activity in violation of this title. Any subsequent order involving the same violation shall be 
permanent.  

(8) Permanent Enforcement Order.  

 (a) A permanent enforcement order shall be issued by the director and become final 
within 10 calendar days, unless written appeal is received asking for a hearing before the hearing 
examiner.  

 (b) The permanent enforcement order shall contain:  

  (i) The street address and, when available, a legal description of real property;  

  (ii) A statement that the director has found the person to be in violation of this 
title and a brief and concise description of the conditions found to be in violation;  

  (iii) A statement of the corrective action required to be taken. If the director has 
determined that corrective work is required, the order shall mandate that all required permits be 
secured and the work be physically commenced and completed within such time as the director 
determines is reasonable under the circumstances, but in no event shall such time exceed 90 
days;  

  (iv) A statement that the violator may be subject to a civil penalty in the amount 
set forth in subsection (3)(g) of this sectionof $1,000 for each day that the violation continues 
and, if applicable, the conditions on which assessment of such civil penalty is contingent;  

  (v) Statements advising:  

Item 16 - 13



ORDINANCE Page 10 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108122908 

   (A) If any required work is not commenced or completed within the time 
specified, the director shall proceed to abate the violation and cause the work to be done and 
charge the costs thereof as a lien against the property and any other property owned by the 
person in violation and as a personal obligation of any person in violation; and  

   (B) If any assessed civil penalty is not paid, the director will charge the 
amount of the penalty as a lien against the property and as a joint and separate personal 
obligation of any person in violation; and  

   (C) The violator of the violator’s right to appeal and the appeal process.  

 (c) Any order issued by the director pursuant to this title shall be final unless a timely 
appeal is filed.  

 (d) Service. Service of the permanent enforcement order shall be made upon all persons 
identified in the order either personally or by mailing a copy of such order by certified mail, 
postage prepaid, return receipt requested to the last known address. If the address of any such 
person cannot reasonably be ascertained, a copy of the order shall be mailed to such person at the 
address of the location of the violation. The failure of any such person to receive such notice 
shall not affect the validity of any proceedings taken under this title. Service by certified mail in 
the manner provided in this section shall be effective on the date of postmark. The order may be, 
but is not required to be posted on the subject property.  

 (e) Supplemental Order. The director may at any time add to, rescind in part, or otherwise 
modify a permanent enforcement order.  

(9) Appeal.  

 (a) A written appeal may be filed within 10 calendar days following issuance of a 
temporary enforcement order, stop work order, emergency order, or permanent enforcement 
order.  

 (b) An appeal of a stop work order or emergency order shall not stay the requirement that 
the specified work or activity immediately cease and/or be remedied. 

 (c) The director shall prepare and transmit to the hearing examiner any appeal of a 
temporary or permanent enforcement order, and in which a hearing shall be scheduled within 60 
days of the appeal date. Cost of the appeal shall be part of the decision. The hearing examiner’s 
decision may be reviewed by an action for writ of review in the superior court of Snohomish 
County filed within 10 calendar days of the decision. If no appeal is filed in the required length 
of time, the hearing examiner’s decision shall be final.  

(10) Violation of Permanent Order. If, after any permanent order duly issued by the director or 
hearing examiner has become final, the person to whom such order is directed fails, neglects, or 

Item 16 - 14



ORDINANCE Page 11 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108122908 

refuses to obey such order, including refusal to pay a civil penalty assessed under such order, the 
director may:  

 (a) Cause such person to be prosecuted under the provisions of this title;  

 (b) Institute any appropriate action to collect a civil penalty assessed under this title;  

 (c) Abate the violation using the procedures of this title; and/or  

 (d) Pursue any other appropriate remedy at law or equity.  

(11) Revocation or Suspension of Approvals or Permits. The director may permanently revoke or 
suspend any approval or permit issued under this title, Title 5 (Business Regulations and 
Licenses), including without limitation §§ 5.02.140, 5.20.080, 5.52.090; Title 6 (Peace, Morals 
and Safety), including without limitation Chapter 6.24, Title 7 (Health and Sanitation), including 
without limitation §§ 7.04.010 – 7.04.100; Title 9 (Fire); Title 11 (Traffic), including without 
limitation § 11.36.040; Title 12 (Streets and Sidewalks), including without limitation §§ 
12.08.140, 12.12, 12.20.010, 12.24, 12.36.020 – 12.36.030, 12.40.020 – 12.40.030; Title 14 
(Water and Sewers), including without limitation §§ 14.15.170, 14.16.100, 14.16.140, 14.17.050; 
Title 16 (Building), Title 18 (Planning), Title 19 (Zoning), Title 20 (Subdivisions), for any of the 
following reasons:  

 (a) Failure of the holder to comply with the requirements of such title; or  

 (b) Failure of the holder to comply with any order issued pursuant to this title; or  

 (c) Discovery by the director that an approval or a permit was issued in error or on the 
basis of incorrect information supplied to the city.  

Such approval of permit revocation or suspension shall be carried out through the notice and 
order provisions of this section. The revocation or suspension shall be final within five working 
days of the conclusion of a hearing unless the hearing examiner renders a written decision 
modifying or denying the revocation or suspension.  

(12) Lien.  

 (a) City Has Lien. The city of Marysville shall have a lien for any civil penalty imposed 
or for the cost of any work or abatement done pursuant to this title, or both, against the real 
property on which the civil penalty was imposed or any of the work of abatement was performed 
and against any other real property owned by any person in violation. The civil penalty shall be a 
joint and several obligation of all people found to be in violation. The lien shall be subordinate to 
all existing special assessment liens previously imposed upon the same property and shall be 
superior to all other liens, except for state and county taxes, with which it shall be on a parity.  

Item 16 - 15

http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0502.htm#5.02.140�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0520.htm#5.20.080�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0552.htm#5.52.090�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv06/Marysv0624.htm#6.24�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv07/Marysv0704.htm#7.04.010�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv07/Marysv0704.htm#7.04.100�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv11/Marysv1136.htm#11.36.040�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1208.htm#12.08.140�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1220.htm#12.20.010�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1236.htm#12.36.020�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1236.htm#12.36.030�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1240.htm#12.40.020�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1240.htm#12.40.030�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1415.htm#14.15.170�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1416.htm#14.16.100�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1416.htm#14.16.140�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1417.htm#14.17.050�


ORDINANCE Page 12 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108122908 

 (b) Director’s Authority to Claim Lien. The director shall cause a claim for lien to be 
filed for record with the auditor within 90 days from the date the civil penalty is due or within 90 
days from the date of completion of the work or abatement performed by the city of Marysville 
pursuant to this title.  

 (c) Notice of Lien. The notice and order of a director pursuant to this title shall give 
notice to the owner that a lien for the civil penalty or the cost of abatement, or both, may be 
claimed by the city. Service of the notice and order shall be made upon all persons identified in 
the notice and order either personally or by mailing a copy of such notice and order by certified 
mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested.  

 (d) Contents of Lien. The claim of lien shall contain the following:  

  (i) The authority for imposing a civil penalty or proceeding to abate the violation, 
or both;  

  (ii) A brief description of the civil penalty imposed or the abatement work done, 
or both, including the violations charged and the duration thereof, the time the work was 
commenced and completed and the name of the persons or organizations performing the work;  

  (iii) A legal description of the property to be charged with the lien; 

  (iv) The name of the known or reputed owner; and  

  (v) The amount, including lawful and reasonable costs, for which the lien is 
claimed.  

 (e) Verification of Lien. The lien shall be verified by the director to the effect that the 
director believes that the claim is just.  

 (f) Filing of Lien. The lien shall be recorded with the Snohomish County auditor.  

 (g) Duration of Lien. No lien created under this title shall bind the property for a period 
longer than three years after the claim has been filed unless an action is commenced in the proper 
court within that time to enforce the lien.  

 (h) Foreclosure of Lien. The lien may be foreclosed by a civil action in Snohomish 
County superior court.  

 (i) Removal of Lien. All liens shall be removed by the city of Marysville when all 
conditions placed upon the violator(s) by a notice and order or by the hearing examiner have 
been satisfied. (Ord. 2045 § 1, 1995).  

4.02.050 Code enforcement procedures manual. 

Item 16 - 16



ORDINANCE Page 13 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108122908 

The code enforcement officer shall have the authority to adopt and adhere to a code enforcement 
procedures manual which shall be available for public inspection and copying during regular 
business hours. (Ord. 2045 § 1, 1995). 

Section 2. Chapter 6.24 MMC is hereby amended by amending MMC 6.24.050 to read as 
follows: 

6.24.050 Types of nuisances.  

It shall be a “public nuisance” within the city of Marysville and a violation of the Marysville 
Municipal Code, if any responsible person or persons shall maintain or allow to be maintained on 
real property which he or she may have charge, control or occupy, except as may be permitted by 
any other city ordinance, whether visible or not from any public street, alley or residence, any of 
the following conditions:  

(1) Every person who makes or keeps any explosive or combustible substance in the city, or 
carries it through the streets thereof, in quantity or manner prohibited by Chapter 70.74 RCW, 
and every person who, by careless, negligent or unauthorized use or management of any such 
explosive or combustible substance, injures or causes injury to the person or property of another, 
commits a public nuisance.  

(2) No person shall permit or allow outside of any dwelling, building or other structure or within 
any unoccupied or abandoned building, dwelling or other structure under his control, in a place 
accessible to children, any abandoned, unattended or discarded icebox, refrigerator or other 
container which has an airtight door or lid, snap lock or other automatic locking device which 
may not be released from the inside, without first removing said door or lid, snap lock or other 
locking device from said refrigerator, icebox or container. Every violation of this section is a 
public nuisance.  

(3) No person shall abandon or discontinue use of or permit or maintain on his premises any 
abandoned or unused well, cistern or storage tank, without first demolishing or removing from 
the city such storage tank, or securely closing and barring any entrance or trap door thereto, or 
filling any well or cistern, or capping the same with sufficient security to prevent access thereto 
by children. Any such violation is a public nuisance.  

(4) No person shall, without lawful authority from the appropriate public entity, attach any 
advertising signs, posters, or any other similar object, to any public structure, sign or traffic-
control device. Such violation constitutes a public nuisance.  

(5) No person shall attach to utility poles any of the following: advertising signs, posters, 
vending machines, or any similar object which presents a hazard to, or endangers the lives of, 
electrical workers. Any attachment to utility poles shall only be made with the permission of the 
utility company involved, and shall be placed not less than 12 feet above the surface of the 
ground. Such violations constitute a public nuisance.  

Item 16 - 17



ORDINANCE Page 14 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108122908 

(6) Accumulations of the following materials in any front yard, side yard, rear yard or vacant lot 
unless screened from public view from the adjacent frontage street or streets: Aany and all junk, 
trash, litter, garbage, boxes, bottles, cans, ; any and all unused animal pens or cages, including 
any type of insect enclosures; and any and all discarded lumber, salvaged materials, or other 
similar materials in any front yard, side yard, rear yard or vacant lot, except for such materials 
being used for an immediate construction project on said premises.  

(7) Any attractive nuisances dangerous to children including, but not limited to, abandoned, 
broken or neglected buildings, equipment, machinery, refrigerators and freezers, excavations, 
shafts, or insufficiently supported walls or fences in any front yard, side yard, rear yard or vacant 
lot.  

(8) Broken or discarded furniture, furnishings, appliances, household equipment and other 
similar items, in any front yard, side yard, rear yard or vacant lot unless screened from public 
view from the adjacent frontage street or streets.  

(9) Dead, decayed, diseased or hazardous trees or vegetation/grass clippings (except that used as 
compost for fertilizer), including that which by casual contact with the skin is dangerous to 
public health, safety and welfare, located in any front yard, side yard, rear yard or vacant lot.  

(10) Graffiti on the exterior of any building, fence, or other structure in any front yard, side yard, 
rear yard or vacant lot unless screened from public view from the adjacent frontage street or 
streets.  

(11) Nonoperational or abandoned unused vehicles or parts thereof, or other articles of personal 
property which are discarded or left in a state of partial construction or repair in any front yard, 
side yard, rear yard or vacant lot unless screened from public view from the adjacent frontage 
street or streets. The responsible person may have on his or her premises, at any one time, only 
one nonoperational or abandonedunused vehicle outside an enclosed building for a period not to 
exceed 14 days. “Nonoperational or unused vehicle” means a vehicle substantially meeting one 
of the following requirements: 

 (a) Is immobile because it either: (i) lacks an engine or other parts or equipment 
necessary to operate it safely or legally on the street; (ii) has one or more flat tires; or (iii) is 
mounted on skids or jacks; 

 (b) Displays registration tabs which have expired for more than 12 months;  

 (c) Has overgrown vegetation or garbage or debris collecting underneath; or 

 (d) Is used primarily to store items such as auto parts, yard tools, garbage, debris, 
clothing, miscellaneous household items, etc.  

Item 16 - 18



ORDINANCE Page 15 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108122908 

(12) Vegetation exceeding 12 inches in height (exclusive of plants and flowers within a flower 
bed, shrubbery and trees) located in any front yard, side yard, rear yard or vacant lot unless 
screened from public view from the adjacent frontage street or streets.  

.  

(13) Utility trailers, unmounted camper or recreation vehicles shall not be located in the front 
yard. They may be located in the driveway, parallel to the driveway, or behind the front building 
line of the property on either side of the building on a maintained surface.  

(14) Accessory structures, including detached garages, sheds, decks, patios and similar 
structures, which are not maintained structurally sound and in good repair. 

(15) Any unfinished structure, for which there has been a cessation of construction activity for 
more than two years and which is determined by the city to be in violation of the building code 
and subject to abatement by demolition or completion of the construction to meet the 
requirements of the building code.  

(16) Any catastrophic or fire damaged premises, which have not been secured from entry within 
forty-eight (48) hours and from which all debris has not been removed and properly discarded 
within ten (10) days of the fire department’ s release of the property. 

(17) Fences, walls, hedges and retaining walls that are not maintained in a structurally sound and 
sanitary condition so as to endanger the public health, safety or welfare.   

(18) Exterior properties that are not graded and maintained to prevent the erosion of soil and to 
prevent the accumulation of water on the premises.  Storm water, including discharge from 
gutters, downspouts, swimming pools, hot tubs, spas, sump pumps or similar features shall not 
discharge water off the source premise unless expressly approved by the City of Marysville.   

(19) Open storage on premises except:  

   (a) As expressly permitted in Title 19 MMC; 

   (b) Open storage does not include items customarily used in association with the permitted 
principal use of the property and suitable for outdoor use such as lawn furniture, play equipment, 
gardening equipment, and similar items; and 

  (c) Open storage does not include construction materials or seasonal materials used for 
gardening that are stored in a manner to protect their utility and prevent deterioration and are 
reasonably expected to be used at the site within six (6) months.   

  (d) Open storage does not include materials screened from public view from the adjacent 
frontage street or streets. 

Item 16 - 19



ORDINANCE Page 16 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108122908 

(20) Premises containing rodent, insect and vermin harborage and/or infestation as determined 
by the county health officer.  Infestations shall be promptly exterminated by methods that ensure 
the public’s health, safety and welfare.  Owners shall take preventive measures to protect 
buildings and premises from future infestations. 

(21)  Sidewalks, walkways, stairs, driveways, parking spaces and similar areas on private 
property containing hazardous conditions or violations of approved site or plot plans and barrier 
free accessible parking requirements.   

(22)  Swimming pools and swimming pool barriers that are not maintained in a clean, sanitary 
condition, and in good repair. 

(23)  Any hazard tree that has not been removed from property or that is maintained in such a 
way that it threatens persons or property. 

(24) Vacant structures and premises thereof or vacant land, which are not maintained in a clean, 
safe, secure and sanitary condition so as not to cause a blighting problem or adversely affect the 
public health.  

(25)  Motor vehicles that are not parked on improved all weather surfaces and motor vehicles, 
other than those in subsection (b) of this section, that are parked in the setbacks except in front 
yard or side street setbacks when in a driveway that provides access to an approved parking 
location and in conformance with Title 19 MMC.  Parked motor vehicles shall not block access 
to required parking. 

(26) Recreational vehicles, boats, and trailers that are not parked, kept or stored on an improved 
all weather surface or that are parked, kept or stored in required front yard setbacks, except for a 
driveway.  Recreational vehicle, boat, or trailer parking in the side or rear yard setbacks is 
allowed so long as emergency responders may access all sides of a structure.  Access to parking 
shall be via an approved driveway approach and an improved all weather surface.  

(27) Truck tractors, as defined in RCW 46.04.655, and semi-trailers, as defined in RCW 
46.04.530, that are parked, kept or stored in residentially zoned areas, on residential property in 
other zones or on sites that have not been permitted, improved and approved for such use.  This 
requirement shall not apply to the parking, keeping or storage of agricultural machinery on 
residential premises to be used for agricultural use allowed by Title 19 MMC or when equipment 
is used in conjunction with a permitted or allowed project.   

(28) Heavy commercial equipment that is not be parked, kept or stored in residentially zoned 
areas, on residential property in other zones or on sites that have not been permitted, improved 
and approved for such use.  This requirement shall not apply to the parking, keeping or storage 
of agricultural machinery on residential premises to be used for agricultural use allowed by Title 
19 MMC or when equipment is used in conjunction with an ongoing permitted or allowed 
project. 

Item 16 - 20



ORDINANCE Page 17 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108122908 

(29) Temporary or portable structures, such as portable storage tents, temporary canopies, or 
other similar structures, which are not removed within seventy-two hours, unless screened from 
public view from the adjacent frontage street or streetswhen located within the front yard. 

Section 3.  Severability.  
 If any word, phrase, sentence, provision, or portion of this ordinance is declared to be invalid or 
unenforceable, it shall not affect validity or enforceability of the remaining words, phrases, 
sentences, provisions or portions of this ordinance. 
 
PASSED by the City Council and APPROVED by the Mayor this _____ day of _______, 20089. 
 
       CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
 
 
       By____________________________ 
       DENNIS KENDALL, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By____________________________ 
TRACY JEFFRIES, CITY CLERK 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
By____________________________ 
GRANT K. WEED CITY ATTORNEY 
 
 
Date of Publication: _______________ 
 
Effective Date (5 days after publication): _______________ 
 

Item 16 - 21



 

ORDINANCE Page 1 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 122908 

C I T Y   O F   M A R Y S V I L L E 
 Marysville, Washington 
 
 ORDINANCE NO. ______ 
 
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MARYSVILLE, WASHINGTON AMENDING 

THE CITY’S CODE ENFORCEMENT AND NUISANCE REGULATIONS AND 
AMENDING CHAPTERS 4.02 AND 6.24 OF THE MARYSVILLE MUNICIPAL 
CODE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is in the public interest to update the City’s code 

enforcement and nuisance regulations; 
  

 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MARYSVILLE, 
WASHINGTON DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  Chapter 4.02 MMC is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Chapter 4.02 
ENFORCEMENT PROCEDURES 
Sections:  

4.02.010 Purposes. 

4.02.020 Definitions. 

4.02.030 Citizen complaints. 

4.02.040 Penalties and enforcement. 

4.02.050 Code enforcement procedures manual. 

4.02.010 Purposes. 

The purposes of this title are:  

(1) To establish an efficient system to enforce the city of Marysville Municipal Code (MMC), 
providing for both civil  and criminal remedies for violations;  

 

(2) To provide opportunity for a prompt hearing and decision on alleged violations of the MMC;  

Item 16 - 22

http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv04/Marysv0402.htm#4.02.010
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv04/Marysv0402.htm#4.02.020
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv04/Marysv0402.htm#4.02.030
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv04/Marysv0402.htm#4.02.040
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv04/Marysv0402.htm#4.02.050


 

ORDINANCE Page 2 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 122908 

(3) To establish monetary penalties for violations of the MMC; and  

(4) To abate/bring into compliance violations of the MMC. (Ord. 2045 § 1, 1995). 

4.02.020 Definitions. 

For the purposes of this chapter, the following definitions shall apply unless the context or 
meaning clearly indicates otherwise:  

(1) “City” means the city of Marysville, Washington.  

(2) “Director” means the directors of any department of the city, or such other head of a 
department that is authorized to utilize the provisions of this title to enforce violations of the 
MMC and shall include any duly authorized representative of such director. If more than one 
department is authorized to act under this title, the term “director” shall also be understood to 
mean all applicable “directors.”  

(3) “Hearing examiner” means the city of Marysville hearing examiner, codified by Chapter 2.70 
MMC, or the examiner’s duly authorized representative.  

(4) “MMC” means the Marysville Municipal Code.  

(5) “Permit” means any form of certificate, approval, registration, license or other written 
permission given to any person to engage in any activity as required by law, ordinance or 
regulation. The term “permit” shall not include preliminary or final plat approval or any rezone.  

(6) “Person” as used in this title includes any natural person, organization, corporation or 
partnership and its agents, representatives or assigns.  

(7)   

"Public nuisance"  means the following:  
    a.  a nuisance or public nuisance as defined in state statute or city ordinance, including but not 
limited to Ch. 7.48 RCW, Ch. 6.24 MMC, Ch. 6.25 MMC, and Ch. 7.04 MMC;  
    b. a nuisance at common law, either public or private;  
    c. a violation of the city’s land use, zoning, and environmental regulations (Titles 15, 18, 19, 
and 20 MMC) , construction code regulations (Title 16 MMC), water, sewer, and stormwater 
regulations (Title 14 MMC), business license regulations (Title 5 MMC), noise regulations (Ch. 
6.76 MMC), health and sanitation regulations (Title 7 MMC), fire regulations (Title 9 MMC), 
animal control regulations (Title 10 MMC), abandoned, unauthorized and junk vehicle 
regulations (Ch. 11.36 MMC), and any other violation of the Marysville Municipal Code that 
poses a threat to the public health, safety or welfare. 
 
 

Item 16 - 23

http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv02/Marysv0270.htm#2.70


 

ORDINANCE Page 3 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 122908 

4.02.030 Citizen complaints. 

(1) Written Complaint/Notice to Owner. On forms provided by city departments, any aggrieved 
person may file a written complaint with the director alleging that a violation of  the MMC has 
occurred or may occur. The citizen complaint process shall not apply to actions for which there 
are administrative and/or judicial appeals provided for in this title or other titles, chapters or 
sections of the MMC. Each complaint shall state fully the causes and bases for the complaint and 
shall be filed with the appropriate department. A copy of the complaint shall be promptly mailed 
to the property owner of the subject property via first class and certified (return receipt 
requested) mail.  

(2) Hearing Before the Hearing Examiner. Within 60 days of completing and filing the 
complaint, the complainant may request, in writing, a hearing before the hearing examiner. As 
soon as the complaint is filed, the director shall cease all administrative action and schedule a 
hearing. The date of hearing shall be not more than 90 days from the receipt of the complaint. 
The person filing the complaint shall have the burden of demonstrating that a violation has 
occurred or may occur.  

(3) Hearing Examiner’s Decision. Within 10 city working days of the conclusion of the public 
hearing, the hearing examiner shall file a written decision with the department. The hearing 
examiner’s decision shall be final with a right of appeal only to Snohomish County superior 
court as provided in subsection (4) of this section. The hearing examiner has the authority to 
award costs and expenses to the prevailing party and the city.  

(4) Appeal to Snohomish County Superior Court. Within 10 city working days of the hearing 
examiner’s written decision, a party may appeal the hearing examiner’s decision to the 
Snohomish County superior court by filing a writ of review. In the event there is no appeal to 
superior court and the hearing examiner’s decision becomes final, it shall be enforced pursuant to 
MMC 4.02.040(10). (Ord. 2045 § 1, 1995). 

4.02.040 Penalties and enforcement. 

(1) Director Authorized to Enforce Codes. The director is charged with enforcement of the 
provisions of this title and the MMC.  

(2) Violations. It shall be unlawful for any person to construct, enlarge, alter, repair, move, 
demolish, use, occupy or maintain any use or cause the same to be done in violation of any of the 
provisions of this title or other titles, chapters or sections of the MMC. Any such violation as 
determined by the director is declared to be a public nuisance and shall be corrected by any 
reasonable and lawful means as provided in this section. In the event the penalties provided in 
this title conflict with any penalty provided in any other section, chapter or title of the Marysville 
Municipal Code, the penalty provisions of this title shall control.  

(3) Director’s Remedies. Upon finding a violation, the director may:  

Item 16 - 24

http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv04/Marysv0402.htm#4.02.040


 

ORDINANCE Page 4 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 122908 

 (a) Institute appropriate action or proceeding to require compliance with this title or to 
enjoin, correct or abate any acts or practices which constitute or will constitute a violation;  

 (b) Issue a temporary enforcement order, stop work order, emergency order, or 
permanent enforcement order, pursuant to subsections (7) and (8) of this section;  

 (c) Abate the violation if corrective work is not commenced or completed within the time 
specified in a permanent enforcement order;  

 (d) Suspend or revoke any approvals or permits issued pursuant to this title, Title 5 
(Business Regulations and Licenses), including without limitation §§ 5.02.140, 5.20.080, 
5.52.090; Title 6 (Peace, Morals and Safety), including without limitation Chapter 6.24, Title 7 
(Health and Sanitation), including without limitation §§ 7.04.010 – 7.04.100; Title 9 (Fire); Title 
11 (Traffic), including without limitation § 11.36.040; Title 12 (Streets and Sidewalks), 
including without limitation §§ 12.08.140, 12.12, 12.20.010, 12.24, 12.36.020 – 12.36.030, 
12.40.020 – 12.40.030; Title 14 (Water and Sewers), including without limitation §§ 14.15.170, 
14.16.100, 14.16.140, 14.17.050; Title 16 (Building), Title 18 (Planning), Title 19 (Zoning), 
Title 20 (Subdivisions);  

 (e) Assess civil penalties after notice and order set forth in subsection (8)(b)(iv) of this 
section or recovered by legal action filing in Snohomish County superior court; and/or  

 (f) File a lien against the property for costs of abatement and/or civil fines.  

 (g) Issue civil infractions: 

  (i). Any violation of this code to which this chapter applies is deemed and 
declared to be a civil infraction. Each day of violation shall constitute a separate civil infraction.  
 
  (ii).
 Any person found 
to have committed a civil 
infraction shall be 
assessed a  fine as set 
forth in the following 
schedule:    FIRST VIOLATION REPEAT VIOLATION 
            
  Code Provisions: Non- Commercial Non- Commercial
    Commercial   Commercial   

Title:  Chapter:         
4 4.02         

Enforcement Code 
Enforcement, Stop Work & Emergency 

Orders $300  $500  $600  $1,000  
5 5.02         

Business Regulations & Licenses Business licenses $150  $250  $300  $500  

Item 16 - 25

http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0502.htm#5.02.140
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0520.htm#5.20.080
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0552.htm#5.52.090
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv06/Marysv0624.htm#6.24
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv07/Marysv0704.htm#7.04.010
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv07/Marysv0704.htm#7.04.100
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv11/Marysv1136.htm#11.36.040
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1208.htm#12.08.140
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1220.htm#12.20.010
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1236.htm#12.36.020
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1236.htm#12.36.030
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1240.htm#12.40.020
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1240.htm#12.40.030
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1415.htm#14.15.170
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1416.htm#14.16.100
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1416.htm#14.16.140
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1417.htm#14.17.050


 

ORDINANCE Page 5 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 122908 

6 6.24         
Penal Code Public nuisances $150  $250  $300  $500  

  6.76         
  Noise regulations $150  $250  $300  $500  
7 7.04         

Health & Sanitation Unsanitary Conditions - nuisance $150  $250  $300  $500  
  7.08         
  Garbage Collection $150  $250  $300  $500  
9 9.04         

Fire Code Fire Code $150  $250  $300  $500  
12 12.24         

Streets & Sidewalks Sidewalks dangerous conditions $150  $250  $300  $500  
  12.36         
  Vegetation $150  $250  $300  $500  
  12.40         
  Clean conditions of Public Right of Way $150  $250  $300  $500  

14 14.01         
Water & Sewer General Provisions $150  $250  $300  $500  

  14.15         
  On-site Storm Water          
  Drainage Code $150  $250  $300  $500  
  14.16         
  Public storm drainage code $150  $250  $300  $500  
  14.17         
  Private storm drainage code $150  $250  $300  $500  

16 16.04         
Building Building Code $150  $250  $300  $500  

    FIRST VIOLATION REPEAT VIOLATION 
            
  Code Provisions: Non- Commercial Non- Commercial
    Commercial   Commercial   

Title:  Chapter:         
19 19.08         

Zoning Permitted uses $150  $250  $300  $500  
  19.12         
  Development Standards         
  Density and Dimensions $150  $250  $300  $500  
  19.14         
  Development Standards -         
  Design requirements $150  $250  $300  $500  
  19.16         
  Development Standards -         
  Landscaping $150  $250  $300  $500  
  19.20         
  Sign Code $150  $250  $300  $500  
  19.24         

Item 16 - 26



 

ORDINANCE Page 6 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 122908 

  Critical Areas Management $250  $350  $500  $700  
  19.28         

  
Clearing, Grading, Filling & Erosion 

Control $250  $350  $500  $700  
  19.32         
  Home Occupations $150  $250  $300  $500  
  19.40         
  Development Standards -         

  Recreational vehicle parks $150  $250  $300  $500  
 
 
  (iii). Civil infractions will be administered and processed through Marysville 
Municipal Court as setforth in the Marysville Municipal Code, state law, the Washington State 
Court Rules Infraction Rules for Courts of Limited Jurisdiction IRLJ and local court rules for 
Marysville Muncipal Court.     
 
 (h) Mitigate civil fines. 
  1.         The Director may reduce or waive civil fines assessed under this Chapter, 
if the violation is corrected within the specified deadline and the correction is verified by the 
City. A reduction shall be in writing and state the date on which the violation was corrected. 
  2. For reduction or waiver of fines, the person(s) named shall have the 
burden of proof that the violation has been corrected. 
  3. Any reduction or waiver shall be based on an evaluation of individual 
circumstances, including but not limited to the severity of the violation, repetition of violations, 
protection of the public interest, and responsiveness of the person(s) responsible to correct, cure, 
abate, and/or stop the violation. 
 

(4) Violators Punishable by Criminal Fine and Imprisonment. As an alternative to any other 
remedy provided in this title or by law or other ordinance, any person willfully or knowingly 
violating any provision of this title or other titles, chapters or sections of the MMC, or 
amendments thereto, or any person aiding or abetting such violation is guilty of a misdemeanor 
and upon conviction shall be punished by a fine not to exceed $1,000 and/or imprisonment for a 
term not to exceed 90 days. Each day such violation continues may be considered a separate 
offense.  

(5) Inspections.  

 (a) Whenever the director has reasonable cause to believe that a violation has been or is 
being committed, the director or the director’s duly authorized inspector may enter any building, 
structure or property at any reasonable time to inspect the use and perform any duty conferred on 
the director by this title.  

 (b) If the building, structure or property is occupied, the director shall first present 
identification credentials, state the reason for the inspection and demand entry. If consent to enter 
is not given and if: 

Item 16 - 27



 

ORDINANCE Page 7 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 122908 

  (i) The director has reason to believe that the conditions create an imminent and 
irreparable hazard, then the director shall enter; or  

  (ii) The director has reason to believe that the conditions do not create an 
imminent and irreparable hazard, the director shall enter after first obtaining a civil search 
warrant.  

 (c) If the building, structure or property is not occupied, the director shall make a 
reasonable effort to locate the owner or other person(s) having control and request permission to 
enter. If the director is unable to locate the owner or person(s) having control, and if: 

  (i) The director has reason to believe that conditions therein create an immediate 
and irreparable hazard, the director shall enter; or  

  (ii) The director has reason to believe that the conditions do not create an 
imminent and irreparable hazard, the director shall enter after first obtaining a search warrant.  

(6) Violators Punishable by Civil Penalties After Administrative Notice and Order.  

 (a) Director to Determine Violation and May Provide Enforcement Order. Within 30 days 
of notice of a potential violation, the director is authorized to and shall determine whether a 
violation has occurred and, if the director determines that a violation has occurred, shall issue a 
temporary or permanent enforcement order. The director shall notify the complainant, the owner 
or operator of the source of the violation, and the person in possession of the property or the 
person causing the violation of the director’s determination in writing within three city working 
days of the determination. Service of the notice by first class and certified (return receipt 
requested) mail to the last known address of the complainant and violators shall be deemed 
effective notice (see subsection (3)(d) of this section).  

 (b) Director May Commence Administrative Notice. Additionally, whenever the director 
has reason to believe that a use or condition exists in violation of this title and that violation will 
be most promptly and equitably terminated by an administrative proceeding, the director may 
commence an administrative notice and order proceeding to cause assessment of a civil penalty, 
abatement or suspension of all activities, work or revocation of any approvals or permits issued 
pursuant to this title, Title 5 (Business Regulations and Licenses), including without limitation 
§§ 5.02.140, 5.20.080, 5.52.090; Title 6 (Peace, Morals and Safety), including without limitation 
Chapter 6.24, Title 7 (Health and Sanitation), including without limitation §§ 7.04.010 – 
7.04.100; Title 9 (Fire); Title 11 (Traffic), including without limitation § 11.36.040; Title 12 
(Streets and Sidewalks), including without limitation §§ 12.08.140, 12.12, 12.20.010, 12.24, 
12.36.020 – 12.36.030, 12.40.020 – 12.40.030; Title 14 (Water and Sewers), including without 
limitation §§ 14.15.170, 14.16.100, 14.16.140, 14.17.050; Title 16 (Building), Title 18 
(Planning), Title 19 (Zoning), Title 20 (Subdivisions).  

(7) Temporary Enforcement Order, Stop Work Order, and Emergency Order.  

Item 16 - 28

http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0502.htm#5.02.140
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0520.htm#5.20.080
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0552.htm#5.52.090
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv06/Marysv0624.htm#6.24
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv07/Marysv0704.htm#7.04.010
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv07/Marysv0704.htm#7.04.100
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv11/Marysv1136.htm#11.36.040
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1208.htm#12.08.140
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1220.htm#12.20.010
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1236.htm#12.36.020
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1236.htm#12.36.030
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1240.htm#12.40.020
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1240.htm#12.40.030
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1415.htm#14.15.170
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1416.htm#14.16.100
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1416.htm#14.16.140
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1417.htm#14.17.050


 

ORDINANCE Page 8 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 122908 

 (a) The director may cause a temporary enforcement order, stop work order, or 
emergency order (“Order”) to be posted on the subject property or served on the property owner 
and/or persons engaged in any work or activity on the property, as provided in this section. 

  (i) A temporary order may be issued pursuant to and in accordance with 
subsection (6)(a) of this section. 

  (ii)  A stop work order may be issued to immediately cease specified work or 
activity, when the director finds that such work or activity is being conducted in violation of the 
MMC or in a dangerous or unsafe manner. 

  (iii) An emergency order may be issued to immediately cease and remedy 
specified work or activity, when the director finds that such work or activity is being conducted 
in a hazardous or unsafe manner that threatens the health or safety of the occupants of any 
premises or members of the public. 

  (iv) Violation of a stop work order or emergency order shall shall constitute a 
misdemeanor, punishable as provided in subsection (4) of this section. 
 

 (b) The order shall require immediate cessation of such work or activities and may 
temporarily suspend any approval or permit issued under this title, Title 5 (Business Regulations 
and Licenses), including without limitation §§ 5.02.140, 5.20.080, 5.52.090; Title 6 (Peace, 
Morals and Safety), including without limitation Chapter 6.24, Title 7 (Health and Sanitation), 
including without limitation §§ 7.04.010 – 7.04.100; Title 9 (Fire); Title 11 (Traffic), including 
without limitation § 11.36.040; Title 12 (Streets and Sidewalks), including without limitation §§ 
12.08.140, 12.12, 12.20.010, 12.24, 12.36.020 – 12.36.030, 12.40.020 – 12.40.030; Title 14 
(Water and Sewers), including without limitation §§ 14.15.170, 14.16.100, 14.16.140, 14.17.050; 
Title 16 (Building), Title 18 (Planning), Title 19 (Zoning), Title 20 (Subdivisions).  

 (c) The order may be issued without written or oral notice and shall expire by its own 
terms in 10 days unless the director extends or issues and transmits a permanent enforcement 
order pursuant to subsection (8) of this section.  

 (d) The order shall contain:  

  (i) The street address, when available, and a legal description of the real property;  

  (ii) A statement that the director has found the person to be in violation of this 
Title and a brief and concise description of the condition found to be in violation;  

  (iii) A statement of the corrective action to be taken;  

  (iv) A statement that the order shall expire by its own terms in 10 days unless 
extended in writing or a permanent order is issued;  

Item 16 - 29

http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0502.htm#5.02.140
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0520.htm#5.20.080
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0552.htm#5.52.090
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv06/Marysv0624.htm#6.24
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv07/Marysv0704.htm#7.04.010
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv07/Marysv0704.htm#7.04.100
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv11/Marysv1136.htm#11.36.040
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1208.htm#12.08.140
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1220.htm#12.20.010
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1236.htm#12.36.020
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1236.htm#12.36.030
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1240.htm#12.40.020
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1240.htm#12.40.030
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1415.htm#14.15.170
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1416.htm#14.16.100
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1416.htm#14.16.140
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1417.htm#14.17.050


 

ORDINANCE Page 9 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 122908 

  (v) A statement that the violator may be subject to a civil penalty in the amount 
set forth in subsection (3)(g) of this section for each day that the violation continues and, if 
applicable, the conditions on which assessment of such civil penalty is contingent.  

 (e) Withdrawal or Issuance of Additional Temporary Order. The director may withdraw a 
temporary order if compliance is achieved within 10 calendar days of posting or service thereof. 
If, after withdrawal, the violation is continued or repeated, the director may cause a second 
temporary order to be posted on the subject property or served on persons engaged in any work 
or activity in violation of this title. Any subsequent order involving the same violation shall be 
permanent.  

(8) Permanent Enforcement Order.  

 (a) A permanent enforcement order shall be issued by the director and become final 
within 10 calendar days, unless written appeal is received asking for a hearing before the hearing 
examiner.  

 (b) The permanent enforcement order shall contain:  

  (i) The street address and, when available, a legal description of real property;  

  (ii) A statement that the director has found the person to be in violation of this 
title and a brief and concise description of the conditions found to be in violation;  

  (iii) A statement of the corrective action required to be taken. If the director has 
determined that corrective work is required, the order shall mandate that all required permits be 
secured and the work be physically commenced and completed within such time as the director 
determines is reasonable under the circumstances, but in no event shall such time exceed 90 
days;  

  (iv) A statement that the violator may be subject to a civil penalty in the amount 
set forth in subsection (3)(g) of this section for each day that the violation continues and, if 
applicable, the conditions on which assessment of such civil penalty is contingent;  

  (v) Statements advising:  

   (A) If any required work is not commenced or completed within the time 
specified, the director shall proceed to abate the violation and cause the work to be done and 
charge the costs thereof as a lien against the property and any other property owned by the 
person in violation and as a personal obligation of any person in violation; and  

   (B) If any assessed civil penalty is not paid, the director will charge the 
amount of the penalty as a lien against the property and as a joint and separate personal 
obligation of any person in violation; and  

Item 16 - 30



 

ORDINANCE Page 10 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 122908 

   (C) The violator of the violator’s right to appeal and the appeal process.  

 (c) Any order issued by the director pursuant to this title shall be final unless a timely 
appeal is filed.  

 (d) Service. Service of the permanent enforcement order shall be made upon all persons 
identified in the order either personally or by mailing a copy of such order by certified mail, 
postage prepaid, return receipt requested to the last known address. If the address of any such 
person cannot reasonably be ascertained, a copy of the order shall be mailed to such person at the 
address of the location of the violation. The failure of any such person to receive such notice 
shall not affect the validity of any proceedings taken under this title. Service by certified mail in 
the manner provided in this section shall be effective on the date of postmark. The order may be, 
but is not required to be posted on the subject property.  

 (e) Supplemental Order. The director may at any time add to, rescind in part, or otherwise 
modify a permanent enforcement order.  

(9) Appeal.  

 (a) A written appeal may be filed within 10 calendar days following issuance of a 
temporary enforcement order, stop work order, emergency order, or permanent enforcement 
order.  

 (b) An appeal of a stop work order or emergency order shall not stay the requirement that 
the specified work or activity immediately cease and/or be remedied. 

 (c) The director shall prepare and transmit to the hearing examiner any appeal of a 
temporary or permanent enforcement order, and a hearing shall be scheduled within 60 days of 
the appeal date. Cost of the appeal shall be part of the decision. The hearing examiner’s decision 
may be reviewed by an action for writ of review in the superior court of Snohomish County filed 
within 10 calendar days of the decision. If no appeal is filed in the required length of time, the 
hearing examiner’s decision shall be final.  

(10) Violation of Permanent Order. If, after any permanent order duly issued by the director or 
hearing examiner has become final, the person to whom such order is directed fails, neglects, or 
refuses to obey such order, including refusal to pay a civil penalty assessed under such order, the 
director may:  

 (a) Cause such person to be prosecuted under the provisions of this title;  

 (b) Institute any appropriate action to collect a civil penalty assessed under this title;  

 (c) Abate the violation using the procedures of this title; and/or  

 (d) Pursue any other appropriate remedy at law or equity.  

Item 16 - 31



 

ORDINANCE Page 11 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 122908 

(11) Revocation or Suspension of Approvals or Permits. The director may permanently revoke or 
suspend any approval or permit issued under this title, Title 5 (Business Regulations and 
Licenses), including without limitation §§ 5.02.140, 5.20.080, 5.52.090; Title 6 (Peace, Morals 
and Safety), including without limitation Chapter 6.24, Title 7 (Health and Sanitation), including 
without limitation §§ 7.04.010 – 7.04.100; Title 9 (Fire); Title 11 (Traffic), including without 
limitation § 11.36.040; Title 12 (Streets and Sidewalks), including without limitation §§ 
12.08.140, 12.12, 12.20.010, 12.24, 12.36.020 – 12.36.030, 12.40.020 – 12.40.030; Title 14 
(Water and Sewers), including without limitation §§ 14.15.170, 14.16.100, 14.16.140, 14.17.050; 
Title 16 (Building), Title 18 (Planning), Title 19 (Zoning), Title 20 (Subdivisions), for any of the 
following reasons:  

 (a) Failure of the holder to comply with the requirements of such title; or  

 (b) Failure of the holder to comply with any order issued pursuant to this title; or  

 (c) Discovery by the director that an approval or a permit was issued in error or on the 
basis of incorrect information supplied to the city.  

Such approval of permit revocation or suspension shall be carried out through the notice and 
order provisions of this section. The revocation or suspension shall be final within five working 
days of the conclusion of a hearing unless the hearing examiner renders a written decision 
modifying or denying the revocation or suspension.  

(12) Lien.  

 (a) City Has Lien. The city of Marysville shall have a lien for any civil penalty imposed 
or for the cost of any work or abatement done pursuant to this title, or both, against the real 
property on which the civil penalty was imposed or any of the work of abatement was performed 
and against any other real property owned by any person in violation. The civil penalty shall be a 
joint and several obligation of all people found to be in violation. The lien shall be subordinate to 
all existing special assessment liens previously imposed upon the same property and shall be 
superior to all other liens, except for state and county taxes, with which it shall be on a parity.  

 (b) Director’s Authority to Claim Lien. The director shall cause a claim for lien to be 
filed for record with the auditor within 90 days from the date the civil penalty is due or within 90 
days from the date of completion of the work or abatement performed by the city of Marysville 
pursuant to this title.  

 (c) Notice of Lien. The notice and order of a director pursuant to this title shall give 
notice to the owner that a lien for the civil penalty or the cost of abatement, or both, may be 
claimed by the city. Service of the notice and order shall be made upon all persons identified in 
the notice and order either personally or by mailing a copy of such notice and order by certified 
mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested.  

 (d) Contents of Lien. The claim of lien shall contain the following:  

Item 16 - 32

http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0502.htm#5.02.140
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0520.htm#5.20.080
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0552.htm#5.52.090
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv06/Marysv0624.htm#6.24
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv07/Marysv0704.htm#7.04.010
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv07/Marysv0704.htm#7.04.100
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv11/Marysv1136.htm#11.36.040
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1208.htm#12.08.140
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1220.htm#12.20.010
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1236.htm#12.36.020
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1236.htm#12.36.030
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1240.htm#12.40.020
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1240.htm#12.40.030
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1415.htm#14.15.170
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1416.htm#14.16.100
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1416.htm#14.16.140
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1417.htm#14.17.050


 

ORDINANCE Page 12 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 122908 

  (i) The authority for imposing a civil penalty or proceeding to abate the violation, 
or both;  

  (ii) A brief description of the civil penalty imposed or the abatement work done, 
or both, including the violations charged and the duration thereof, the time the work was 
commenced and completed and the name of the persons or organizations performing the work;  

  (iii) A legal description of the property to be charged with the lien; 

  (iv) The name of the known or reputed owner; and  

  (v) The amount, including lawful and reasonable costs, for which the lien is 
claimed.  

 (e) Verification of Lien. The lien shall be verified by the director to the effect that the 
director believes that the claim is just.  

 (f) Filing of Lien. The lien shall be recorded with the Snohomish County auditor.  

 (g) Duration of Lien. No lien created under this title shall bind the property for a period 
longer than three years after the claim has been filed unless an action is commenced in the proper 
court within that time to enforce the lien.  

 (h) Foreclosure of Lien. The lien may be foreclosed by a civil action in Snohomish 
County superior court.  

 (i) Removal of Lien. All liens shall be removed by the city of Marysville when all 
conditions placed upon the violator(s) by a notice and order or by the hearing examiner have 
been satisfied. (Ord. 2045 § 1, 1995).  

4.02.050 Code enforcement procedures manual. 

The code enforcement officer shall have the authority to adopt and adhere to a code enforcement 
procedures manual which shall be available for public inspection and copying during regular 
business hours. (Ord. 2045 § 1, 1995). 

Section 2. Chapter 6.24 MMC is hereby amended by amending MMC 6.24.050 to read as 
follows: 

6.24.050 Types of nuisances.  

It shall be a “public nuisance” within the city of Marysville and a violation of the Marysville 
Municipal Code, if any responsible person or persons shall maintain or allow to be maintained on 
real property which he or she may have charge, control or occupy, except as may be permitted by 

Item 16 - 33



 

ORDINANCE Page 13 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 122908 

any other city ordinance, whether visible or not from any public street, alley or residence, any of 
the following conditions:  

(1) Every person who makes or keeps any explosive or combustible substance in the city, or 
carries it through the streets thereof, in quantity or manner prohibited by Chapter 70.74 RCW, 
and every person who, by careless, negligent or unauthorized use or management of any such 
explosive or combustible substance, injures or causes injury to the person or property of another.  

(2) No person shall permit or allow outside of any dwelling, building or other structure or within 
any unoccupied or abandoned building, dwelling or other structure under his control, in a place 
accessible to children, any abandoned, unattended or discarded icebox, refrigerator or other 
container which has an airtight door or lid, snap lock or other automatic locking device which 
may not be released from the inside, without first removing said door or lid, snap lock or other 
locking device from said refrigerator, icebox or container. (3) No person shall abandon or 
discontinue use of or permit or maintain on his premises any abandoned or unused well, cistern 
or storage tank, without first demolishing or removing from the city such storage tank, or 
securely closing and barring any entrance or trap door thereto, or filling any well or cistern, or 
capping the same with sufficient security to prevent access thereto by children.  

(4) No person shall, without lawful authority from the appropriate public entity, attach any 
advertising signs, posters, or any other similar object, to any public structure, sign or traffic-
control device..  

(5) No person shall attach to utility poles any of the following: advertising signs, posters, 
vending machines, or any similar object which presents a hazard to, or endangers the lives of, 
electrical workers. Any attachment to utility poles shall only be made with the permission of the 
utility company involved, and shall be placed not less than 12 feet above the surface of the 
ground. (6) Accumulations of the following materials in any front yard, side yard, rear yard or 
vacant lot unless screened from public view from the adjacent frontage street or streets: any and 
all junk, trash, litter, garbage, boxes, bottles, cans ; any and all unused animal pens or cages, 
including any type of insect enclosures; and any and all discarded lumber, salvaged materials, or 
other similar materials, except for such materials being used for an immediate construction 
project on said premises.  

(7) Any attractive nuisances dangerous to children including, but not limited to, abandoned, 
broken or neglected buildings, equipment, machinery, refrigerators and freezers, excavations, 
shafts, or insufficiently supported walls or fences in any front yard, side yard, rear yard or vacant 
lot.  

(8) Broken or discarded furniture, furnishings, appliances, household equipment and other 
similar items, in any front yard, side yard, rear yard or vacant lot unless screened from public 
view from the adjacent frontage street or streets.  

Item 16 - 34



 

ORDINANCE Page 14 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 122908 

(9) Dead, decayed, diseased or hazardous trees or vegetation/grass clippings (except that used as 
compost for fertilizer), including that which by casual contact with the skin is dangerous to 
public health, safety and welfare, located in any front yard, side yard, rear yard or vacant lot.  

(10) Graffiti on the exterior of any building, fence, or other structure in any front yard, side yard, 
rear yard or vacant lot unless screened from public view from the adjacent frontage street or 
streets.  

(11) Nonoperational or unused vehicles or parts thereof, or other articles of personal property 
which are discarded or left in a state of partial construction or repair in any front yard, side yard, 
rear yard or vacant lot unless screened from public view from the adjacent frontage street or 
streets. The responsible person may have on his or her premises, at any one time, only one 
nonoperational or unused vehicle outside an enclosed building for a period not to exceed 14 
days. “Nonoperational or unused vehicle” means a vehicle substantially meeting one of the 
following requirements: 

 (a) Is immobile because it either: (i) lacks an engine or other parts or equipment 
necessary to operate it safely or legally on the street; (ii) has one or more flat tires; or (iii) is 
mounted on skids or jacks; (b) Displays registration tabs which have expired for more than 12 
months;  

 (c) Has overgrown vegetation or garbage or debris collecting underneath; or 

 (d) Is used primarily to store items such as auto parts, yard tools, garbage, debris, 
clothing, miscellaneous household items, etc.  

(12) Vegetation exceeding 12 inches in height (exclusive of plants and flowers within a flower 
bed, shrubbery and trees) located in any front yard, side yard, rear yard or vacant lot unless 
screened from public view from the adjacent frontage street or streets.  

.  

(13) Utility trailers, unmounted camper or recreation vehicles shall not be located in the front 
yard. They may be located in the driveway, parallel to the driveway, or behind the front building 
line of the property on either side of the building on a maintained surface.  

(14) Accessory structures, including detached garages, sheds, decks, patios and similar 
structures, which are not maintained structurally sound and in good repair. 

(15) Any unfinished structure, for which there has been a cessation of construction activity for 
more than two years and which is determined by the city to be in violation of the building code 
and subject to abatement by demolition or completion of the construction to meet the 
requirements of the building code.  

Item 16 - 35



 

ORDINANCE Page 15 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 122908 

(16) Any catastrophic or fire damaged premises, which have not been secured from entry within 
forty-eight (48) hours and from which all debris has not been removed and properly discarded 
within ten (10) days of the fire department’ s release of the property. 

(17) Fences, walls, hedges and retaining walls that are not maintained in a structurally sound and 
sanitary condition so as to endanger the public health, safety or welfare.   

(18) Exterior properties that are not graded and maintained to prevent the erosion of soil and to 
prevent the accumulation of water on the premises.  Storm water, including discharge from 
gutters, downspouts, swimming pools, hot tubs, spas, sump pumps or similar features shall not 
discharge water off the source premise unless expressly approved by the City of Marysville.   

(19) Open storage on premises except:  

   (a) As expressly permitted in Title 19 MMC; 

   (b) Open storage does not include items customarily used in association with the permitted 
principal use of the property and suitable for outdoor use such as lawn furniture, play equipment, 
gardening equipment, and similar items; and 

  (c) Open storage does not include construction materials or seasonal materials used for 
gardening that are stored in a manner to protect their utility and prevent deterioration and are 
reasonably expected to be used at the site within six (6) months.   

  (d) Open storage does not include materials screened from public view from the adjacent 
frontage street or streets. 

(20) Premises containing rodent, insect and vermin harborage and/or infestation as determined 
by the county health officer.  Infestations shall be promptly exterminated by methods that ensure 
the public’s health, safety and welfare.  Owners shall take preventive measures to protect 
buildings and premises from future infestations. 

(21)  Sidewalks, walkways, stairs, driveways, parking spaces and similar areas on private 
property containing hazardous conditions or violations of approved site or plot plans and barrier 
free accessible parking requirements.   

(22)  Swimming pools and swimming pool barriers that are not maintained in a clean, sanitary 
condition, and in good repair. 

(23)  Any hazard tree that has not been removed from property or that is maintained in such a 
way that it threatens persons or property. 

(24) Vacant structures and premises thereof or vacant land, which are not maintained in a clean, 
safe, secure and sanitary condition so as not to cause a blighting problem or adversely affect the 
public health.  

Item 16 - 36



 

ORDINANCE Page 16 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 122908 

(25)  Motor vehicles that are not parked on improved all weather surfaces and motor vehicles, 
other than those in subsection (b) of this section, that are parked in the setbacks except in front 
yard or side street setbacks when in a driveway that provides access to an approved parking 
location and in conformance with Title 19 MMC.  Parked motor vehicles shall not block access 
to required parking. 

(26) Recreational vehicles, boats, and trailers that are not parked, kept or stored on an improved 
all weather surface or that are parked, kept or stored in required front yard setbacks, except for a 
driveway.  Recreational vehicle, boat, or trailer parking in the side or rear yard setbacks is 
allowed so long as emergency responders may access all sides of a structure.  Access to parking 
shall be via an approved driveway approach and an improved all weather surface.  

(27) Truck tractors, as defined in RCW 46.04.655, and semi-trailers, as defined in RCW 
46.04.530, that are parked, kept or stored in residentially zoned areas, on residential property in 
other zones or on sites that have not been permitted, improved and approved for such use.  This 
requirement shall not apply to the parking, keeping or storage of agricultural machinery on 
residential premises to be used for agricultural use allowed by Title 19 MMC or when equipment 
is used in conjunction with a permitted or allowed project.   

(28) Heavy commercial equipment that is not be parked, kept or stored in residentially zoned 
areas, on residential property in other zones or on sites that have not been permitted, improved 
and approved for such use.  This requirement shall not apply to the parking, keeping or storage 
of agricultural machinery on residential premises to be used for agricultural use allowed by Title 
19 MMC or when equipment is used in conjunction with an ongoing permitted or allowed 
project. 

(29) Temporary or portable structures, such as portable storage tents, temporary canopies, or 
other similar structures, which are not removed within seventy-two hours, when located within 
the front yard. 

Section 3.  Severability.  
 If any word, phrase, sentence, provision, or portion of this ordinance is declared to be invalid or 
unenforceable, it shall not affect validity or enforceability of the remaining words, phrases, 
sentences, provisions or portions of this ordinance. 
 
PASSED by the City Council and APPROVED by the Mayor this _____ day of _______, 2009. 
 
       CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
 
 
       By____________________________ 
       DENNIS KENDALL, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 

Item 16 - 37



 

ORDINANCE Page 17 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 122908 

 
By____________________________ 
TRACY JEFFRIES, CITY CLERK 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
By____________________________ 
GRANT K. WEED CITY ATTORNEY 
 
 
Date of Publication: _______________ 
 
Effective Date (5 days after publication): _______________ 
 

Item 16 - 38



ORDINANCE Page 1 of  18 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108011409 

C I T Y   O F   M A R Y S V I L L E 
 Marysville, Washington 
 
 ORDINANCE NO. ______ 
 
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MARYSVILLE, WASHINGTON AMENDING 

THE CITY’S CODE ENFORCEMENT AND NUISANCE REGULATIONS AND 
AMENDING CHAPTERS 4.02 AND 6.24 OF THE MARYSVILLE MUNICIPAL 
CODE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is in the public interest to update the City’s code 

enforcement and nuisance regulations; 
  

 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MARYSVILLE, 
WASHINGTON DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  Chapter 4.02 MMC is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Chapter 4.02 
ENFORCEMENT PROCEDURES 
Sections:  

4.02.010 Purposes. 

4.02.020 Definitions. 

4.02.030 Citizen complaints. 

4.02.040 Penalties and enforcement. 

4.02.050 Code enforcement procedures manual. 

4.02.010 Purposes. 

The purposes of this title are:  

(1) To establish an efficient system to enforce the city of Marysville Municipal Code (MMC), 
providing for both civil remedies, civil citations and criminal citationremedies for violations;  

 

(2) To provide opportunity for a prompt hearing and decision on alleged violations of the MMC;  

DRAFT 
11/21/  
20081/1
4/09

Item 16 - 39

http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv04/Marysv0402.htm#4.02.010�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv04/Marysv0402.htm#4.02.020�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv04/Marysv0402.htm#4.02.030�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv04/Marysv0402.htm#4.02.040�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv04/Marysv0402.htm#4.02.050�


ORDINANCE Page 2 of  18 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108011409 

(3) To establish monetary penalties for violations of the MMC; and  

(4) To abate/bring into compliance violations of the MMC. (Ord. 2045 § 1, 1995). 

4.02.020 Definitions. 

For the purposes of this chapter, the following definitions shall apply unless the context or 
meaning clearly indicates otherwise:  

(1) “City” means the city of Marysville, Washington.  

(2) “Director” means the directors of any department of the city, or such other head of a 
department that the city council hasis authorized by ordinance to utilize the provisions of this 
title to enforce violations of the MMC and shall include any duly authorized representative of 
such director. If more than one department is authorized to act under this title, the term “director” 
shall also be understood to mean all applicable “directors.”  

(3) “Hearing examiner” means the city of Marysville hearing examiner, codified by Chapter 2.70 
MMC, or the examiner’s duly authorized representative.  

(4) “Heavy commercial vehicles” means vehicles used for commercial purposes exceeding 6000 
lbs.   

(5) “Motor vehicle” means a car or truck.   

(46) “MMC” means the Marysville Municipal Code.  

(57) “Permit” means any form of certificate, approval, registration, license or other written 
permission given to any person to engage in any activity as required by law, ordinance or 
regulation. The term “permit” shall not include preliminary or final plat approval or any rezone.  

(68) “Person” as used in this title includes any natural person, organization, corporation or 
partnership and its agents, representatives or assigns.  

(79)  “Public nuisance” as used in this title is defined as a nuisance which affects equally the 
rights of an entire community or neighborhood, although the extent of the nuisance may be 
unequal. MMC 6.24.020(3) defines “nuisance.” (Ord. 2045 § 1, 1995). 

"Public nuisance"  means the following:  
    a.  a nuisance or public nuisance as defined in state statute or city ordinance, including but not 
limited to Ch. 7.48 RCW, Ch. 6.24 MMC, Ch. 6.25 MMC, and Ch. 7.04 MMC;  
    b. a nuisance at common law, either public or private;  
    c. a violation of the city’s land use, zoning, and environmental regulations (Titles 15, 18, 19, 
and 20 MMC) , construction code regulations (Title 16 MMC), water, sewer, and stormwater 

Item 16 - 40

http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv02/Marysv0270.htm#2.70�


ORDINANCE Page 3 of  18 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108011409 

regulations (Title 14 MMC), business license regulations (Title 5 MMC), noise regulations (Ch. 
6.76 MMC), health and sanitation regulations (Title 7 MMC), fire regulations (Title 9 MMC), 
animal control regulations (Title 10 MMC), abandoned, unauthorized and junk vehicle 
regulations (Ch. 11.36 MMC), and any other violation of the Marysville Municipal Code that 
poses a threat to the public health, safety or welfare. 
 
(10) “Screened from public view” means sight-obscuring fencing and/or landscaping is installed 
around the area or objects. 
 

4.02.030 Citizen complaints. 

(1) Written Complaint/Notice to Owner. On forms provided by city departments, any aggrieved 
person may file a written complaint with the director alleging that a violation of this title or other 
titles, chapters or sections of the MMC has occurred or may occur. The citizen complaint process 
shall not apply to actions for which there are administrative and/or judicial appeals provided for 
in this title or other titles, chapters or sections of the MMC. Each complaint shall state fully the 
causes and bases for the complaint and shall be filed with the appropriate department. A copy of 
the complaint shall be promptly mailed to the property owner of the subject property via first 
class and certified (return receipt requested) mail.  

(2) Hearing Before the Hearing Examiner. Within 60 days of completing and filing the 
complaint, the complainant may request, in writing, a hearing before the hearing examiner. As 
soon as the complaint is filed, the director shall cease all administrative action and schedule a 
hearing. The date of hearing shall be not more than 90 days from the receipt of the complaint. 
The person filing the complaint shall have the burden of demonstrating that a violation has 
occurred or may occur.  

(3) Hearing Examiner’s Decision. Within 10 city working days of the conclusion of the public 
hearing, the hearing examiner shall file a written decision with the department. The hearing 
examiner’s decision shall be final with a right of appeal only to Snohomish County superior 
court as provided in subsection (4) of this section. The hearing examiner has the authority to 
award costs and expenses to the prevailing party and the city.  

(4) Appeal to Snohomish County Superior Court. Within 10 city working days of the hearing 
examiner’s written decision, a party may appeal the hearing examiner’s decision to the 
Snohomish County superior court by filing a writ of review. In the event there is no appeal to 
superior court and the hearing examiner’s decision becomes final, it shall be enforced pursuant to 
MMC 4.02.040(10). (Ord. 2045 § 1, 1995). 

4.02.040 Penalties and enforcement. 

(1) Director Authorized to Enforce Codes. The director is charged with enforcement of the 
provisions of this title and the MMC.  

Item 16 - 41

http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv04/Marysv0402.htm#4.02.040�


ORDINANCE Page 4 of  18 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108011409 

(2) Violations. It shall be unlawful for any person to construct, enlarge, alter, repair, move, 
demolish, use, occupy or maintain any use or cause the same to be done in violation of any of the 
provisions of this title or other titles, chapters or sections of the MMC. Any such violation as 
determined by the director is declared to be a public nuisance and shall be corrected by any 
reasonable and lawful means as provided in this section. In the event the penalties provided in 
this title conflict with any penalty provided in any other section, chapter or title of the Marysville 
Municipal Code, the penalty provisions of this title shall control.  

(3) Director’s Remedies. Upon finding a violation, the director may:  

 (a) Institute appropriate action or proceeding to require compliance with this title or to 
enjoin, correct or abate any acts or practices which constitute or will constitute a violation;  

 (b) Issue a temporary enforcement order, stop work order, emergency order, or 
permanent enforcement order, pursuant to subsections (7) and (8) of this section;  

 (c) Abate the violation if corrective work is not commenced or completed within the time 
specified in a permanent enforcement order;  

 (d) Suspend or revoke any approvals or permits issued pursuant to this title, Title 5 
(Business Regulations and Licenses), including without limitation §§ 5.02.140, 5.20.080, 
5.52.090; Title 6 (Peace, Morals and Safety), including without limitation Chapter 6.24, Title 7 
(Health and Sanitation), including without limitation §§ 7.04.010 – 7.04.100; Title 9 (Fire); Title 
11 (Traffic), including without limitation § 11.36.040; Title 12 (Streets and Sidewalks), 
including without limitation §§ 12.08.140, 12.12, 12.20.010, 12.24, 12.36.020 – 12.36.030, 
12.40.020 – 12.40.030; Title 14 (Water and Sewers), including without limitation §§ 14.15.170, 
14.16.100, 14.16.140, 14.17.050; Title 16 (Building), Title 18 (Planning), Title 19 (Zoning), 
Title 20 (Subdivisions);  

 (e) Assess civil penalties after notice and order set forth in subsection (8)(b)(iv) of this 
section or recovered by legal action filing in Snohomish County superior court; and/or  

 (f) File a lien against the property for costs of abatement and/or civil fines.  

 (g) Issue civil infractions: 

  1(i). Any violation of this code to which this chapter applies is deemed and 
declared to be a civil infraction unless such violation is expressly designated as another class of 
civil infraction. Each day of violation shall constitute a separate civil infraction.  
 
  2(ii). Any person found to have committed a civil infraction shall be assessed a 
monetary penalty as follows: 
   a. Basic fine of _$________+ cost penalties and assessments 
imposed by the court rules. 
   b. other: fine as set forth in the following schedule: 

Item 16 - 42

http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0502.htm#5.02.140�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0520.htm#5.20.080�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0552.htm#5.52.090�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv06/Marysv0624.htm#6.24�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv07/Marysv0704.htm#7.04.010�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv07/Marysv0704.htm#7.04.100�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv11/Marysv1136.htm#11.36.040�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1208.htm#12.08.140�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1220.htm#12.20.010�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1236.htm#12.36.020�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1236.htm#12.36.030�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1240.htm#12.40.020�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1240.htm#12.40.030�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1415.htm#14.15.170�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1416.htm#14.16.100�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1416.htm#14.16.140�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1417.htm#14.17.050�


ORDINANCE Page 5 of  18 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108011409 

    FIRST VIOLATION REPEAT VIOLATION 
            
  Code Provisions: Non- Commercial Non- Commercial
    Commercial   Commercial   

Title:  Chapter:         
4 4.02         

Enforcement Code 
Enforcement, Stop Work & Emergency 

Orders $300  $500  $600  $1,000  
5 5.02         

Business Regulations & Licenses Business licenses $150  $250  $300  $500  
6 6.24         

Penal Code Public nuisances $150  $250  $300  $500  
  6.76         
  Noise regulations $150  $250  $300  $500  
7 7.04         

Health & Sanitation Unsanitary Conditions - nuisance $150  $250  $300  $500  
  7.08         
  Garbage Collection $150  $250  $300  $500  
9 9.04         

Fire Code Fire Code $150  $250  $300  $500  
12 12.24         

Streets & Sidewalks Sidewalks dangerous conditions $150  $250  $300  $500  
  12.36         
  Vegetation $150  $250  $300  $500  
  12.40         
  Clean conditions of Public Right of Way $150  $250  $300  $500  

14 14.01         
Water & Sewer General Provisions $150  $250  $300  $500  

  14.15         
  On-site Storm Water          
  Drainage Code $150  $250  $300  $500  
  14.16         
  Public storm drainage code $150  $250  $300  $500  
  14.17         
  Private storm drainage code $150  $250  $300  $500  

16 16.04         
Building Building Code $150  $250  $300  $500  

    FIRST VIOLATION REPEAT VIOLATION 
            
  Code Provisions: Non- Commercial Non- Commercial
    Commercial   Commercial   

Title:  Chapter:         
19 19.08         

Zoning Permitted uses $150  $250  $300  $500  
  19.12         
  Development Standards         

Item 16 - 43



ORDINANCE Page 6 of  18 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108011409 

  Density and Dimensions $150  $250  $300  $500  
  19.14         
  Development Standards -         
  Design requirements $150  $250  $300  $500  
  19.16         
  Development Standards -         
  Landscaping $150  $250  $300  $500  
  19.20         
  Sign Code $150  $250  $300  $500  
  19.24         
  Critical Areas Management $250  $350  $500  $700  
  19.28         

  
Clearing, Grading, Filling & Erosion 

Control $250  $350  $500  $700  
  19.32         
  Home Occupations $150  $250  $300  $500  
  19.40         
  Development Standards -         

  Recreational vehicle parks $150  $250  $300  $500  
 
 
  (iii). Civil infractions will be administered and processed through Marysville 
Municipal Court as setforth in the Marysville Municipal Code, state law, the Washington State 
Court Rules Infraction Rules for Courts of Limited Jurisdiction IRLJ and local court rules for 
Marysville Muncipal Court.     
 
 (h) Mitigate civil fines. 
  1.         The Director may reduce or waive civil fines assessed under this Chapter, 
if the violation is corrected within the specified deadline and the correction is verified by the 
City. A reduction shall be in writing and state the date on which the violation was corrected. 
  2. For reduction or waiver of fines, the person(s) named shall have the 
burden of proof that the violation has been corrected. 
  3. Any reduction or waiver shall be based on an evaluation of individual 
circumstances, including but not limited to the severity of the violation, repetition of violations, 
protection of the public interest, and responsiveness of the person(s) responsible to correct, cure, 
abate, and/or stop the violation. 
 

(4) Violators Punishable by Criminal Fine and Imprisonment. As an alternative to any other 
remedy provided in this title or by law or other ordinance, any person willfully or knowingly 
violating any provision of this title or other titles, chapters or sections of the MMC, or 
amendments thereto, or any person aiding or abetting such violation is guilty of a misdemeanor 
and upon conviction shall be punished by a fine not to exceed $1,000 and/or imprisonment for a 
term not to exceed 90 days. Each day such violation continues may be considered a separate 
offense.  

Item 16 - 44



ORDINANCE Page 7 of  18 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108011409 

(5) Inspections.  

 (a) Whenever the director has reasonable cause to believe that a violation has been or is 
being committed, the director or the director’s duly authorized inspector may enter any building, 
structure or property at any reasonable time to inspect the use and perform any duty conferred on 
the director by this title.  

 (b) If the building, structure or property is occupied, the director shall first present 
identification credentials, state the reason for the inspection and demand entry. If consent to enter 
is not given and if: 

  (i) The director has reason to believe that the conditions create an imminent and 
irreparable hazard, then the director shall enter; or  

  (ii) The director has reason to believe that the conditions do not create an 
imminent and irreparable hazard, the director shall enter after first obtaining a civil search 
warrant.  

 (c) If the building, structure or property is not occupied, the director shall make a 
reasonable effort to locate the owner or other person(s) having control and request permission to 
enter. If the director is unable to locate the owner or person(s) having control, and if: 

  (i) The director has reason to believe that conditions therein create an immediate 
and irreparable hazard, the director shall enter; or  

  (ii) The director has reason to believe that the conditions do not create an 
imminent and irreparable hazard, the director shall enter after first obtaining a civil search 
warrant.  

(6) Violators Punishable by Civil Penalties After Administrative Notice and Order.  

 (a) Director to Determine Violation and May Provide Enforcement Order. Within 30 days 
of notice of a potential violation, the director is authorized to and shall determine whether a 
violation has occurred and, if the director determines that a violation has occurred, shall issue a 
temporary or permanent enforcement order. The director shall notify the complainant, the owner 
or operator of the source of the violation, and the person in possession of the property or the 
person causing the violation of the director’s determination in writing within three city working 
days of the determination. Service of the notice by first class and certified (return receipt 
requested) mail to the last known address of the complainant and violators shall be deemed 
effective notice (see subsection (3)(d) of this section).  

 (b) Director May Commence Administrative Notice. Additionally, whenever the director 
has reason to believe that a use or condition exists in violation of this title and that violation will 
be most promptly and equitably terminated by an administrative proceeding, the director may 
commence an administrative notice and order proceeding to cause assessment of a civil penalty, 

Item 16 - 45



ORDINANCE Page 8 of  18 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108011409 

abatement or suspension of all activities, work or revocation of any approvals or permits issued 
pursuant to this title, Title 5 (Business Regulations and Licenses), including without limitation 
§§ 5.02.140, 5.20.080, 5.52.090; Title 6 (Peace, Morals and Safety), including without limitation 
Chapter 6.24, Title 7 (Health and Sanitation), including without limitation §§ 7.04.010 – 
7.04.100; Title 9 (Fire); Title 11 (Traffic), including without limitation § 11.36.040; Title 12 
(Streets and Sidewalks), including without limitation §§ 12.08.140, 12.12, 12.20.010, 12.24, 
12.36.020 – 12.36.030, 12.40.020 – 12.40.030; Title 14 (Water and Sewers), including without 
limitation §§ 14.15.170, 14.16.100, 14.16.140, 14.17.050; Title 16 (Building), Title 18 
(Planning), Title 19 (Zoning), Title 20 (Subdivisions).  

(7) Temporary Enforcement Order, Stop Work Order, and Emergency Order.  

 (a) The director may cause a temporary enforcement order, stop work order, or 
emergency order (“Order”) to be posted on the subject property or served on the property owner 
and/or persons engaged in any work or activity on the property, as provided in this sectionin 
violation of this title. 

  (i) A temporary order may be issued pursuant to and in accordance with 
subsection (6)(a) of this section. 

  (ii)  A stop work order may be issued to immediately cease specified work or 
activity, when the director finds that such work or activity is being conducted in violation of the 
MMC or in a dangerous or unsafe manner. 

  (iii) An emergency order may be issued to immediately cease and remedy 
specified work or activity, when the director finds that such work or activity is being conducted 
in a hazardous or unsafe manner that threatens the health or safety of the occupants of any 
premises or members of the public. 

  (iv) Violation of a stop work order or emergency order shall shall constitute a 
misdemeanor, punishable as provided in subsection (4) of this section. 
 

 (b) The order shall require immediate cessation of such work or activities and may 
temporarily suspend any approval or permit issued under this title, Title 5 (Business Regulations 
and Licenses), including without limitation §§ 5.02.140, 5.20.080, 5.52.090; Title 6 (Peace, 
Morals and Safety), including without limitation Chapter 6.24, Title 7 (Health and Sanitation), 
including without limitation §§ 7.04.010 – 7.04.100; Title 9 (Fire); Title 11 (Traffic), including 
without limitation § 11.36.040; Title 12 (Streets and Sidewalks), including without limitation §§ 
12.08.140, 12.12, 12.20.010, 12.24, 12.36.020 – 12.36.030, 12.40.020 – 12.40.030; Title 14 
(Water and Sewers), including without limitation §§ 14.15.170, 14.16.100, 14.16.140, 14.17.050; 
Title 16 (Building), Title 18 (Planning), Title 19 (Zoning), Title 20 (Subdivisions).  

Item 16 - 46

http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0502.htm#5.02.140�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0520.htm#5.20.080�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0552.htm#5.52.090�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv06/Marysv0624.htm#6.24�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv07/Marysv0704.htm#7.04.010�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv07/Marysv0704.htm#7.04.100�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv11/Marysv1136.htm#11.36.040�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1208.htm#12.08.140�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1220.htm#12.20.010�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1236.htm#12.36.020�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1236.htm#12.36.030�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1240.htm#12.40.020�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1240.htm#12.40.030�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1415.htm#14.15.170�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1416.htm#14.16.100�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1416.htm#14.16.140�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1417.htm#14.17.050�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0502.htm#5.02.140�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0520.htm#5.20.080�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0552.htm#5.52.090�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv06/Marysv0624.htm#6.24�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv07/Marysv0704.htm#7.04.010�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv07/Marysv0704.htm#7.04.100�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv11/Marysv1136.htm#11.36.040�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1208.htm#12.08.140�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1220.htm#12.20.010�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1236.htm#12.36.020�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1236.htm#12.36.030�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1240.htm#12.40.020�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1240.htm#12.40.030�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1415.htm#14.15.170�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1416.htm#14.16.100�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1416.htm#14.16.140�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1417.htm#14.17.050�


ORDINANCE Page 9 of  18 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108011409 

 (c) The order may be issued without written or oral notice and shall expire by its own 
terms in 10 days unless the director extends or issues and transmits a permanent enforcement 
order pursuant to subsection (8) of this section.  

 (d) The notice and order shall contain:  

  (i) The street address, when available, and a legal description of the real property;  

  (ii) A statement that the director has found the person to be in violation of this 
Title and a brief and concise description of the condition found to be in violation;  

  (iii) A statement of the corrective action to be taken;  

  (iv) A statement that the order shall expire by its own terms in 10 days unless 
extended in writing or a permanent order is issued;  

  (v) A statement that the violator may be subject to a civil penalty in the amount 
set forth in subsection (3)(g) of this sectionof $100.00 for each day that the violation continues 
and, if applicable, the conditions on which assessment of such civil penalty is contingent.  

 (e) Withdrawal or Issuance of Additional Temporary Order. The director may withdraw a 
temporary order if compliance is achieved within 10 calendar days of posting or service thereof. 
If, after withdrawal, the violation is continued or repeated, the director may cause a second 
temporary order to be posted on the subject property or served on persons engaged in any work 
or activity in violation of this title. Any subsequent order involving the same violation shall be 
permanent.  

(8) Permanent Enforcement Order.  

 (a) A permanent enforcement order shall be issued by the director and become final 
within 10 calendar days, unless written appeal is received asking for a hearing before the hearing 
examiner.  

 (b) The permanent enforcement order shall contain:  

  (i) The street address and, when available, a legal description of real property;  

  (ii) A statement that the director has found the person to be in violation of this 
title and a brief and concise description of the conditions found to be in violation;  

  (iii) A statement of the corrective action required to be taken. If the director has 
determined that corrective work is required, the order shall mandate that all required permits be 
secured and the work be physically commenced and completed within such time as the director 
determines is reasonable under the circumstances, but in no event shall such time exceed 90 
days;  

Item 16 - 47



ORDINANCE Page 10 of  18 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108011409 

  (iv) A statement that the violator may be subject to a civil penalty in the amount 
set forth in subsection (3)(g) of this sectionof $1,000 for each day that the violation continues 
and, if applicable, the conditions on which assessment of such civil penalty is contingent;  

  (v) Statements advising:  

   (A) If any required work is not commenced or completed within the time 
specified, the director shall proceed to abate the violation and cause the work to be done and 
charge the costs thereof as a lien against the property and any other property owned by the 
person in violation and as a personal obligation of any person in violation; and  

   (B) If any assessed civil penalty is not paid, the director will charge the 
amount of the penalty as a lien against the property and as a joint and separate personal 
obligation of any person in violation; and  

   (C) The violator of the violator’s right to appeal and the appeal process.  

 (c) Any order issued by the director pursuant to this title shall be final unless a timely 
appeal is filed pursuant to Section 9 below.  

 (d) Service. Service of the permanent enforcement order shall be made upon all persons 
identified in the order either personally or by mailing a copy of such order by certified mail, 
postage prepaid, return receipt requested to the last known address. If the address of any such 
person cannot reasonably be ascertained, a copy of the order shall be mailed to such person at the 
address of the location of the violation. The failure of any such person to receive such notice 
shall not affect the validity of any proceedings taken under this title. Service by certified mail in 
the manner provided in this section shall be effective on the date of postmark. The order may be, 
but is not required to be posted on the subject property.  

 (e) Supplemental Order. The director may at any time add to, rescind in part, or otherwise 
modify a permanent enforcement order.  

(9) Appeal.  

 (a) A written appeal may be filed within 10 calendar days following issuance of a 
temporary enforcement order, stop work order, emergency order, or permanent enforcement 
order.  

 (b) An appeal of a stop work order or emergency order shall not stay the requirement that 
the specified work or activity immediately cease and/or be remedied. 

 (c) The director shall prepare and transmit to the hearing examiner any appeal of a 
temporary or permanent enforcement order, and in which a hearing shall be scheduled within 60 
days of the appeal date. Cost of the appeal shall be part of the decision. The hearing examiner’s 
decision may be reviewed by an action for writ of review in the superior court of Snohomish 

Item 16 - 48



ORDINANCE Page 11 of  18 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108011409 

County filed within 10 calendar days of the decision. If no appeal is filed in the required length 
of time, the hearing examiner’s decision shall be final.  

(10) Violation of Permanent Order. If, after any permanent order duly issued by the director or 
hearing examiner has become final, the person to whom such order is directed fails, neglects, or 
refuses to obey such order, including refusal to pay a civil penalty assessed under such order, the 
director may:  

 (a) Cause such person to be prosecuted under the provisions of this title;  

 (b) Institute any appropriate action to collect a civil penalty assessed under this title;  

 (c) Abate the violation using the procedures of this title; and/or  

 (d) Pursue any other appropriate remedy at law or equity.  

(11) Revocation or Suspension of Approvals or Permits. The director may permanently revoke or 
suspend any approval or permit issued under this title, Title 5 (Business Regulations and 
Licenses), including without limitation §§ 5.02.140, 5.20.080, 5.52.090; Title 6 (Peace, Morals 
and Safety), including without limitation Chapter 6.24, Title 7 (Health and Sanitation), including 
without limitation §§ 7.04.010 – 7.04.100; Title 9 (Fire); Title 11 (Traffic), including without 
limitation § 11.36.040; Title 12 (Streets and Sidewalks), including without limitation §§ 
12.08.140, 12.12, 12.20.010, 12.24, 12.36.020 – 12.36.030, 12.40.020 – 12.40.030; Title 14 
(Water and Sewers), including without limitation §§ 14.15.170, 14.16.100, 14.16.140, 14.17.050; 
Title 16 (Building), Title 18 (Planning), Title 19 (Zoning), Title 20 (Subdivisions), for any of the 
following reasons:  

 (a) Failure of the holder to comply with the requirements of such title; or  

 (b) Failure of the holder to comply with any order issued pursuant to this title; or  

 (c) Discovery by the director that an approval or a permit was issued in error or on the 
basis of incorrect information supplied to the city.  

Such approval of permit revocation or suspension shall be carried out through the notice and 
order provisions of this section. The revocation or suspension shall be final within five working 
days of the conclusion of a hearing unless the hearing examiner renders a written decision 
modifying or denying the revocation or suspension.  

(12) Lien.  

 (a) City Has Lien. The city of Marysville shall have a lien for any civil penalty imposed 
or for the cost of any work or abatement done pursuant to this title, or both, against the real 
property on which the civil penalty was imposed or any of the work of abatement was performed 
and against any other real property owned by any person in violation. The civil penalty shall be a 

Item 16 - 49

http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0502.htm#5.02.140�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0520.htm#5.20.080�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0552.htm#5.52.090�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv06/Marysv0624.htm#6.24�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv07/Marysv0704.htm#7.04.010�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv07/Marysv0704.htm#7.04.100�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv11/Marysv1136.htm#11.36.040�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1208.htm#12.08.140�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1220.htm#12.20.010�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1236.htm#12.36.020�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1236.htm#12.36.030�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1240.htm#12.40.020�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1240.htm#12.40.030�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1415.htm#14.15.170�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1416.htm#14.16.100�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1416.htm#14.16.140�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1417.htm#14.17.050�


ORDINANCE Page 12 of  18 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108011409 

joint and several obligation of all people found to be in violation. The lien shall be subordinate to 
all existing special assessment liens previously imposed upon the same property and shall be 
superior to all other liens, except for state and county taxes, with which it shall be on a parity.  

 (b) Director’s Authority to Claim Lien. The director shall cause a claim for lien to be 
filed for record with the auditor within 90 days from the date the civil penalty is due or within 90 
days from the date of completion of the work or abatement performed by the city of Marysville 
pursuant to this title.  

 (c) Notice of Lien. The notice and order of a director pursuant to this title shall give 
notice to the owner that a lien for the civil penalty or the cost of abatement, or both, may be 
claimed by the city. Service of the notice and order shall be made upon all persons identified in 
the notice and order either personally or by mailing a copy of such notice and order by certified 
mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested.  

 (d) Contents of Lien. The claim of lien shall contain the following:  

  (i) The authority for imposing a civil penalty or proceeding to abate the violation, 
or both;  

  (ii) A brief description of the civil penalty imposed or the abatement work done, 
or both, including the violations charged and the duration thereof, the time the work was 
commenced and completed and the name of the persons or organizations performing the work;  

  (iii) A legal description of the property to be charged with the lien; 

  (iv) The name of the known or reputed owner; and  

  (v) The amount, including lawful and reasonable costs, for which the lien is 
claimed.  

 (e) Verification of Lien. The lien shall be verified by the director to the effect that the 
director believes that the claim is just.  

 (f) Filing of Lien. The lien shall be recorded with the Snohomish County auditor.  

 (g) Duration of Lien. No lien created under this title shall bind the property for a period 
longer than three years after the claim has been filed unless an action is commenced in the proper 
court within that time to enforce the lien.  

 (h) Foreclosure of Lien. The lien may be foreclosed by a civil action in Snohomish 
County superior court.  

Item 16 - 50



ORDINANCE Page 13 of  18 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108011409 

 (i) Removal of Lien. All liens shall be removed by the city of Marysville when all 
conditions placed upon the violator(s) by a notice and order or by the hearing examiner have 
been satisfied. (Ord. 2045 § 1, 1995).  

4.02.050 Code enforcement procedures manual. 

The code enforcement officer shall have the authority to adopt and adhere to a code enforcement 
procedures manual which shall be available for public inspection and copying during regular 
business hours. (Ord. 2045 § 1, 1995). 

Section 2. Chapter 6.24 MMC is hereby amended by amending MMC 6.24.050 to read as 
follows: 

6.24.050 Types of nuisances.  

It shall be a “public nuisance” within the city of Marysville and a violation of the Marysville 
Municipal Code, if any responsible person or persons shall maintain or allow to be maintained on 
real property which he or she may have charge, control or occupy, except as may be permitted by 
any other city ordinance, whether visible or not from any public street, alley or residence, any of 
the following conditions:  

(1) Every person who makes or keeps any explosive or combustible substance in the city, or 
carries it through the streets thereof, in quantity or manner prohibited by Chapter 70.74 RCW, 
and every person who, by careless, negligent or unauthorized use or management of any such 
explosive or combustible substance, injures or causes injury to the person or property of another, 
commits a public nuisance.  

(2) No person shall permit or allow outside of any dwelling, building or other structure or within 
any unoccupied or abandoned building, dwelling or other structure under his control, in a place 
accessible to children, any abandoned, unattended or discarded icebox, refrigerator or other 
container which has an airtight door or lid, snap lock or other automatic locking device which 
may not be released from the inside, without first removing said door or lid, snap lock or other 
locking device from said refrigerator, icebox or container. Every violation of this section is a 
public nuisance.  

(3) No person shall abandon or discontinue use of or permit or maintain on his premises any 
abandoned or unused well, cistern or storage tank, without first demolishing or removing from 
the city such storage tank, or securely closing and barring any entrance or trap door thereto, or 
filling any well or cistern, or capping the same with sufficient security to prevent access thereto 
by children. Any such violation is a public nuisance.  

(4) No person shall, without lawful authority from the appropriate public entity, attach any 
advertising signs, posters, or any other similar object, to any public structure, sign or traffic-
control device. Such violation constitutes a public nuisance.  

Item 16 - 51



ORDINANCE Page 14 of  18 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108011409 

(5) No person shall attach to utility poles any of the following: advertising signs, posters, 
vending machines, or any similar object which presents a hazard to, or endangers the lives of, 
electrical workers. Any attachment to utility poles shall only be made with the permission of the 
utility company involved, and shall be placed not less than 12 feet above the surface of the 
ground. Such violations constitute a public nuisance.  

(6) Accumulations of the following materials in any front yard, side yard, rear yard or vacant lot 
unless screened from public view from the adjacent frontage street or streets: Aany and all junk, 
trash, litter, garbage, boxes, bottles, cans, ; any and all unused animal pens or cages, including 
any type of insect enclosures; and any and all discarded lumber, salvaged materials, or other 
similar materials in any front yard, side yard, rear yard or vacant lot, except for such materials 
being used for an immediate construction project on said premises.  

(7) Any attractive nuisances dangerous to children including, but not limited to, abandoned, 
broken or neglected buildings, equipment, machinery, refrigerators and freezers, excavations, 
shafts, or insufficiently supported walls or fences in any front yard, side yard, rear yard or vacant 
lot.  

(8) Broken or discarded furniture, furnishings, appliances, household equipment and other 
similar items, in any front yard, side yard, rear yard or vacant lot unless screened from public 
view from the adjacent frontage street or streets.  

(9) Dead, decayed, diseased or hazardous trees or vegetation/grass clippings (except that used as 
compost for fertilizer), including that which by casual contact with the skin is dangerous to 
public health, safety and welfare, located in any front yard, side yard, rear yard or vacant lot.  

(10) Graffiti, on the exterior of any building, fence, or other structure in any front yard, side yard, 
rear yard or vacant lot unless screened from public view from the adjacent frontage street or 
streets. subject to Chapter 6.25 of the Marysville Municipal Code.   

(11) Junk vehicles as defined by Section 11.36.030 of the Marysville Municipal Code. 

(1112) Nonoperational or abandoned unused automobile vehicles or parts thereof, or other 
articles of personal property which are discarded or left in a state of partial construction or repair 
for longer than 30 days,  in any front yard, side yard, rear yard or vacant lot unless screened from 
public view from the adjacent frontage street or streets. The responsible person may have on his 
or her premises, at any one time, only one nonoperational or abandonedunused vehicle outside an 
enclosed building for a period not to exceed 14 days. “Nonoperational or unused 
automobilevehicle” means an automobile vehicle substantially meeting one of the following 
requirements: 

 (a) Is immobile because it either: (i) lacks an engine or other parts or equipment 
necessary to operate it safely or legally on the street; (ii) has one or more flat tires; or (iii) is 
mounted on skids or jacks; 

Item 16 - 52



ORDINANCE Page 15 of  18 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108011409 

 (b) Displays registration tabs which have expired for more than 12 months;  

 (cb) Has overgrown vegetation or garbage or debris collecting underneath; or 

 (dc) Is used primarily to store items such as auto parts, yard tools, garbage, debris, 
clothing, miscellaneous household items, etc.  

(1213) Vegetation exceeding 12 inches in height (exclusive of plants and flowers within a flower 
bed, shrubbery and trees) located in any front yard, side yard, rear yard or vacant lotof a 
residential lot within a platted subdivision unless screened from public view from the adjacent 
frontage street or streets.  

.  

(13) Utility trailers, unmounted camper or recreation vehicles shall not be located in the front 
yard. They may be located in the driveway, parallel to the driveway, or behind the front building 
line of the property on either side of the building on a maintained surface.  

(14) Accessory structures, including detached garages, sheds, decks, patios and similar 
structures, which are not maintained structurally sound and in good repair. 

(15) Any unfinished structure, for which there has been a cessation of construction activity for 
more than two years and which is determined by the city to be in violation of the building code 
and subject to abatement by demolition or completion of the construction to meet the 
requirements of the building code.  

(16) Any catastrophic or fire damaged premises, which have not been secured from entry within 
forty-eight (48) hours and from which all debris has not been removed and properly discarded 
within ten (10) days of the fire department’ s release of the propertyas directed by the Fire 
Marshal and Building Official. 

(17) Fences, walls, hedges and retaining walls that are not maintained in a structurally sound and 
sanitary condition so as to endanger the public health, safety or welfare.   

(18) Exterior properties that are not graded and maintained to prevent the erosion of soil and to 
prevent the accumulation of water on the premises.  Storm water, including discharge from 
gutters, downspouts, swimming pools, hot tubs, spas, sump pumps or similar features shall not 
discharge water off the source premise unless expressly approved by the City of Marysville.   

(19) Open storage on premises except:  

   (a) As expressly permitted in Title 19 MMC; 

Item 16 - 53



ORDINANCE Page 16 of  18 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108011409 

   (b) Open storage does not include items customarily used in association with the permitted 
principal use of the property and suitable for outdoor use such as lawn furniture, play equipment, 
gardening equipment, and similar items; and 

  (c) Open storage does not include construction materials or seasonal materials used for 
gardening that are stored in a manner to protect their utility and prevent deterioration and are 
reasonably expected to be used at the site within six (6) months.   

  (d) Open storage does not include materials screened from public view from the adjacent 
frontage street or streets. 

(20) Premises containing rodent, insect and vermin harborage and/or infestation as determined 
by the county health officer.  Infestations shall be promptly exterminated by methods that ensure 
the public’s health, safety and welfare.  Owners shall take preventive measures to protect 
buildings and premises from future infestations. 

(21)  Sidewalks, walkways, stairs, driveways, parking spaces and similar areas on private 
property that are accessible to the general public, containing hazardous conditions or violations 
of approved site or plot plans and barrier free accessible parking requirements so as to endanger 
public health safety or welfare.   

 (22)  Swimming pools and swimming pool barriers that are not maintained in a clean, sanitary 
condition, and in good repair. 

(23)  Any hazard tree, as substantiated by a certified arborist or other recognized tree 
professional, that has not been removed from property or that is maintained in such a way that it 
threatens persons or property.threatens public health, safety or welfare. 

(24) Vacant structures and premises thereof or vacant land, which are not maintained in a clean, 
safe, secure and sanitary condition so as not to cause a blighting problem or adversely affect the 
public health.  

(25)  Motor vehiclesAutomobile parking on a residential lot within a platted subdivision, that are 
not  that are not parked on improved all weather surfaces and motor vehicles, other than those in 
subsection (b) of this section, or an approved driveway if located in the front yard.  that are 
parked in the setbacks except in front yard or side street setbacks when in a driveway that 
provides access to an approved parking location and in conformance with Title 19 MMC. 
 Parked motor vehicles shall not block access to required parking. 

(26) Recreational vehicles, boats, and trailer parking on a residential lot within a platted 
subdivision, that is not ons that are not parked, kept or stored on an improved all weather surface 
or that are parked, kept or stored in required front yard setbacks, except foran approved  a 
driveway if located in the front yard.  Recreational vehicle, boat, or trailer parking in the side or 
rear yard setbacks is allowed so long as emergency responders may access all sides of a 

Item 16 - 54



ORDINANCE Page 17 of  18 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108011409 

structure.   Access to parking shall be via an approved driveway approach and an improved all 
weather surface.  

(27) Truck tractors, as defined in RCW 46.04.655, and semi-trailers, as defined in RCW 
46.04.530, that are parked, kept or stored in residentially zoned areas, on residential property in 
other zones or on sites that have not been permitted, improved and approved for such use.  This 
requirement shall not apply to the parking, keeping or storage of agricultural machinery on 
residential premises to be used for agricultural use allowed by Title 19 MMC or when equipment 
is used in conjunction with a permitted or allowed project.   

(28) Heavy commercial equipment that is not be parked, kept or stored in residentially zoned 
areas, on residential property in other zones or on sites that have not been permitted, improved 
and approved for such use.  This requirement shall not apply to the parking, keeping or storage 
of agricultural machinery on residential premises to be used for agricultural use allowed by Title 
19 MMC or when equipment is used in conjunction with an ongoing permitted or allowed 
project. 

(29) Temporary or portable structures, such as portable storage tents, temporary canopies, or 
other similar structures, which are not removed within seventy-two hours, unless screened from 
public view from the adjacent frontage street or streetswhen located within the front yard. 

Section 3.  Severability.  
 If any word, phrase, sentence, provision, or portion of this ordinance is declared to be invalid or 
unenforceable, it shall not affect validity or enforceability of the remaining words, phrases, 
sentences, provisions or portions of this ordinance. 
 
PASSED by the City Council and APPROVED by the Mayor this _____ day of _______, 20089. 
 
       CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
 
 
       By____________________________ 
       DENNIS KENDALL, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By____________________________ 
TRACY JEFFRIES, CITY CLERK 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
By____________________________ 
GRANT K. WEED CITY ATTORNEY 

Item 16 - 55



ORDINANCE Page 18 of  18 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108011409 

 
 
Date of Publication: _______________ 
 
Effective Date (5 days after publication): _______________ 
 

Item 16 - 56



ORDINANCE Page 1 of  18 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108012109 

C I T Y   O F   M A R Y S V I L L E 
 Marysville, Washington 
 
 ORDINANCE NO. ______ 
 
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MARYSVILLE, WASHINGTON AMENDING 

THE CITY’S CODE ENFORCEMENT AND NUISANCE REGULATIONS AND 
AMENDING CHAPTERS 4.02 AND 6.24 OF THE MARYSVILLE MUNICIPAL 
CODE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is in the public interest to update the City’s code 

enforcement and nuisance regulations; 
  

 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MARYSVILLE, 
WASHINGTON DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  Chapter 4.02 MMC is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Chapter 4.02 
ENFORCEMENT PROCEDURES 
Sections:  

4.02.010 Purposes. 

4.02.020 Definitions. 

4.02.030 Citizen complaints. 

4.02.040 Penalties and enforcement. 

4.02.050 Code enforcement procedures manual. 

4.02.010 Purposes. 

The purposes of this title are:  

(1) To establish an efficient system to enforce the city of Marysville Municipal Code (MMC), 
providing for both civil remedies, civil citations and criminal citationremedies for violations;  

 

(2) To provide opportunity for a prompt hearing and decision on alleged violations of the MMC;  

Item 16 - 57

http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv04/Marysv0402.htm#4.02.010�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv04/Marysv0402.htm#4.02.020�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv04/Marysv0402.htm#4.02.030�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv04/Marysv0402.htm#4.02.040�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv04/Marysv0402.htm#4.02.050�


ORDINANCE Page 2 of  18 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108012109 

(3) To establish monetary penalties for violations of the MMC; and  

(4) To abate/bring into compliance violations of the MMC. (Ord. 2045 § 1, 1995). 

4.02.020 Definitions. 

For the purposes of this chapter, the following definitions shall apply unless the context or 
meaning clearly indicates otherwise:  

(1) “City” means the city of Marysville, Washington.  

(2) “Director” means the directors of any department of the city, or such other head of a 
department that the city council hasis authorized by ordinance to utilize the provisions of this 
title to enforce violations of the MMC and shall include any duly authorized representative of 
such director. If more than one department is authorized to act under this title, the term “director” 
shall also be understood to mean all applicable “directors.”  

(3) “Hearing examiner” means the city of Marysville hearing examiner, codified by Chapter 2.70 
MMC, or the examiner’s duly authorized representative.  

 (44) “MMC” means the Marysville Municipal Code.  

(55) “Permit” means any form of certificate, approval, registration, license or other written 
permission given to any person to engage in any activity as required by law, ordinance or 
regulation. The term “permit” shall not include preliminary or final plat approval or any rezone.  

(66) “Person” as used in this title includes any natural person, organization, corporation or 
partnership and its agents, representatives or assigns.  

(77)  “Public nuisance” as used in this title is defined as a nuisance which affects equally the 
rights of an entire community or neighborhood, although the extent of the nuisance may be 
unequal. MMC 6.24.020(3) defines “nuisance.” (Ord. 2045 § 1, 1995). 

"Public nuisance"  means the following:  
    a.  a nuisance or public nuisance as defined in state statute or city ordinance, including but not 
limited to Ch. 7.48 RCW, Ch. 6.24 MMC, Ch. 6.25 MMC, and Ch. 7.04 MMC;  
    b. a nuisance at common law, either public or private;  

 

    c. a violation of the city’s land use, zoning, and environmental regulations (Titles 15, 18, 19, 
and 20 MMC) , construction code regulations (Title 16 MMC), water, sewer, and stormwater 
regulations (Title 14 MMC), business license regulations (Title 5 MMC), noise regulations (Ch. 
6.76 MMC), health and sanitation regulations (Title 7 MMC), fire regulations (Title 9 MMC), 

Item 16 - 58

http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv02/Marysv0270.htm#2.70�


ORDINANCE Page 3 of  18 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108012109 

animal control regulations (Title 10 MMC), abandoned, unauthorized and junk vehicle 
regulations (Ch. 11.36 MMC), and any other violation of the Marysville Municipal Code that 
poses a threat to the public health, safety or welfare. 

 
(8) “Screened from public view” means sight-obscuring fencing and/or landscaping is installed 
around the area or objects. 
 

4.02.030 Citizen complaints. 

(1) Written Complaint/Notice to Owner. On forms provided by city departments, any aggrieved 
person may file a written complaint with the director alleging that a violation of this title or other 
titles, chapters or sections of the MMC has occurred or may occur. The citizen complaint process 
shall not apply to actions for which there are administrative and/or judicial appeals provided for 
in this title or other titles, chapters or sections of the MMC. Each complaint shall state fully the 
causes and bases for the complaint and shall be filed with the appropriate department. A copy of 
the complaint shall be promptly mailed to the property owner of the subject property via first 
class and certified (return receipt requested) mail.  

(2) Hearing Before the Hearing Examiner. Within 60 days of completing and filing the 
complaint, the complainant may request, in writing, a hearing before the hearing examiner. As 
soon as the complaint is filed, the director shall cease all administrative action and schedule a 
hearing. The date of hearing shall be not more than 90 days from the receipt of the complaint. 
The person filing the complaint shall have the burden of demonstrating that a violation has 
occurred or may occur.  

(3) Hearing Examiner’s Decision. Within 10 city working days of the conclusion of the public 
hearing, the hearing examiner shall file a written decision with the department. The hearing 
examiner’s decision shall be final with a right of appeal only to Snohomish County superior 
court as provided in subsection (4) of this section. The hearing examiner has the authority to 
award costs and expenses to the prevailing party and the city.  

(4) Appeal to Snohomish County Superior Court. Within 10 city working days of the hearing 
examiner’s written decision, a party may appeal the hearing examiner’s decision to the 
Snohomish County superior court by filing a writ of review. In the event there is no appeal to 
superior court and the hearing examiner’s decision becomes final, it shall be enforced pursuant to 
MMC 4.02.040(10). (Ord. 2045 § 1, 1995). 

4.02.040 Penalties and enforcement. 

(1) Director Authorized to Enforce Codes. The director is charged with enforcement of the 
provisions of this title and the MMC.  

Item 16 - 59

http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv04/Marysv0402.htm#4.02.040�


ORDINANCE Page 4 of  18 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108012109 

(2) Violations. It shall be unlawful for any person to construct, enlarge, alter, repair, move, 
demolish, use, occupy or maintain any use or cause the same to be done in violation of any of the 
provisions of this title or other titles, chapters or sections of the MMC. Any such violation as 
determined by the director is declared to be a public nuisance and shall be corrected by any 
reasonable and lawful means as provided in this section. In the event the penalties provided in 
this title conflict with any penalty provided in any other section, chapter or title of the Marysville 
Municipal Code, the penalty provisions of this title shall control.  

(3) Director’s Remedies. Upon finding a violation, the director may:  

 (a) Institute appropriate action or proceeding to require compliance with this title or to 
enjoin, correct or abate any acts or practices which constitute or will constitute a violation;  

 (b) Issue a temporary enforcement order, stop work order, emergency order, or 
permanent enforcement order, pursuant to subsections (7) and (8) of this section;  

 (c) Abate the violation if corrective work is not commenced or completed within the time 
specified in a permanent enforcement order;  

 (d) Suspend or revoke any approvals or permits issued pursuant to this title, Title 5 
(Business Regulations and Licenses), including without limitation §§ 5.02.140, 5.20.080, 
5.52.090; Title 6 (Peace, Morals and Safety), including without limitation Chapter 6.24, Title 7 
(Health and Sanitation), including without limitation §§ 7.04.010 – 7.04.100; Title 9 (Fire); Title 
11 (Traffic), including without limitation § 11.36.040; Title 12 (Streets and Sidewalks), 
including without limitation §§ 12.08.140, 12.12, 12.20.010, 12.24, 12.36.020 – 12.36.030, 
12.40.020 – 12.40.030; Title 14 (Water and Sewers), including without limitation §§ 14.15.170, 
14.16.100, 14.16.140, 14.17.050; Title 16 (Building), Title 18 (Planning), Title 19 (Zoning), 
Title 20 (Subdivisions);  

 (e) Assess civil penalties after notice and order set forth in subsection (8)(b)(iv) of this 
section or recovered by legal action filing in Snohomish County superior court; and/or  

 (f) File a lien against the property for costs of abatement and/or civil fines.  

 (g) Issue civil infractions: 

  1(i). Any violation of this code to which this chapter applies is deemed and 
declared to be a civil infraction unless such violation is expressly designated as another class of 
civil infraction. Each day of violation shall constitute a separate civil infraction.  
 
  2(ii). Any person found to have committed a civil infraction shall be assessed a 
monetary penalty as follows: 
   a. Basic fine of _$________+ cost penalties and assessments 
imposed by the court rules. 
   b. other: fine as set forth in the following schedule: 

Item 16 - 60

http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0502.htm#5.02.140�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0520.htm#5.20.080�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0552.htm#5.52.090�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv06/Marysv0624.htm#6.24�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv07/Marysv0704.htm#7.04.010�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv07/Marysv0704.htm#7.04.100�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv11/Marysv1136.htm#11.36.040�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1208.htm#12.08.140�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1220.htm#12.20.010�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1236.htm#12.36.020�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1236.htm#12.36.030�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1240.htm#12.40.020�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1240.htm#12.40.030�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1415.htm#14.15.170�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1416.htm#14.16.100�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1416.htm#14.16.140�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1417.htm#14.17.050�


ORDINANCE Page 5 of  18 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108012109 

    FIRST VIOLATION REPEAT VIOLATION 
            
  Code Provisions: Non- Commercial Non- Commercial
    Commercial   Commercial   

Title:  Chapter:         
4 4.02         

Enforcement Code 
Enforcement, Stop Work & Emergency 

Orders $300  $500  $600  $1,000  
5 5.02         

Business Regulations & Licenses Business licenses $150  $250  $300  $500  
6 6.24         

Penal Code Public nuisances $150  $250  $300  $500  
  6.76         
  Noise regulations $150  $250  $300  $500  
7 7.04         

Health & Sanitation Unsanitary Conditions - nuisance $150  $250  $300  $500  
  7.08         
  Garbage Collection $150  $250  $300  $500  
9 9.04         

Fire Code Fire Code $150  $250  $300  $500  
12 12.24         

Streets & Sidewalks Sidewalks dangerous conditions $150  $250  $300  $500  
  12.36         
  Vegetation $150  $250  $300  $500  
  12.40         
  Clean conditions of Public Right of Way $150  $250  $300  $500  

14 14.01         
Water & Sewer General Provisions $150  $250  $300  $500  

  14.15         
  On-site Storm Water          
  Drainage Code $150  $250  $300  $500  
  14.16         
  Public storm drainage code $150  $250  $300  $500  
  14.17         
  Private storm drainage code $150  $250  $300  $500  

16 16.04         
Building Building Code $150  $250  $300  $500  

    FIRST VIOLATION REPEAT VIOLATION 
            
  Code Provisions: Non- Commercial Non- Commercial
    Commercial   Commercial   

Title:  Chapter:         
19 19.08         

Zoning Permitted uses $150  $250  $300  $500  
  19.12         
  Development Standards         

Item 16 - 61



ORDINANCE Page 6 of  18 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108012109 

  Density and Dimensions $150  $250  $300  $500  
  19.14         
  Development Standards -         
  Design requirements $150  $250  $300  $500  
  19.16         
  Development Standards -         
  Landscaping $150  $250  $300  $500  
  19.20         
  Sign Code $150  $250  $300  $500  
  19.24         
  Critical Areas Management $250  $350  $500  $700  
  19.28         

  
Clearing, Grading, Filling & Erosion 

Control $250  $350  $500  $700  
  19.32         
  Home Occupations $150  $250  $300  $500  
  19.40         
  Development Standards -         

  Recreational vehicle parks $150  $250  $300  $500  
 
 
  (iii). Civil infractions will be administered and processed through Marysville 
Municipal Court as setforth in the Marysville Municipal Code, state law, the Washington State 
Court Rules Infraction Rules for Courts of Limited Jurisdiction IRLJ and local court rules for 
Marysville Muncipal Court.     
 
 (h) Mitigate civil fines. 
  1.         The Director may reduce or waive civil fines assessed under this Chapter, 
if the violation is corrected within the specified deadline and the correction is verified by the 
City. A reduction shall be in writing and state the date on which the violation was corrected. 
  2. For reduction or waiver of fines, the person(s) named shall have the 
burden of proof that the violation has been corrected. 
  3. Any reduction or waiver shall be based on an evaluation of individual 
circumstances, including but not limited to the severity of the violation, repetition of violations, 
protection of the public interest, and responsiveness of the person(s) responsible to correct, cure, 
abate, and/or stop the violation. 
 

(4) Violators Punishable by Criminal Fine and Imprisonment. As an alternative to any other 
remedy provided in this title or by law or other ordinance, any person willfully or knowingly 
violating any provision of this title or other titles, chapters or sections of the MMC, or 
amendments thereto, or any person aiding or abetting such violation is guilty of a misdemeanor 
and upon conviction shall be punished by a fine not to exceed $1,000 and/or imprisonment for a 
term not to exceed 90 days. Each day such violation continues may be considered a separate 
offense.  

Item 16 - 62



ORDINANCE Page 7 of  18 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108012109 

(5) Inspections.  

 (a) Whenever the director has reasonable cause to believe that a violation has been or is 
being committed, the director or the director’s duly authorized inspector may enter any building, 
structure or property at any reasonable time to inspect the use and perform any duty conferred on 
the director by this title.  

 (b) If the building, structure or property is occupied, the director shall first present 
identification credentials, state the reason for the inspection and demand entry. If consent to enter 
is not given and if: 

  (i) The director has reason to believe that the conditions create an imminent and 
irreparable hazard, then the director shall enter; or  

  (ii) The director has reason to believe that the conditions do not create an 
imminent and irreparable hazard, the director shall enter after first obtaining a civil search 
warrant.  

 (c) If the building, structure or property is not occupied, the director shall make a 
reasonable effort to locate the owner or other person(s) having control and request permission to 
enter. If the director is unable to locate the owner or person(s) having control, and if: 

  (i) The director has reason to believe that conditions therein create an immediate 
and irreparable hazard, the director shall enter; or  

  (ii) The director has reason to believe that the conditions do not create an 
imminent and irreparable hazard, the director shall enter after first obtaining a civil search 
warrant.  

(6) Violators Punishable by Civil Penalties After Administrative Notice and Order.  

 (a) Director to Determine Violation and May Provide Enforcement Order. Within 30 days 
of notice of a potential violation, the director is authorized to and shall determine whether a 
violation has occurred and, if the director determines that a violation has occurred, shall issue a 
temporary or permanent enforcement order. The director shall notify the complainant, the owner 
or operator of the source of the violation, and the person in possession of the property or the 
person causing the violation of the director’s determination in writing within three city working 
days of the determination. Service of the notice by first class and certified (return receipt 
requested) mail to the last known address of the complainant and violators shall be deemed 
effective notice (see subsection (3)(d) of this section).  

 (b) Director May Commence Administrative Notice. Additionally, whenever the director 
has reason to believe that a use or condition exists in violation of this title and that violation will 
be most promptly and equitably terminated by an administrative proceeding, the director may 
commence an administrative notice and order proceeding to cause assessment of a civil penalty, 

Item 16 - 63



ORDINANCE Page 8 of  18 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108012109 

abatement or suspension of all activities, work or revocation of any approvals or permits issued 
pursuant to this title, Title 5 (Business Regulations and Licenses), including without limitation 
§§ 5.02.140, 5.20.080, 5.52.090; Title 6 (Peace, Morals and Safety), including without limitation 
Chapter 6.24, Title 7 (Health and Sanitation), including without limitation §§ 7.04.010 – 
7.04.100; Title 9 (Fire); Title 11 (Traffic), including without limitation § 11.36.040; Title 12 
(Streets and Sidewalks), including without limitation §§ 12.08.140, 12.12, 12.20.010, 12.24, 
12.36.020 – 12.36.030, 12.40.020 – 12.40.030; Title 14 (Water and Sewers), including without 
limitation §§ 14.15.170, 14.16.100, 14.16.140, 14.17.050; Title 16 (Building), Title 18 
(Planning), Title 19 (Zoning), Title 20 (Subdivisions).  

(7) Temporary Enforcement Order, Stop Work Order, and Emergency Order.  

 (a) The director may cause a temporary enforcement order, stop work order, or 
emergency order (“Order”) to be posted on the subject property or served on the property owner 
and/or persons engaged in any work or activity on the property, as provided in this sectionin 
violation of this title. 

  (i) A temporary order may be issued pursuant to and in accordance with 
subsection (6)(a) of this section. 

  (ii)  A stop work order may be issued to immediately cease specified work or 
activity, when the director finds that such work or activity is being conducted in violation of the 
MMC or in a dangerous or unsafe manner. 

  (iii) An emergency order may be issued to immediately cease and remedy 
specified work or activity, when the director finds that such work or activity is being conducted 
in a hazardous or unsafe manner that threatens the health or safety of the occupants of any 
premises or members of the public. 

  (iv) Violation of a stop work order or emergency order shall shall constitute a 
misdemeanor, punishable as provided in subsection (4) of this section. 
 

 (b) The order shall require immediate cessation of such work or activities and may 
temporarily suspend any approval or permit issued under this title, Title 5 (Business Regulations 
and Licenses), including without limitation §§ 5.02.140, 5.20.080, 5.52.090; Title 6 (Peace, 
Morals and Safety), including without limitation Chapter 6.24, Title 7 (Health and Sanitation), 
including without limitation §§ 7.04.010 – 7.04.100; Title 9 (Fire); Title 11 (Traffic), including 
without limitation § 11.36.040; Title 12 (Streets and Sidewalks), including without limitation §§ 
12.08.140, 12.12, 12.20.010, 12.24, 12.36.020 – 12.36.030, 12.40.020 – 12.40.030; Title 14 
(Water and Sewers), including without limitation §§ 14.15.170, 14.16.100, 14.16.140, 14.17.050; 
Title 16 (Building), Title 18 (Planning), Title 19 (Zoning), Title 20 (Subdivisions).  

Item 16 - 64

http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0502.htm#5.02.140�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0520.htm#5.20.080�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0552.htm#5.52.090�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv06/Marysv0624.htm#6.24�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv07/Marysv0704.htm#7.04.010�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv07/Marysv0704.htm#7.04.100�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv11/Marysv1136.htm#11.36.040�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1208.htm#12.08.140�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1220.htm#12.20.010�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1236.htm#12.36.020�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1236.htm#12.36.030�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1240.htm#12.40.020�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1240.htm#12.40.030�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1415.htm#14.15.170�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1416.htm#14.16.100�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1416.htm#14.16.140�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1417.htm#14.17.050�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0502.htm#5.02.140�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0520.htm#5.20.080�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0552.htm#5.52.090�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv06/Marysv0624.htm#6.24�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv07/Marysv0704.htm#7.04.010�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv07/Marysv0704.htm#7.04.100�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv11/Marysv1136.htm#11.36.040�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1208.htm#12.08.140�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1220.htm#12.20.010�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1236.htm#12.36.020�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1236.htm#12.36.030�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1240.htm#12.40.020�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1240.htm#12.40.030�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1415.htm#14.15.170�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1416.htm#14.16.100�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1416.htm#14.16.140�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1417.htm#14.17.050�


ORDINANCE Page 9 of  18 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108012109 

 (c) The order may be issued without written or oral notice and shall expire by its own 
terms in 10 days unless the director extends or issues and transmits a permanent enforcement 
order pursuant to subsection (8) of this section.  

 (d) The notice and order shall contain:  

  (i) The street address, when available, and a legal description of the real property;  

  (ii) A statement that the director has found the person to be in violation of this 
Title and a brief and concise description of the condition found to be in violation;  

  (iii) A statement of the corrective action to be taken;  

  (iv) A statement that the order shall expire by its own terms in 10 days unless 
extended in writing or a permanent order is issued;  

  (v) A statement that the violator may be subject to a civil penalty in the amount 
set forth in subsection (3)(g) of this sectionof $100.00 for each day that the violation continues 
and, if applicable, the conditions on which assessment of such civil penalty is contingent.  

 (e) Withdrawal or Issuance of Additional Temporary Order. The director may withdraw a 
temporary order if compliance is achieved within 10 calendar days of posting or service thereof. 
If, after withdrawal, the violation is continued or repeated, the director may cause a second 
temporary order to be posted on the subject property or served on persons engaged in any work 
or activity in violation of this title. Any subsequent order involving the same violation shall be 
permanent.  

(8) Permanent Enforcement Order.  

 (a) A permanent enforcement order shall be issued by the director and become final 
within 10 calendar days, unless written appeal is received asking for a hearing before the hearing 
examiner.  

 (b) The permanent enforcement order shall contain:  

  (i) The street address and, when available, a legal description of real property;  

  (ii) A statement that the director has found the person to be in violation of this 
title and a brief and concise description of the conditions found to be in violation;  

  (iii) A statement of the corrective action required to be taken. If the director has 
determined that corrective work is required, the order shall mandate that all required permits be 
secured and the work be physically commenced and completed within such time as the director 
determines is reasonable under the circumstances, but in no event shall such time exceed 90 
days;  

Item 16 - 65



ORDINANCE Page 10 of  18 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108012109 

  (iv) A statement that the violator may be subject to a civil penalty in the amount 
set forth in subsection (3)(g) of this sectionof $1,000 for each day that the violation continues 
and, if applicable, the conditions on which assessment of such civil penalty is contingent;  

  (v) Statements advising:  

   (A) If any required work is not commenced or completed within the time 
specified, the director shall proceed to abate the violation and cause the work to be done and 
charge the costs thereof as a lien against the property and any other property owned by the 
person in violation and as a personal obligation of any person in violation; and  

   (B) If any assessed civil penalty is not paid, the director will charge the 
amount of the penalty as a lien against the property and as a joint and separate personal 
obligation of any person in violation; and  

   (C) The violator of the violator’s right to appeal and the appeal process.  

 (c) Any order issued by the director pursuant to this title shall be final unless a timely 
appeal is filed pursuant to Section 9 below.  

 (d) Service. Service of the permanent enforcement order shall be made upon all persons 
identified in the order either personally or by mailing a copy of such order by certified mail, 
postage prepaid, return receipt requested to the last known address. If the address of any such 
person cannot reasonably be ascertained, a copy of the order shall be mailed to such person at the 
address of the location of the violation. The failure of any such person to receive such notice 
shall not affect the validity of any proceedings taken under this title. Service by certified mail in 
the manner provided in this section shall be effective on the date of postmark. The order may be, 
but is not required to be posted on the subject property.  

 (e) Supplemental Order. The director may at any time add to, rescind in part, or otherwise 
modify a permanent enforcement order.  

(9) Appeal.  

 (a) A written appeal may be filed within 10 calendar days following issuance of a 
temporary enforcement order, stop work order, emergency order, or permanent enforcement 
order.  

 (b) An appeal of a stop work order or emergency order shall not stay the requirement that 
the specified work or activity immediately cease and/or be remedied. 

 (c) The director shall prepare and transmit to the hearing examiner any appeal of a 
temporary or permanent enforcement order, and in which a hearing shall be scheduled within 60 
days of the appeal date. Cost of the appeal shall be part of the decision. The hearing examiner’s 
decision may be reviewed by an action for writ of review in the superior court of Snohomish 

Item 16 - 66



ORDINANCE Page 11 of  18 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108012109 

County filed within 10 calendar days of the decision. If no appeal is filed in the required length 
of time, the hearing examiner’s decision shall be final.  

(10) Violation of Permanent Order. If, after any permanent order duly issued by the director or 
hearing examiner has become final, the person to whom such order is directed fails, neglects, or 
refuses to obey such order, including refusal to pay a civil penalty assessed under such order, the 
director may:  

 (a) Cause such person to be prosecuted under the provisions of this title;  

 (b) Institute any appropriate action to collect a civil penalty assessed under this title;  

 (c) Abate the violation using the procedures of this title; and/or  

 (d) Pursue any other appropriate remedy at law or equity.  

(11) Revocation or Suspension of Approvals or Permits. The director may permanently revoke or 
suspend any approval or permit issued under this title, Title 5 (Business Regulations and 
Licenses), including without limitation §§ 5.02.140, 5.20.080, 5.52.090; Title 6 (Peace, Morals 
and Safety), including without limitation Chapter 6.24, Title 7 (Health and Sanitation), including 
without limitation §§ 7.04.010 – 7.04.100; Title 9 (Fire); Title 11 (Traffic), including without 
limitation § 11.36.040; Title 12 (Streets and Sidewalks), including without limitation §§ 
12.08.140, 12.12, 12.20.010, 12.24, 12.36.020 – 12.36.030, 12.40.020 – 12.40.030; Title 14 
(Water and Sewers), including without limitation §§ 14.15.170, 14.16.100, 14.16.140, 14.17.050; 
Title 16 (Building), Title 18 (Planning), Title 19 (Zoning), Title 20 (Subdivisions), for any of the 
following reasons:  

 (a) Failure of the holder to comply with the requirements of such title; or  

 (b) Failure of the holder to comply with any order issued pursuant to this title; or  

 (c) Discovery by the director that an approval or a permit was issued in error or on the 
basis of incorrect information supplied to the city.  

Such approval of permit revocation or suspension shall be carried out through the notice and 
order provisions of this section. The revocation or suspension shall be final within five working 
days of the conclusion of a hearing unless the hearing examiner renders a written decision 
modifying or denying the revocation or suspension.  

(12) Lien.  

 (a) City Has Lien. The city of Marysville shall have a lien for any civil penalty imposed 
or for the cost of any work or abatement done pursuant to this title, or both, against the real 
property on which the civil penalty was imposed or any of the work of abatement was performed 
and against any other real property owned by any person in violation. The civil penalty shall be a 

Item 16 - 67

http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0502.htm#5.02.140�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0520.htm#5.20.080�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0552.htm#5.52.090�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv06/Marysv0624.htm#6.24�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv07/Marysv0704.htm#7.04.010�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv07/Marysv0704.htm#7.04.100�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv11/Marysv1136.htm#11.36.040�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1208.htm#12.08.140�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1220.htm#12.20.010�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1236.htm#12.36.020�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1236.htm#12.36.030�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1240.htm#12.40.020�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1240.htm#12.40.030�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1415.htm#14.15.170�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1416.htm#14.16.100�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1416.htm#14.16.140�
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1417.htm#14.17.050�


ORDINANCE Page 12 of  18 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108012109 

joint and several obligation of all people found to be in violation. The lien shall be subordinate to 
all existing special assessment liens previously imposed upon the same property and shall be 
superior to all other liens, except for state and county taxes, with which it shall be on a parity.  

 (b) Director’s Authority to Claim Lien. The director shall cause a claim for lien to be 
filed for record with the auditor within 90 days from the date the civil penalty is due or within 90 
days from the date of completion of the work or abatement performed by the city of Marysville 
pursuant to this title.  

 (c) Notice of Lien. The notice and order of a director pursuant to this title shall give 
notice to the owner that a lien for the civil penalty or the cost of abatement, or both, may be 
claimed by the city. Service of the notice and order shall be made upon all persons identified in 
the notice and order either personally or by mailing a copy of such notice and order by certified 
mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested.  

 (d) Contents of Lien. The claim of lien shall contain the following:  

  (i) The authority for imposing a civil penalty or proceeding to abate the violation, 
or both;  

  (ii) A brief description of the civil penalty imposed or the abatement work done, 
or both, including the violations charged and the duration thereof, the time the work was 
commenced and completed and the name of the persons or organizations performing the work;  

  (iii) A legal description of the property to be charged with the lien; 

  (iv) The name of the known or reputed owner; and  

  (v) The amount, including lawful and reasonable costs, for which the lien is 
claimed.  

 (e) Verification of Lien. The lien shall be verified by the director to the effect that the 
director believes that the claim is just.  

 (f) Filing of Lien. The lien shall be recorded with the Snohomish County auditor.  

 (g) Duration of Lien. No lien created under this title shall bind the property for a period 
longer than three years after the claim has been filed unless an action is commenced in the proper 
court within that time to enforce the lien.  

 (h) Foreclosure of Lien. The lien may be foreclosed by a civil action in Snohomish 
County superior court.  

Item 16 - 68



ORDINANCE Page 13 of  18 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108012109 

 (i) Removal of Lien. All liens shall be removed by the city of Marysville when all 
conditions placed upon the violator(s) by a notice and order or by the hearing examiner have 
been satisfied. (Ord. 2045 § 1, 1995).  

4.02.050 Code enforcement procedures manual. 

The code enforcement officer shall have the authority to adopt and adhere to a code enforcement 
procedures manual which shall be available for public inspection and copying during regular 
business hours. (Ord. 2045 § 1, 1995). 

Section 2. Chapter 6.24 MMC is hereby amended by amending MMC 6.24.050 to read as 
follows: 

6.24.050 Types of nuisances.  

It shall be a “public nuisance” within the city of Marysville and a violation of the Marysville 
Municipal Code, if any responsible person or persons shall maintain or allow to be maintained on 
real property which he or she may have charge, control or occupy, except as may be permitted by 
any other city ordinance, whether visible or not from any public street, alley or residence, any of 
the following conditions:  

(1) Every person who makes or keeps any explosive or combustible substance in the city, or 
carries it through the streets thereof, in quantity or manner prohibited by Chapter 70.74 RCW, 
and every person who, by careless, negligent or unauthorized use or management of any such 
explosive or combustible substance, injures or causes injury to the person or property of another, 
commits a public nuisance.  

(2) No person shall permit or allow outside of any dwelling, building or other structure or within 
any unoccupied or abandoned building, dwelling or other structure under his control, in a place 
accessible to children, any abandoned, unattended or discarded icebox, refrigerator or other 
container which has an airtight door or lid, snap lock or other automatic locking device which 
may not be released from the inside, without first removing said door or lid, snap lock or other 
locking device from said refrigerator, icebox or container. Every violation of this section is a 
public nuisance.  

(3) No person shall abandon or discontinue use of or permit or maintain on his premises any 
abandoned or unused well, cistern or storage tank, without first demolishing or removing from 
the city such storage tank, or securely closing and barring any entrance or trap door thereto, or 
filling any well or cistern, or capping the same with sufficient security to prevent access thereto 
by children. Any such violation is a public nuisance.  

(4) No person shall, without lawful authority from the appropriate public entity, attach any 
advertising signs, posters, or any other similar object, to any public structure, sign or traffic-
control device. Such violation constitutes a public nuisance.  

Item 16 - 69



ORDINANCE Page 14 of  18 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108012109 

(5) No person shall attach to utility poles any of the following: advertising signs, posters, 
vending machines, or any similar object which presents a hazard to, or endangers the lives of, 
electrical workers. Any attachment to utility poles shall only be made with the permission of the 
utility company involved, and shall be placed not less than 12 feet above the surface of the 
ground. Such violations constitute a public nuisance.  

(6) Accumulations of the following materials in any front yard, side yard, rear yard or vacant lot 
unless screened from public view from the adjacent frontage street or streets by sight obscuring 
landscaping and/or fencing: Aany and all junk, trash, litter, garbage, boxes, bottles, cans, ; any 
and all unused animal pens or cages, including any type of insect enclosures; and any and all 
discarded lumber, salvaged materials, or other similar materials in any front yard, side yard, rear 
yard or vacant lot, except for such materials being used for an immediate construction project on 
said premises.  

(7) Any attractive nuisances dangerous to children including, but not limited to, abandoned, 
broken or neglected buildings, equipment, machinery, refrigerators and freezers, excavations, 
shafts, or insufficiently supported walls or fences in any front yard, side yard, rear yard or vacant 
lot.  

(8) Broken or discarded furniture, furnishings, appliances, household equipment and other 
similar items, in any front yard, side yard, rear yard or vacant lot unless screened from public 
view from the adjacent frontage street or streets by sight obscuring landscaping and/or fencing .  

(9) Dead, decayed, diseased or hazardous trees or vegetation/grass clippings (except that used as 
compost for fertilizer), including that which by casual contact with the skin is dangerous to 
public health, safety and welfare, located in any front yard, side yard, rear yard or vacant lot.  

(10) Graffiti, on the exterior of any building, fence, or other structure in any front yard, side yard, 
rear yard or vacant lot unless screened from public view from the adjacent frontage street or 
streets. pursuant to Chapter 6.25 of the Marysville Municipal Code.   

(11) Abandoned and junk vehicles as defined by Section 11.36.030 of the Marysville Municipal 
Code. 

(1112) Nonoperational or abandoned unused automobile vehicles or parts thereof, or other 
articles of personal property which are discarded or left in a state of partial construction or repair 
for longer than 30 days,  in any front yard, side yard, rear yard or vacant lot unless screened from 
public view from the adjacent frontage street or streets by sight obscuring landscaping and/or 
fencing. The responsible person may have on his or her premises, at any one time, only one 
nonoperational or abandonedunused vehicle outside an enclosed building for a period not to 
exceed 14 days. “Nonoperational or unused automobilevehicle” means an automobile vehicle 
substantially meeting one of the following requirements: 

Item 16 - 70



ORDINANCE Page 15 of  18 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108012109 

 (a) Is immobile because it either: (i) lacks an engine or other parts or equipment 
necessary to operate it safely or legally on the street; (ii) has one or more flat tires; or (iii) is 
mounted on skids or jacks; 

 (b) Displays registration tabs which have expired for more than 12 months;  

 (cb) Has overgrown vegetation or garbage or debris collecting underneath; or 

 (dc) Is used primarily to store items such as auto parts, yard tools, garbage, debris, 
clothing, miscellaneous household items, etc.  

(1213) Vegetation exceeding 12 inches in height (exclusive of plants and flowers within a flower 
bed, shrubbery and trees) located in any front yard, side yard, rear yard or vacant lotof a 
residential lot within a platted subdivision unless screened from public view from the adjacent 
frontage street or streets by sight obscuring landscaping and/or fencing. .  

 (13) Utility trailers, unmounted camper or recreation vehicles shall not be located in the front 
yard. They may be located in the driveway, parallel to the driveway, or behind the front building 
line of the property on either side of the building on a maintained surface.  

(144) Accessory structures, including detached garages, sheds, decks, patios and similar 
structures, which are not maintained structurally sound and in good repair. 

(155) Any unfinished structure, for which there has been a cessation of construction activity for 
more than two years and which is determined by the city to be in violation of the building code 
and subject to abatement by demolition or completion of the construction to meet the 
requirements of the building code.  

(166) Any catastrophic or fire damaged premises, which have not been secured from entry within 
forty-eight (48) hours and from which all debris has not been removed and properly discarded 
within ten (10) days of the fire department’ s release of the propertyas directed by the Fire 
Marshal and Building Official. 

(177) Fences, walls, hedges and retaining walls that are not maintained in a structurally sound 
and sanitary condition so as to endanger the public health, safety or welfare.   

(188) Exterior properties that are not graded and maintained to prevent the erosion of soil and to 
prevent the accumulation of water on the premises.  Storm water, including discharge from 
gutters, downspouts, swimming pools, hot tubs, spas, sump pumps or similar features shall not 
discharge water off the source premise unless expressly approved by the City of Marysville.   

(1919) Open storage on premises except:  

   (a) As expressly permitted in Title 19 MMC; 

Item 16 - 71



ORDINANCE Page 16 of  18 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108012109 

   (b) Open storage does not include items customarily used in association with the permitted 
principal use of the property and suitable for outdoor use such as lawn furniture, play equipment, 
gardening equipment, and similar items; and 

  (c) Open storage does not include construction materials or seasonal materials used for 
gardening that are stored in a manner to protect their utility and prevent deterioration and are 
reasonably expected to be used at the site within six (6) months.   

  (d) Open storage does not include materials screened from public view from the adjacent 
frontage street or streets. 

(200) Premises containing rodent, insect and vermin harborage and/or infestation as determined 
by the county health officer.  Infestations shall be promptly exterminated by methods that ensure 
the public’s health, safety and welfare.  Owners shall take preventive measures to protect 
buildings and premises from future infestations. 

(211)  Sidewalks, walkways, stairs, driveways, parking spaces and similar areas on private 
property that are accessible to the general public, containing hazardous conditions or violations 
of approved site or plot plans and barrier free accessible parking requirements so as to endanger 
public health safety or welfare.   

 (22)  Swimming pools and swimming pool barriers that are not maintained in a clean, sanitary 
condition, and in good repair. 

(232)  Any hazard tree, as substantiated by a certified arborist or other recognized tree 
professional, that has not been removed from property or that is maintained in such a way that it 
threatens persons or property.threatens public health, safety or welfare. 

(2324) Vacant structures and premises thereof or vacant land, which are not maintained in a 
clean, safe, secure and sanitary condition so as not to cause a blighting problem or adversely 
affect the public health.  

(254)  Motor vehiclesAutomobile parking on a residential lot within a platted subdivision, that 
are not  that are not parked on improved all weather surfaces and motor vehicles, other than those 
in subsection (b) of this section, or an approved driveway if located in the front yard.  that are 
parked in the setbacks except in front yard or side street setbacks when in a driveway that 
provides access to an approved parking location and in conformance with Title 19 MMC. 
 Parked motor vehicles shall not block access to required parking. 

(265) Recreational vehicles, unmounted campers, boats, and trailer parking on a residential lot 
within a platted subdivision, that is not ons that are not parked, kept or stored on an improved all 
weather surface or that are parked, kept or stored in required front yard setbacks, except foran 
approved  a driveway if located in the front yard.  Recreational vehicle, unmounted campers, 
boat, or trailer parking in the side or rear yard setbacks is allowed so long as emergency 

Item 16 - 72



ORDINANCE Page 17 of  18 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108012109 

responders may access all sides of a structure.   Access to parking shall be via an approved 
driveway approach and an improved all weather surface.  

(276) Truck tractors, as defined in RCW 46.04.655, and semi-trailers, as defined in RCW 
46.04.530, that are parked, kept or stored in residentially zoned areas, on residential property in 
other zones or on sites that have not been permitted, improved and approved for such use.  This 
requirement shall not apply to the parking, keeping or storage of agricultural machinery on 
residential premises to be used for agricultural use allowed by Title 19 MMC or when equipment 
is used in conjunction with a permitted or allowed project.   

(287) Heavy commercial equipment used for commercial purposes exceeding 6000 gvw, that is 
not allowed to be parked, kept or stored in residentially zoned areas, on residential property in 
other zones, or on sites that have not been permitted, improved and approved for such use.  This 
requirement shall not apply to the parking, keeping or storage of agricultural machinery on 
residential premises to be used for agricultural use allowed by Title 19 MMC,  or when 
equipment is used in conjunction with an ongoing permitted or allowed project., or to personal 
property and equipment that is primarily used on site for improvements and maintenance of the 
property.  

(298) Temporary or portable structures, such as portable storage tents, temporary canopies, or 
other similar structures, which are not removed within seventy-two hours, unless screened from 
public view from the adjacent frontage street or streetswhen located within the front yard. 

Section 3.  Severability.  
 If any word, phrase, sentence, provision, or portion of this ordinance is declared to be invalid or 
unenforceable, it shall not affect validity or enforceability of the remaining words, phrases, 
sentences, provisions or portions of this ordinance. 
 
PASSED by the City Council and APPROVED by the Mayor this _____ day of _______, 20089. 
 
       CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
 
 
       By____________________________ 
       DENNIS KENDALL, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By____________________________ 
TRACY JEFFRIES, CITY CLERK 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 

Item 16 - 73



ORDINANCE Page 18 of  18 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 112108012109 

By____________________________ 
GRANT K. WEED CITY ATTORNEY 
 
 
Date of Publication: _______________ 
 
Effective Date (5 days after publication): _______________ 
 

Item 16 - 74



ORDINANCE Page 1 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 012109 

C I T Y   O F   M A R Y S V I L L E 
 Marysville, Washington 
 
 ORDINANCE NO. ______ 
 
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MARYSVILLE, WASHINGTON AMENDING 

THE CITY’S CODE ENFORCEMENT AND NUISANCE REGULATIONS AND 
AMENDING CHAPTERS 4.02 AND 6.24 OF THE MARYSVILLE MUNICIPAL 
CODE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is in the public interest to update the City’s code 

enforcement and nuisance regulations; 
  

 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MARYSVILLE, 
WASHINGTON DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  Chapter 4.02 MMC is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Chapter 4.02 
ENFORCEMENT PROCEDURES 
Sections:  

4.02.010 Purposes. 

4.02.020 Definitions. 

4.02.030 Citizen complaints. 

4.02.040 Penalties and enforcement. 

4.02.050 Code enforcement procedures manual. 

4.02.010 Purposes. 

The purposes of this title are:  

(1) To establish an efficient system to enforce the city of Marysville Municipal Code (MMC), 
providing for both civil  and criminal remedies for violations;  

 

(2) To provide opportunity for a prompt hearing and decision on alleged violations of the MMC;  

Item 16 - 75

http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv04/Marysv0402.htm#4.02.010
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv04/Marysv0402.htm#4.02.020
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv04/Marysv0402.htm#4.02.030
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv04/Marysv0402.htm#4.02.040
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv04/Marysv0402.htm#4.02.050


ORDINANCE Page 2 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 012109 

(3) To establish monetary penalties for violations of the MMC; and  

(4) To abate/bring into compliance violations of the MMC. (Ord. 2045 § 1, 1995). 

4.02.020 Definitions. 

For the purposes of this chapter, the following definitions shall apply unless the context or 
meaning clearly indicates otherwise:  

(1) “City” means the city of Marysville, Washington.  

(2) “Director” means the directors of any department of the city, or such other head of a 
department that is authorized to utilize the provisions of this title to enforce violations of the 
MMC and shall include any duly authorized representative of such director. If more than one 
department is authorized to act under this title, the term “director” shall also be understood to 
mean all applicable “directors.”  

(3) “Hearing examiner” means the city of Marysville hearing examiner, codified by Chapter 2.70 
MMC, or the examiner’s duly authorized representative.  

(4) “MMC” means the Marysville Municipal Code.  

(5) “Permit” means any form of certificate, approval, registration, license or other written 
permission given to any person to engage in any activity as required by law, ordinance or 
regulation. The term “permit” shall not include preliminary or final plat approval or any rezone.  

(6) “Person” as used in this title includes any natural person, organization, corporation or 
partnership and its agents, representatives or assigns.  

(7)  "Public nuisance"  means the following:  
    a.  a nuisance or public nuisance as defined in state statute or city ordinance, including but not 
limited to Ch. 7.48 RCW, Ch. 6.24 MMC, Ch. 6.25 MMC, and Ch. 7.04 MMC;  
    b. a nuisance at common law, either public or private;  

    c. a violation of the city’s land use, zoning, and environmental regulations (Titles 15, 18, 19, 
and 20 MMC) , construction code regulations (Title 16 MMC), water, sewer, and stormwater 
regulations (Title 14 MMC), business license regulations (Title 5 MMC), noise regulations (Ch. 
6.76 MMC), health and sanitation regulations (Title 7 MMC), fire regulations (Title 9 MMC), 
animal control regulations (Title 10 MMC), abandoned, unauthorized and junk vehicle 
regulations (Ch. 11.36 MMC), and any other violation of the Marysville Municipal Code that 
poses a threat to the public health, safety or welfare. 

 

Item 16 - 76

http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv02/Marysv0270.htm#2.70


ORDINANCE Page 3 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 012109 

(8) “Screened from public view” means sight-obscuring fencing and/or landscaping is installed 
around the area or objects. 
 

4.02.030 Citizen complaints. 

(1) Written Complaint/Notice to Owner. On forms provided by city departments, any aggrieved 
person may file a written complaint with the director alleging that a violation of  the MMC has 
occurred or may occur. The citizen complaint process shall not apply to actions for which there 
are administrative and/or judicial appeals provided for in this title or other titles, chapters or 
sections of the MMC. Each complaint shall state fully the causes and bases for the complaint and 
shall be filed with the appropriate department. A copy of the complaint shall be promptly mailed 
to the property owner of the subject property via first class and certified (return receipt 
requested) mail.  

(2) Hearing Before the Hearing Examiner. Within 60 days of completing and filing the 
complaint, the complainant may request, in writing, a hearing before the hearing examiner. As 
soon as the complaint is filed, the director shall cease all administrative action and schedule a 
hearing. The date of hearing shall be not more than 90 days from the receipt of the complaint. 
The person filing the complaint shall have the burden of demonstrating that a violation has 
occurred or may occur.  

(3) Hearing Examiner’s Decision. Within 10 city working days of the conclusion of the public 
hearing, the hearing examiner shall file a written decision with the department. The hearing 
examiner’s decision shall be final with a right of appeal only to Snohomish County superior 
court as provided in subsection (4) of this section. The hearing examiner has the authority to 
award costs and expenses to the prevailing party and the city.  

(4) Appeal to Snohomish County Superior Court. Within 10 city working days of the hearing 
examiner’s written decision, a party may appeal the hearing examiner’s decision to the 
Snohomish County superior court by filing a writ of review. In the event there is no appeal to 
superior court and the hearing examiner’s decision becomes final, it shall be enforced pursuant to 
MMC 4.02.040(10). (Ord. 2045 § 1, 1995). 

4.02.040 Penalties and enforcement. 

(1) Director Authorized to Enforce Codes. The director is charged with enforcement of the 
provisions of this title and the MMC.  

(2) Violations. It shall be unlawful for any person to construct, enlarge, alter, repair, move, 
demolish, use, occupy or maintain any use or cause the same to be done in violation of any of the 
provisions of this title or other titles, chapters or sections of the MMC. Any such violation as 
determined by the director is declared to be a public nuisance and shall be corrected by any 
reasonable and lawful means as provided in this section. In the event the penalties provided in 

Item 16 - 77

http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv04/Marysv0402.htm#4.02.040


ORDINANCE Page 4 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 012109 

this title conflict with any penalty provided in any other section, chapter or title of the Marysville 
Municipal Code, the penalty provisions of this title shall control.  

(3) Director’s Remedies. Upon finding a violation, the director may:  

 (a) Institute appropriate action or proceeding to require compliance with this title or to 
enjoin, correct or abate any acts or practices which constitute or will constitute a violation;  

 (b) Issue a temporary enforcement order, stop work order, emergency order, or 
permanent enforcement order, pursuant to subsections (7) and (8) of this section;  

 (c) Abate the violation if corrective work is not commenced or completed within the time 
specified in a permanent enforcement order;  

 (d) Suspend or revoke any approvals or permits issued pursuant to this title, Title 5 
(Business Regulations and Licenses), including without limitation §§ 5.02.140, 5.20.080, 
5.52.090; Title 6 (Peace, Morals and Safety), including without limitation Chapter 6.24, Title 7 
(Health and Sanitation), including without limitation §§ 7.04.010 – 7.04.100; Title 9 (Fire); Title 
11 (Traffic), including without limitation § 11.36.040; Title 12 (Streets and Sidewalks), 
including without limitation §§ 12.08.140, 12.12, 12.20.010, 12.24, 12.36.020 – 12.36.030, 
12.40.020 – 12.40.030; Title 14 (Water and Sewers), including without limitation §§ 14.15.170, 
14.16.100, 14.16.140, 14.17.050; Title 16 (Building), Title 18 (Planning), Title 19 (Zoning), 
Title 20 (Subdivisions);  

 (e) Assess civil penalties after notice and order set forth in subsection (8)(b)(iv) of this 
section or recovered by legal action filing in Snohomish County superior court; and/or  

 (f) File a lien against the property for costs of abatement and/or civil fines.  

 (g) Issue civil infractions: 

  (i). Any violation of this code to which this chapter applies is deemed and 
declared to be a civil infraction. Each day of violation shall constitute a separate civil infraction.  
 
  (ii).
 Any person found 
to have committed a civil 
infraction shall be 
assessed a  fine as set 
forth in the following 
schedule:    FIRST VIOLATION REPEAT VIOLATION 
            
  Code Provisions: Non- Commercial Non- Commercial
    Commercial   Commercial   

Title:  Chapter:         

Item 16 - 78

http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0502.htm#5.02.140
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0520.htm#5.20.080
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0552.htm#5.52.090
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv06/Marysv0624.htm#6.24
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv07/Marysv0704.htm#7.04.010
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv07/Marysv0704.htm#7.04.100
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv11/Marysv1136.htm#11.36.040
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1208.htm#12.08.140
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1220.htm#12.20.010
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1236.htm#12.36.020
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1236.htm#12.36.030
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1240.htm#12.40.020
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1240.htm#12.40.030
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1415.htm#14.15.170
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1416.htm#14.16.100
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1416.htm#14.16.140
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1417.htm#14.17.050


ORDINANCE Page 5 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 012109 

4 4.02         

Enforcement Code 
Enforcement, Stop Work & Emergency 

Orders $300  $500  $600  $1,000  
5 5.02         

Business Regulations & Licenses Business licenses $150  $250  $300  $500  
6 6.24         

Penal Code Public nuisances $150  $250  $300  $500  
  6.76         
  Noise regulations $150  $250  $300  $500  
7 7.04         

Health & Sanitation Unsanitary Conditions - nuisance $150  $250  $300  $500  
  7.08         
  Garbage Collection $150  $250  $300  $500  
9 9.04         

Fire Code Fire Code $150  $250  $300  $500  
12 12.24         

Streets & Sidewalks Sidewalks dangerous conditions $150  $250  $300  $500  
  12.36         
  Vegetation $150  $250  $300  $500  
  12.40         
  Clean conditions of Public Right of Way $150  $250  $300  $500  

14 14.01         
Water & Sewer General Provisions $150  $250  $300  $500  

  14.15         
  On-site Storm Water          
  Drainage Code $150  $250  $300  $500  
  14.16         
  Public storm drainage code $150  $250  $300  $500  
  14.17         
  Private storm drainage code $150  $250  $300  $500  

16 16.04         
Building Building Code $150  $250  $300  $500  

    FIRST VIOLATION REPEAT VIOLATION 
            
  Code Provisions: Non- Commercial Non- Commercial
    Commercial   Commercial   

Title:  Chapter:         
19 19.08         

Zoning Permitted uses $150  $250  $300  $500  
  19.12         
  Development Standards         
  Density and Dimensions $150  $250  $300  $500  
  19.14         
  Development Standards -         
  Design requirements $150  $250  $300  $500  
  19.16         

Item 16 - 79



ORDINANCE Page 6 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 012109 

  Development Standards -         
  Landscaping $150  $250  $300  $500  
  19.20         
  Sign Code $150  $250  $300  $500  
  19.24         
  Critical Areas Management $250  $350  $500  $700  
  19.28         

  
Clearing, Grading, Filling & Erosion 

Control $250  $350  $500  $700  
  19.32         
  Home Occupations $150  $250  $300  $500  
  19.40         
  Development Standards -         

  Recreational vehicle parks $150  $250  $300  $500  
 
 
  (iii). Civil infractions will be administered and processed through Marysville 
Municipal Court as setforth in the Marysville Municipal Code, state law, the Washington State 
Court Rules Infraction Rules for Courts of Limited Jurisdiction IRLJ and local court rules for 
Marysville Muncipal Court.     
 
 (h) Mitigate civil fines. 
  1.         The Director may reduce or waive civil fines assessed under this Chapter, 
if the violation is corrected within the specified deadline and the correction is verified by the 
City. A reduction shall be in writing and state the date on which the violation was corrected. 
  2. For reduction or waiver of fines, the person(s) named shall have the 
burden of proof that the violation has been corrected. 
  3. Any reduction or waiver shall be based on an evaluation of individual 
circumstances, including but not limited to the severity of the violation, repetition of violations, 
protection of the public interest, and responsiveness of the person(s) responsible to correct, cure, 
abate, and/or stop the violation. 
 

(4) Violators Punishable by Criminal Fine and Imprisonment. As an alternative to any other 
remedy provided in this title or by law or other ordinance, any person willfully or knowingly 
violating any provision of this title or other titles, chapters or sections of the MMC, or 
amendments thereto, or any person aiding or abetting such violation is guilty of a misdemeanor 
and upon conviction shall be punished by a fine not to exceed $1,000 and/or imprisonment for a 
term not to exceed 90 days. Each day such violation continues may be considered a separate 
offense.  

(5) Inspections.  

 (a) Whenever the director has reasonable cause to believe that a violation has been or is 
being committed, the director or the director’s duly authorized inspector may enter any building, 

Item 16 - 80



ORDINANCE Page 7 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 012109 

structure or property at any reasonable time to inspect the use and perform any duty conferred on 
the director by this title.  

 (b) If the building, structure or property is occupied, the director shall first present 
identification credentials, state the reason for the inspection and demand entry. If consent to enter 
is not given and if: 

  (i) The director has reason to believe that the conditions create an imminent and 
irreparable hazard, then the director shall enter; or  

  (ii) The director has reason to believe that the conditions do not create an 
imminent and irreparable hazard, the director shall enter after first obtaining a civil search 
warrant.  

 (c) If the building, structure or property is not occupied, the director shall make a 
reasonable effort to locate the owner or other person(s) having control and request permission to 
enter. If the director is unable to locate the owner or person(s) having control, and if: 

  (i) The director has reason to believe that conditions therein create an immediate 
and irreparable hazard, the director shall enter; or  

  (ii) The director has reason to believe that the conditions do not create an 
imminent and irreparable hazard, the director shall enter after first obtaining a search warrant.  

(6) Violators Punishable by Civil Penalties After Administrative Notice and Order.  

 (a) Director to Determine Violation and May Provide Enforcement Order. Within 30 days 
of notice of a potential violation, the director is authorized to and shall determine whether a 
violation has occurred and, if the director determines that a violation has occurred, shall issue a 
temporary or permanent enforcement order. The director shall notify the complainant, the owner 
or operator of the source of the violation, and the person in possession of the property or the 
person causing the violation of the director’s determination in writing within three city working 
days of the determination. Service of the notice by first class and certified (return receipt 
requested) mail to the last known address of the complainant and violators shall be deemed 
effective notice (see subsection (3)(d) of this section).  

 (b) Director May Commence Administrative Notice. Additionally, whenever the director 
has reason to believe that a use or condition exists in violation of this title and that violation will 
be most promptly and equitably terminated by an administrative proceeding, the director may 
commence an administrative notice and order proceeding to cause assessment of a civil penalty, 
abatement or suspension of all activities, work or revocation of any approvals or permits issued 
pursuant to this title, Title 5 (Business Regulations and Licenses), including without limitation 
§§ 5.02.140, 5.20.080, 5.52.090; Title 6 (Peace, Morals and Safety), including without limitation 
Chapter 6.24, Title 7 (Health and Sanitation), including without limitation §§ 7.04.010 – 
7.04.100; Title 9 (Fire); Title 11 (Traffic), including without limitation § 11.36.040; Title 12 

Item 16 - 81

http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0502.htm#5.02.140
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0520.htm#5.20.080
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0552.htm#5.52.090
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv06/Marysv0624.htm#6.24
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv07/Marysv0704.htm#7.04.010
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv07/Marysv0704.htm#7.04.100
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv11/Marysv1136.htm#11.36.040


ORDINANCE Page 8 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 012109 

(Streets and Sidewalks), including without limitation §§ 12.08.140, 12.12, 12.20.010, 12.24, 
12.36.020 – 12.36.030, 12.40.020 – 12.40.030; Title 14 (Water and Sewers), including without 
limitation §§ 14.15.170, 14.16.100, 14.16.140, 14.17.050; Title 16 (Building), Title 18 
(Planning), Title 19 (Zoning), Title 20 (Subdivisions).  

(7) Temporary Enforcement Order, Stop Work Order, and Emergency Order.  

 (a) The director may cause a temporary enforcement order, stop work order, or 
emergency order (“Order”) to be posted on the subject property or served on the property owner 
and/or persons engaged in any work or activity on the property, as provided in this section. 

  (i) A temporary order may be issued pursuant to and in accordance with 
subsection (6)(a) of this section. 

  (ii)  A stop work order may be issued to immediately cease specified work or 
activity, when the director finds that such work or activity is being conducted in violation of the 
MMC or in a dangerous or unsafe manner. 

  (iii) An emergency order may be issued to immediately cease and remedy 
specified work or activity, when the director finds that such work or activity is being conducted 
in a hazardous or unsafe manner that threatens the health or safety of the occupants of any 
premises or members of the public. 

  (iv) Violation of a stop work order or emergency order shall shall constitute a 
misdemeanor, punishable as provided in subsection (4) of this section. 
 

 (b) The order shall require immediate cessation of such work or activities and may 
temporarily suspend any approval or permit issued under this title, Title 5 (Business Regulations 
and Licenses), including without limitation §§ 5.02.140, 5.20.080, 5.52.090; Title 6 (Peace, 
Morals and Safety), including without limitation Chapter 6.24, Title 7 (Health and Sanitation), 
including without limitation §§ 7.04.010 – 7.04.100; Title 9 (Fire); Title 11 (Traffic), including 
without limitation § 11.36.040; Title 12 (Streets and Sidewalks), including without limitation §§ 
12.08.140, 12.12, 12.20.010, 12.24, 12.36.020 – 12.36.030, 12.40.020 – 12.40.030; Title 14 
(Water and Sewers), including without limitation §§ 14.15.170, 14.16.100, 14.16.140, 14.17.050; 
Title 16 (Building), Title 18 (Planning), Title 19 (Zoning), Title 20 (Subdivisions).  

 (c) The order may be issued without written or oral notice and shall expire by its own 
terms in 10 days unless the director extends or issues and transmits a permanent enforcement 
order pursuant to subsection (8) of this section.  

 (d) The order shall contain:  

  (i) The street address, when available, and a legal description of the real property;  

Item 16 - 82

http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1208.htm#12.08.140
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1220.htm#12.20.010
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1236.htm#12.36.020
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1236.htm#12.36.030
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1240.htm#12.40.020
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1240.htm#12.40.030
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1415.htm#14.15.170
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1416.htm#14.16.100
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1416.htm#14.16.140
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1417.htm#14.17.050
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0502.htm#5.02.140
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0520.htm#5.20.080
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0552.htm#5.52.090
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv06/Marysv0624.htm#6.24
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv07/Marysv0704.htm#7.04.010
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv07/Marysv0704.htm#7.04.100
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv11/Marysv1136.htm#11.36.040
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1208.htm#12.08.140
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1220.htm#12.20.010
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1236.htm#12.36.020
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1236.htm#12.36.030
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1240.htm#12.40.020
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1240.htm#12.40.030
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1415.htm#14.15.170
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1416.htm#14.16.100
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1416.htm#14.16.140
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1417.htm#14.17.050


ORDINANCE Page 9 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 012109 

  (ii) A statement that the director has found the person to be in violation of this 
Title and a brief and concise description of the condition found to be in violation;  

  (iii) A statement of the corrective action to be taken;  

  (iv) A statement that the order shall expire by its own terms in 10 days unless 
extended in writing or a permanent order is issued;  

  (v) A statement that the violator may be subject to a civil penalty in the amount 
set forth in subsection (3)(g) of this section for each day that the violation continues and, if 
applicable, the conditions on which assessment of such civil penalty is contingent.  

 (e) Withdrawal or Issuance of Additional Temporary Order. The director may withdraw a 
temporary order if compliance is achieved within 10 calendar days of posting or service thereof. 
If, after withdrawal, the violation is continued or repeated, the director may cause a second 
temporary order to be posted on the subject property or served on persons engaged in any work 
or activity in violation of this title. Any subsequent order involving the same violation shall be 
permanent.  

(8) Permanent Enforcement Order.  

 (a) A permanent enforcement order shall be issued by the director and become final 
within 10 calendar days, unless written appeal is received asking for a hearing before the hearing 
examiner.  

 (b) The permanent enforcement order shall contain:  

  (i) The street address and, when available, a legal description of real property;  

  (ii) A statement that the director has found the person to be in violation of this 
title and a brief and concise description of the conditions found to be in violation;  

  (iii) A statement of the corrective action required to be taken. If the director has 
determined that corrective work is required, the order shall mandate that all required permits be 
secured and the work be physically commenced and completed within such time as the director 
determines is reasonable under the circumstances, but in no event shall such time exceed 90 
days;  

  (iv) A statement that the violator may be subject to a civil penalty in the amount 
set forth in subsection (3)(g) of this section for each day that the violation continues and, if 
applicable, the conditions on which assessment of such civil penalty is contingent;  

  (v) Statements advising:  

Item 16 - 83



ORDINANCE Page 10 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 012109 

   (A) If any required work is not commenced or completed within the time 
specified, the director shall proceed to abate the violation and cause the work to be done and 
charge the costs thereof as a lien against the property and any other property owned by the 
person in violation and as a personal obligation of any person in violation; and  

   (B) If any assessed civil penalty is not paid, the director will charge the 
amount of the penalty as a lien against the property and as a joint and separate personal 
obligation of any person in violation; and  

   (C) The violator of the violator’s right to appeal and the appeal process.  

 (c) Any order issued by the director pursuant to this title shall be final unless a timely 
appeal is filed pursuant to Section 9 below.  

 (d) Service. Service of the permanent enforcement order shall be made upon all persons 
identified in the order either personally or by mailing a copy of such order by certified mail, 
postage prepaid, return receipt requested to the last known address. If the address of any such 
person cannot reasonably be ascertained, a copy of the order shall be mailed to such person at the 
address of the location of the violation. The failure of any such person to receive such notice 
shall not affect the validity of any proceedings taken under this title. Service by certified mail in 
the manner provided in this section shall be effective on the date of postmark. The order may be, 
but is not required to be posted on the subject property.  

 (e) Supplemental Order. The director may at any time add to, rescind in part, or otherwise 
modify a permanent enforcement order.  

(9) Appeal.  

 (a) A written appeal may be filed within 10 calendar days following issuance of a 
temporary enforcement order, stop work order, emergency order, or permanent enforcement 
order.  

 (b) An appeal of a stop work order or emergency order shall not stay the requirement that 
the specified work or activity immediately cease and/or be remedied. 

 (c) The director shall prepare and transmit to the hearing examiner any appeal of a 
temporary or permanent enforcement order, and a hearing shall be scheduled within 60 days of 
the appeal date. Cost of the appeal shall be part of the decision. The hearing examiner’s decision 
may be reviewed by an action for writ of review in the superior court of Snohomish County filed 
within 10 calendar days of the decision. If no appeal is filed in the required length of time, the 
hearing examiner’s decision shall be final.  

(10) Violation of Permanent Order. If, after any permanent order duly issued by the director or 
hearing examiner has become final, the person to whom such order is directed fails, neglects, or 

Item 16 - 84



ORDINANCE Page 11 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 012109 

refuses to obey such order, including refusal to pay a civil penalty assessed under such order, the 
director may:  

 (a) Cause such person to be prosecuted under the provisions of this title;  

 (b) Institute any appropriate action to collect a civil penalty assessed under this title;  

 (c) Abate the violation using the procedures of this title; and/or  

 (d) Pursue any other appropriate remedy at law or equity.  

(11) Revocation or Suspension of Approvals or Permits. The director may permanently revoke or 
suspend any approval or permit issued under this title, Title 5 (Business Regulations and 
Licenses), including without limitation §§ 5.02.140, 5.20.080, 5.52.090; Title 6 (Peace, Morals 
and Safety), including without limitation Chapter 6.24, Title 7 (Health and Sanitation), including 
without limitation §§ 7.04.010 – 7.04.100; Title 9 (Fire); Title 11 (Traffic), including without 
limitation § 11.36.040; Title 12 (Streets and Sidewalks), including without limitation §§ 
12.08.140, 12.12, 12.20.010, 12.24, 12.36.020 – 12.36.030, 12.40.020 – 12.40.030; Title 14 
(Water and Sewers), including without limitation §§ 14.15.170, 14.16.100, 14.16.140, 14.17.050; 
Title 16 (Building), Title 18 (Planning), Title 19 (Zoning), Title 20 (Subdivisions), for any of the 
following reasons:  

 (a) Failure of the holder to comply with the requirements of such title; or  

 (b) Failure of the holder to comply with any order issued pursuant to this title; or  

 (c) Discovery by the director that an approval or a permit was issued in error or on the 
basis of incorrect information supplied to the city.  

Such approval of permit revocation or suspension shall be carried out through the notice and 
order provisions of this section. The revocation or suspension shall be final within five working 
days of the conclusion of a hearing unless the hearing examiner renders a written decision 
modifying or denying the revocation or suspension.  

(12) Lien.  

 (a) City Has Lien. The city of Marysville shall have a lien for any civil penalty imposed 
or for the cost of any work or abatement done pursuant to this title, or both, against the real 
property on which the civil penalty was imposed or any of the work of abatement was performed 
and against any other real property owned by any person in violation. The civil penalty shall be a 
joint and several obligation of all people found to be in violation. The lien shall be subordinate to 
all existing special assessment liens previously imposed upon the same property and shall be 
superior to all other liens, except for state and county taxes, with which it shall be on a parity.  

Item 16 - 85

http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0502.htm#5.02.140
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0520.htm#5.20.080
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv05/Marysv0552.htm#5.52.090
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv06/Marysv0624.htm#6.24
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv07/Marysv0704.htm#7.04.010
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv07/Marysv0704.htm#7.04.100
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv11/Marysv1136.htm#11.36.040
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1208.htm#12.08.140
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1220.htm#12.20.010
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1236.htm#12.36.020
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1236.htm#12.36.030
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1240.htm#12.40.020
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv12/Marysv1240.htm#12.40.030
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1415.htm#14.15.170
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1416.htm#14.16.100
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1416.htm#14.16.140
http://srch.mrsc.org:8080/code/DocView/marysvillemc/Marysv14/Marysv1417.htm#14.17.050


ORDINANCE Page 12 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 012109 

 (b) Director’s Authority to Claim Lien. The director shall cause a claim for lien to be 
filed for record with the auditor within 90 days from the date the civil penalty is due or within 90 
days from the date of completion of the work or abatement performed by the city of Marysville 
pursuant to this title.  

 (c) Notice of Lien. The notice and order of a director pursuant to this title shall give 
notice to the owner that a lien for the civil penalty or the cost of abatement, or both, may be 
claimed by the city. Service of the notice and order shall be made upon all persons identified in 
the notice and order either personally or by mailing a copy of such notice and order by certified 
mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested.  

 (d) Contents of Lien. The claim of lien shall contain the following:  

  (i) The authority for imposing a civil penalty or proceeding to abate the violation, 
or both;  

  (ii) A brief description of the civil penalty imposed or the abatement work done, 
or both, including the violations charged and the duration thereof, the time the work was 
commenced and completed and the name of the persons or organizations performing the work;  

  (iii) A legal description of the property to be charged with the lien; 

  (iv) The name of the known or reputed owner; and  

  (v) The amount, including lawful and reasonable costs, for which the lien is 
claimed.  

 (e) Verification of Lien. The lien shall be verified by the director to the effect that the 
director believes that the claim is just.  

 (f) Filing of Lien. The lien shall be recorded with the Snohomish County auditor.  

 (g) Duration of Lien. No lien created under this title shall bind the property for a period 
longer than three years after the claim has been filed unless an action is commenced in the proper 
court within that time to enforce the lien.  

 (h) Foreclosure of Lien. The lien may be foreclosed by a civil action in Snohomish 
County superior court.  

 (i) Removal of Lien. All liens shall be removed by the city of Marysville when all 
conditions placed upon the violator(s) by a notice and order or by the hearing examiner have 
been satisfied. (Ord. 2045 § 1, 1995).  

4.02.050 Code enforcement procedures manual. 

Item 16 - 86



ORDINANCE Page 13 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 012109 

The code enforcement officer shall have the authority to adopt and adhere to a code enforcement 
procedures manual which shall be available for public inspection and copying during regular 
business hours. (Ord. 2045 § 1, 1995). 

Section 2. Chapter 6.24 MMC is hereby amended by amending MMC 6.24.050 to read as 
follows: 

6.24.050 Types of nuisances.  

It shall be a “public nuisance” within the city of Marysville and a violation of the Marysville 
Municipal Code, if any responsible person or persons shall maintain or allow to be maintained on 
real property which he or she may have charge, control or occupy, except as may be permitted by 
any other city ordinance, whether visible or not from any public street, alley or residence, any of 
the following conditions:  

(1) Every person who makes or keeps any explosive or combustible substance in the city, or 
carries it through the streets thereof, in quantity or manner prohibited by Chapter 70.74 RCW, 
and every person who, by careless, negligent or unauthorized use or management of any such 
explosive or combustible substance, injures or causes injury to the person or property of another.  

(2) No person shall permit or allow outside of any dwelling, building or other structure or within 
any unoccupied or abandoned building, dwelling or other structure under his control, in a place 
accessible to children, any abandoned, unattended or discarded icebox, refrigerator or other 
container which has an airtight door or lid, snap lock or other automatic locking device which 
may not be released from the inside, without first removing said door or lid, snap lock or other 
locking device from said refrigerator, icebox or container. (3) No person shall abandon or 
discontinue use of or permit or maintain on his premises any abandoned or unused well, cistern 
or storage tank, without first demolishing or removing from the city such storage tank, or 
securely closing and barring any entrance or trap door thereto, or filling any well or cistern, or 
capping the same with sufficient security to prevent access thereto by children.  

(4) No person shall, without lawful authority from the appropriate public entity, attach any 
advertising signs, posters, or any other similar object, to any public structure, sign or traffic-
control device..  

(5) No person shall attach to utility poles any of the following: advertising signs, posters, 
vending machines, or any similar object which presents a hazard to, or endangers the lives of, 
electrical workers. Any attachment to utility poles shall only be made with the permission of the 
utility company involved, and shall be placed not less than 12 feet above the surface of the 
ground. (6) Accumulations of the following materials in any front yard, side yard, rear yard or 
vacant lot unless screened from public view from the adjacent frontage street or streets by sight 
obscuring landscaping and/or fencing: any and all junk, trash, litter, garbage, boxes, bottles, cans 
; any and all unused animal pens or cages, including any type of insect enclosures; and any and 

Item 16 - 87



ORDINANCE Page 14 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 012109 

all discarded lumber, salvaged materials, or other similar materials, except for such materials 
being used for an immediate construction project on said premises.  

(7) Any attractive nuisances dangerous to children including, but not limited to, abandoned, 
broken or neglected buildings, equipment, machinery, refrigerators and freezers, excavations, 
shafts, or insufficiently supported walls or fences in any front yard, side yard, rear yard or vacant 
lot.  

(8) Broken or discarded furniture, furnishings, appliances, household equipment and other 
similar items, in any front yard, side yard, rear yard or vacant lot unless screened from public 
view from the adjacent frontage street or streets by sight obscuring landscaping and/or fencing .  

(9) Dead, decayed, diseased or hazardous trees or vegetation/grass clippings (except that used as 
compost for fertilizer), including that which by casual contact with the skin is dangerous to 
public health, safety and welfare, located in any front yard, side yard, rear yard or vacant lot.  

(10) Graffiti, pursuant to Chapter 6.25 of the Marysville Municipal Code.   

(11) Abandoned and junk vehicles as defined by Section 11.36.030 of the Marysville Municipal 
Code. 

(12) Nonoperational or unused automobile  or parts thereof, or other articles of personal property 
which are discarded or left in a state of partial construction or repair for longer than 30 days,  in 
any front yard, side yard, rear yard or vacant lot unless screened from public view from the 
adjacent frontage street or streets by sight obscuring landscaping and/or fencing. 
“Nonoperational or unused automobile” means an automobilesubstantially meeting one of the 
following requirements: 

 (a) Is immobile because it either: (i) lacks an engine or other parts or equipment 
necessary to operate it safely or legally on the street; (ii) has one or more flat tires; or (iii) is 
mounted on skids or jacks; (b) Has overgrown vegetation or garbage or debris collecting 
underneath; or 

 (c) Is used primarily to store items such as auto parts, yard tools, garbage, debris, 
clothing, miscellaneous household items, etc.  

(13) Vegetation exceeding 12 inches in height (exclusive of plants and flowers within a flower 
bed, shrubbery and trees) located in any front yard, side yard, rear yard of a residential lot within 
a platted subdivision unless screened from public view from the adjacent frontage street or 
streets by sight obscuring landscaping and/or fencing.  

 (14) Accessory structures, including detached garages, sheds, decks, patios and similar 
structures, which are not maintained structurally sound and in good repair. 

Item 16 - 88



ORDINANCE Page 15 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 012109 

(15) Any unfinished structure, for which there has been a cessation of construction activity for 
more than two years and which is determined by the city to be in violation of the building code 
and subject to abatement by demolition or completion of the construction to meet the 
requirements of the building code.  

(16) Any catastrophic or fire damaged premises, which have not been secured from entry and 
from which all debris has not been removed and properly discarded as directed by the Fire 
Marshal and Building Official. 

(17) Fences, walls, hedges and retaining walls that are not maintained in a structurally sound and 
sanitary condition so as to endanger the public health, safety or welfare.   

(18) Exterior properties that are not graded and maintained to prevent the erosion of soil and to 
prevent the accumulation of water on the premises.  Storm water, including discharge from 
gutters, downspouts, swimming pools, hot tubs, spas, sump pumps or similar features shall not 
discharge water off the source premise unless expressly approved by the City of Marysville.   

(19) Open storage on premises except:  

   (a) As expressly permitted in Title 19 MMC; 

   (b) Open storage does not include items customarily used in association with the permitted 
principal use of the property and suitable for outdoor use such as lawn furniture, play equipment, 
gardening equipment, and similar items; and 

  (c) Open storage does not include construction materials or seasonal materials used for 
gardening that are stored in a manner to protect their utility and prevent deterioration and are 
reasonably expected to be used at the site within six (6) months.   

  (d) Open storage does not include materials screened from public view from the adjacent 
frontage street or streets. 

(20) Premises containing rodent, insect and vermin harborage and/or infestation as determined 
by the county health officer.  Infestations shall be promptly exterminated by methods that ensure 
the public’s health, safety and welfare.  Owners shall take preventive measures to protect 
buildings and premises from future infestations. 

(21)  Sidewalks, walkways, stairs, driveways, parking spaces and similar areas on private 
property that are accessible to the general public,containing hazardous conditions or violations of 
approved site or plot plans and barrier free accessible parking requirements so as to endanger 
public health safety or welfare.   

 (22)  Any hazard tree, as substantiated by a certified arborist or other recognized tree 
professional, thatthreatens public health, safety or welfare. 

Item 16 - 89



ORDINANCE Page 16 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 012109 

(23) Vacant structures and premises thereof or vacant land, which are not maintained in a clean, 
safe, secure and sanitary condition so as not to cause a blighting problem or adversely affect the 
public health.  

(24)  Automobile parking on a residential lot within a platted subdivision, that are not on 
improved all weather surfaces or an approved driveway if located in the front yard.   

(25) Recreational vehicles, unmounted campers, boats, and trailer parking on a residential lot 
within a platted subdivision, that is not onan improved all weather surface or an approved  
driveway if located in the front yard.  Recreational vehicle, unmounted campers, boat, or trailer 
parking in the side or rear yard setbacks is allowed so long as emergency responders may access 
all sides of a structure.   (26) Truck tractors, as defined in RCW 46.04.655, and semi-trailers, as 
defined in RCW 46.04.530, that are parked, kept or stored in residentially zoned areas, on 
residential property in other zones or on sites that have not been permitted, improved and 
approved for such use.  This requirement shall not apply to the parking, keeping or storage of 
agricultural machinery on residential premises to be used for agricultural use allowed by Title 19 
MMC or when equipment is used in conjunction with a permitted or allowed project.   

(27) Heavy commercial equipment used for commercial purposes exceeding 6000 gvw, that is 
not allowed to be parked, kept or stored in residentially zoned areas, on residential property in 
other zones, or on sites that have not been permitted, improved and approved for such use.  This 
requirement shall not apply to the parking, keeping or storage of agricultural machinery on 
residential premises to be used for agricultural use allowed by Title 19 MMC,  or when 
equipment  used in conjunction with an ongoing permitted or allowed project, or to personal 
property and equipment that is primarily used on site for improvements and maintenance of the 
property.  

(28) Temporary or portable structures, such as portable storage tents, temporary canopies, or 
other similar structures, which are not removed within seventy-two hours, when located within 
the front yard. 

Section 3.  Severability.  
 If any word, phrase, sentence, provision, or portion of this ordinance is declared to be invalid or 
unenforceable, it shall not affect validity or enforceability of the remaining words, phrases, 
sentences, provisions or portions of this ordinance. 
 
PASSED by the City Council and APPROVED by the Mayor this _____ day of _______, 2009. 
 
       CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
 
 
       By____________________________ 
       DENNIS KENDALL, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 

Item 16 - 90



ORDINANCE Page 17 of  17 
g/mv/ord.Code Enforcement amend 012109 

 
 
By____________________________ 
TRACY JEFFRIES, CITY CLERK 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
By____________________________ 
GRANT K. WEED CITY ATTORNEY 
 
 
Date of Publication: _______________ 
 
Effective Date (5 days after publication): _______________ 
 

Item 16 - 91



 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 
 

DRAFT - CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
Marysville, Washington 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO.    
 
 
 

An Ordinance of the City of Marysville Amending the 2009 Budget and 
providing for the increase of certain expenditure items as budgeted for 
in 2009 and Amending Ordinance No. 2751 and Ordinance No. 2761. 
 
 

 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MARYSVILLE, WASHINGTON DO 
ORDAIN  
AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 
 Section 1. Since the adoption of the 2009 budget by the City Council on 
November of 2008, it has been determined that the interests of the residents of the 
City of Marysville may best be served by the increase of certain expenditures. The 
following funds as referenced in Ordinance No. 2751 and Ordinance No. 2761 are 
hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
 

Est. Beg. Ending Fund
Fund Bal. & Appropriations Balance

Fund Description Fund No. Revenue Adj. Adjustment Adjustment

General Fund 001 1,776,565       1,776,565        -                 
Capital Reserve Fund 005 1,776,565        (1,776,565)     
Technology Infrastructure 108 12,808             (12,808)          

Total Budget Adjustment 1,776,565$    3,565,938$     (1,789,373)$    
 
 
The detail concerning the above – referenced amendments are attached hereto as 
Exhibit “A”. 
 
 Section 2. Except as provided herein, all other provisions of Ordinance No. 
2751, and Ordinance No. 2761 shall remain in full force and effect, unchanged. 
 
 
 
 
 PASSED by the City Council and APPROVED by the Mayor this    
day of   , 2009. 

Item 18-1



 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 
 
       CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
 
 
       By      
                 MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By      
   CITY CLERK 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
By      
      CITY ATTORNEY 
 
 
Date of Publication:     
 
Effective Date (5 days after publication):      

Item 18-2



 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
 

EXHIBIT A – 2009 
Amendment Account Detail 

 
 

Beg Fund 
Balance/ 

Revenue Adj 
 Appropriation 

Adjustment 

 Ending Fund 
Balance 

Adjustment 
General Fund

Marysville School District Property Purchase 1,776,565        1,776,565         -                      
-                      
-                      

Total General Fund 1,776,565        1,776,565         -                      

Capital Reserve Fund - Fund 005
Transfer to General Fund for MSD Property Purchase 1,776,565         (1,776,565)      

Total Capital Reserve fund 1,776,565      1,776,565        (1,776,565)      

Technology Infrastructure - Fund 108
I-Net Expansion to New Fire Administration Building 12,808              (12,808)           

Total Technology Infrastructure Fund -                    12,808             (12,808)          

GRAND TOTAL 1,776,565        3,565,938         (1,789,373)      

Description

 
 
 
 
 
 

Item 18-3


	Agenda
	Item 1
	CC Recap 011209 DRAFT
	CC 011209 DRAFT

	Item 3
	Item 5
	Item 6
	Item 7
	Item 9
	AgendaBillINetBudgetAdjustment012409
	CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  

	AgendaBillINetBudgetAdjustment012409-A1
	    Attention: Ed Calamaro


	Item 12 
	Item 14
	Item 15
	Item 17
	Untitled
	Item 17

	Item 8
	Item 10
	Item 11
	Item 13
	CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  
	0754_WhiskeyRidge_DG_10-23-08.pdf
	Table of Contents
	Introduction
	Authorization and Purpose
	To What Properties Do the Standards and Guidelines Apply?
	When Do I Need to Comply?
	How Are the Standards and Guidelines Applied?
	Review Process 
	Definitions

	Design Standards and Guidelines
	Section A: Residential Subdivision Design
	Section B: Site Design
	Section C: Vehicular Access and Parking
	Section D: Pedestrian Environment
	Section E: Building Design
	Section F: Landscaping and Screening
	Section G: Signage
	 Section A:Residential Subdivision Design
	Section A:  Residential Subdivision Design
	A.1 Residential Subdivision Design
	Intent
	Standards and Guidelines


	 Section B:Site Design
	B.1 Building Location and Orientation
	Intent
	Standards and Guidelines

	B.2 Street Corners
	Intent
	Standards and Guidelines

	B.3 Open Space
	Intent
	Standards and Guidelines

	B.4 Side and Rear Yard Treatments
	Intent
	Standards and Guidelines


	 Section C:Vehicular Access and Parking
	C.1 On-Site Vehicular Access and Connections 
	Intent
	Standards and Guidelines

	C.2 Parking 
	Intent
	Standards and Guidelines

	Section D:.Pedestrian Environment
	D.1 Sidewalk and Pathway Standards and Guidelines
	Intent


	 Section D:Pedestrian Environment
	Standards and Guidelines
	D.2 Pedestrian Circulation
	Intent
	Standards and Guidelines

	D.3 Lighting
	Intent
	Standards and Guidelines


	 Section E:Building Design
	Section E:  Building Design
	E.1 Building Entries
	Intent
	Standards and Guidelines

	E.2 Architectural Character and Scale
	Intent
	Standards and Guidelines

	E.3 Building Details
	Intent
	Standards and Guidelines

	E.4 Building Materials and Color
	Intent
	Standards and Guidelines


	 Section F:Landscaping and Screening
	F.1 Landscaping
	Intent
	Standards and Guidelines

	F.2 Fences and Screening Elements
	Intent
	Standards and Guidelines

	Section G:  Signage
	G.1 Sign Standards and guidelines
	Intent


	 Section G:Signage
	Standards and Guidelines


	Definitions
	Undefined Words and Phrases
	Defined Terms


	0754_WhiskeyRidge_streets_10-23-08.pdf
	Contents
	35th St (SR 92 extension)
	Existing Conditions:
	Objectives:
	Street Design Recommendations:

	40th St NE
	Existing Conditions:
	Objectives:
	Design Recommendations:

	44th St NE
	Existing Conditions:
	Objectives:
	Design Recommendations:

	83rd Ave NE
	Existing Conditions:
	Objectives:
	Design Recommendations:
	Street Front Development:

	Densmore Road
	Existing Conditions:
	Objectives:
	Design Recommendations:

	87th Ave NE
	Existing Conditions:
	Objectives:
	Design Recommendations:
	87th Avenue NE - North Segment (north of 40th)
	87th Avenue NE – Central Segment (between 35th and 40th)
	87th Avenue NE – South Segment (South of 35th)

	Gateway at SR 92 and 35th St NE
	Existing Conditions:
	Objectives:
	Design Recommendations:

	87th Ave NE Roundabouts at 35th St NE and 40th St NE
	Transit Facilities
	SR 9 Fence and Landscaping Design Options
	Existing Conditions:
	Objectives:
	Design Recommendations:


	ord Whiskey Ridge design guidelines-dev reg ck R.pdf
	Chapter 19.14BDEVELOPMENT STANDARDS – DESIGN REQUIREMENTS FOR THE EAST SUNNYSIDE/WHISKEY RIDGE MASTER PLAN AREA
	19.14A.010 Purpose.
	19.14A.020 Applicability and interpretations.



	Item 16
	Item 16.pdf
	Item 16
	CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  
	ord.Code Enforcement amend 122908.pdf
	 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MARYSVILLE, WASHINGTON DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:
	Section 1.  Chapter 4.02 MMC is hereby amended to read as follows:
	Chapter 4.02ENFORCEMENT PROCEDURES
	4.02.010 Purposes.
	4.02.020 Definitions.
	4.02.030 Citizen complaints.
	4.02.040 Penalties and enforcement.
	4.02.050 Code enforcement procedures manual.
	6.24.050 Types of nuisances. 


	Code Enforcement Staff Report.pdf
	80 Columbia Avenue  Marysville, WA 98270
	STAFF REPORT

	Code Enforcement Staff Report.pdf
	80 Columbia Avenue  Marysville, WA 98270
	STAFF REPORT

	ord.Code Enforcement amend 122908_cln.pdf
	 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MARYSVILLE, WASHINGTON DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:
	Section 1.  Chapter 4.02 MMC is hereby amended to read as follows:
	Chapter 4.02ENFORCEMENT PROCEDURES
	4.02.010 Purposes.
	4.02.020 Definitions.
	4.02.030 Citizen complaints.
	4.02.040 Penalties and enforcement.
	4.02.050 Code enforcement procedures manual.
	6.24.050 Types of nuisances. 



	revised ordinance Code Enforcement 011409

	ord Code Enforcement amend 012109_3.pdf
	 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MARYSVILLE, WASHINGTON DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:
	Section 1.  Chapter 4.02 MMC is hereby amended to read as follows:
	Chapter 4.02ENFORCEMENT PROCEDURES
	4.02.010 Purposes.
	4.02.020 Definitions.
	4.02.030 Citizen complaints.
	4.02.040 Penalties and enforcement.
	4.02.050 Code enforcement procedures manual.
	6.24.050 Types of nuisances. 


	ord Code Enforcement amend 012109_cln.pdf
	 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MARYSVILLE, WASHINGTON DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:
	Section 1.  Chapter 4.02 MMC is hereby amended to read as follows:
	Chapter 4.02ENFORCEMENT PROCEDURES
	4.02.010 Purposes.
	4.02.020 Definitions.
	4.02.030 Citizen complaints.
	4.02.040 Penalties and enforcement.
	4.02.050 Code enforcement procedures manual.
	6.24.050 Types of nuisances. 



	Item 18 



